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. NOTICE OF A PUBLIC 'HEARING 

'. :'?:'l'he: Senate Labor, 1110.us:try .. and··Professions .Committee 

will hold a public hearing on Thursday, April 17, 

.10: 00 AM.'! in Room 334, State House Annex, on the £ollowin,g 

bil.1s: 

$-1160 
Feldmi;iri• 

S--1560 
·norsey 

S-1561 
Connors 

.. 5-1562 
·• Garibal.di 

>S-1563 
Gagliano 

5-1632 
Contillo 

~rohibits surcharges·on credit card purchases. 

Establishes an interest rate ceiling on revolving 
accounts i:or which a credit card is used .. 

Requires the reporting of interest rates for 
credit cards. 

Provid.es for the regulation of the .interest.rate 
· Oll .,credit cards under .certain .circumstances. 

Establishes .an .interest ·rate .:ceiling ·on .rev:o1ving 
accounts for .which .a credi.:t. card ,is .. used. 

... Establish€s a~ · .. ·.interestcei1ingi on>credit~- carias. 

Anyone wishing·.to testTfy .. should : .. contact'.'Dale·· Davis, 

·.· .... Committ€e ,Staff, ... at. 6.09-984-0445. 

.·~ 





SENATE, No. 1160 
· · '2/ : Introduced Pending TechnicalReview · by Legislative Counsel 

· PRE.;FILED.FORTNTRODUCTIOKIN··THEJ986.,SESSiON 

: .iBy Senator FELDMAN 

SENATE, No. 1500 

INTRODUCED APRIL 30, 1984 

By· Senator FELDMAN 

:Ref.erred fo. Committee on Labor, Industry and •Professions 

A!ir ACT. concerning surcharges -011 credit eard purehases 

amending an<l supplementing. P: L. 1960, e. 4:0. 

1 BE IT ENACTED by .tlie Senate and General, .Assembly of the St(lte 

2 ()j New Jersey: 
. . . . . . 

1 1. Section 1 of P, L. 1960, c. 40 ( C. 17 :16(;_:l) is amende(:l to read 

2 as iollows.: 

·~ 1.. In .this act; unless the conte.xt otherwise 1·equires, the following 

· 4 ,vords and terms shall have the following meanings: 

J (a) '"Goods'' means all chattels .personal which are prirn:arily 

6 for personal, f~mily or household purposes, including merchandise 

7 · certificates and coupons to be .exchanged for goods or services, 

8 l1avi11g a cash price .of $10,000.00 ol' less, but not including money . . 

9 or other choses in action. Goods shall not include chattels personal 

10 Sold for -eommercial or business use. 

11 · (b) ~/Retail instalhnent contract'' means , any contract, other 

J.2 · 'than a'retail cha1·ge aceount or·an instrument 11efiecting a>ale •.·. 

• 13 pursuant thereto, entered into in .this State between a tetailseller 

14 .and a retail bt1.yet evidencing an agreement to p~y the retail pm·-

15 . . chase price of gootis>o1· services, which are prhn~rily for personal, 

family .orJ1ousehold purposes, or• any part thereof, •in. two or more 

17 . installments over a .period of time .. This term includes .a security 

a.greement, chattel mortgage, conditioirnl sales contract, or otlier 

19 .similar instrument and .~ny contract for the bailment or leasing 

20 of goods ,by.• which,the· bailee,or.lessee,cag1•ees. to :pay as. compensa-

21 tion .a sum substantiaJly equivalent to or in excess .. of.the Yalur of 
Matter printed ht italics thus is new·matter. 



22 the goods, mid. by which it is ag·i·eed that the .bailee or lessee is 

:?3 bound to beco1ne, or has the option of becoming, the owner of such .• 
.. _ . . --

24 goods upon full compliance with the terms of such retail install-

25 ment contract. 

26 ( c) "Retail seller" means a person who sells or>agrees to sell 

27 goods .or services under a refaiLinstallment contract or a retail . . , 

28 charge account to a retail buyer, and sllaU include a motor vehicle . 

29 installment seller. 

30 (d) ''Retaifbuyer'' meansfiperson whc{hriy~ora'.if~es·fo._buy 

31 goods or services from a retail seller, not f~rlhe ;urpose of re-

32 sale, pursuant to al"etaii installment contra~t or a retaii charge 

33 account. 

34 (e) "Person" means anjndividual, partnership, :firlll, corpora-

33 Hon, b~nking insti!ution, _association or· 3:ny 0H1.er grb~~ . of indi~ 

36 viduals however organized. 

37 ,(f). '' Sale~ finance company'' mea!ls and includes any person 

38 engaging in this State in the .business of acquidngorananging 

39 for the acquisition. of retail installment contracts <>r obligations 

40 incurred pursuant to retail charge accounts by purchase, discount, 

-41 pledge or~therwisefroma retail seller which is not wholly owned 

42 by or. does not wholly own such person, and any person engaging, 

43 directly or indirectly, in thP. business of soliciting the purchase of 

44 r~tail installment contracts or obligati~ns incurred pursµant to 

45 .retail charg!:) accounts from a retail Seller _which is not wholly 
. ·. . .. . .. . - . . . 

46 owned by _or :aoes not ':V~ol.ly own such_ person, or in the business 

47' of aidirtg tbe i-etail seller in selling, assignirtg or a:rrangirtg for the 

48 · sale or assignment of retail installment contracts or obligations 

49 ·incurred pursuantto retail cha.-rge accounts, and any person other 

50 thnnarefail seller who enter·s into a retaitcharge account with a 

· 51_ . r_etail buyer. 

52 ( g) .· ' ' M:otorvehfole '' includes all vehicles us.eel for transportation 

53 upon highway propelled otherwise than by.muscular power, ex-

54 cepti1;1g such vehicles as ·r_11n only upon rails or tracks. 

55 

56 

57 
i-•· 

(h)• ''Mo.tor vehicle installment seller;' mean~a dealer irimotor 

vehicles, who is required fo be licensed under .chapter lOof Title 39 

of the Revised Statutes and wh~ sells or off e-rs to sell a motor . 

5$ vehicle t~ ·a retail buyer under a retail installm.ent contract. 
. . . . . 

59 ._ (j) ''Cashprice;'~means the minimum price for which the goods 

60 · .. or se~vices s·ubj~ct t~ a retail instalbnentc~ntract or a retail t;harge 

61 account or other gbods or services of Uke kind and quality may be · 

62 purchased.for ,casb·fromthe:s-eller. by the buyer, as stated fa .the 
. . 

63 retail installment .contract, the retail charge account or an instru-

64 ment reflecting a sale pursuant thereto. 

. t 
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(j). "'Down payment'' means all payments inad~ in cash -or in 

goods or partly in ca~b and partly in goods, received by the retail 

·seller prior to or substantially contemporaneous with either tbe 

execution of the retail insfaUment contract or the deHvery of the 

· goods; whichever occurs later. 

(k) 4 'Offic.ial fees" means the filing; -01· oth~r fees required by 

law to be paid to a public officer to perfect an interest or ij~n, on 
the goods, .retained or taken by a retail ~lle;. und~::a·,~~c:,· 
: .. .. .. . . - . . - -~ - ·- - . . - .. 

:-otallment contract and motor vebiclelicense and 

pai<l to the State; 

(1) "Time pr~ce differential'' means the amount or amounts, 

however denominated or c.omputed, in addition to the e,a.sh p:tfec, 
. . ... 

01· prit.~s, to be pai<l by the retail ~uyer foi· the privil~ge of pur-

chasing goods or services pu1·suaut to a retail.-installment contract 

or a retail chaI"ge account. Tbe term does not include the amount, 

if a separate charge is made therefor, for insurance .mid official 

fees. 

(111) ""Holder" means any person, including a retail seller, who 

is entitled to the rigbts of a retail seller under a retail installment 

contract or retail cbarge account. 

(11) ·•Banking .institution'' means any bmlk, national banking 
. . 

association, savings bank, or federally .chartered savings bank, au'" 

tliorized to do busineBs in tbis State, and for the purposes of tbii; 

ad only, an_associatio11 as defined in section 5 of the "'Savings and 

Loan Act (1%3), ., P. L. HJC3, c. 144 (C. 17 :12B-5 }. 

90 . (o) "Commissioner" means the Co~missioner of Banking of 

91 Xew Jen,ey and includes his deputies or any salaried employee of 

92 the Department of Banking named or appointed by tbe said c.:om-

93 missioner to perform any function in the administration or enforce,. 

)14 ment of fl1is aet. 

!la (p) «Payment-period'' means the period of tin1e scheduled by 

·t6 a.retail.installmenieontract to elapse·betweenfhe days :upon whieh 

!17 installmenfpa3·me11ts are i,icheduled to be nrnde on such contract; 

!}8 except that, ,,·heninstalhnent payments.are :aebeduled to be omitt€d, 

99, pursuant to section 26, ''payment-period"means theperiod of time 

.. 100 .:-:cheduled 'by the contract to elapse between the. days upon which 

101 installment. pa:nncnts are scJieduleJ to he made during that portion 

102 of the contract period in wl1ich Lo installment payme11tis scL€'dule<l 

103 to be omitted. 

104' (q) ''Contract periotl-' means A:he period :begim1in~· on the d;:ite 

10:i of n retail insta11rnen1 co11trad and ending 011 tbe <l,lte stLc•c1nled 

1.UG by the colltract for tlle,payment of the iiual installment. 
\ 

- 107 (r) ''Retail diargc accoun1 ·· means any necouni., other tlwn a 
lUS retail installment contract or a borne repair contract ,rbic:11 is sn b-
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109 ject to the "Home Repair Financing Act" (P. L. 1960,c. 41; 

110 C. 17 :16C-G2 et seq.), established by an agreement which prescribes 

111 the terms under which a retail buyer may from time to time pur-

112 chase or lease goods or services which are primarily for personal, 

113 family or housel1old purposes, and under which the unpaid balance 

114 thereunder, ,vhene:ver incurred, is payable in one or more install-

115 ments and under which a time price differentialmay be added in 

116 each billing period as provided herein. Retai1 chai:ge account also 

117 includes all accounts· arising out of the u.tiliz~tfon oy the hol<fe;f"1's;;,: 

118 of a. credit card, letter of credit or other credit identification issued 

119 by a sales finance company or banking institution, giving the holder 

120 the privilege of using the credit card, letter of credit or other credit 

121 identification to become a retail buye~ in transactions out of v,hich 

122 debt arises: (1) by the sales finance company's or banking institu-

123 tion's payment or agreement to pay the retail buyer's obligations; 

124 or (2) by the sales finance company's or banking institution's pur-

125 chase from the retail seller of the obligations of the user of the 

126 credit card, letter of credit or other credit identification as a retail 

127 buyer; 

128 ( s) ''Services'' means and includes work, labor and· services, 

129 professional and otherwise which are primarily for personal, fam~ 

130 ily or household purposes but does not include services which are 

131 subject to the "Home Repair Financing Act," and insurance pre-

132 miums financing which is subject to the ''Insurance Premium Fi-

133 nance Company Act" (P. L. 1968, c. 221; C. 17:16D-1 et seq.). 

134 (t) "Billing period" means the time interval between regular 

135 periodic billing statement dates. In the case of monthly billing 

136 periods, such intervals shall be considered equal intervals of time 

137 if the billing date of a billing period does not vary more than four 

138 days from the billing date of the immediately preceding billing 

139 period. In the case of billing periods which are not monthly, the 

140 permissible variation in billing dates shall be that proportion of 

141 four days (adjusted to the nearest whole number) which the num-

142 her of days in the billing period bears to 30. 

143 (u) "Professional services" means services rendered or per-

144 formed by a person authorized by law to practice a recognized 

145 profession whose practice is regulated by law and the performance 

146 of which services requires knowledge of an advanced type in a 

147 field of learning acquired by a prolonged formal course of special-

148 ized instruction and study as distinguished from general academic 

149 instruction or apprenticeship and fraining. 

150 ( v) "Surcharge" means any increase in the cash price of goods 

151 or services not otherwise authorized by· P. L. 1960, c. 40 (C. 



l 

., ' • . • !'• . .:: -·. .• •. ·: . 

. . . 

1ij217 :16C-1'et seq.)to a1'etail bityer who elects.to use· a retail charge ._ 

153 accOttnf, which increase is itOf i1nposed upon persons paying bjJ 

lfl4 axsk, check or Similar means. 

1 . :::L {Ne:wsection).A retail seller slfalLnot impose a surcharge on 

.2- -· a.1·et.aiLbu;yer who ,elects to use· a retaiLcharge account to pay for 

· 3 goods or<serviceSinlieu of payment by cash, check orsimila:r means. 
, . . - - . 

1 3. This act shalltake effect immediately. : .. / 

STA~E:Dt:tlt~T 
This bill would amend and ~11pplenie11t tbe 4(Retail ·Installmellt. _ .. _._-.. 

. Sales Act of 19.60, '' P .. L. 19601 c.,40-.(C. 17:16~1 et seq.} to pr~>e) i· 
,:;;;J1ibit cS1frcliarges on·. credit---card purchases.- .. The .federal,!;,.&Jl on 

these surcharges, ccmtained in section 167 _ of Title l of ~ ~ 
-· sume1· Credit Protection Act,.-Pub.L. !10-321 (15- U •• S. -C. 1666 · 

ceased to be effective on February 27, 1984. This bill ensures that 
. . 

tbt! ball on their surcharges would continue in New Jersey. In 

·•· ~- ~ddition;> teeLnical a1ne11dments · clarify the inclusion of hmiking ·. 

i11stitutio11s wltliin the definition of credit cardissuers. 



... 
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SEN,ATE, No~l560 

INTRODUCED JANUARY, 30, 1986 

By Senator,DORSEY .. . . ,_ ' . \ 

' ... ,Referred to Committee on· Energy and Envj.romnent. 

b .Ac:r,concerni:rig·eertain interest rates,.aild supplementiiig 

, Title 17 of the Revised Statutes. 

1,. . BE IT ENACTED bJj t,he SenGte and Genefol .zbsemoly of ·tM State 

. 2 · of Ne.w Jersey: 

1. 1.. 1f the conn:nissioner nnds, no later· than six months after"the 

2 date of enactment·ofthis act, that the average prevailing interest. 

3 rate being charged on any 1oan or exte11sfo11 of credit made after 

4 the eff ectiYe date of this act: a. hy ·. State and federally chartered 

5 banks, savings banks and saYhlgs m1d 1oa11. associations; b. by 

6 small loan companies licensed pursuant to R. S. 17:10-1 et seq.; 

7 and e. by any other lender, on revoking or open end accounts for 

S which a credit card is 'Used to draw upon the principal amount or 

· 9 credit line, exceeds the Monthly Index of Long Term United 

10 States Government BomT Yields, compiled by the Board of Gov.,·· 

11 ernors of the Federal Reserw SyiJem and as published by tl1e 

12 'board in the 1lonth13: Federal Resene Bu1letin, for the second 

.... 13 · preceding calendar. mol1 th., i1us an ad<litional 8 % , .rounded. off to 

14 the nearest quarter of 1 % per annum, the commissioner · shall 

· /C.15 ·< establish this inter.est.rate ceiling ht 1·egulation,;whieh ceiling shall 

16 thereafter be.applicable to those accounts. 

· ·1 · 2. · a. If the commissioner establishes an ilrterest r,ate ceiling 

• .. • 2 ·· J>Ursuant to ,section l of this aet; no baiik,. savings·bank, or savings 

3 and Joan association which has its pi·incipal office outside Ne"· 

"'.4 -:Jersey shaltmaintaiir any loan production office or other office in 

5 this Stafofo:r the.purpose of maki11µ loanF arn1 inwstments in this 

6 State if: 



.. . ;:: : 

. 7 {1) The bank,. ~a,;h1g~' bank •or s:viugs . ~ml ·1oan associatiOil ·.·· 

. 8 1eiids money.oi· proYicles credit fo·res,id;e1its. of_ thi:s StaJe by:~eans_ 
9 _ or a re;olving or open-~11daccountfor ,vJ1ici1 ~ credit ~atd is used •. --

10 to dt~w "\ip~n the principal amount or credit line; and 
.-11 . (2) T}le bank, sa~ings bank, or:s;vings ari loan .association 

12 charges a rat~ of. interest on th~ loan which ex~Jeds the rate ~.stab­
: 13; ·.-. lish~d. ptirsuant to section y_ of this ~cL . 
14 b. If· the commissim;ier._ .. fi~ds ~at ~Y h~nk, _ s~vings • ba~, or _ 
15 · savings and ioan· associa.ti~~-whfolfh'as:its 'principal. office:riu~side· · _· .. 

. _ 16 New .:Jersey :has violat~d the pr~~isie>ns of ~ubsectiori a,. o{ this 
. _· ·17 sectfo~; th~ coimllissio11er shall 1:~ke possessi9n <>f the ltian pro~ , 

· · 18 . duction offiee · pursuant to the provisiohs or':Article ·. 42 of :e. · L. . 
19. 19iS, c: (JT (C, 17:9A:-266 etS~g;)i' o .·._ . -.· . . _ .. 

-. l _ 3; Any ·persoIJ. · charging in1:erest in·exce~s :~f the· amount ·per- · 

._.· 2 : mitted by _sectioli Lof this act shalLbe guilty of ctiminal usury -

. 3. pursuant to N. J. S. 2C :21--:-19. 
L. · 4. This act shall_ take effect immediately, a1id shall expire on 
2 .the 730th day £~llcnving enactment ... 

STATEMENT 

.. Tliis bill requir~s the Conunissioner of' B~nking, utid~r certain 

. · ,circumst~nces, -to establish a~1 interest rate ceiling applica}>le to 
._. all revol\'i~g and ~pell end ~ccouri.ts for which a c:reditcal'.d is used, .. 

.. -The bill w_ould prohi~itout~of~~tate banks from e~tabli~hing or: 

maintaining loan prodtfotion offiees iJ1'New Jersey if they do not 
. ·._.... . .· . ' .. ' . •. . 

adhere to the·•rate.-

BANKING- .AKD FIXAKCI.AL JKSTITUTION'S ... 
. . . . . . . 

· Bank~redi~ card int ceilings 

· Esta,blishe~ ~n int~r~st rate ceiling ·o; revolving-acco~ts _ for ~~ch 
. a credit card -is used.. . 



"_-· ,·: ··. '.' .. · . 

SENATE,No.15.61 

s:TATE ... ·.OF··•·•·••··•NEW:·LJERS:~(· 

.. lNTR0DUCED JANUARY 30, 1986 

By Senators C01'1NORS, GARIBALDI1 ,{)ARDINALE, 

BASS.ANO, .D1FBANCESCO, '.BUBBA . and ...... v ... ,:"~i~jii,:·;1}(i{c;t;;' 

. - ' -

.··.·.}J\N AC'l"(enncerning'~e-reporting of eertam.· interest rates,.,,,. 

i;upplementingTitle 17 of the Revised Statutes.; 

1 ,. ?.liETI ENACTEP by the Senate 11,nil, G(meral Asiembly of the Staie 

2 ofNew:Je-rsey: 
. . . . 

1 L a. Every State or federally chartered bank, :Savings bank, .and 
' . . . . 

2 savings and loan association, every smallloan company licensed 

3 pursuant to R. S. 17 :10-1 et seq., and every person who lends 

4 :mom~y by means of .a·.revolving 01· open.end acconnt.,for which a.· 

5 credit card is used to draw npon the prh1cipal an:wunt or credit 

6 line sbaU file with th~ Conuuissiouer of Banking every three months, 

7 UL accordance with a schedule established by the commissioner, 

8 the interest rate wl1ich is then being charged by the lender on these 

· 9 accounts. 

'10 b. The commissio11er, upon receipt of the information required 

11 by sub.sectiot1 a. of this section, shall se11d a compilation thereof 

12 toevery daily an<l weekly 1H::\\·i,;1Japer .of general circulati011 iu tl11:s 

13 State.· 

1 2 . .Anyperson violating tlw prm·isions of this.act shal1 he gui1ty 

.· .:2 (}f a disQl'dexly_persons off.ense . 
. : 1 3., Thls.aci':shafl fake .•effect immediately. 

STATEMENT. 

0 frThi11vbill · Tequiresall .federally and ,state ehartered •banks, .. sa,•­

irigs hanks,. sa,~ings aml loan asso6atiOl1ii, all small loan cornpar1if>s, 

:;and all other pers011s who Jeud mo11ey ,hy means ofa,revolving or . 



open end account for ,vhich a er edit card is used to draw upon the 

principal amount to report the interest rates which they charge 

on the accounts to the Commissioner of Banking. The commis­

sion.er would be required to disseminate the information to news­

papers. 

BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Info. on credit card rates 

Requires the reporting of interest rates for credit cards and· the 

dissemination of the information. 

' 
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·STATE ..• _:Q.F. ·.···N··E.W.•••··•:,::JERS·EY·······•· 

.. · •INTRODUCED JANUARY 30, 1986 
. ~: 

. B~· Se11ators GARIBALDI, CONNO~S, c.firiIN.A.LE, 

BASSANO, U1FR.A.NCESCO and BU13BA. 

Beferred to Committee onLa.bol',Industry and Prof~~ons' 

.. : .AN .A.CT concerning·certaininforestrates:; and supplementing Title 

·· -17 of the Revised ·Statutes. 

1 . BE IT ~ACTED by the Senate and· General .Assembly of the State 

2 ofNew•Jersey: 

· ,•l · 1. If the Commissioner of Banking finds, no later than six months 

• ... <c2 .. .after the date of enactment of this· aet,·that theaverage prevailing . 

. :3 illterest .. rate· bei11g charged on any .loan or· exfonsion of· credit 

.4 h1ade after the effective. dateof this act: a. by state and federally 

5 chartered ha11ks. sm,ings banks and savings and loan associations; 

(i b. lJy smaH loa11 contJ)a11ies licensed pursuant to R. S. 17 :l~l ~t 

7 seq. ; and e. by a11, other lender~ on revolving or open end accomrts 

S foi· whidr a credit card i.s used to draw uporlthe principa1 amount 

H or credit line, exceeds the a,,erage baserate o.n commercialloans 

10 for lai·ge tTnited States moueycenter banks, plus an additional 

11 2½ %, r-0unded off to :the nearest quarter of 1% per annum, .the 
. . . . .--. ' ' . 

12 connnissioner shall establish this interest rate· ceiling by regulation 

rn au<l .shall e011tinue•··.to do so for eacl1 quarter thereafter. which 

14 ceiling sJ1all thereafter he applicable to those accounts. · 
. . . . . . 

1 .· 2. a:Tf the commissio1ier establishes a11 interest rate ceiling pur-
. . 

2 suantto.section l of this act, no bank, savings bank, or savings and 

::a. 'Joan•. ~ssociation ·v,:1lich has .its .. principal office outside .New Jersey 

· 4 · shall maintain any ]oa11 production office .or otl1er office in this 

.: .\~., State .for,;the ,purpose of .making .loans,..and investments . in .:this· 

'. 6 State if:· 



2 

i (1) The .bank, savings bank or ~av111gs and loan r1ssociation 
. . 

8 lends money or provid,es credit to residents of this State by means 

9 . of a reYolving or open end account for "·bich a credit card is i1sf>d 

10 to draw upon the principal amou:nt or credit line; and 

11 (2) The bank, savings bank, or savings and loan association 

12 charges a rate of interest on the loan which exeeeds the rate es-· 

13 tablished pursuant to section l of this act .. 

14 l>. If the commissioner finds that any bank, savings bank, or sa,·~ 

•·15 ingsand loan association which has it~ prii)Qipal offic; olilside ~T~•--.•"·•'·•••:" 

16 Jersey has violated the provisions of subse~{ion a. of this section, 

17 the commissioner shall take possession of the loan production : 

18 office pursuant to the provisions of Article 42 of P. L. 1948, c. 67 

.19 ( C. 17 :9A-266 et seq.). 

l 3. Any person charging interest in excess of the amount per-

2 mitted by section J of this act shall be guilty of criminal usury pur-

3 suant fo N. J. S. 2C :21'-19. 

1 4. This act shall take effect immediately, and shall expire on 

2 the 730th day following enacttnent. 

STATEMENT. 

This hill requires the Commissioner of Banking, under certain 

circumstances to establish an interest rate ceiling applicahle to an 

revolving and open end accounts for which a credit card is used. 

This bill would prohibit out-of~state banks from establishing or 

q1aintaining loan production .offices in New Jersey if they do llot 

adhere to. the rate. 

BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIO~S 

Reg. of int. on credit cards 

Provides for the regulation of the interest rate on credit cards 

under certain. circumstances. 
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INTRODUCED .TANlTARY'30,'1986 

Referred to ·Committee on Labor, industry and Prol:,essioris. 

·'•. A.N Acx concerning certain. interest •·:·ates,.~ ~~J:>l~~!.i:y~,;}:.c#: 
.. ,,-,•;·;; _.:.·i,;<}?''.'_-:_ '\".:;,• .. J'( t:''t}(•;·_ .. lf\~?,;;;_~;,,_·::'"{:::,.,,;,. . 

Title 17 of the Revised Statut,es. ·: · · ···'' · ·~> · · · 

BE l'l' ENACTED by the Senate aiul General ..Assembly of the State 

of New Jersey: 

. . L If the Commissionei • of Banking :find£;, .no later than Stt 

months after the date of enactment of this act, that the averag~ 

prevailing interest rate being charged on any loan or extension 

of eredit made after the effectiYe date of this act: a. b:y state 

and federally chartered · banks, savings banks and .1Savings and 

loan associations; h. by . small loan companies.· licensed pursuant 

to R. S. 17 :10--1 et seq.; and c. by any other lender, on revolving 

01, open end .accounts for which a credit card is used to draw upon 

the principal amount or credit line, exceeds the average base 
. ' ' 

rate 011 commercial loans for large United States monev. center 
. ' - , .. · - --- . . •· - ·····. -- •. - --

banks, plus an additional 3%, rounded .off to the nearest quarter· 

of 1 % per annum, tLe eommi,-,:ionn sha11 t.~stablish this interest 

rate. ceiling by regulatio11 and shall continue to do so for each 

14 quarter thereafter, which ceiling shall thereafter he .applicahl~ 

15 ·to· those accounts. 

1 · · 2.· .a. If the ;commissioner . .establishes a1i,0•int~rest;,rate·ooi1ing 

'2 pursuant to section 1 of this ad, no bank, savings bank, or sayings 

... 3:' ,and Joan, association .which l1as: its ,principal ,office rnutside New 

4 Jersey shall maintain any ,..loan production office or other office 

5 in this State for ihe purpose of making Joans and jnvestrnets 

6 m this State if: 



2 

7 (1) · The bank, savings bank or savmgs and loan association 

8 lends money or provides credit to residents of this State by 

9 means of a revolving or open end account for which a credit 

10 card is used to draw upon the principal amount or credit line; and 

. 11 (2) The bank, savings bank, or savings and loan association 

12 charges a rate of interest on the loan which exceeds the rate 

13 established. pursuant to sectionl of this act. 

14 b. If the commissioner nnds that :any bank, savings b~, or 

15 savings and loan association ~hicli has }ts princ1pal office dutside· 

16 New Jersey has violated the provisions of subsection a. of this 

17 section, the commissioner shall. take possession of the. loan pro-

18 duction office pursuant to the provisions of Article 42 of P. L. 

19 1948, c. 67 (C. 17 :9A-266 et seq.). 

1 3. Any person charging interest in excess of the amount per-

2 · · mitted by section 1 of this act shall be guilty of criminal usury 

3 pursuant to N; J. S. 2C :21-19. 

1 4. This act shall take effect immediately, and shall expire on 

2 the 730th day following enactment. 

·sTATEl\fENT 

This bill requires the Commissioner of Banking, under certain 

circumstances, to establish an interest rate ceiling applicable to 

all revolving and open end accounts for which a credit· card is used. 

The bill would prohibit out-of-state banks from establishing 

or maintaining loan production offices in New Jersey if they do 

not adhere to the rate .. 

BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Bank~redit card int. ceilings 

Establishes an interest rate ceiling on revolving accounts for 

which a credit card is used. 
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STATE OF NEW .. JERSEY 
"lNT-OODUCED FEBRUARY i3, 1986 

~• Senalors CON'TILLO, ntiEC:ato, '.P AttONE, RUSSO, 
V.ANW.AGN:En, J.A.CR:MANand ZANE 

_Aiq- .Act to -prO'Viii~ for th" t~tablismilent of an interest rate eeiling 

on ttedit cards, and A1D~nding 1?. <t.·1959, c. 91, it. S. 17:10-14, --··-•••·cc·••'""'-­

P. L.1984, 1'. 171, P. L. 1!171, c. 409~ '.P. 1... 1"9'63, c .. 144, and P . .t. 
1985, e. Bl . 

.1 :BE IT .ENACTED by the .Senate 6tlu1 Genetal Assembly of the State 

.2 of New Jerseu: 

1 1. Section 6 of P. L. 1959, c. 91 ( C. 17 :9A=59.-6) is amended to · 
2 read as foll-Ows : 

-'3 6. A. Notwithstanding ihe provisions -of R. S. 31.1...:.1 ot any 

4 other law to th~ contrary, the rate [or nlte-s] of interest in effect 

5 for any cafendar quarter on advanee loans s1rn]l (be as agreea 'to 

. 6 by the bank and the borrower] not e:r;cered the interest tote ap~ 

"'1 plicable to 90-day United States TreGsury bills issued during the 

S first week of the talendar quarter immeaiately preceding, · plus an 

9 additional 6%, rounded off to the nearest one-quarter of 1% per 

10 annurn. Interest may be reckoned according to any method autho-,. 

11 rized by R. S. 31 :1-1. 

· 12 The contract ma-y provide that the interest rate may be in.., 

13 creased, or may be decreased, or both, from time to time; provided, 

1:4 'howeve1', that ,no increasein interest sha.Il be e:ffecti~ unless: (a) 

15 at least 90 days prior to the effective date of the first such increase, 

16 or30,da,·s priortothe.e;ffective date,,of,_e.nysubsequentincrease, a 

17 · ,written notice has been .mailed or delivered to the borrower that 

< 18 • ,clearly and conspicuously describes sueh: change and the ifidebt-

19 edness to "·hich it applies and states that the incurrence by the 

-2-0 · ,. borrower or another person authorized by him of any further in~ 

21 debtedness under the plan to which the agreement relates on or 

S 22 after the effective date of the increase specified in the notice shall 
EXPLANATION-Matter enclosed in bold-faced bracket!! [thus] in the abm·e hill 

is·not enacted .and is intended to .. he omitted .in the law, 
Matter printed in italics th1is is .new matter. 



23 co11stitrite acceptance of .the increa"se aud (b) either the borrower 

24 a2,rees.in writing to the. increase or the .borrower or another person · 

· 25 authorized by him incurs such furthepindebted1iess on or after tlie 
. ' . . ' . . ' ' ' 

:20 effective date of the increase statedin the notice. The provisions 

27 of this paragraph permitting anincrease in a rate of interest shall 
. . . 

28 not apply in the case of an agreement which expressly prohibits 

29 changing, of interestrates or which provides limitations onc11anging 

30 of interest rates which are more restrictive than the requirements 

31 of this paragraph. If the contract provides for the possibility of 

32 an inc~ease or decrease, or both, in the rate, that fact shall he 

33 clearly describedin plain language, in ~t least 8-point bold face 

.34 type on the bace of the con.tract. 

35 B. For the purposes of this section, charges for premiums ad- .. 

36 vauced by the bank for credit life insura.f1ce, · or credit accident. and 

· 37 health ins'ura11ce, or both, shall be treated as part of the principal 

38 balance owing on · an advance loan, but no such charge shall be 

39 included in determining the maximum permissible indebtedness as 

40 limited by section 11 of this act. 

41 C. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the con-

42 trary, .a bank which issues a credit card in connection with an 

43 advance loan contract in effect between the hank and the botrower 
. '' . 

44 as authorized by this act may charge the borrower a fee not ex-

45 ceeding $15.00 per annum on an annual or monthly basis; except 

46 that, if under the advance loan contract, the bank may lend the 
. , . -

47 borro'\Veran amount of$5,000.00or more, the bank may charge the 

48 borrower a fee not exceeding $50.00 per annum on an animal or 

49 monthly basis. The charge so made ( 1) may be collected in advance, 

50 (2) shall be in addition to and not in substitution of any other fee 

51 or charge authorized by this act, and (3) shall not be deemed to be 
' · 52 an interest charge. 

1 2. R. S.17 :10--14 is amended to read as follows: 

2 17:10---14. Notwithstanding the provisions o.f R._ S. 31:1-1 or 

3 any other law to the contrary, every licensee herem1der may. loan 

4 any sum of money not exceeding $5,000.00,_ repayable in install-

5 · men ts, and may charge, contract for and receive thereon interest a·t 

6 an annual percentage rate or rates agreed to by the licerisee and 

7 · the borrower, except that in the case of any loan in which a credit 

· 8 card is used to advance funds or to purchase goods and services, 

9 the rate of interest applicable to• the loan for any calendar quarter 

10 shall not exceed the interest rate applicable to 90-day United States · 

11 Treasury bills issued during the first week of the calendar quarter 

12 immediately preceding plus an additional 6%, rounded· off to the 

13 nearest one-quarter of 1 % per annum. 



.. 

14 A loa1i contrad other than an open~nd loan tontra~t may pro-

15 vide for an increase, or may provide for a decrease; or both, inJhe 

C, 16 rate of interest applicable to the Joan. No incr.ease during ,the 

, 17 - entire loan term shalLresult in an interest rate ,of more than 6% 

ihlB ;;per anmim ovefthe rateapplicableinitially:,nor shall .the·rate.b~ 
' ' . . 

19 > raised more ihan)l% per anmun during any 12-month period. ... ,Tlie 

20 ,}ender shall not be obligated to .decrease the interest,rate .~o _ ... · 

21 than(>% over:theterin of the loan, nor n1o~e.than 3%pe:t:a~_' 

. -22 _ during any l.2-month :period .. Ilia rate inereaseJs .iL~plied t~1
}\. 

23 ·Joan, the lender shall also be obiigated to adopt~;d ~Je;~ 
24 u~iform standarils•fo.r decr~asing the rate; If ·the ~o~tr;ct pr~--

'. ' ' . ,· ·, ' . ,-·' ' 

· 7 .25 · videt. Jor the poe;sibility of an merease ordecrease, 01; both in th~ 

'.t26i rafo,:thaf faetsball he clearly:.described i~ plain'1ariguage, .. in-at· 

27 least S:poirit bold faee type on lhe face of the contract. No rate in~ 
· ..... .28 ~ease shall take effectduring the.first three years of the tenn ofthe · 

- . : . .. '· " ·-. . .· , -,- . 

<.,29 loan, or thereafter, (a) nn1ess at Jeast 90,da.ys ,prior to the.effeeti~ · 

< .30 edate of the :first such jncrease, or 30 days prior to tl1e -effeeth,e date 
. '' '· : 

31 of any subsequent increase, a written··notice. has hee1lriiailed or 
. . 

32 deliveted to the borrower that cle1;trly and conspicuously describes 

33 such increase, and (b) unless at 1east365 days have ela})sed without 

M any increase in the rates _No increase during the entire Joan sha.11 

35 t-esult in aninter-estrate of more than 6% perannmnover.therate 

36 applicable initially, nor shall-the rate be' raised mor~ than 3% ]JeT 

El annun1during any 12~month period. Where the loan contract .so 
•. ' ' . . . . . ,. 

38 _provides for an increase o':r decrease m the rate of interest, the pr0-

39 vision of R S. 17 :10-13 requiring that no inst~ent be substan­

. 40 ·. .iially greater. in .amount .. than any preceding.•instal1m.e11t shall .not. 

41 apply. 
. ' 

42 . An open~end1oan confracfmay provide that :the interest.rate lmlY 

43 · be increased or may be decreased, or both, from time• to time ; pro-, 

:44·. vided,however, thatllo increase ininterest shall be effective, unles15: 

' ·:45 . :(a}a;t}east 90 days prior fo·the eite~tive date',of the nrst such in-
. . 

·: 4u ;crease, or 30 da.ys prior tothe effective date. of any.subsequent.in.: 

'47 . crease, a11vritten notice has been mailed ot delivered to.the borrower 

. 48 thaf clearly and conspicu.onslf describes .such change a,nd the in~ 
,c,;,-49,, debtednesstowhichitappliesand states that,the incurrence by the 

· 50 borrower or another'])erson authorized by him of• any;further·.in-

51 • debtedness under the plan to. which the agreement. relates on or 

52 >after the~fieetive date ofthe increase specified in the notice shall 

,,53" constituteacce}Jtance of :theincreasee;and.,(b) either the.borrower 

54 agrees in writing fo the increase or the boITower or .another JJer£011· 

.55 .authorized by him incurs such further indebtedness on oraftei, the 



56 effective date of the increase stated. in such notice. The provisions 

57 of this paragraph permitting an increase in a rate of interest shall 

58 not apply in the case of an agreement which expressly· prohibits 

59 changing of interest rates or which provides limitations on chang-

60 ing of interest rates which are more restrictive than the require~ 

61 mentsc of this paragraph. If' the contrMt provides for, the possibil, 

62 ity of an increase or decrease, or both, in the rate, that fact shall 

63 be clel:lrly described: in plain language, in at least 8-point bold· faoe 

. 64 type on the face of the written. notice. 

65 The inter~st and periodic payments fOT loans at these- rates 

66 shall be computed from standard tables based on the actuarial. 

67· or annuity method which conforms to the: so~~lled: "Unitedi States. 

68 Rule of Partial Payments," which pr-0vides that interest shall 

69 be calculated whenever a payment is made and the payment shall be 

70 first applied to the payment of'i'nteFesi a-nd if it exceeds the interest 

71 due, the balance is to be applied to diminish principal. If the pay-

72 mentis insufficient to pay the entire amount of interest the balance 

73 of interest due shall not be added to principal; so as to produce· 

74 interest thereon. 

75 No interest shall be paid, deducted, or received in advance. 

76. Interest shall not be compounded and· shall be computed Qnly on 

77 unpaid prin-Oipal balances. Fo:r the purpose of computing interest·, 

7f!i all installment pay1mmts shall be applied no later than the next day, 

79 other than a public holiday, after the date. of receipt;· and interest· 

80 shall be- charg€d for the actual numb0<r of days· elapsed; at the daily· 

81 rate of 1/365' of the yearly rate. 

82 No license shall induce or permit any person nor any husband 

. 83 and wife, jointly or severally, to become obligated, directly or 

84 contingently or both, under more-than one contract·of·loan.at the 

85 same time for the purpose. of obtaining a higher rate of interest 

86- . than would ·otherwise be-permitted,by,this. ~tion. This,prohibition 

87 shall not apply to any loan made pursuant to any other law of· this 

88- St1l·te~ 

89 In addition to the interest herein provided for; no.farther or·other-

90. oharge, or amo:nnt whatsoever-for, any; e~ation, service, broker-

911 age; eommission, ex-pense; fee-, OP bonus or other thing-·ori otherwise 

92• shallbe diree-tly or indireetly charged; oE>ntra.eted for, or received) 

93 except· (1) amounts for insurance- obtained or- provided' hy the 

94- licensee in.aceordance with the provision&-.of this. chapter;. and (2).; 

95 on actual sale ofr the security in. foreclosure. proceedings' or upon 

96· the entry o-f 'judgment. If 'any interest; consideration or charges in 

97· excess of those permitted by this, chapter are charged; contracted 

98 for, or received, except as the result of a good faith error, the 
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.:1. 
4 .. 
,. 

99 . contract of loan: sh~1f be ;oid tlrid the licensee &hall have no right 

· IDO to oollect01.-·receive any principal, interest, er eha.rges '1iTha.tsoover, 

101 and the bozmwer shall be ent~d to Yeeoffl' fwm the ~ any 

102 such ~s paid or Jleturned to the lendeT wy. tile btJm,;~ 01l ae-

100 count of :or· in eouneetio11- with the loan~ 

l 3. Seetinn 26 ef P. L. J;984,. c. 171 (!C: 11':U-lMJ is anmded to 

· . 2 · read as -£allow.a,: 

3 

4 

5 
6, 

7 

s 
9 

10. 
·11·• 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

1!l 

18 

19 
20 

21 
22 

23 

24-

25 

:26 

27: 

28 

·.29 

, ao: 
.31-

'32 

33 

.26. (.New section;) a. A cl'edit union ~ maim Mm! to, iw-mem­
bers, evidenced by a wri:tt.en instrument, upon ter-m11: and' upon any 

security, including, but not limited to, the end9nement of a n~:1,y ' . 

a surety~ eomalrer, or gmirantor, assignm.e:nt o:f.an interest in reaL , , 
· · _ . _ _ . _ .. _ . · . _ . . . _· " .. : ........ Jr:\if:):#~;;i¼'.t>: '. 

or personal property,. or assignment .of .shares, a the · ioard may/"'1:2,~11 · · 

provide •. The :adequacy,of .any security ehall be determined by the 

credit committee. -No· loan shall be ma<kr _,.llllJt·memoerwhen·.th!- ·trtt+· 
aggregate· amount of all'tliat member's leanB- 81l'b,<tanding exceed~iJfF~{/ . 
lO~o- of the, gnm.it unio1ts total a8$t&. · The ooard,.in m;, discretion; 

may :fix a lower amount 

b. Notwithstanding the provisions of'R S. 31~14 totne'eonti"ary, ·. 

a credit union maj- charge, contract· for, and' rectrive interest [inJ 
on loans at a rate or rates Ri:,"Teed to by the credit union and the 

member, exceptas provided in subsection d: ofthis section. A credit · 

unionmaycharge late f~s-andlawfu1 f~sc-:pmd to anyymblie officer-

. for fllin:g; ~cording, or releasing • a document, and: may cllarg.e 

collection fees; not to exceed 20% of the principal bala;nee' ancl 

interest- outstanding, ,vhich may be added to the principal balance· 
of: any loan placed for collection after default·the:eom 

e. A eredit:union shall have alien on the shares, share certificates; 

deposits, deposit certificates, and aceuumlaied inforest or'divio.:end's­

of.a member in any individual, joint, or·trust a-ccount, for any sam· 

· past due the credit union from tbe member or for anyJoan e:ndbrsed 

byhim. The·credit union shallhavea0 right ofimmediate['Set~offJ 

setoff. with respect to these aooount&. 

· d~ N otwithgt,andin;g any other provisio»'af l'aw to tJte- ctmtrary, in . 

the oase of any loan in which a credit card is used'to advance funds 

.O'f'.•to;'f)'IM'chase-:goods- or-services, the•flfde,uf in#Jetr~ app(iiJtilif,e trr 

thelbanf or any calendat· quarter. shall· not- exceed the- in·terest rati! 

applicabZeto 90'-day·UnitedBtafes Treasury·bills issued during the. 

first week of the calendar . .quarter immediately preceding, plus an 
34, ·•additional o%, ·rounded ·Off to · the nearest' utW-q'ltartet· of 1%' pe-r. 

.35 annum. 

1 · 4.· Section17 of P. L.1971, c. 409 ( C/ 17:16C-44.l) is ame11ded to 

.2 read as follows~ 



.: .o: 

. 3 .· · 11. (afXotwithstanding.::mJ~'.other.la,,v tO:Jhc.contrarJ;, ·~. ret~il 

. J . seller, sales .finance compmiy, banking .institution or orther holder:-· - . 

· 5 may charge, ·receive: iind ~ollect a tiI:tie price >differential in. each 

6 .. billing period on obligati611s incuiTed pursuant to any retail charge 

7 accou~t, ~vhich shall be detel'.Illin~d :a.s ~peiified i~ the terms of the._· 

· 8 .· accourit, subject to the limitations proyid~d 'herein: S~ch tune price 

9 differential for e11ch m~nthlf billi~g pe~fod shall not .exceed the 

10 · amount resulting fr~Ill applying the periodic rate~ provided helf~in . 

. . ... · 11 . to. the greater .of. tlie follo,~ing :imo~11t{ ( iriclu<litai~unpaid time 

· -12 price differ~ntials) : < 

13 <9 Th~ average daily ba1anee of tlie account for such billing 
. --14 

15 
. l6 

17 .·. 

period, or 
·. (ii) '.The bala,rice- of :the 11ccount at· the heginning or en(1 of: 

such billing period . 

The. periodic rate or .rates I Of' any calendar quarter shalltfot 

18 exceed [an an1ount agreed fo by the ;retail seller, sales fi_na:nce • 

19 company,_ bankinginstitution, or ·ot}:ier holder. and,the retail 
20 • buyer] th.e interest rate appl·icable to 90-day United State$ 
21. Treasury bills i;sued during)he first_ week of the calendrir .. 

· · .. 22 quarter immediatelyprec_eqfng, plus an;additional 6%, rounded . 
.. ·.23 ·. -·off toJhe ~earest one-quarter of I% per.~nnum ... ' . . . . 

24 . The ternis of the retail•chai-ge acce>UI:tt may p~ovid~ that the tillle 

25 ·_· pric~ diffe~entiaLinay pe i1~creased. or ~ay be decreased ol' both 

26 from time .to time; provided, however, t~at no increase shall be 

27 ._ effective ~less: (1) at least 90 days prior to the effecti'1e date e>fthe 
,·2s ·.· .. firat such ~crease, or. 30 days .prior to ·the effective· date of· any·· 

29 :s11bsequerit increase;a written notice has. bM~ Ill~iled. or delivered 

30 to the retail bnier that clearly and conspicuo~sly describes such 
31 • . change aµd the indebtedness to whidi it appli~s and states that the 

.• 32. incurrence by the. retail buyer Qr: an.other person _authorized l:>y him 

· 83 .of anyfurtherindebtedriessunderthe plan to wllich the agreement · 

34 relates on or aft~r the effective date of the increase specified in the 

35 . notice shall constitute acc~ptance_iof the increase and [(b)] (2) 

.· 36 either;~e retail buyer agrees in "7riHngJo the increase or the_ ret,ail 

·· ~T buyer or another pel'soli authori.zed bi him incurs· such further in­

.. 38 . debtedness.on.or aiter the effe~tive date of the increase stated in.the 

39 .. nC?tic~. The provisions of this paragraph pennitting an increase in 

40 .·the time price differential ~Jiau·· i10t apply in• the case of an agree~ 

41. ·. ment which expressly•prohibits chartging ~f thetim~ price differen~ 

.. 42 .. tialor which pr<>vides limitation~ on changing of the time price dif-

43 · .. f erential whi~h .~re more- ~esfrictiYe than the requirements of- this 

44 · paragraph. If the t~tm~.of the ~Ptail charg~ acccnmt p·rovide for the 

45 possibility of an inc;e~se qr d~crease; or both, in the time price 



I' 

cf ,. 

4b duterentml, tnat tact'Shall be (Hear1y aescnnea m p.lalll language, 

¾7 in atleast $-point bold face type on the face of the written notice. 
. . ' . 

48 Nohvithstanding the foregoing limitation, if the terms of the 

49 account. so provide, the time price differentialmay be computed on 

· ,50 the median amount within a .speeined range. Such time price .cliff er­

.· 51 ential for. each monthly.billing period snall·not exceed.the amount 
52 · resulting from applying the respective periodic rates speeined 

· 53 above to the .median. amount within the specified.range inwhich,"1,~ .•. 
greater of the amounts specified in (i) and· (ii) is included; p¥2; 
'Vided, subject to the classifteati9;n!yin:~ differentiatic,ns .. :.,i!~.i 
reasonably be established by the retail seller, sales financeeo .. 

54 

55 
56 
57 

. 58 

59 

60 
fil 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

7-0 

71 
12 

73 

74 
l 

2 

3 

4 

banking institution or other holder, the same time price differe11tial .. : 

is charged on all balances within the specined ran1~e ~d pr<rvided\ 

futtheT. that the time price differential determined ~y applying the 

respective periodic rates specified above to the DI~di'an amolllltiIGiJ?V · 
within the range does not exceed by more than 8% the amonnt of 

the time .price differential determined by applying the respective 

J)eriodic rates specified above to the lowest amountin the range. 

(b) If the billing period is not monthly, the maximum periodic 

rate shall be that rate which bears the same relation to the respec~ 

tive periodic rates per mo~th specified above ai3 the number of days 

inthebillingperiod beaTS to 30. · 

( c} Notwithstanding· the limitation provided in (a) above, .for 

any mont111y billing period in ,vhich a time price differental may be 

charged pursuant fothe terms of the account a minimum time price · 

differential .of not more than $0.50 may be charged; if the billing 

period is not monthly, a minimum_ time price differential may be 

charged in such amount which bears the same relation to $0.50 as 

the number of days in the billing period bears to 30. 

5. Section 48 of P. L. 1963, c. 144 ( C.17 :12B-48) is amended to 
read as follows: 

48~ Specific powers. Withouflimiting the generality of the fore­

. going, every association shall have ;power to: 

5 (1) Have succession by its corporate name for-the pe-riod lin1-

6 cited .. m its charter· or1certificat~ .of .inCOfPoration;.a.nd :when,.no 

7 . periodis·limited,.perpetually. 

<8 ><(2) Sue and be sued many.court. 

·9 {3) .Adopt and use a corporate seal and alter the same. 

·JO ( 4) .. · Purchase and otherwise acquire, hold, mortgage, pledge, 

11 lease, ·excbange,, csell, convey and otherwise dispose of any real 

12 and personal property, necessary or incidenta:rto its:operations 

13 and co11sistent with its po,\·ers aitd purposes. 



14 ( 5) Insure it$ members'· accounts with the . Federal Sa vi:p.gs . and 

15 Loan Insurance Corporation, and comply with conditions necessary 

16 to obtain and maintain such insurance. 

17 (6) Become a member of o-r stockholder in a Federal Home Loan 

18 Bank and to that end to comply with all conditions of membership 

19 therein. 

20 (7) Act as agent for the United S.tates or the State of Ne-w 

21 Jersey or any instrumentality of either of them, when designated 

22 f.or that purpose, a.nd perform sneh reasOB&ble duties as S'll(lhagent 
23 as may be Tequired of it. :~pc( 

. ' 
24 (8} Join any cooperative league organized for the purpose of 

25 protecting and pro~ting th~ weJf.a~ of assooiation§f~~iid. their 
. ' ;-·tt';.: .. ,; 

26 me:mbers and comply with aU-condiHons ofmembershijt1ther-ein. · 
27 (9) Borrow money from any sourcein or out of the State/on, 
28 th.e note, bond and mortgage or other obligation of the association 

29 upon such terms and conditions as the board may from time to 

30 time prescribe by resolution adopted by at least a ma.iority of 

31 all the members of the board and duly recorded on the minutes and 

32 to pledge, assign or·transf.er mortgages, owned by the association 

33 and the obligations secured by such mortgages7together ,vith the 

34 shares,if any, pledged as collateral security therefor, or any real or 

35 other personal property, as security for the repayment of money 

36 so borrowed. No association shall borrow money if by doing so 

37 the aggregate ofits indebtedness for borrowed money other than 

38. to the Federal Home Loan Bank will exceed 20% of its capital, 

39 except with the approval of the commissioner. 

40 (10) (Deleted by amendment.) 

41 (ll) Require an advance payment of interest for a period of 

42 one month on any loan; and accept advance payments of interest, 

43 if made at the option. of the debtor, for any period on any loan. 

44 . None of such payments shall be deemed usurious. 

45 (12) Where shares are issued, ehArge an admission fee, not to 

46 · exceed $0.25 per share, which shall include the cost of membership 

47 or share certificate and account book~ 

48 (13) Impose charges upon a member for failure to make any 

49 payment to the association when due, but only as provided in this 

50 paragraph. Where the association issues installment share ac-

51 counts it may impose such charge upon a.ny member holding such 

52 an aecount or any borrower upona sinking fund mortgage not in 

53 excess ofl% a month upon the amount in arrears, except for the 

54 first month's arrearage or the amount by which such first month's 

55 arrearge may be increased by subsequent arrearage, in which case 

56 a charge not in excess of 5% may be imposed. Such charges shall 



58 deducted from any amount actn.ally paid by a member upon an 

59 ·account nor shall the total of any such charges against any ace<>Ullt 

60 .in any fiscal year exceed the amount that may be charged for fail-

61 ure to make .. any payments for a 6-month period nor shall any 

·· 62 charge for default be ma<le on a charge for default. Otherwise 

63 an association may impose a charge for failure to make any re-

64 . quired payment to it when due upon any loan or contract for :the 

65 . resale of real estate to a member, not to exceed 4% of the .anF ... 
66 of each payment m arrears, but no mor~ than one such charge 

67 be made·with respect to any one paymefit'iili'.ri'ea.rs>''.An associii 
. ' - , -· ,, . 

68 tion mayimpose a reasonable serviee charge against any member . 
69 who tenders to such association, for collection or as payment, .a. > . 

. : 10 check· or other instrument of any type which subsequ~ntly is<11~ti~f("'ilM;i1/;·,, 

71 honored · by . the· institution · or person upon which such check or 

72 other instrument is drawn. None -0f such charges i.halLbe. deemed 
73 · usurious. 

74 (14) Compute interest upon any direct reduction loa11, on desig-

.. 75 nated payment dates, and add the same to ·the unpaid balance of.· 

76 s11eh loan. 

77 (15) Act as agent for any person, where such agency will further 

78 the interests of the associaticm and its members, subject to such 

79 limitations as may be prescribed by the commissioner. 

>80 (16) Upon app1ication to and approvalby the commissioner., to 

81 act as custodian or trustee within the contemplation of the Federal 

82 Self-Employed Individuals Tax Retirement Act of 1962, Pub. L. 

83 87-792, .76 Stat. 809 (15 U. S. C. 37 et al.), as amended and supple-

84 mented, and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 

85 Pub. L. 93-406, 88 Stat. 829 (5 V. 8. C. 5108 et al.), a1, amended and 

86 supplemented, and as custodian, trustee or manager of any such 

87 investment fund the authorized investments of which include, but 

88 need not be limited to, savings accounts or real estate loans, and the 

89 · bemdicial .. interests 'in which .may· be represented by transferable 

90 snares or certillcates. Associations exercising the powers auth~ 

91 rized by this ~ubsection shall :segregate all funds held in sucli 

·· !92 · fiduciary capacities fromthe general· assets .of the association and 

93 · shall keep a separate set of books and records showing in d~tail all 
;.94 ·. transactions nmde under authority•of this subsectio11.· If i11dividual 

'95 records are kept for each self-employed individual's retirement 

96 plan and each such investment fund, then all such funds held in such 

97 . nduciary capacities by an association maybe commingled for appro-:-. 

·9s priate 1mri.10:"eS of im'estrne11t. 5 o funds Jie1d ill suc11 fiduciary 

99 . capacities shall be used by a11 association ill the. c011duct of its 



: . . . ,. 

100 bnsiness: hov.-ever, such funds may be invested i11savings accounts 

101 of the association in the.event thalthe custodiaJ, trust or other plan 

102 does not prohibit such investment. In granting· or refusing the . 

·103 association's applicatfonthe commissioner shall take into considera-

104 tion the investment policies, amount, type and adeqtmcy of reserves, 

105 fidelity bondsand any legally required deposits of the applicant and· 

106 other pertinent facts and circumstances. 

107 (17) l:pon compliance with subsectio11 (5) of this section, accept 

108 from its members accounts to be repaid upon such terms, not in-

109 consistent with this aet, as are• approved by the ColJllllissioner of 

110 Banking, by i:egulation or otherwise, provided that no account shall 

111 exceed the limitations established by section 7S of P. L. 1963, c.144 
. . ' ' -· 

112 {C. 17 :12B-:-78), and provided further that no acc1:mnt shall be 

113 accepted or issued in the name of any corporation, association or 

114 partnership or in the name of any individual foruse in trade 

115 or business. An association issuing such accounts may honor 

116 demands for withdrawal of such accounts in the form of negotiable 

117 checks, drafts or orders in the form of. electronic fund transfers 

118 and may become a member of a clearing facility and satisfy rea-

119 sonahle conditions required for its qualification and pay reasonable 

120 expenses therefor; Such accounts may be either interest-bearing 

121 or noninterest-bearing; provided, however, that the payment of 

122 i.nterest on such accounts be permitted by federal iaw; An associa-

123. tion accepting accounts pursuant to this subsection shall, at all 

124 times, maintain reserves against such accounts as shall be pre-

125 Hcribed in regulations issued by the commissioner in accordance 

126 with the "Administrative Procedure Act," P. L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 
. . 

· 127 52.14B~l et seq.), but such reserves shall be equal in nature and 

128 amount to those required of savings banks in this State. against 

129 . similar accounts. Such reserves shall be maintained in cash or 

130 deposits in one or more reserve depositories as authorized by the 

131 Commissioner of Banking .. Regulations. of the . comtnissioner. may 
132 also provide that associations issuing suchtype of accounts main-

133 tain a general reserve account, federal insuranc~ reserve account 

134 · and undivided profits of specified minimum amounts and provide 

135 for minimum standards of office facilities in connectio11 therewith . .. ·- ' ' - ' . ' . ' ,.--· ' ·. . . ' . 

136 An insured association may impose a reasonable service charge for 

137 providing and maintaining such accounts for the benefit of its 

138 members. 

139 (18) Issue. credit eards, extend credit in connection therewith,· 

140 and otherwise engage in or participate in credit card operations, 
. . 

141 subject to such regulations . as the commissioner may prescribe . 

. 142 Any such ~egulations shall be in substantial conformity with similar 

.. 



14'3 rules and regrilafioiis"'oftlie FedefalIIbfrie Loan Hank Hoard. 1'1ie 

144 interest rate applicahleto any extension of c1·edit made pursuant 

· ···-· 145 to this subsection for ·any•.·talenaar quartP.r shidl•.not exceed_ the· 

146 -infot·est · rate applicable.· .to .. 90-'4ay. -flnited States Treasury . bills . 

· 147 issu.ed during the calendar quarter immediately preceilin,g,plus an 

148 additional 6'fo ,- t·ounded off to -the neare# o~~quarter of 1 % .per 

.149 -annum. 

150 · (19). (a) Apply to the commissioner for permission to act as. 

·· .·. 'i151 ~stee, executor, administra,tor, ,guardian, or in· any other fiduiiilFf 
152· capacity .. iri· which.federal·:t:1a'°-ngs aJJd, Jwin __ issociationsC"a~Ul 

153 business m this State are permitted to ~~t°''issoeiations exercising 

1154 any ~r an of the· powers enumerated in this section $liall. segregate 

· "'° .J'.55 .all assets held. in lWY Jiduciary .capacity. from the general assets 

.. ··•···156 of ihe assoeiation·_·and·_··shall keep a s~p,;a!e•'~t ~f b~o~ an9_. 
· 1'.57 -records_ showing in.proper detail aU tra~~actioii~, ~ngil1ia ilf1lilde; .. 

' . . 

· 158 .. authority of this section. No· association · shall reeei~e. iuits }rust 

159 depart1nentdeposits o:f emrentfunds subjeettoeheckor the deposit 

·"'160 of ehecks,.drafts,··bills of exchapge,or -other'items.for·eoU~etion 

161 or exchange purposes. Funds. deposited ol' heldin trust by ·t}ie. 

162 association awaiting in'vestment s]1all be carried in a separate 

163 accounf and shall not be used by the association in the <'on<lnct of · 

:164 its business unless it -shall 'fu-flt ~t aiside ·in. the trust departnumt 

· 165 United States bonds Qr other securities approved bythe conrrnis.-
. . . 

166 sioner. In t11e ~\°ent of tli:e failure of s:uch association, the owners 

167 of the. funds ]1eld in trust. f OT investment . shaH liave a lien on the . . . . ... ' . . ' ' . 

1.68 bonrls or other securities so setapatt, in addition to their claim· 

169 agai11st the estate of the association. "\"\T:henever the laws of thii;; 

... 170 State :requirecorporationsactinRin a fiduciary capacity to deposit 

171 securities with the State authorities.for the ·protection of1n·j-rate or 
. . 

172 court trusts, associatioms so aeting shall be required to rnh.ke similar . 
. . 

173_ deposits and-seeurities so deposited shall be l1eld for th(~ protection 
. . ·, . 

l74 of private .or court trusts; as p1:--0vided by NewJerseyJaw . .Associa-

.. /1'75 tionsin.sucl1 cases.shallno't be required to,exeeuteil1ebond usually 

· /176· requiredof inuidduals. if'Xew Jersey corporations under.simi1ar 

l77 citcumstauces;are .. ,exmnpt, from:·· this Tequiremeut. Associations 

178 s1ml1 have power to execute suehbond when so required hy the laws 
' . . 

179 ofNew,Jersey; In.any case in which the faws of this State require· . . .- . . . 
1-_ • • ' ' • ' ·- _..... .,'·:: .. · ',,·_._ ' '.- • -- • 

· · '·180 that a corpoi-.1tion ·actillg as· trustee,,,executor. adnrinistrator, or 
.' . . ' . ' ·- / . 

181 in any caiJacity specified in this section shall take an oath ormake 

, .. 182 an affidavit, any officer, as defined in section65. of P. L. 1963, c.144 · 

· '183 (C.17 :12B_:_65), c,fsuch association·maytake·the necessary oath M 
184 exe/ute the 11ecessary affidavit. ItsJrn.ltbe unlawful for a.ny assoeia-

185 tion to lernl any .ofiicer,. director, or enmloyee any fm1ds held in 

186 trust under the poweTs conferred hy this sectio1J. ·. Any officer, 



. . 

187 director, or employee 111aking such loan, or to whorrt such loan is 

188 made, may be fined not more than $5,000.00, ot imprisoned not more 

189 thm1 fi\·e years, or may he hoth fined and imprisoned, in the discrc- _ 

190 tion of the court. In passing upcm applications for permission to 

191 exercise _the powers enumerated in this section, the commissiouer 

192 may take into consideration the amount of capital and surplus of the 

193 applying a8sociation, whether or not such capital and surplus is 

194 sufficient under the circumstancesof the case, the needs of the con1~ 

195 munity to. be served, and any other facts and circumstances that 
. . . 

196 seem to him proper, and may grant or refus~ th~ application 

197 acc0rdingly, except that approval shall not be ~anted to any as ·· 

198 sociation having a capital and surplus less than the capital an<l 

199 surplus required by New Jersey law of Stat~ banks, trust com~ 

200 panies; and corporations exercising such powers. -· 

201 (h) Any association desiring to surrender its right to exercise 

202 the powers granted underthis section, in order to relieve itself of 

203 the necessity of complying with the requirements of this section, 

204 or to have returned to it any securities ,vhich it may have deposited 

205 with the State authorities for the protection of private or court 

206 trnsts, or for any other purpose, may :file ,Yith the commissioner a 

207 certified copy of a resolution of its board of directors signifying 

208 such desire. Upon receipt of such i'esolution, the commissioner, 

· 209 after satisfying himself that such association has been relieved in 
. . .- . . . . 

210 accordance with State law of all duties as trustee, executor, 

211 administrator, guardian or other :fiduciary, under court, private or 

212 other appointments previously accepted under authority of this 

213 section, may, in its discretion, issue to such association a certificate 

214 certifying that such association is no longer authorized to exercise 

215 the powers granted by this section. Upon the. issuance of such a· 

216 certificate by the commissioner, such association ( i) shall no longer 

217 be subject to the provisions of this section .or the regulations of the 

218 commissioner made pursuant thereto, (ii) shaU be entitled to have 

219 returned to it any securities which it may have deposited with the 

220 State authorities for the protection of private or court trusts, and 

221 (iii) shall not exercise thereafter .any of the powers granted by 

222 this section without first applying for and obtaining approval to 

223 exercise such powers pursuant to the provisions of this section. 

224 ( c) The commissioner is authorized and empowered to promul-

225 gate such regulations as he may deem necessary to enforce com-

226 pliance with the provisions of this section and the proper exercise 

227 of the trust powers granted by this section. Any such regulations 

. 228 shall be in s.ubstantia.l conforlllity with similar" rules and regula-

229 tions of ti1e Federal Home Loan Bank Board. 



'.J 
" 

230 (20) ·. I:n accordance ,,dth rulei and. xegu]a ticm s promu.lga ted by . . . . . 

. 231 the conunissioner, issu¢ and sen directly to subscrihers. or t~r?ugh 

23211:nderwriters .mutual · capital certificates. Sueh .. certificate~ shall 

233 eonstftute part of the general reserve and 11et .wot-th of the issuing 

• 234 association. Suchcertificates--

, '235 (a)· Shall be ~ubordinate .to all savings acconnts, s~vings certifi-

~:236 ·· eates,. and debtobHgations; 

237 1 (b) Shall constitute A . .claim in liquidation on 

~38 .·. serves, ··snrplus, · ~nd undiyid~d pr~fits. of. the .assoc"tti~#.rerrtairii~g·· · · ,) · . 
. ''239 after the payment in flill of allsavings accounts;· sa'7.f , ... , fifi"- , 

240 eates, and debt§bligations; 

!l~l ( e} Shall be entitled to. the payment of dividends.;· and 
;I • ' '.. '. 

242 > ·(d) May.hav:e a-fixed or variable dividend rate .. 

.243 The commissioner is authorized and empowered to . prom~b! 
. . . ' . 

.244 sucl1 regulations as he ma,y deem necessary with r~spect to the 

.. 245 powers granted l,y this section; A.ny such regulati~ris. shall be in 
. . . ' . - ' . ' - . 

246 substantial conformity with similar rules and regulations of the 

247 ··FederalHome.Loan Bank Board: The.commissioner shalLpr~vide 
. ' ' . ' -

248 in his regulations for charging losses to the mutua1 capital~ertifi-

249 cates, reserves, and other net worth accounts. 

250 ( 21) If authorized by. regulatl~n. of the comn1i£sione1·, ,exe1:cise 

251 any power,· right, benefit, -or privilege periµitte'd · to federal .associa--

252 tions, provided that .such power, right,.benefit or privilege is 11ot 

253 specifically prohibited by. law, ,vhicll.reglilatiofr shall be in sub-

254 sta.ntial conformity with similar rules and tegnlafioils o:fthe Fed-

255 eralHome Loan BankBoard; and exercise any power, right, bene~ 

256 fit or privilege under this section, modified by regulation of the 

257 commissioner, where the Federal Hon1~Loan·Bank Board has,·hy 

258 regulation, · modified that power, right, benefit or privilege with 

259. respect foiederal associations. 

1 t>. Section 4: of P. L. 1985, e. 81 {C, 17;3B-.-7) is amended to read 

2 asfollows: 

3 4. a~ Interest; Notwithstandingll1e provisions of R. S. 31 :1.,..1, a 

·· 4<le11der .· may; ·subject :to the ··erin1inal . .usury ·provisions·. of· N ...• J. ·.·R 

, 5 ''.2C :21219, eharge and collect interest under a ·revolvingicredit plan 

on outstanding ... unpaid indebtedness in the borrower's .. accow1t 

undel' the'J)Jan at daily, we~kly, monthly, annua.Lor other periodie ' 
. . 

'8 percentage rates as the agreement governing the plan provides or 

9 · as esfabli5hed in the manner provided in the agreeme11t governjug 

l:Q the :plat)., _ea;eept 0;$provided in subsectiOfi b. of this section:. If the 

11 applicable periodic percentage rate under the agreement _governing 

12 • the;planis other tlian daily;illferest rn,aybecakulatedouan amount 

l3 .· not in excess oftheaverage ofoutstandb1gu11paid·i11debtedness foi· 
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14 the applicable billing period, determined by dividing the total of the 

15 amounts of outstanding unpaid indebtedness for each day in the 

16 applicable hilling period by the number of days in the billing period. 

17 If the applicable periodic percentage rate under the agreement 

18 governing the plan is monthly, a billing period shall be deemed to be 

19 a month or monthly if the last day of each billing period is on the 

20 same day of each month or does not vary by more than four days 

21 therefrom. 

22 b. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection a. of this section, 

23 in the case of any revolving credit plan for which a credit card is 

24 used to advance money to the borrower or to purchase goods or 

25 services,. the interest rate applicable to the revolving credit plan 

26 for any calendar quarter shall not exceed the interest rate appli-

27 cable to 90-day United States Treasury bills issued during the first 

28 week of the calendar quarter immediately preceding, plus an addi-

29 tion.al 6%, rounded off to the nearest one-quarter of 1% pe,. amn1m. 

30 c. Nothing in this section shall be construed to authorize the 

31 charging of .interest on the amount of any accrued interest remai11-

32 ing unpaid on the account. 

1 7. This act shall take effect 30 days after enactment. 

STATEMEKT 

This bill would establish an interest rate ceiling on credit card 

loans. The ceiling applicable to a loan or advance of funds would be 

6% over the interest rate on United States Treasury bills for the 

first week of the calendar quarter which immediately precedes the 

loan or advance of funds. The bill ·would apply to bank credit cards; 

credit cards issued by small loan companies and credit unions, and 

credit cards issued by lenders under the Retail Installment Sales 

Act, P. L. 1971, c. 409 (C. 17:16C-1 et seq.), such as department 

stores and other retailers. 

BANKING AND FINANCIAL INS'rITUTIONS 

. Establishes an interest ceiling on credit cards of up to 6% over the 

United States Treasury Bill interest rate. 
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SENAroR RAYMOND LESNIAK (Chairman):<· .;This is a pubJic 

hearing of :the Senate Labor,, Industry and ·iProfessions Colllltlf~.tee 
. on legislative ·propos.als .. concerning··.credit cards, spepi.fic,l}y·:C,):t{I:,;y · · 

S-1160., ... sponsored ·by Senator Feldman; S-1560, spc:>ff,~red by 

Senator· Dorsey; · S-1561, sponsored by Senator Conn?~s; }S--1?6,~~ 
sponsored .by Senator Garibaldi; S-'1563, · sponsored> by 5~'$i'';:,,{:.i! · ·. 
Gag.liano.;· · and S-1632, sponsored.J;,y,f~nator · Contillo/){{;tff;.,l111\[,;; 

,· . -· .. ·.· - "··,.(.·'.;".;"'-;,\: -. - ,,. ~--;.:, 

Initially, . I want to thank everyone for )coming·· 

this morning, :with the weather being so .bad. 1•C,te?;,}i: 
.: .. ~he first .. '..person to testify. will .,<be" , . .from'~ J:-fhe 

1 ·Department of Banking, Robert Jawor1;ki. · Mr. ·. Jawors1t:ifiit~a%!'0u 

.know you were going to be first? 

. DE PD~ .. Y. CO 11 M ... RO .B E .R T )I. J A W o· RS lC I: No. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, you are. 

Let me just ask anyone who has -prepared testimony, to 

please bring it llp to the table here before you testify.· 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Senators, .l appreciate 

this opportunity to appear before the 111embers of this Committee 
to present the views of the .Department of Banking on credit 

card interest rate ceilings and the effects.· such re.strictions 

would have on· · the availability of credit · to New . Jersey. 

consumers. My name is Robert Jaworski. l am the Deputy 

Commissioner in the De,partment of Banking responsible .£or 
supervising · the Department's Consumer Complaints Program, as 

well as for overseeing our.legal and economic research staff. 

The Department welcomes this legislative inquiry into 

,a matter of. considerable public concern -- a<.concern ·genuinely 
,,.shared by the tDepartment- ,_- ·and hopes .. that ,-we ·can ,contribute· 

·the suitableinformati.on.needed to devise a. fair and sensible 
···solution.•.··.£0,r;; .. all c.concerned·····•-··_,?the:Legislature,, the.'/Iindustey, 
· . .-and the-.consumer. 

'.~he . Department is :'\statutorily ··;rcharged .with the 

responsibility of reporting, on an. annual basis, on the 
existence of competition among consumer credit lenders, and· to 

1 



determine whether consumer credit is readily available to :the 

consumer. The Department conducts this report as a result of 
the elimination of price restrictions on coll.sumer 'll•~ding 

products . in 1981, which left only the State criminal j1sµ~y · 

ceiling of 30% in effect. 

At that time, eliminating.;if~te .. J~,fPS "~as ,~ 
0. , ;, • -. ••• _. .'. ,~i/;f~i··"t0;_•-c.- · · ~ •--·,::;.~1i:/~'-':~ .... ;:·'~r:fif:tf~>h,:\.'.•.:.:· <~:'~,'. 

because the availability of con~Yffi~r· ''Credit ~1/:'.fcit'?fiit:: 
houses to retail goods had virtually evaporated in New ,}~~rs~y, 
because lenders were .unable to support the cost:r; of j,'f-9· · g 
credit. Thus I many consumers . were simply. unable {c, ,,, f 
credit for their personal needs. 

That is why the issue of capp1ng credit card interest 

rates must be carefully examined to ensure that the 

availability of convenient and flexible consumer credit ...:_ a 

convenience overwhelmingly exercised by New Jersey consumers 

is not correspondingly reduced. 

I caution you to look closely at the credit climate in 

states where rates have been restricted, such as Arkansas and 

Washington. These states are repeatedly used as examples of 

rate control, but you should look beyond the limits because you 

will discover that credit availability in both states is 

extremely restrictive. The situation there serves to remind us 

that consumers do not benefit when credit is inaccessible, 

strict credit eligibility standards are in effect, and credit 

sources are limited. 
Arkansas is a good example of the negative effects of 

restrictions. As Jill Considine, Superintendent of New York 

Banks, described in testimony on the subject of the capped 

rates, "There is no free ride in Arkansas for consumers who use 

their card to make a purchase. Interest accrues from date of 
posting the purchase, instead of at the date of billing as in 

most states. Moreover, the attention those credit card rates 

have received nationally has led to a flood of unsolicited 

applications from outside the state. As a result, the credit 
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standards ·.···.'•have , been .··· tightened; •·since· ··•·those banks,. cannot 
prudently"'expand the total amount, of.,<credit availa.biTity for 

credit cards." c:•;~i)~~¾]:•(•.;,:' 
Since New ·•aersey · phased in deregulatiqn in · i981, 'tl:le 

.. Department has .been monitor.ing interest rate activity· o. ··· 

types of consumer . loan .. products. . These. · products rail . 
. . . __ · :',:•.,~~-

. unsecured personal loans to new and · used · aut<,, ... loat>.~\ , 
equity, and small 1:msines·s loans . We are .required to ad~9$S . ,·· . . . .· . ~~ 
sever;il consideration::; in making . our report on the credit 

market since <ceilings were· lifted, namely, ·"4! 
,..,,,,_,,.-~,(' 

competition. exists among lenders, whether . int <''rates 
· reasonably . reflect .. market conditions, and ,>whether tne 
elimination of ·. ceilings on interest rates has increased the 

availabilityof,credit to··New Jersey-borrowers. 

From the Department's standpoint, we have consistently 

found no cause for the reinstitution of price conditions or 

··ceilings. Although we agree that the cost 0£ credit card 

services is high in reia:tion to other types of loans, we have 
not seen evidence that the prices associated with bank credit 

card service$ are significantly greater in :relation to their 

cost basis. 
It is not -my intention here to recite the costs 

factored into providing· credit card services, because· I expect 

that the industry will present those figures to you. · My point 

here is to empha1;ize that credit availability has expanded in 

New Jersey because of increased competition among· .lenders .. and 
the elimination;o£,arti£icia1 restraints . 

. For the past ,five years,.· the Department has documented 

that consumer credit is.:readily·availa.ble"to,New Jersel"ans-.and 
that the interest rates being charged · on . most consumer ,credit 

. loans in < the State . do ... follow. ,.a national pattern. ,Our . 19 85 

report·.-· ·due 'tO\be released at the end of this month -- finds . 
that most con~umer loan rates registered progressive declines, 

ther.eby reflecting .. market conditions. Moreover, the report 
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indicates· that in virtually every category of consumer loan 

products, lending activity by our financial instit~tions has 

increased due to consumer demand, competition, and our strong 

economy. 

One hundred and eighteen.banks of a total of 

and federally chartered institutions responded, e 

Department's current ·survey. Of these, ,,slightly mp._ 

or 22 institutions, issue or service credit carcis, ·· 

which has remained largely· unchanged since rate ceilings Jter~ · 
. . -~ 

lifted in 1981. Despite the small number of issuers~,~~-- .. , 
credit-worthy · individuals are able to obtain credit cara;)~,from 
issuing .·banks, whether or not they have · other financial 

dealings with the ba1:1k. 

Our 1985 survey data also reveals that two of the 22 

institutions did drop their rates from 18% to' 15% ·and 16.9% to 

15.9%, respectivelyi thereby paralleling a national pattern 

that may have been triggered by a .combination of declining 

· interest rates and less restrictive credit availability. 1The 
average commercial bank rate on credit card purchases at 

year-end 1985 was 18. 08%, as . compared to · 18. 45%. in December, 

1984, a steady, if slight, decline since an initial peak of 

over 18. 5% in early 1983. These figures, of course, do not 

include the credit card volume or the · rates of the many 

retailers and out-of-state banks that also successfully compete 
. . . 

in the New Jersey marketplace. 

The fact is, despite the relatively high price of 

maintaining credit card balances past monthly payment dates, 

national figures show that credit card use and . credit · card 

balances are running at an all time high. This indicates that 

many consumers find the convenience of such flexible credit to 
be worth the price. Such a conclusion is further suggested by . 

· the experience of our own Consumer Complaints Section. which,· 

despite the heavy public and media attention the issue has 

received to date, has· received few, if any, . complaints on 

credit card interest rates. 
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These. and · other factors.: form the basis,::s:of:;t1ijui: 
reluctance .to endorse a return to price controls for. consumer 

credit services. : .At the same time, we share the conceril . of the 

members of. ·this Committee on the apparent rigidity ofJ';ithose 

pr ices in the . face· . of recent national declines . st 
rates generally. We agree that iil such circumstances> 

. legitimate to inquire whether the price · is . reasop.~i.· 

to the costs of providing such services, and we we:I. 
te;stimony 0£ industxy representatives who are here. i"lt:c)1;4irespond 

· to those concerns . : ·\;·~ti11l~i 
.. For our part, as· regulators we note that the F!4;ral 

Reserve Board 'and others have pointed out that cred·i t ' ca.rd 

costs are, indeed, highex. and they have concluded that,, /Ji~t' • 
.. ,-least at this;point, the anticipated negative effect on credit 

availability and on· economic prosperity would outweigh . any 

assumed benefit from capping rates. 

In summary, we commend the· initiative and public 

spirit of the Legislature. in raising this timely question, and 

we .offer our full cooperation in the course of this hearing. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator O'Connor, any questions? 
. SENATOR O'CONNOR: 

SENATOR LESNIAK:. 

SENATOR .JACKMAN: 
. .SENATOR LESNIAK: 

No questions . 

Senator Jackman? 

No questions. 

Senator DiFrancesco? 

.SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Yes, I have some questions • 

·. First of al 1, how long have you been with the· Department? 
. . . 

DEPUTY COMMlSS.IONER JAWORSKI : 1 have . been with · the 

l>epartment since October of last year; ·:.Befo.re that. tI was in 

. "the· Attorney General's office.· 
. . 

· 'SENA'TOR DiFRANCESCO:· .. -<\?ls "there?·a. -ceiling}"at ':a11·,> on 

:.any king of credit card interest rate? ,ls there any ceiling? 
< DEPUTY .. COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: . There i1;-- the criminal 

usury cei 1 ing of -_3 o % • 

. SENATOR i.:,.DiFRANCESCO: . -. There ... is a criminal usury 

,-- ceiling/0£:.:30%? 
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes. 

SE.NATOR DiFRANCESCO: For .· al 1 · kinds . of--~ . 

includes any kind of loan, right? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Well, that 

the types of loans that are under consideration in J~lt , 
· .. ·,(nv..::•:;_'. 

•bills we are considering. It includes retail i"''. 

· 1oans; it includes credit card loans; ,,;i'tC::/includes .;,'d·i~ 
loans. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Is there a mortage ceili~~iY:~jf~~-l{' 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: There is, 

but I am not exactly sure what that rate is. It's a civil1 

lower than the 30% rate. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Does it distinguish between 
first mortgages and second mortgages, would you kriow? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I believe it does. I 

think the--

SENATOR Di FRANCESCO: In other words, would there be a 

higher ceiling rate for second mortgages than first, or should 

I be asking these questions, maybe, of one of the other 

witnesses? Do you want me to defer on any questions like this? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Well, on this 

particular question, I will defer. The civil usury limits are 

fairly complex, and I am not quite up on all of the rates. 

SENATORDiFRANCESCO: Well, I'll wait until we get.to 

Witness No. 13, I guess. 
What . about the notice-- You know, in your testimony 

you spoke . about-- Let me try to find it. ( referring . to 

written statement) You indicated about consumer complaints -­

that there were very few consumer complaints about credit .~ffd 
interest rates. First of all, let me ask you this: If you had 

a high volume of consumer complaints, would you act? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Well, that would 

certainly raise our concern and we would, in fact, take 

action. When we see a high volume of consumer complaints, we 

6 



-try to find ,out what is, causing it.,.; ·and try:to. resolve 
.;;Situation. 

. ·. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: ···In your own personal opil)t 

· or ·aoes the Department have an opinion as to whether it 
Are you· surprised that you don.'t .gf;!t consumer· cc,mpl~j' 

credit card interest·rates? 

. .DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: 1 <:4!i!;lfYhAnswer ck 

Department, .but persona~Iy, with the medi~ •attention this 
has· raised -·· and I think it was mentioned in my testimony· 

- am a iittle ·surprised.that we don't get more. 

·SENA1I'OR DiFRANCESCO: Yeah, . so am l. >What 'iss)?the 

_ highest ra,te being charged on a credit card· of ,any kind in Ne~ 7~~t;#J;}: 
Jersey. do you know -,--whether it be·retail, bank, whatever? 

.. DEPUTY . COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI~ t: 1: ·· . ~-a.on 't ·have. our 

survey, but I believe some of the retail charge · accounts might 
go into the low .· 20s. Most of the credit cards-- I· don't 

believe there is any· bank credit card rate that is over 20.. I 

· think they are all below 20. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Was there a ceiling at one time 

. on credit card rates? 
. DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: What was the ceiling? 

DEPUTY .COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: It was 18%, I think, in 

19- .It may have been a graduated ceiling. I think.it was 18% 

£or a certain balance, and ·perhaps 15% for over that. And that 
was prior· to 1981. 

SENATOR l>iFR.ANCESCO: iBo., · you think it was as high as 
· •;1a% even .then .,...- prior to ·19a1.,•when the law was changed? 

<DEPUTY COM?tU.SSIONER JAWORSKI: .. Yes., ye.s .. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: ls. it; safe to·isay that basically 

·:the highest rates today are generally retai1 merchants? 
~:.DEPUTY ,COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes, .I believe ·that is . 

a safe.statement. 

SENATOR .DiFRANCESCO: '·" Whereas commercial banks are a 

little 'lower? 
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Based on your survey? 

was only ::7\oco:::.ro~e J::::;r ~i/::t 1::~~~e {tt:~:'~~~!\', 
at all. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Oh, okay. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: 

retailers are--

So, 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: So, your statistic 

based upon a commerpial bank survey? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes, it is a commercial 

bank sutvey. My information from retail is just what I have 

read from other studies, which seem to indicate that they are 

slightly higher. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Is there a point at which the 

Department might take action if the interest rates were to go 

up on credit cards? Is there some magic number a:t which you 

think ·you would act? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I don't think so, I 

think, really, what this Committee is looking at; and what we 

mentioned in the testimony, is that we would have to take a 

close look at the relationship between bank costs for providing 

these services and the interest rate they were charging, and 

perhaps other factors that might enter into it. If it were 

caused by the bank costs increasing for one reason or another, 

you could see it as a legitimate rise in rates. If not, then 

we might be prepared to take action, as we are at present. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Well, in 1981, do you have any 

idea what the prime rate was? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: No, but I know it was 

a lot higher than it is today. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: A lot higher than it is today? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Do you think -- and I think you 

intimated this in your testimony -- that the lifting of the 
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·-

.ceiling on i:redit ~,card · interest .:rates ·•· generat~d more ,,.litfift:~~ti-,· 
credit? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER. JAWORSKir Yes. 

interest· rates were allowed to expand past_ t;he 18% l 
were more. willing to expand_ the :playing:: -f~elc:l -Jo<i~<> .· 
·more available.. to pe.t;sons to·. whom :tµ~y ·.,mt 

• • • ~ .... ••• VS •• •.,• •• • •• • • • ,• :•.,·.•·••~••••:,J:..?J~\"f:•; 

credit, ·or .. in greater amounts, and alsor1,t 
their ·car_d holders,. because they ,:eo.lild then _recgy.p :ttho·sEt' 
.,through the . :.higher : ... : interest :.. rates~ 'The· ·· · increa· 

<'availability of ·credit is.·documented in;. I.believe~· ea-:·. 

;,.periodil: . .reports which•·hav.e-.. £ollowed :the ... 3,ifting·of--t~ e. 
.. ; ___ '1981. 

· SENATOR l>iFRANCESCO~ • ·your survey indicates that two 
:";of·"•·the <•2"2 institutions ·'drot,ped their- iTates ·:'from· 18% ·to., 15% and ... 

16.9% to 1.5.9\, which is orily 1% in one instance, 8nd 3% in the 

other. When did that happen, do you happen to know? 
l)EPU,TY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: ,I don't happen to know., 

·-but .. :1 :.believe .that was .. between the <1984 .. survey and :the .. 198.5 

·survey .. So, in this past--
.SENATOlt .DiFRANCESCO :: · When wa.s the survey taken? 

'DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORsKI : .. In this past ye.ar. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: The beginning 0£ . . 19 85, or, · you 

know, the end of 1985? 
. . . 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: The· end. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: So, the survey tow.ar.ci the end: of 

.l.985 .: indicated_ .that . .some , .. time.· .dur.ing. l.9.85,; .two institutions 
;-;;:dropped· -their rates? 

. •·.DEPUTY :COMMISSIONER .JAWORSKI: · .Yes. 
, .; . .BENATOR DiFRANCESCb:: ,.i.l>O_,,.ycu ..•. -khbw.,;i,Df • any,,s;.sin~e .. :that 

· ·•·•- < ;-date>:that ··have dropped theiri:•rates ·-·-::15i11ce you "'took the·: .. survey? .. · 
····.DEPUTY':COMMISSIONER.0:JAWQRSKl~ ..... I_· 110•· not. 

·. ~ 't''..SENATOR' DiFRANCESCO:• ·. Do._ .you: have::,any reconunendations _. 

·.• with '.irega·ra ,.to a . ceiling? If the Legislature were to decide 

· that.· there should. l>e ~a> c~4, ling.;· does the Department of B~nking 

. have· any reconunendatiohs? 
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: As to the formula which 

you might use? No, we have no . recommendations because we have 

not focused on that at this point. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Do . you have any ·$uggestions, 

or-- Maybe l shouldn't be suggesting it, but bav~ ,,YOU 

about perhaps more notice to the publi:; ··• or trff~~::.~t,/ 
regulations that would make the publid ·~~~~'"~· of th~·:~·dii': 
in rates between various institutions? 

~-:~·:!.'0·~; ·:{fl·~- :5,- .-- - -

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER .JAWORSKI: We .. have thought:'''about 

it; we are thinking about.it; We are looking at . somi, ot',;lth~ 
things that New York State has done. · For instance/i~hth 

.. _,;:.0•1-:.:•-.\t-::.:c.:·.;-:_· 

..,:;,,... with a lot more resources than we have available -· - done a 

couple of things which we believe are worthy of consideration. 

They publish a quarterly report called ''Consumer's Shopping 

Guide," I think, which indicates the various bank ratEts, 

including credit card rates for all the reporting banks. It is 

a voluntary program, and they get fairly good cooperation from 

their institutions, as I can tell from the report. We think 
. . . 

that information would be very helpful to the consumer, to know 

which banks off er· what rates, and what other features are in 

the card. I mean, rate is only one of the £eatures that make 

people buy cards. The way a bank administers the program, the 

yearly fee, whether there is a grace period-"- All of those 

considerations would play a part, and how you use it. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Let's talk about . two of those 
things. The yearly fee-- Do most commercial banks charge a 

yearly fee now? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Again, I don't have the 
survey in front of me, but I.believe they do, and I think it is 

·typically $15. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Secondly, do you recall anything 

about the grace periods? It has been my impression -- I may be 

wrong now that in New Jersey, at least, there has · 

traditionally been a grace period. Am I correct when I say 

that? 
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.· :DEPUTY COMMISSlONER JAWORSKI..: . T; believe all .banks:.:in .·. 
New Jersey have.a grace period. 

SENATOR ... DiFRANCESCO: Whereas 'in tNew 0 York, 

institutions. -- or mostfinstitutions, I thin,k · -~ charge· 

the day of posting, or the day of-- ,iMi¥~;~$(~'.:. ·.· . . · 
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: . >The . day ~.:, .. ,J1!i!~.~?· 

yeah. ·· I ·mentioned in my testimony what Commissioner.t!Cons.j;c:14·~ 
' ' . . ·, ' . ' . _-_:'.._:':.'·_ ? .· . _' '· _._-,))t~r:tt~i: 

said :in New .York. She. mentioned a .bank in Arkansas that 

Senator D 'Amato referred to. He held a card up on TV to •-I~( 
"Ym1 can get .a low ·rate •>on this . "' That · particu1ar bank had <no 

grace period.. ~at makes a significant difference in ;1=,lle .re1.;te ·: 

.you cancharge. 
>.SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: So,,. i£· there were· any· kind· 0£ 

· program t·o make the public •aware' 0£, interest rates .•. it ought· to 

. include some other provisions. ·That's what you' re sayirig? .· 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: . Yes, the . other 

.£eatures. 1I'hat is· one of the things -· getting back to your 

other question--' New York State has done. They have also done 

.some· community outreach programs, where they would· go into · a 

community, . into a .meeting hall or something, and discuss with 

interested consumers whatever banking issues they. wished to 
discuss. If this were one of them, they could .explain the 

. . . 

. differing .rates that banks charge .and the di,t'f ering features.· 

'.!'hey also have a .hot line.· We are looking into all of those 

things to see whether they are feasible, whether ·we think they 

would · help the consumer, and . perhaps through natural 

competition,· for.ce .some· o.f thos.e·rates down a little lower. 
\SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: . 'Okay. I have . no other questions . 

. SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Jackman? . :You said· you.had a 
··" lJUe:st ion . 

SENATOR JACKMAN: The only <question 1 wanted•. to check · 

.with you\i.s · on .. capping ·-.. ·· .any type·· of recommendation on the 

capping o·f credit cards. It would seem to me that the average 

person,. when he.,_ takes a· credit card, would know what the 
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percentage was when he applied for that card. Doesn't he know 

it? 

too? 

some 

rate 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I do, 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Wouldn't you think he would know it, 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I believe when-- ... At 

point along the line, I think most'.!1f$d'iiillttlets· knc>'~,~f 1
' 

- ' < \~". ,,. ' _., • ..•-.. "!??f-' 
is. What perhaps they don't know _.:... and what ·· I·.' 

getting at with Senator Di;Francesco-- They may not know '"th~ 
range of services that are provided by other institutions. I 
imagine some people accept the first card solicitation ',B1tliaf:,-;1!is 

sent to -them, maybe back when they graduated .college, or 

something, and they won't change. They won't, perhaps, be 

concerned with the rates. They won't even know there are other 

rates available. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: You know, it seems to me that when 

you get a credit card and you pay it on time, you pay no 

interest. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: If you pay it within 

the grace period, yes, you pay no interest; at least at present 

in New Jersey, yes. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah. As far as the public not 

knowing, I can take any newspaper today, and I'll guarantee you 

there are 20 advertisements in that newspaper from banks and 
credit people telling you what the credit rating is for 
mortgages, and all the way down the 1 ine -- autornobi le loans, 

and the whole bit. 

I am frightened when anybody starts to tell me they 

are going to cap something. When you cap it -- it may not be 

available when you cap. You take an arbitrary figure -- let's 

hypothetically say .16% -- and you cap at 16%, some banks will 

just take their money and lend it elsewhere, where they will 

get 17% and 18%, or 19%. 
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- "1)EPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI-: As ·1 · 11aid · in my< 
testimony, that•·. is · the Department's :primary, .. concern/:''.'(;,we 

. ~~-

believe that has. in fact,·· been shown by the j~Etrience; 

states that presently have limits, or have reimposedt:l 

Arkansas being one of them. What happens is, ;,,;the . ,b · 

those states-· I mean, the giving c,f their servi,ces .:i 
not as profitable as it once was und.;~ thos~ ;esf~i,;;, 

they cut back on- They will heighten credit sta~daj;ds,:1ti,so. 
. • . . .,,: ~}ft-:e;~"-·,{/:,}ji*}~t,·\ . ' 

that the people who really. need 1•.:red1 t .. can no longer get 1t,;/;0pr 
· ,,/ :._'.;/;~:-7:_""f-;,(,\·~!· 

· they will lower. limits, and those people are then £01:;q~d::fnto 
perhaps higher types 0£ borrowing -- higher rate tl'P8is"01itia'f;2'{ 

borrowing. For ,·instance, they >will have to go to· £inance 

companies, small loan lenders, retailers, and things like.that. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: . ". Off the top of my head, would you 

say that about a million people in the State of New Jersey 

would have credit cards -- three-quarters of a million? 

D.EPUTY COMMl.SSIONER JAWORSKl: I am not sure exactly 

what the figure is, but I think it is a pretty high percentage. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Would you say it would be-- We have 

seven and a half million people. Would you say . about 

thr.ee-quarters of a million people have er.edit cards? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I'd say at least. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Okay. How many complaints from the 

three-quarters of a million people has the banking industry 

received on the basis of rates? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You · mean the Department of 

Banking. 

SENATOR JA:CKMAN: The :Department.of Banking,of course. 
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: ·.•.~The .Department. ;of 

Banking, yeah.· ·· 1 can only give you my own recollections. We 

don't ·have .figures'"£or ,;that.. We haven't .been .ab1e.,:to bieak .. it 

out of our--

SENATOR JACKMAN: No, but--

DEPUTY .'LCOMMISSIONER JAWORSKI : --figures, but my 

recollection is no more than a half a dozen. 
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SENATOR JACKMAN: A half a dozen out of -- and I am 

being facetious when I say 750,000 people have credit cards. A 

half a dozen complaints. You've got a hell of a ,;jjipartmetlt. 
. . .-;--. ··-,,_ 

You don't have too many worries. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI:. 

complaints we get dealing with credit cards are 

unsolicited cards and billing problems. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Okay. Thank you. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: You're welcome. 

SENA11'OR LESNIAK: Senator DiFrancesco? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You mentioned that we havEt: a 
criminal usury statute which says that 30% . is-- over 30%, -

obviously you are a criminal -- if you charge more than 30%. 

Do you think that is ridiculous? Should we eliminate. that? 

Should we abolish that statute? Has the Department, even given 

that any thought, or would you rather I ask that of the Public 

Advocate? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Well, I haven It given 
that any thought. That statute has been on the books for a 

long time. 

SENATOR Di FRANCESCO: In light of what everybody is 

saying today, I am not sure we should have a criminal statute. 

DEPUTY . COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yeah. At this point' 

it is not relevant until interest rates--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator DiFrancesco, are you going 

to introduce a bill to eliminate the usury right? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: No. Actually, I found I am a 

cosponsor of one of these. (laughter) The ~ther thing I want 

to put out-- It is not a question, but something I want to 

say. I think the two times that I have ever complained about 

the method of handling credit cards and interest rates-- I 

don't know if it was the rate at the time; I think it was the 

grace period. . I wrote to the retai 1. establishment, not to the 

Department of Banking. Not everybody in the State of New 
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-... 

·· ·· Jers~- --·• 'forg.ive .10e,: and_:::maybe T,,shouldn~to-say\:'thfs ~:kn.ows· : •· 

.· .. ;:e;~e i;~ ::~:~~==;~::;.~;.thi:t'.4~~.~ow, 
have been a .lot of complaints, but_ addressed in -different··,.~, 
· to di£ferent-kinds of· people. 

SENATOR - LESNIAK: How many 
· :received in your:legislative office?" · · 

.. ,SENATOR ·. "JliFRANCESCO~ · . _ ,c-l .. don't know-~ I '1T > , eek 
though.· I haven't -received·. any recently.· but I'm sure :·yfii:'~1;1 

-," ·start ·to< now~, with· all· of ·'.the publicity· about·: i~ter-est -·rates·)'~ _­
credit · 'Card ·inter~st rates. l3ut~ · ~ --haven't -r-eceived,:~;{~~fi{y · 

... ,.,:recollection; ;speci£i.c .. complaints ~out ,credit , caxn ·_ interest : -. 
----- rates. 

' '' ---::-SENATOR "LESNIAK.: JHl:you have.::to}::do is .refer -them to 

the banks that are at 15% and 16,%. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Well, he didn't put the' name~ 

out. "'.I "didn't want to ask him ·that question, (laughter) 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: We didn't want to tell 

them. 
SENATOR DiFR1'NCESCO: Thanks . 

-•- SENATOR LESNIAK: Any more questions? - (no · response) 

I hav-e a ,fe-w quel;itions.. First of all, could_ you submit to the 
. '. . . 

Committee, ,.£or :the re.cord, the .Department's regulations and any 
. . . ' . . 

Federal regulations dealing with credit cards -- >whether there 
. •, . 

i>e disclosure. or ariy other ·requiremen:t:"? (no _ response)_ And-~ 

l;io you -.know if any of the . st:~tes 1n the n~w -Interstat~ Banking 

:,:,;Region which New Jersey has. rece~tly joined .have,:any . .;-caps .. on 

···their credit· card •interest·· rates?·-. 
- . .DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI:· ,1.don't..:know ;the ,,answer 

:i:to)that, .: but I can provide .that ·:to :the · ... Committee. 

_SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, does Pennsylvania have: a· cap?. 

-,,,_;'.:: ~'DEPUTY -- COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: · - l "..don't believe . it · 
• • • I 

does./- ·r :itnow Delaware -._.does not. ls Delaware in the region? 
(no;response) · 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: Indiana, Illinois, Michigan, 

Wisconsin, West-'-- Do any of those states have caps? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I . don't know. I do 
know that most states in the country do not have--

SENATOR LESNIAK: . Okay. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: 

provide that information to you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. Wel 1, could New Jersey ... ·• .. · . s, 

with ~',the new Interstate· Banking Region, direct their ·;1~~@<:f:i.f 
opportunities elsewhere within that· region, to othe.:e >states 

that do not have caps, if we impose a cap? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: . Absolutely. I. believe 

the present situation in New Jersey is-- ·1 don't know the 

figures, but the New Jersey resident card holders-- I think, 

by far, the minority of those caIJd holders hold cards issued by 

New Jersey banks. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: . Most of them hold cards issued by 

out-of-state banks. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Ye.s. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Primarily New York banks? 

D:ePUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: I wouldn't even say 

that. I mean, they go--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Massachusetts, Maryland? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Chicago. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Chicago, okay. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Any of the big money 

centers which are aggressive national marketers. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. . Do any of those institutions 

have loan offices in the State of New Jersey? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Sorne do; some don't, 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. Those loan off ices deal with 

all kinds of loans, or just credit card loans? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Those loan offices 

usually deal with only first mortage loans and commercial loans. 
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,' '", BENllOR ., LESNIAK: ;· Okcl.Y. -- Do < you:,,,, think, we ·' ,could 

. prohibit. the ,:location of .those . loan 0££ ices :,in ;;_this State , :if 

"'those institutions did not·adhere to·our credit card cap, .if "er 
. ·., ·-.,, .· ,· ·<,~~t'. 

had one? .In other' words, is there ·· a reasonable 

nexus between those lo.an off ices, if they are not 
and ration'S:+ 
dear . ,tWit:h 

~:'/~,,":.<:i~it, .:/. 
credit ca~~;;n =~::::t JAWORSKI: '.'i think @ai~~i,n 
is more a,legal ,~estion. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: It is a very legal question; e;Jt~8tf;·t : 
l>EPUTY - COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: · It ' s a ' very ·· ·1egal 

question. My own O]?inion · is. there are serious cons~~~~j;~-f~~:l:~.,~ilf;;i,l~~":;:~~!fA• . 
. 0problems with that kind of an approach. 

SENATOR , LESNIAK': "May we· -have a legal opinion from·· 

staff - Dale -< or from the Department . on that·: particular 

issue? My impression is that we could not, but I wouldn;t want 

to rely on that. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI : Also, that would 

only- Another problem I see with that is, again, it would 

only meet part of ·the problem, even if it was successful. It 

would only meet the problem of those banks which have loan. 

production offices here. Also, it wouldn't address the issue 

of nationally chartered banks and federally chartered banks, 

where. ag,ain, ..it .is a legal question whether .or not a 

State-imposed cap would affect them. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: So, basically, what you're saying is 
that a cap can do one of three things: It could encourage New 

. .Jersey .. money to be lent . to consumers outside of the .•. State 0£ 
New Jersey, thereby drying up credit ::resources for New ·.Jersey 

·. residents. It could- -encourage New Jersey residents .to utilize 

:out-of--state -credit •'.cards,· thereby· giving ·those pro£its .to 

out~of~state institutions and taking those out of the State. 
·1s that correct? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: Yes. 
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. SENATOR. LES~IAK: And 'thirdly, it could 

who would see 't:hei_r credit availability dry up 

companies, where_ they would be, cha.,rged ,ev$n higher 

that correct? 
DEPUTY COMMISSION.ER JAWORSKI: ·. · Ye.s. . . . 

_ people· 

SENATOR LESNIAK: .. . Okay. - I h~ve, no .further:~ . 

·senator Catdinale, would yoh like t6 ask a~y questic,11;:.ji:r~'.' .. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: _Yes., Thank ·you, ·senator. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What 'happened to your tan?_ -¥~~,•_re --
losing it, 'senator , - · ·· - - - {j::':(::::\, , f 

SENATOR CARDINALE: It· s fading quickly. 1- -,"':notice 

you've gotten some.· 
-. Havin_g. just joined the hearing, perhaps this questi.on · 

has·already been asked, If it has-.:.. 

.SENATOR LE$NlAK: We'll let you know. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: Can you give us any rationale for 

why, with interest rates dropping, from the Department's 
. . : . .· . 

perspective, to the extent that they have been dropping in 
every other are 8., those. interest rates with respect to -credit . 

card purchases, in some instances ... .:... not in all instances, but, 

in some instances --~ have been maintained at the same rates, 
essentially,. that they were .when interest rates were much, much 
higher?. 

. ' 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI:. Well, I think there are . ·. . . . . 

· a couple of reasons; .The first .· is that unlike virtually all 

· other · loans-- . I mean, the reason • why most loan rates have . come .· 

down is directly. -attributable to the decrease in the cost of 
· funds for the . institution; .·. Those. costs, as everybody knows, 

have come down· significantly in the last three or £our years. 
I have seen· figures that :i.:ndicate-- Like, for a mortgage loa~, 

·. for instance, 90% of the cost to the bank for providing · a 
mortgage loan .· is <the actual cost · of · funds. 

types of lending it can go as high as 75%. 
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·. ,\ 

' ·. ' ' ' .. ·• ' ' ' ·. ·. ·.·- '. ,' .. 
:J:n:J the .. credit - car,d:.,,.ifield,. ::it ,.;is's::a:/very :diff.eren.t··· _ 

circumstance.. . .:The. cost:"· .of funcii; · is hut ,'·t>ne•.;"Component -.. 

bank's · costs; and not necessarily ·the . primary componeJit;:·: 
figures I have seen ,.indicate perhaps· as · low as 30% · of the _:c:o.it: 

' to the bank._-.·. I. expect the industry will,: supply. thi's ·. Cc»IIQ• :-'•Yo,/ ,,' 

with the industry figures for these things, and I don';,,~·~/ 
;·:·· ·,:to' he, an; expert ,QI). tho.se figures .. -~:ut, 'it is fairly tr··'· 

the costs • •are not the sam~ .. It is not the ·same -m~. 
The £actor is not .. the same as it . is with ·other lo-ans 

- ,,. ·:-,,decrease -wotild•nbt">have· ·the• ,.same ··'effect. ,-. . . . ... ,_ 

:··1rhe second ,reason, :I believe, .:is that you :have~?.,,._ .. 
back, to: the ·history <Of .credit ·o:card intereirt rates - and,.::the . 

J.ifting m·;:he >State ··ceilings. ··•:•~en we 'had a 'ceil~ ••. '.,;~;l~~~: . _ 

.banks·-.-. and,·most·.~nf, their':·cre:dit:.;card,.:industries, i;,ere·,~:in·~@'ir<•··. 

infancies~ t;hey wanted to 1;tart up these businesses,_ but the 

. cap on·the · interest rate and the high interest rates out in the 

field were putting them into B squeeze, where it re~lly wasn·'t: 
thatprofitab1e~ _ 

Their .response was not to raise the interest rate _... .- · 

.which they .couldn't do -- but to decrease the· availability· of· 
credit. This is ,what we saw during the last :round '-of >hear:ings 
thaf resulted in the .. lifting of the . cap in ·'Bl. A decrease · in 

' ' 

· .. _ the availability, a decrease in ·· 1imits-· ·_ Sometimes·· they 

• :wouldn't issue new cards to anyone. They· kept a 'lid on the.ir _·. 

losses ~ 'Or i,ro£its which were ·at an unaccep-t.ably low 1ev:el~ · ·· 
-When the cap .. was lifted,-• -and the - interest r~tes 

· .·. :>porrespondingly· '.:-.· _·;_ t.hx,ough·: .:.circumst:an9es -· .. -··:;:began. c;to '?decline, 
~'.:rather· :than .lower ·the·:'interest ,-rates,:':the .banks increased· the 

·~,availability• ·,.of ··.,er.edit,; ' .. inczeased -- ,,1-imi:t-s, -. and -·•increased 
. ';:r, •:··,services.; ':')But,, _·. they ; have' •·gotten to'- the ,po-int·•.:now whet'~ '/,At' ,' 

. . . .. 

·.-least ·tl;tere, :was-· a ,statement made · t,y··Emmett Rice, .,.who is one :o~ . 
· · ,:.->\the -members .-,,.of the? Board . of _Governors i>of the Federal ·.:Reserve · 

. . .· . 

~ystem, that:he .thinks banks may. now be>::poised · at the<positi,oil 
' ' . 

where they"m~y be.c~eady·i,;~o;:,~begin 1:owering· rates, and perhaps 
"''the;, slight de-c:reas~ 'in .rates we have -seen·,'. is evidence. of that. 

\ . 
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on what 

interest 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Does your Department keep a··handle 

is happening in the various areas of credit card 

rates; that is, department stores-- Is isfhat 
. ,,'});";;-,~;;-! 

repetitive? 

Committee}. 

(affirmative response from unidentified memb$F.of 

Oh, I 'm sorry, I wi 11 read the othe~ ariiwers. 
,~:-_ .. -... ;~-~~i~~;~~:, /\. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you, Senator 

you Mr. Jaworski. 

\:DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JAWORSKI: ~hank you very :much.··~&~:X~l'.'/:;.~;,;;<· 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Contillo is here, ancf theri A 

Senator Dorsey. (response from someone in tthe a:ifience) 

Senator Dorsey was here first? I saw Senator Contillo-- You· 

guys choose. Why don't you both come up at the same time? 

S E N A T O R J O H N H. D O R S E Y: Senator Lesniak, 

members of the Committee: I would like to thank Senator 

Lesniak for calling this public hearing today. I am here to 

speak not solely on behalf of myself, but on behalf of the 

Republican leadership in the Senate, which .has taken 

considerable interest in this matter for some period of time. 

Quite frankly, from our standpoint, we have difficulty 

understanding why, ·at this time, when interest rates are 

plummeting, credit card issuers can get away with charging what 

we consider today to be rather outrageous interest rates. Just 

this week, the rate on three-month Treasury bills dropped below 
6% for the first time in nearly a decade. The prime lending 
rate now stands at 9%, yet New Jersey consumers are paying as 

high as 21 % interest, and higher, on some credit card 

purchases. These rates are totally out of line with what the 

market is presently compelling and what more responsible 

lenders are, in fact, charging in the market. 

I hope this public hearing is the first meaningful 

step in bringing down interest rates to responsible levels. 

While we understand that retail credit is understandably the 

most expensive form of credit because it involves greater risk 
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and no collateral1 we ·:cannot accept the current rates that. are 
being charged by some credit car:d issuers. 

For months, we have been trying to get companies .. that · •... 
issue credit cards to provide ,us with detailed informatie>n." on .. · 
their . operations so we . could·· understand why their, 
rates .. have . not dropped to reflect.· the · ·declining 

.·. borrowing ,,:money ·in our, economy.· , Th~se . companies. 
·. responded·· to us . 

I hope this Committee . delves . into fthi; 
1:;h(?roughly. We need to know what interest rates crecfat 
issuers are paying to borrow. money. We need to know. 

"' · about. their operating expenses. We need to know how much · of · 
.,. the money they lend to consumers is never collected. We need 

. . ' . : . . . ~: 

< / : • to know h:ow much 0£ the money they lend is pa.id back witllin the 

30--day period. . . . . . ·. 
Companies that issue credit cards owe us justific:ation 

for·the interest rates they charge. 
Back in 1981. when it was virtually impossible to get 

a mortgage; car loan, or credit card because of · the · 
skyrocketing· cost of ·money, . we in the Legislature . decided to 
eliminate all interest .rate · ceilings on credit. · We were 

·• · ass~red by credit lenders . that the . interest rates · would ,be . 
dictated by ·market· conditions. Well, for the ·most· part, 
lenders have. 1ived up to that agreement. ·. Mortgage ra.tes '"":''""' as 
Senator Jackn,lan has pointed out -- · have come· down, so have · 
interest rates on car loans and · home improvement loans.· 
However , ·. credit card· . interest rates have not come down .. in the· 
same proportion . to those other types . of .loans .which we hear 
most about and a,re discussed most frequently; 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Dor;sey, · do you feel tha.t 
they should come down in the same .proportion? 

. SENATOR DORSEY: Yes, I do, 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Are . their costs, . as· a proportion of · . . . . 

the cost of . money they are .lending out, the same ratio as. the .· 
other loans? 
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SENATOR DORSEY: l accept your . hypothesis that <tb,~fr 

costs in terms of credit card loans are higher than,· for 

instance, on a mortgage. The collateral is different, ,etc .. ; 
but I do--

SENATOR LESNIAK: . Therefore, shouldn't 

difference with--
•. ,._ . . 

SENATOR DORSEY: Oh, there should be aiiJJcliffe< 

the rate, but we say,.;- If you use the term proportioiilt" 

We believe that their interest rates should, in fact, come ,-down :,·,>' 
•;,;;;>t• ,,,•,-,• A<,-,,~ ,'--:,,_,/r-~-,,. ,.. 

proportionately to other interest rates from the high which' 
they reached some time in 1982. We have found-- \)1;for .. • 
we had a specffic chart prepared last fall when we 

studied this problem. We had some companies at that time 

were charging as high as 24%. Most of our commercial banks, at 

the same time, in connection with their. credit ·card rates, were 

charging as much as one'--half less than the highest interest 

rates being charged by credit card issuers. 

We understand that the interest rates for credit cards 

will never be the same as they are on mortgages, but we feel 

that we have in part been deceived, or in part the credit card 

issuers have not lived up to their part of the bargain that 

credit card interest rates would, in fact, reflect what was 

going on in the market. That is so, and is demonstrated by the 

fact that those rates have not come down as other· rates· have 

with a great number of credit card issuers. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: There is one bank charging 

. . 

approximately 15% and another 16%. Are consumers prohibited 
from going to those banks for those credit cards? 

SENATOR DORSEY: I think that · is a very interesting . 

point, and I would like to go back to the question that Senator. 
Jackman asked. before, because I think it is related. There is 

no question today that there is now, as there was not in 1982, 

a great deal of. competition .in the money markets for lenders to 

be able to lend money. We see a great concentration of 
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-: .- . 

advertisement. and colt!peti-tim:i · .between .t mortgage • lenders ·· :¢~ 
... those ,which .deal with:c:car .loans. I. doc.not believ:e.- it· is.; £air · 

··,. ."~\ ~ 

. to say· that ,-we see the:·-s~·tkind "of'· competition :in· conne' , 

nth :those ·,who.-·::in -essence/· loan· money on th:e basis of ·er 

cards.·\·· I , do not find · in the newspapers· that 1 read--· .J:IJ,1~o •·• 
'.find barik~ putting .advertisements in, in which they . ·· - · 

I • • • • 

·--. ';''compare ·,:tlleir rates on mortgages and· car ,loans .. ,:You don, 

< that:. t~ the .best 'of my knowl~dge.,· ln : ,c;.onnectlon '. with l -

•·· ·.c~ds .~7;7·.·.~~~°,:r~: .=:\=: ::d~a:;:tz; ... •.;c'.·••· • . 

thillk 1-t 1s somewhat of a di£ferent feel.~ . ,:J: agr•e .that .it_;.J!l;-..;,, 
. .. to be tr-eated --differently· .. ··• The :collateral :tisL,di£ferent; .th~-, 
<security. is di££erent; ,-and. the: interest> rat--e< -will also_ be 

.different~ - But we. think ~hat should be''. the c;,same is ,,th~t the 

1nterest .rate .. should, in fact, decline to be ref.lective o.f what 
I • • • • • • 

is~ . in. fact., occurring in the market, .and the market has 

cha11ged very -:greatly from- that which it was in .1982. 

· .. SENA'TO'R LESNIAK: · 'Does a cap .•. ·increase or de,crease. 
-compet1 ti,on? .· 

SENATOR · DORSEY: I don' t .. think , capping necessarily. 
incl:'eases t>r decrea'Ses competition • in this particular ·111arket ~ · · .·· 

. I believe all of the .bills which have been presented here·· are.· 

· not :£.lat.- caps, . . as._ ,we llave in .. connection with local -municipal 

expenditures. They •~re, . in .fact~ a floating cap that would 
respond -to . -both · an . increase or a decrease ·in ·some 'basic 

,.:interest rate,· whether it -_be. the Treasury biils,,_<or :s.01ne· other 

>,Federal.· .. thing. 
''-'So, 1·-uon!·t'think it-decreases ,:ompetition ;at •",all. i 

··tnink.,:,what would increase ,competition· i·s _-one_ of :the ,propos:als 
. , :::,}t,we··:111ade "~'SDme ·time ·ago· -~- and whi'dh <is-'::contailied :''i-n:0:"'SOme??,0£·-, '.c, 

.:'.·these, bill:$ ,_ :and ,:that ,would be to ·:reveal ~-;..~to_ make public--· -

- •. ;fL?.-_,..,a -~,listing '•-of· ·all of: the ·interest ·rates· being· charged by cr,edit 

:: card issuers .in · some kind of a public manner, .so that the 

:-:'peqple -.--- the cons:umers _ .... could actually see what_. the rates 
ic(iWere ~ ,in ·order. to cr-eate·:i::some · type.~o;f ,conipet it ii::m. 
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Let me just read the part of my statement that relates 

to that question. It says: "Consumers are beginning to stand 

up to credit card providers who charge excessive rates. 

Brooklyn Congressman Charles Schumer put together a list of 

banks across the country that charge low interest i;ates.,~n 
: .y /~lj~pt· .;.·· .. ,.,:ti!fi~<,··. 

credit cards. When WCBS Radio offered this list '.:":t · · ·'.;· ts 
::,.tttti:"ftf~f . . . .. 

listeners, the demand was overwhelming. 

"Nationwide, 91 million Americans with credit cards 
are paying a staggering · $6 · billion in interest a year. ..::lit 
price of this convenience has gotten out of hand. Consumers 

are now turning to us for some relief." 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Has anyone introduced. that proposal 

before the Legislature? 

SENATOR DORSEY: Yes. Our proposal and the 

proposal is not only my own but that of Senator Connors, 

Senator Garibaldi, and Senator Gagliano -- included a provision 

that initially -- initially -- we would not specifically set a 
cap, but we would require al 1 credit card issuers doing · 

business in the State of New Jersey to submit their credit card 

interest rates, at that point in time, to the Commissioner of 

Banking, and make those lists available, particularly to.the 

media, so that we could, in fact, have an opportunity for the 

media to disseminate that information to create some 

competition. We would prefer--
SENATOR LESNIAK: That's Senator Connors' bill? 

SENATOR DORSEY: I think that is inc 1 uded in al 1 of 

the four Republican bills. It is in .my bill, as well as in 

Senator Connors' bill. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I don't refer to bills as Republi_can 

bills, Senator, or Democratic bills. 

SENATOR DORSEY: Okay. I think it is in Senator 

Connors' bill; Senator Garibaldi's bill, and my own bill 

that particular proposal -- to go initially on what amounts to 

a voluntary proposal. 
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':SENATOR ·LESNIAK: 7 ··Bo., .. ······· 
. -•·: disclosure. 

·i-ight7 

SENA~OR1JORSEY_: ..... Yes,·~·-the disclosure. Yes . 

. ":'SENATOR LESNIAK: < lt''·s only. in .Senator 

SENATOR DORSEY: 1:t is also in my bill. 

cannon· ~~1~vll (committ- •Aide}, Tit .Js 4}l 
SENA'TOR LESNIAK: .• Sorry, .senatt>r Dtirstn7;; :, 

,..,,._.__ ' .. , . . - ........ ~.. - . -~- . · __ · . :., _<.·, ·._. ,~':\::i:• 

. : SENA'TOR DORSEY: · 1. think you re wrong. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: :1 read your bill, 

··SENATOR.·· DORSEY: .. ,<·.No,. you · did .not •• 

. . - . . . . . 

::• discuss•' :this.·.• .tl'ly :bi1r ·vi11-· pr.ovide :athatL i·f ·.:,int-ez,est •ra1:f!s 
. . ... 

charged by any issuer1:; of credit cards in New · Jersey exc·eed ·the 
·. monthly index . of ·1ong~term buying. yields ··.plus 8% six months 

. . 

after the pai;sage 0£ this act., the Commissioner of Banking w.i.11 
·set that ·figure as a cap. So, there is, ·in my· bill- ··But/"' 
fine, ·:if it'·s Senator Connors·• .bill, £ine. 

with it_. ::h:~:sta ~:;~t : -t::ul~at:r ::::fuin ::::• 1:0 :::~ci:;?-:?·;,gr 
.reasonable .period of time, that 'through our· making some ~demand. 

. . ' . ·.,·. 

··· ·:£01: informati.on, .and that information being. given primarily· to_· .. 

. :·the Department .of Banking, · and· ·hc,pefully ·· then disseminated, 

· that we could, in fact, inject illto a system where there is not 

necessarily O a great -deal ~of cOil\petition · at the· mome:ntr . a 
: ,::-:certain. com..peti:tiVe<f.acitor .. 

·-.-We .do not :'mean to ·suggest ·that ,,,wei'.think :that :every 
· ·:ism.ter ':of ·a credit ·::oar.d ~is~ .in· f.act,· at this _po·int · .in ~·time., 

.. , .· \r;>charginge·_ .relatively·~:unfair . interest rates . .-· · 1rhat. 1s not- .so,. 
: ~:becaus:e ,our study disclosed .some substantial ;: .. differ.ences ·_in 

what; \:.in· ·factf. was being charged. by credit card -·-issuers. · ··1 · 

.think· the credit card falls into a different: category than 
··;mortgages '.,•and car ·-:-loans, which people concentrate. on for · a 
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period of time and really shop for. I think with their 

cards they tend to go back to the issuer because 
credit . . . 

of the 
product, and I think they are entitled to have 
of competition, and entitled to be protected. · .'.:.i;t;;{/}i,Jf!(,, 

All of the bills, in essence, deal .. with ,diff;erent 
·,,· •. , _;.~~~,'§j.'.f~~' 

formulas, and seek to reach -- whether it. is Senator Contillo 's 
·· . · .. -~ ·:., '., · .. ·;,~>~~,~ifi\\i~i)r. · 

bill, or any of the bills put forth by my side of)t;1:,p.,llrt:r, ' ---
seek. to develop some kind of a formula· in order'· 1::5':A'f~fia.te :, ome 

, . . . . . . ·.:: .. .-,:y~-:MF> 
competition and/or to protect the .. consumer··· from unreasonable 

rates. 
. . 

We are not concerned any . longer . with wha;51ri;~t1-1e ,~i(ght\: 
formula is, or exactly what the rate should, in fact, be. We 

leave it to this Committee, which has greater resources than we 

do, to attempt to develop what the right formula i.s. We simply 

think the point in time has come where there is a need for the 

Legislature to act, whether it is first by some kind of 

voluntary action, and then subsequently, I think, the threat, 

or the possibility of a cap must always ·be there, so that there 

will be generated some competition in this particular field. 
-

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, one last question: Does it 

bother you that the major beneficiaries of the proposals to cap 

interest rates would be the out-of-state banks, consumers in 

other states, and the finance companies which charge higher 

rates in this State? 

SENATOR DORSEY: I don't understand how--
SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. Let's start-.;.. Your bill 

doesn't affect most of the credit cards, in fact, that are 
issued in this State, isn't that correct? 

SENATOR DORSEY: No, I don't understand that. I 

understand that we would eff actuate, let us say, a cap that 

would be effective as to all credit purchasers' purchases made 

in this State, but all those who conduct credit card businesses 

in this State. I think we have jurisdiction on them, even 

though they may initially be domiciled in other states, once 

they do business in the State of New Jersey. 
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.. 

... BENA'TOR LESNIAK: Do you think you can do that legally? 

SENATOR DORSEY: Yes. 

~ENATOR LESNIAK: Well, we are getting a legal)bpinion 

on that. I . seriously doubt that .. Thank you, Senator Do,rsey. 

SENATOR DORSEY: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cantillo. 

same questions, .but I wi11 let you pontificate as well .. 

S E N A l.' 0 R P A U L C O N T I L L 0: Thank you, 

, Senator., Thank you •· for .having this hea::~ing in ~!.,,r~·Jirst 
place. ··1 didn't think there was any question, or that{ ere 

· \ \: if/J?·,..5/,;;':\\: 

would be any controversy surrounding this. bill. Ijust tliotight 

· it .would be a question of which· bill y,bu · were going to 

implement. As a result--
SENATOR LESNIAK: 'Senator .. ·contillo, ... if you can 

convince me that these proposals are actually going to benefit 

the consumer in the State of New Jersey, then you can be sure 

,that this Committee- If you can convince all the members of 

this Committee, or a majority of them1 that your bill or the 

other bills will benefit the consumer in the State of New 

Jersey~ we will report out the bill. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I know that, and that is why T took 

the time to scratch a few notes on the back of this envelope. 

It doesn't matter to ·· me -- or certainly, I'm sure, to the 

Committee -- whether it be a Republican or a .Democratic bill, 

which side of the aisle1 as Senator Dorsey referred to. it. I .. , 

too, would agree with him that while my .hi.11 calls for. 6% over 

the :.'T-bi11 rate. :whatever, pap, whatever £ormula -this Committee 

in its infinite wi.sdom .and knowledge would , . .arr . .ive at.. would be 

'"" £ine ,with me. 
- · I, just want ·to .add that, about three or .four months 

,.ago, >Senator ,,Dorsey - suggested that we al Low · the ·banks .•-to 

: .. voluntarily respond to competition and drop the rates. And, - of 

course, . that .hasn't happened, and it is not going to happen 

until.the.State acts. 
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Just let me make a few disoriented comments to you. 

Many states, to my surprise -- and New Jersey is not one of 

them -- have various rates. In other words, if we are talkil):g', 
. , ·-~ : :?r:;:(·,:,~~/' -~: .' 

about charging a person 21% because the cost of the operati"on:''. 

is so high, it may be possible -- and they talk about tiO~Q\;,f~d · 
$200 and $300 average balances-- But, if . a person 9~~i;jf';,,,v.,1 11,v,,::,,,,,;": 

and $3000 and $4000 -- major furniture pu~chases andt:;r~~@;,,. 
many other states have seen the light and have a split rc,.te. 

ln other words, 18% up to $800; then .after $800, it may '.'drop 

down to 12%. Of course, there are states now where the.nt&:xiinum 
. · - · -·-\~/1.t;Ji~r~-:·, 

is 12%. Those people still have credit cards, and it wbrks 
very well. 

Credit cards, the way I see it, do not stand on their 

own as an economic venture, any more than the advertising that 

the retail merchant might do. My first credit card was a 

no~interest credit card. I received credit cards, when I first 

obtained them years ago, and there was no interest attached to 

those credit cards. They simply did whatever they could to get 

you into the stores. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Were they plastic in those 

days? (laughter) 

SENATOR CONTILLO: You didn't have plastic in those 

days, Senator, as you well know. You know, in fact, to this 

day, if you walk through the malls-- Maybe it was because I 

lived in Paramus, of course, that we were a special target for 

the retai 1 merchants, but at the present time, if you walk 

through Sears & Roebuck, you will have pretty girls offering 

you gifts if you are willing to take a credit card. You can 

get a map, or a glass, or a bag, or whatever it is. They have--

SENATOR LESNIAK: On 42nd Street they do similar. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: For credit cards, Senator? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: They accept credit cards. 

SENATOR O'CONNOR: This is going to make an 

interesting record. 
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_; .. sENA~OR LESNIAK: Senator,. I'm sorry to distract t~Xj}t:.,· 
SENATOR CONTILLO: .. I have a few more notes,. and 1:1:l.eti:_··· 

l '.11 finish, all right? .· .. . . ' .,,;,}/;1':;,\, . 
My . point : is, .. the stores, . to this day. will 'do 1;~ust 

. ,·- '-·. ,~!)'."{~:-.\:·'· 

about anything to get a person to take a credit card ... :.i:XD.'ht1;,.is 

their interest ·-- to get you into the store. It is simfiyr'a 

chara_de' to tell you that they have an .economic bal~$~~rgj~J,:t 
that says credit cards are not turning a profit. It is ·fi~{o£ 
the entire operatlon of the store, _a very important: .part ::i:,~{it, ·. 

·· and . they wil.J. .. do .. anything. . .. They .. can't ·justify the costs of 

operating that system on the basis of it standing. ,by ':i~•,1£. 
They want ·· credit cards; ·· they · want people · to come · infi·',r,'the 

stores, and they wiJ.1 do anything it take.s to get them into the 

stores. 
The problem we have is the .21% rate, who it affects, 

and how .it affects them. That is what you want to hear about, 

so J.et me-
SENA'l'O'R LESNIAK~ Well, basically, your testimony is 

focusing on something that we really haven't focused on this 

morning, and that is the interest rates -:.- the credit .cards 

that are issued by the retail--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Merchants. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: --merchant establishments. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: This is included in what we are 

talking about. It is part of the spectrum. l: didn't want to 

duplicate what Senator Dorsey spok€ about,· so I thought I would 

· go into additional areas-
SENATOR LESNIAK: Sure,, fine • 

. SENATOR CONTILLO! ,--because I endorse most of what he 
·:,,said. 

SENATOR' LESNIAK; .we really haven't· .spoken much about 

that,' so ·I wish. you :would. I feel ::that you .have particular 

expertise, corning from the .Bergen County area. 
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SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, it's even more expertise, 

because I have a large family of daughters, and I was--
(laughter) 

SENATOR JACKMAN: They've all got plastic. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Yes, they all have plastic. ,,~1:~Jk¼~•'.,• 
, . ,·:-:',?;/-1;,;~?i¾~'.,ij{~t"'.''.:i• ·,._ , 

a college student, and I was astounded to find out how sh•,,,\ as 

able to obtain a credit card. ·· . One is· .a·. beautician; ;~ t ·· 

well over her head into debt. That is when I first sa;'· 21% 
.. _ .. · .. ·-:.~·->"'s-,:,_~:::<~f.'--j- : __ ,. .- .· 

appear on the card, and I was quite shocked at it. •,·soq;~~~t'eah, 

unfortunately, I have expertise in that area. 

But, most of the time, that 21% does not affect].dyiiie 
at this table, because you do what I do with your .credit 

cards. You pay it off, and you pay it off innnediately. So, 

we, in effect, are paying nothing. I don't pay any interest on 

my credit cards, but a lot of people, people of modest incomes, 

are forced to use those credit cards. They are the ones who 

pay that 21%, while the rest of us, probably, at this table, do 

not use their credit cards 

immediately. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: 

in that sense, but pay them off 

· Aren't we, in ef feet, • being 

subsidized by the other card users then? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Absolutely. That is the point I'm 

making to you, that the wrong people are paying this 21%. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Do you mean I gotta pay now? 
(laughter) 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, I think that goes back to the 

question of, what is a credit card? They are just describing a 

system to you. . They are trying to make it stand as a separate 

division, and it is simply not so. It's a marketing tool. It 

is one of the devices they use and, unfortunately, you and I 

will pay our credit card immediately, and will pay no interest 

on it. But, a person of modest means, who wants to buy, maybe, 

a refrigerator, or a piece of furniture, will go out and buy it 

that way, and pay 21% interest on it. 
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So, I have two suggestions for you. One, that you cap 

·,it, . as c·1 . suggested in the bill and; ·incorporated witbin that, 

i£ l can't get that done, · consider a dual tier,·· one that 

reduces the amount of interest a person must pay once i t'"''ls 
over that $800 if, indeed, you swallow the line that ·1J,_a1:.;~~fen 
given. to you -that there · is · he 

system. But~ there could .be no justi£ication for ever .ll.H.,LaA.""·"" 

.a person of modest means-21% on a .large purchase. 

SENA1.'rOR,.LESNIAK.: . .Just . one question, Senator, 

·peopJ.e ·forced to· go into these stores that charge 21.{. 
they £creed to use their credit cards? 

SENATOR CONTI.LLO: Well, i£ · you · want· to . shop in 

Bamberger 's and you don't have·· · the · cash, Bamberger 's will 
... 

charge you the' 21%, and they wiTl not ?allow ·you ·to use any 

other -er.edit card. 

there. 

So, there is a stifling of · competition 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Bamberger's is the only store th.at . 

sells. items that people can .buy in your area.? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: No, no. I'm saying that some of. 

the stores at least are willing to al.low you to use some other 

credit· -card. 

SENA~OR LESNIAK: Why can't people walk right across 
the mall, or the street, to another store where they don't have 

to pay 21%? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, t:h~y can, but I'm not sure 

anyone charges lesf>. I think .. the whole State is ,in . th-e range 
" of 1,91 to 21%, . Senator. · What ".I 'm saying is, ;,we would· like 'to 

bring all of that down. If people_ have the cash, they won't 

... > pay:.any;thing, or ,if .they.,.are .maybe :,at .a ,:.little ;better ,,.social .. or 

financial level,. they·wilLpaythe card off early. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: And. if you bring it:nown, ,a ,lot of 

those people who are using credit cards, will be .knocked off, 

because they ,will· be credit risks and it won't be profitable to · 

issue them credit cards. · 
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SENATOR CONTILLO:. Well, that might be in their best 
interest. If they really shouldn't have a credit card, maybe 
they really shouldn't have it 

SENATOR LESNIAK: A;e Wt:) going to prevent them i~~ii . 
::!n:u::ha:: finance comp~y then to borrow ~he. ~'"',(~J~e 

.. SENATOR CONTILLo:· Right now,. the >cif't~if 
·given out · in a very-- r . don; t see any checks invoi~e 

·, know, there is an encouragement; there is.· a mark~tilri~ 

even· to sell credit . cards again. Now there is '.a ·n 
c:oming out, . and. I · haven't quitil · .. figured out what :;~1f~~-~fs , , 
is called Discover .. I can't quite figure out what,.-that 011e 

does yet. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: __ You can use that to get born . or to 
· be buried,_ and anything in bt:ltween. (laughter)-· 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I ' am prepared to answer . any 

questions: 
. SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You. indicated it is your. belief 

that the people who pay their cards off right away -- pay these 

loans off .. right away· and the~eby pay no interest, _ are actual1y 
· being subsidized :by the others. -. But, isn't the reverse also 

true? Isn't the credit, experience from the people who pay off 

. immediately added to the total :overall credit experienc:e; and 
is~' t that making credit· available to._· other people? Isn't that 
what, is rea11y in operation here today? _ _ __ 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, I . a.m . only going · by test_imony_. 

I have . read on •. the retai 1 merchants; that they have to have 

this 21% to cover their.costs of operation. When I pay my bill 

without addin.g interest to it, they have gotten nothing from me 
' . 

to·• add· into. that· cost. So, their entire cost of· operation 

really has to come from -~ _ in their· own words,-- They said -­

it's interesting -- we can go for-- Technically it is possible 

to go to 59 days . without. paying interest. Most people assume 
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it's 301 which I do., l'Between 30% and 50% of .. all ·retail credit 

. card pe.op.1.e pay .off .. the. -entire balance without paying interest 

on it. That means , that · the other half···-- · the less affluent 
:,-A,-:..,:(,--.-

. half -- are really paying the °8ntire freight. " 
, SENATOR LESNIAK: Does the·, cap 

about that? 
, SENATOR CONTILLO: Yeah, it will 

13% the :amount those people have to pay. 

-SfillATOR LESNIAK: Does the cap proposal do 
about the fact · that the<• les1; affluent people will . 
subsidizing those peo_ple who pay .0££ their bills wi~\;}pjJ:jhg 

' ' .... _-, '-··::.\•':_.~-::.-,:.:.y.,-','_:·> '·-; ,,··.:: 

.. .any interest? 

SENATOR· CONTILLO: , Well ••. l ·., haven't 1:;aid they, are 
subsidi~ing ·us, ·· .because I gon 't consider the credit ·· card 

.operation as a separate entity in a department store. I 

consider it.as---

SENATOR LESNIAK: You, as an individual, are getting 

an interest-free 1oan. Someone is paying for that, right? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: It is an interest--free loan, or it 

is an encouragement to get you to purchase, because the 

person-.. May I finish, Senator? · You raised your finger. Do· 

you want me·to stop? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, .. no . 

SENATOR CONTILLO: The person who has the credit 

card-·- ~he average person who pays off. without interest is the 

same person who will make larger purchase.s, simply because he 

.. has a larger. amount of money to spend, and .. iE more affluent . 
. So, he ·is really "the person the department .store wants shopping 

· )in the .store. '.l'h~y go. to gr.eat lengths to get you into· the 

/store, to have you shop, .and·Cc they.:are :not interested in getting 

,the .. intE!rest on you, l don't think . 

. ·CtSo, that·is the person they .want~ '.>I·don•t know,who is 

subsidiz.ing who because the subsidy really ends up in the price 
·. 0 • ..0£ the :Pr.oduct y.ou>cwear . or use. 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: I'm sorry for interrupting. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: ' Senator, without unduly', impac~. ' ', 
the Chair-- Maybe I'-11 waste l.ess time by just sayit}g/_.J>•- ... 

. - . . . - . . .. '''.'"1¾:~·;·.--~-1?-~-· •. .:~-- . >:·,;\ 

Senator Contillo, I have always• understood the cost·· factors 

. involved· in a _loan to_ be composed. of. ~wo major ·c~t~o~i!ii~t-~ . 

. . the_ i~ss ex~er 1ence. be1~g one of the.·· maJ_or categc,~!f&t-11~;::~~G­
adm1n1 strat 1 ve costs being-the other ·maJor .category· ana,···~h1le 

your remarks may be Very well directed towa;d the fact ithat the 
''administrative costs .·. -- ·that.• factor _;_ . are primarfly being 

borne by · the people .. who dO · not pay · it off,· the· other factor -

loss experience ·-· · is certainly · impacted by those• ~op:f~P;\~ho 
·. . . . -

pay off -their loans in a quick fashion and, therefore,_ there is 

no loss experience with respect to that whole group. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: So, that's a balance. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I, think perhaps we can elicit from 

· some of the other witnesses what the ratio is in these costs, 

, and I would not ask you that 'question. I don't.expect that you 
would have that, ·but some of the other witnesses-- · Perhaps we·•· 

should add that to the .list of things we will ask of those 

witnesses. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. 

response) Senator-, thank you 
. . . . . -

· issue. We will deal with it. 

Any other questions? 

_very much for raising 

SENATOR CONTILLO: 
opportunity to air it. · 

Thank you for giving us 

·. ' . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: .The Public Advocate, or 
representative thereof, John Thurber. John? 

(no· 

this 

the 

a 

J o H N P. T. H U R B E R: Mr. Chairman, members of the . 
. Committee: My name is John Thurber. I am an Assistant :Deputy 

Public Advocate with the Departm~nt · of the Public Advocate. 

Assistant· Commissioner Raveson regrets he· is: unable to appear 

before you today due · to his illnes~; · and he has asked me to 

. deliver his testimony to you, lf that is all right. 
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.. 

.··•· ·-~ ,iihank · YOU .. fOT . providing ·:the DElpartmem:.:· of';'·'.th~ 
Advocate '.With the. oppo.rtunity ·to:. appear before:. you ·;;:today.-· to • . 

. share. :our ·strong· concerns regarding·the ·compelling nee~,<':~ · · 

1.egi~lative .. action: to lowe.r credit· card interest rates ... ,. ·, 

opinion., the· high rates of interest currently .bein.g · iaipti_;4:1~(::,19~ .··.·· 
New Jersey .consumers. highlight the .need ·to reinlititµt~ti:t}i' e. 

·· c:ontrols · over .. credit.· card lending -:.that/·~,·wer~ l,egi{ 
. ' . . . ~: . . . •. . . ._,.- .. _:< :;:-:·· ,_ .. •._. ~ .: .. ):1(_'_:,~-:., __ -:.~: ... 

removed in 1981 .•. The promise of 'interest::'rate c;der.egulationy:,""."F-''/ 
that ' i~creased com.petitinn .woui d benefit . cpm;~ei~ :d~,t;~'f;~~r.,t 

.~::· :JDater ial i.zed .. 

·.SENATCJR .LESNIAK! :.. May ,:I ·beg your indulgen~J;-_· 

you to, $lll1\tnari~e tile ·testimony,,•· :ra,ther t:han · r.ead it~ because :~e .. · · · 
-.:.,. •do have:-"'a. large ··witness ,-list?,,, 'It· 'will go· int·o the record~ .-• :The 

.. : ,, 

Senators .:on this·:;committee. love• .. to ask:.:questions ···--.:::tD solicit 

answers to questions :that are in their minds·-.. -· .. so .if you could 

give us a :summary ·of ·your testimony, then we will draw out the 

:information :we need# ·and ·w.i.11 enter your statement Jnto ±he. 

·record·~ 

l'IR.. 'THURBER: - Fine.; I will attempt to do ·so .. · As "t;he 

other witnesses·. before this Committee have te·stified, ·market•·· 

rates•. of. interest have.· dropped. dramatically :Over tile pa.st £on; 

or five years. .The disc~unt rite, the·. prime .r.ate,. have both . 
dropped significantly. <At the same time, consumer ,credit rate.s 

have not dropped in the same: way ... ,New Jersey credit. card 

holders are well aware 0£ this fact • 
. The 'Public Advocate ·has just completed •a 1:;Ur.vey of·. the · 

. . - . . 

".New , .Jersey .. banks --· .both .. ·· Federal':; and -~:.state-chartered ;,~·.,wb.iQh 
i-ssue credit:>c.ards. · ·,we, ·.in :fact; found ·58 ··such· 'banks; · savings 

. •···· '\.:banks/· .. and ·.savings ,and _J.p:ans ·.that .:issue ·.~er.edit·:.· .car.c:ls .• ·· .. ;The 
average·::ratf:!'ithey charged \was ·.,over· 18 .. 4%~ ·.. .•r,:~¼/,iJ"it•• · 

, ;: ·.; ~-rA:.~. o· R.:: LES.NI AK:. . I .. h th·.. ff ' . ±. ? -0.i.=.1.,i. . st at .. e e ective':ra e. ·· 

,:::,_ ·MR. THURBER:> ;'l'he annua 1 percentage rate .... 

. . _,; SENATOR LESNIAK:· ... l.EL.that the effective ?;'ate? 

; ; .. . .:: ·:.'·;_. 
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SENATOR JACKMAN: It goes from 18-­

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, no, no, no, no. 

know what we are talking about. Is that the 

Does that include a 30-day grace period, or 

period? ls that the rate on the card? 

MR. THURBER: · That is the rate 
balaJlces. · 

Let is. ·at ,~,;:~ft 
effective /t, · 

a 60-day·<;; 

charged;· 
:i;.',,: 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay, so that is . not the 

rate. The effective rate is lower. 

MR. THURBER: The effective rate on balances, 

SENATOR LESNIAK: The effective interest ;rate on Jihat 

consumer loan is,- lower than that figure. Is that correct? 

MR. 11.'HURBER: I am not prepared to say, because that 

would also-- You have to include--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, if I have a grace period that 

I don't pay on -- whether it be 30 days, or 59 days .if I 

put chase one day after my bi 11 comes out -- then the actual 

interest rate I'm paying is less than the interest rate that is 

on the balance. 

MR. THURBER: However, the current practice by, I 

believe, every bank that we surveyed, was to have no grace 

period if you carry over a balance from month to month. That 

is a practice that has changed in the last four or five years, 

at least bya number of banks. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. 

MR. THURBER: So, once you fail to pay off your entire 

balance, you no longer gain the benefit of any grace period. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: on that balance?· 

MR. THURBER: On all balances. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: On any purchase? 

MR. THURBER: Exactly.· . In addition, if we are to talk. 

about effective rates, we need to factor in the annual fee as 

well and, of course, have to add in the charges made against 

retailers, which consumers have to pick up. 
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- SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, ·that is why<I asked, /is that 

figure the average effective .. rate? ~he answer ·1s no. 

MR.· THURBER: This .. is strictly the rate they quote to 

U'S as being the rate they charge against consumers. So,, .i.t 
would be significantly higher '.than ;18. 4%, . if you include .t~!-if~e 
.annual fee and the charges·. against .retailers, which are be ' :" ,, '. ,' . , ·,.. ·,: --)*f 
1% and 5%. 

SEm(TOR "LESNIAK.: . How do you · base that? . Do. you.,;;pow 
how many of those .charge a service. fee, what .. that service fee 

is,, and what is significantly-- What do you call significant? 

. :I. am interested in how you arrived at your conclusions, wh.ether 
it is a factual basis. Do you have a · 11st? .Do you have all of 

.those figures for us? 
MR. 'THURBER: At the back of· the testimony, ·. we have 

appended that. · 

SENATOR LESNIAK: And, can those figures be calculated? 

MR. 'THURBER: The rlif£iculty in some of the .disclosure 

proposals that ar.e . being·. made is that it is virtually 

impossible to calculate what is in. the mortgage· market, for 

example, known as the annual percentage rate -,- APR -- that is 

quoted in the newspaper advertisements for cat'. loans, and so 

on, because consumer practices vary. Some people--

SENATOR LESNIAK: So,you can't calculate it. 

MR. THURBER: You can't calculate--

SENATOR LESNIAK: So, you don't know whether it is 

significantly higher or not? 
· MR. THURBER: '. We know · it is higher and, , ,again, 

significantly, because you have to include these other ,costs, 

some of which, .. consumers. "never actually see ,; . .becaus.e., again, 

retailers-· The fees that retailers 'are paying are., . .included·· in 

the prices ,of the .... goods :the consumers buy. As. you,Jmow, bank 

credit card· operations not only charge interest rates on 

balances and :annual fees, but gain a significant proportion of 

the revenues .£rem ,.the·<.fees tll.ey charge retailers . every time the 
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credit card is used. Every time I use a Visa Card or :'.a/: 
MasterCard to make a purchase, between 1% and 5% of that 

purchase is a fee that goes to the bank card operation. _ __ , .. , 
'.-: ':." .·· _·,'/-~.~~;:t,>5 it:' 

So, it is not clear to us that consumers who•;P~Y,-f~ff " 
their _credit card balances each. month_ are, in fact ,":;;iJ~iib~~a:i;.,:, · 
by those who don't, because there .are al 1 these o 

--:~~~:!-
of revenue for banks -- bank credit card issuers. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I hate to belabor the poi.'iit / ::r,ut';f£,g ;· 

the extent that they are not paying _ interest, they -,.,.,,,.c;_,,,""''' 

subsidized by someone. 
MR. THURBER: The difficulty -is that the in.fo.:r' :r:~h· 0 > 

that would be necessary to make that determination has no:t been 

available to anybody outside the industry. It's possible 

that-- In fact, the only thing that interest rate charges go 

to subsidize are those balances that are carried over month ·to 

month, and the rest of the operation is paid for out of the 

annual fees and the retailer charges. We just don't have that 

information. It is not available outside of the industry. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Do you have the interest rates th.at 

are now being paid as of 1986 by the banks? 

MR. THURBER: As of the first weeks of April, yes. At 

the back of my testimony is the listing. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: At the back of your testimony? The 

reason I mention that is, I notice that in the banking 
industry, they give us up to 1984, and you've got 1986. 

MR. THURBER: Yes, '86, as of just a couple of weeks 

ago -- or last week. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: You're more up-to-date than they are. 

MR. THURBER: Well, we had somebody make a lot of 

phone calls. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: What? 

MR. THURBER: We had somebody make a lot of phone 

calls. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: To who, the banking industry? 
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. MR. THURBER: · To the banks which·,issue credit ·cards. 

SENATOR .JACKMAN! ;Oh, the banks iwhich. give the credit 

cards. 
MR. THURBER: . Right. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Just to make ·a point with fc,µ~%'1flrl 
notice that Fir1:;t · Jersey National Bank charges as of .Au~•t· 

and December, 1984. What would it be in l.986? . 

MR. THURBER: Eighteen percent .. 

SENATOR ~:ACKMAN: .. Eighteen percent? .So, it didn't go 
nowhere in two and·· a half years? 

MR. THURBER! Correct. ln fact, we've seen-

. SENATOR JACKMAN: All these rates are the >same then? 
MR. ~ER: · I 1 m not sure about< that. 1 ·· haven't . 

·•t:ompa-red them 'for each of the banks.;: There is.,. for;cexample, 

one · bank -- which was mentioned earlier, the· First National 

Bank of Toms River -- that charges 15%, and charges no annual 

£ee. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: You· know, it would seem to me that 

you would be better off taking a home mortgage and carrying it 

over a.period of one year or three years, and you get the home 

mortgage for 9-1/i% and 10%, .inste.ad of buying furniture and 

paying .18%~ Go in and refinance; go and get the .mortgage. 

·1t's cheaper. Is that ·true or isn't it? 

MR. ~HURBER~ It makes sense, yes. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Doesn't it make sense? 

MR.. THURBER: Sure. 

SENATOR ··,LESNIAK~ ... If·. you :have .. +.a ... home \to· 1110.rtgage. 
•.{laughter) 

·:sENA~oR· JACKMAN: 'That '•s true.' How abQUt ,your wife? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: .. I canf-t mortgage ;nty wife. -1- don't 

.·,.have a wi£e. Can~t· get. an.ything. 
MR. THURBER: The impact· .. of the high · rates· we 

· · ,;•di:;cpvered .in this survey--

'"·SENATOR ':JACKMAN: ·, How many complaints· did you receive 

·: from the public on the basis of rates? 

39 



MR. THURBER: Again, we· have difficulty sorting out 
. . 

exactly the nature of the complaints, but we have had only a 

few,. as far as we can tell. . _ .... · ._ 
SENATOR JACKMAN: You see, that is the thing th~t. 

frightens me. We have so few complaints,.and yet somebody~~ I 

don't know whether we're stirring something up whe,n •:-:>,:;t•;:J~q ·•. 
something. . That . is the thing that :,:,worr ies>;mej•~' It _·:if a::; 
c(olmapu._glhatine._rin)g~-T_h_a·tY-ou _ know, . if it's not · broke, dYoo __ nu•::_,-.,.-.-:._~_1_,,_l._;.X, __ >h·_.aftv···e·_·. · __ _ 

is the thing that':'17orries me.. •uuu '" 

any·· __ · complaints;· the banking _ industry . doesn·t· have ,,~Y · _ 

complaints, and a~l of a sudden we' ,re stirring something'\iilpi;i~:6:<, 
maybe-. I am not · sure~ 

In my office, and I am ·in a predominantly industrial 
area,·· I ;11 give you my word of honor, I have not recei'ved one 

. ' . . . . 

complaint, and I have been in the Legislature for · 20 years . 
. Twenty years I have been ·sitting down here -- okay? -...,. and I 

. . 

haven't received one complaint from · anybody on a credit card. 
call or on ba,nki'ng. costs or anything. I haven;t. I don't 

·1 • • • . 

know, if I went out and looked for it, I guess I .wouid find 
anything. But, as I said, . I don't go looking for trouble. - · 

MR; THURBER: The pattern, at ·.·· least in our ·of.fice, 

though, has been that we . receive complaints when consumers 
, sense -- that there has been some mistake; for example, a mistake 
in calculating a balance. · They .. do not complain, · normally, 

. . ' . . ~ . - . . . 

because they think the annual fee is too high, or because the 
interest rate is too high, or they 'aon't like the location of a 
bank -- . some aspeqt of their life they don It think they have 
·control over, or ;they don't think is broken,. as. you would say. 

Of _ course, the contrast is, if you talk about this 
· problem with people . you encounter on the street or your 

friends, everybody is complaining about it. They just haven't 
directed those complaints to governmental agencies or 
legislators .. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Okay. 
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BENA1l'ORLESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: · In line . with what . senator Jackman 

has been questioning, 1 know this.' is not the first docum@ .. 

Public Advocate has· produced with respect to this gue~r· 
· have seen at least one other. 

long you have been studying this question?· 
MR. THURBER: l believe it ·has · been .j,: '":r'fil1~:t} •:t::'.c•"' _.· . ' ,_·. ' .. - . ·:-· ·'.,:·. 

£ocus !or the Public Advocate. in the 1ast year J:>r ,.so, .since 

this has been a matter that has .been. brought to our atte:Iitit>n: 
.SENATOR· CARDINALE~ So,-• .yoU'i:have been going ··over ·this 

£ox abom a year. can· you give me an idea of how niuch in · 

public £unds .you .have expended in the c.ourse of ·studying .this 

question? 
MR. . •· 1I'HURBER: We · haven't made ; any· out-of-,pocket 

expenditures in terms .of retaining consultants. Everything 

that we have been able· to obtain has been £ree to us. In terms 

0£ staff time, it is difficult to calculate, obviously. 

SENA1l'OR CARDINALE: Oh. you think that staff time is 

free; no one pays .for it? . 

MR. THURBER: No, certainly not; certainly not. But 

it doesn't compare to the $100 :million that we estimate New 

Jersey consumers are ,Paying each year in excessive interest 
_rates. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I am well aware that there may he 

something that consumers-_ - I am talking .about the charge of 
your Department and the criteria on · which-- · See, Senator 

. ;~ackman. asked you, ;a question, and I was very interested .in. the 
· answer ·.that ytiu haven't had complaints· from the public~ Yet. 

· you have,. for a year.~ been going into an examination .of this 
;question.· .It is· not :thermain area- ;.You. know,· r would expect.· 

·the . Banking .Department to be going into this question,. ' but I 

·••£indo,a. little· di£ficu1ty,·with the Public•.-Advocate getting into 

almost every area that every branch of government seems to be 

involved wit;h. When it7 goes .dnto those areas on the basis of 
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complaints from the public, I can almost understand it. 

when it goes into those areas without any basic complaints. from· · 
the public, I wonder what the criteria is by whi9h :Y ,~e ·•. 
what areas you are going to investigate. 

MR. THURBER: That criteria was laid 

Legislature when it established ... t~~ Depart.m~Qt, 
, · . - . -_ ·_·:>_·:'\·:;:"Ji_\'ff!:Jt:_:·.· .. _,.-, _.,_,.;(>:·:_. /·_,i-'"i():::t;f,!f't?b;:[d},· 

was dhargec:i to represent . the ·· publ'ic 'inter .. 

determined by the Public Advocate -- Commissioner 
SENATOR CARD I NALE: · We 11 , I have 

s., 
Slocum\ •. 

. ,;,:•..-.:;:\Y~'.::"1,if• 

legislation, and I disagree w:i.th your interpret,~fft -t'< ··•·•. 

suppose in another forum, at some time, we wil"l 
determination of whether that is or isn't a valid thing. 

I would like, from the Public Advocate, some .estimate 
. - · ·.:·:: c),,.':}.';;CJ'f,-.'· .• ~- ·, 

of what it has cost to enter into this and other questions> 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale, that is not on 

the bills. 
SENATOR CARD !NALE : Well, he submitted something to 

us, and I think we are entitled--

SENATOR Di FRANCESCO: He is here for somebody else. 

He is speaking on behalf of a guy who is sick and couldn't make 

it. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator,. you can write to the Public 

Advocate and ask for that information. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Wel 1, I have him here, and it cost · 
other public funds--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: It's not often they·. support the 
Senate Republicans, Senator. 

SENATOR CARDINALE:. Well, even when they. support our 

position, I think that· they really have no place in becoming a 

shadow government. Each and every time, Senator, that they 

come before this Committee --- or any other committee I sit on 

-- I am going to ask that question, and ask . the criteria, 

because there are things that validly they should do, but this 

is not one of them. 

42 



ISENATOR LESNIAK: '. !·.senator, 'that is 'another · issue for 

another I day. Are : there any other · questions from 

Cornrni ttee? (no response) . i: Thank you · very much. . May 

Senator Garibaldi? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Hey, Garibaldi; why don '·t 

down .and say, "Me, too, 11 and that's it (laughter) 

SENA'rOR LESNIAK: ' < .Go ahead, Senator Gar ibal.a{j), .. ·~• 
. .. .-~~ ..... 

S .E N A T O R P .E T E_ R P. G A ,Jt'l B A I. D I: Thanlt :Y0\1, .. 
Senator. First, .let me remind my colleag·aes thr1t I · am ·i:l'ilemb~f,\j?! 
0£ your party, .so-· 

SENA'rOR.JACKMAN: Sometimes·we wonder. 

SENA"TOR LESNIAK: Sometimes they wonder. 

SENATOR •· GARIBALDI : Senator . Jackman, .·· you raised ·· an 

interesting point, in · that the people are noto complaining. 

That is certainly not the image l. am getting. right now. As a 

matter of fact, just recently, a Congressman from New York -...,. 

Congressman Schumer ·-. - had prepared, and filed with "The 

Congressional Recor.d" II a list 0£ banks nationwide and the rates. 
they charge throughout all the states of our great nation, and 

New Jersey is the highest amongst all. of them. · That includes 

national and state-chartered banks. · 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Does that include Chemical. Banlt and 

Citibank in New York? 

.SENATOR.GARIBALDI: I ·have the list; I can provide it 

£or the record. lf you want, l '11 go through the 1ist £oi: you., 

'Senator, but I--

<SENATOR .. LESNIAK: ' .1 wotil d like , :YOU \to provide it ... £i:Jr 

.the record . 
.. . ·"'SENATOR GARIBALDI: Yes. Here is the list that. is in 

··"The Congressional · Record."· Banks acros-s the nation with" low 
.credit·, card . .rate.s--< ... , .. The .lowest was 1.1% in .Arkans4is; the 

highest--'-

SENATOR JACKMAN:· Yeah,~ and how much money are they 

loaning out? (laughter) 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: . Senator, what is the· unemployment .. ·.· 

rate in Arkansas? .senator, do you. know the unemployment ·rate 

in Arkansas? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: And,. how many p~ones did they c18fe 
down? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI : Hold on. Do you want 
Do you·want to get in? 

-· · _ ::.·.-r,/;if~·,::'\~~:-'··:. . . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: · Yes . · I very much would li.ke }t:oJ'.iAow ·, . _.-~·-, "]~,/:\:·,-.:;: -----~>· .. 
. the unemployment .rate in Arkansas. 

SENATOR· GARIBALDI: First . of all, ··let'" s talk ,about 
.·. interest · rates in New Jersey. •· :tifkiti.~r,, 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I would :like to . know the 

unemployment rate in Arka11sas. , I asked you a question, Senator; 
. ' SENATOR CA,RDINALE: . Senator Lesniak, What doe.s the 

unemployment rate in· Arkansas have to do with bills on credit 

·• cards in the State · of New Jersey? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: · I' 11. answer that question. It has 

to do with the economy of the State of Arkansas. If we want to­

·. do to our ecop.omy what Arkansas has done to its economy-- We 

can use them as an example. I don't · think . we would· fare very 

well·. if what took place in Arkansas--. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: You didn't · let me finish; 

Senator. We. have a whole list of banks. Why you selected 
·. Arkansas as to · their un~mployment ·. rate-- If you want to go 

through all the list of banks. in . each state and compare them 
with New Jersey, · and then discuss the unemployment rates' and 

- . 

the economic activities~-

Senator. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: . Absolutely, Senator; absolutely, 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: .. · '"".~I would be happy to do that, .. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Go right ahead; absolutely. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI : I would 1 ike to show you. something 

that appeared--

. SENATOR . .LESNIAK: . May . I have . your list, Senator? 

Senator, may I have your list? 
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·:• ,, SENATOR GARIBALDI: , Yes;"' ·you' 11 ·· 'have 

finished. I would like · to show you 1.something. · This . appeared 
in The Home News yesterday···- in my local paper·. . . Now, ,h 

what they· think 0£ the New Jersey credit card instituti&£r'; , 

here is what they think of boat loans, auto i.pans, homE!< 
. ,c,,. 

Mortgage interest rates down to 8-,-1/2%; :auto/loans . o 
as S. 9%; even a heat loan. Now; who wou1at'~i'/ tit·,,,:ana 
boat but people with money? · But yet their. interest r.ate ,is .:,as 

low as 8% . . Yet a credit card., where people .. have to use]i:t 

IDoney to purchase,necessities, such··.· as .refrigerator',·····.st~;;~., <' 

· and. household . necessities-- You. don't think the wealthy ,;f.sf11t•fl ; ·· ·· .. ··. 
are .the:nnes ;'who. are taking advantage of that .high interest 

.rate., rl.o you? It's the people who can· least afford it. It is 

the people whohave··to ·buy these·· necessities. 

SENA'TOR LESNIAK: Are yu going to submit that for the 

record? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Oh, yeah, Blld for' the benefit of 
anyone else who wants to see it. This appeared in The Home 
News, a Central Jersey newspaper here. I think that speaks for 

.itself, Senator. 
SENATOR LESNIAX: Senator O' Connor? 

SENATOR O'CONNOR: Senator, just. on that point. you're 
· talking about· the differentiation in the rates for car loans 

and boat loans, but in each of those instances, you' re talking 

about loans which are secured. Correct? I mean, there is 
col later al ther.e . 

. <.s.ENA'TOR ,GARIBALDJ.: Well~ y:.0u. hav:e your boat,·. your;.car 
.• ... -.·.sure. 

SENA'TOR , o' CONNOR: But, ·credit card loans are .not 
secured.·· If you .default . on a·~credit :card., what .do they do, 

... ,come take .the coat .back ·that you bought? 
SENATOR GARIBALDI : .. . We Tl , · they /repossess\ . They wil 1 

.· .. • 'get judgments agaim:rt you. They· will· attack your possessions. 

:First of al 1 •.. an .indiv~dual-
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SENATOR LESNIAK: .Senator · O'Connor raises · a .·9:§,,~~{t~,;)< ... ·. 
point, Senator. Do · you know what the default rate on credit· 

cards is compared· to the default rate on the other 'loans? .You 
know, that is a great picture;. -it is great to draw, ;and .gfe~f':•: 
to· laugh about. But, let's get seriou~. · Do you kn!)W ·"~:·;·/_;":"< · 
default--

.. ' .... ;,. 

'SENATOR GARlBJU,Dl : Would yd\l :"•a.liow me . 

to at lea~t finish my presentation?. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Generally, we don't .do that; .... b:ut. we . 

will make an exception for ·you. We will make in exce~£t~~~Joi• 

. you, Senator . 
, . SENATOR GARIBALDI: Well, if you want to go. ,at it, 

·1et's go. 

SENATOR LESNIAK.: Generally -- as T said _ _;_ wie· like to . 

ask questions and elicft responses to what is Oti'.OUr minds .. 
SENATOR GARIBALDI : · Very good. Wel 1, I would hope you 

·would address the·questions to my legielation. 
SENATOR· LESNIAK: If you just. want to •. give a prepared 

st.atement, that's fine. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI : ~o. I . have a prepared statement; . · 

.1 have this .information. r·wouldbe happy to answer-:--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, what do you prefer to do--. 

give your prepared statement or answer questions? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: I will answe.r your questions. 
SENATOR. LESNIAK: Okay, thank you, Senator. Any 

questions? .· . . .... 
SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes • Would you read your prepared 

.statement, please? .(laughter) 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: You thought you were going to. get 

~id of me, right, ·senato~? . · ·. . . . 

. . . First, let me just say what my bill does for the 

benefit of the members of t.he Committee, and anyone else who is 

interested. The bill I have . introduced -- and this · is one of 

server al l have introduced-- The one we have. ·before us in the 
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Committee today would establish an average prevailing · interest 

rate based on the.loans or extensions of credits that are made 

by State and federally chartered banks, or lending 

institutions. The bill would also apply a 2--1/2% rate. At the 

going rate right now, that would come to about ll-/1/2% in the 

State of New Jersey. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What rate was that, Senator? 

SENATOR·. GARIBALDI: Eleven and a half percent. Based 

on the going average lending rate of 9%, · 9-1./2%; my 2-1/2% 

above that would bring it to approximately 11%, 11-1/2%. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, · do you have any -figures as 

to what credit would be available .to New Jersey consumers .. if 

the interest rates were forced to be that low? 

. SENATOR GARIBALDI: No, but I could say this-· 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, you do not. Is that the answer? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: I didn't say that. I didn't sa.y, 

"No, I do not . " 

SENATOR LESNIAK: You said "no." 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: I said-- I have an answer for you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What is the answer? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Whether it suits you-- You know, 

are you going to permit me to answer a question, or are· you 

just going to gag me? Is that your way .of running a meeting --

you are just going to gag? Or, do you want to hear testimony? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, are you accusing me of 

gagging you? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Well--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Because I certainly will. You have 

accused me of an awful lot in the past, Senator. Do you want 

to accuse me again? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Well, you happen to be the 

Chairman, now. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: All right, fellows, take it easy. 
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SENATOR GARIBALDI: · I am here to present a posture on· 

what I feel is vi.tal to the interests of the people of the 

State of New Jersey. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Let's do it, and we' 11 ask questions 

throughyou, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: 

availab:iiity of credit at 

you have to back that up? 

. Senator, finish your . answer about 
your interest rates. What figures do 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Where is he going: to get the 

figures from? Figures come from banks. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah. Listen, let me--

SENATOR LESNIAK: He said the answer wasn't no. Let 

him explain. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: All right. Why don't you-

SENATOR LESNIAK: Let me explain. He said the answer 

isn't no .. Let him explain. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Well, why don't we let him complete 

his testimony. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Let him explain, The answer isn't 

no, Sena.tor. What is it? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: This is what I was going to 

present as an answer. Only. a few short years ago, this 

Legislature --' I wasn't a member of it -- but this Legislature 

in the State of New Jersey ·lifted· ceiling rates on credit 

cards, because there was a cap. I believe many of you sat--· 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: More than credit. cards. We 

lifted everything. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Right. You lifted ceilings on 

banks, credit cards, everything. And at the time, as I recall 

reading about this thing in the news media, one of the reasons 

ceilings -- and it had nothil;lg to do with how many banks~=~ould 

go out of business~ or how many banks would come. into buslt~ss, 

or what the rates would be as a result of the lifting of 

them-~ The argument that was presented at that time was that 
•. 
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the banks could not compete in the State of New Jersey because 
of the high interest rate plateau that was reached at that 
time. If you recall, just a few short years ago, interest. 
rates on savings accounts were 15%, 16%. Banks. were 
complaining that they could not compete with the whole 
circumstance. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Excuse me. What savings account 
ever got 15% in my lifetime, and I am going to be 70? 

~ENATOR GARIBALDI: 
SENATOR JACKMAN: 

interest? 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: 
SENATOR JACKMAN: 

Just a few short years ago~­
Savings accounts--- You got i5% 

Well, savings certificates. 
No, you didn't say that. If l .put 

my money in a savings account I got 15% interest? 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, Federal regulations just 

lifted the Federal cap on savings accounts. It was 5-1/4%, not 
15%. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: I don't remember, do you? 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: CDs. He's talking about CDs. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: You got me scared when you said 

that. I must be going to the wrong bank. (laughter) 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, it was 5% on savings 

accounts. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Are you saying we didn't• have 

15% CDs? 
SENATOR JACKMAN: I didn't say that. Whoa, whoa. He 

said savings accounts. That means I can go in and take my 
money in and take it out every day. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Senator Jackman, not everyone is 
as sophisticated as you are in understanding all of the 
different documents that are issued by banks. 

SENATOR 
sophistication. 

JACKMAN: You 
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SENATOR CARDINALE: I'm sure that all of us understand 

that there are many different kinds of instruments that are 

issued--

SENATOR JACKMAN: I know that. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: --and certificates of deposit .,are 

understood by all of us. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Fifteen and a half percent ,was 

available for anyone to save their money. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, about the only thing you 

have said correct so far, in response to my question, was that 

you weren't here at the time that bil 1 was debated and I was. 

The main thrust of the argument .in ·favor of· that bill was the 

availability of credit to consumers. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: That's right. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: And why, based on the fact that 

with that cap, and with high interest rates that could be 

derived under any other circumstance -- including auto loans, 

mortgages-- You know, mortgage rates were at their highest. 

So, the credit bank institution said, "Look, we can't compete 

because everybody else is getting that high interest rate." 

SENATOR LESNIAK: They said it was because they 

couldn't purchase the money and give out the loans with that 

cap on. That deals with the availability of credit. 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: Wel i, that was the argument that 

was presented. That is why I assume the Legislature lifted the 

ceiling. Now, where the reverse is true, interest rates, auto 

loans are half of what they were then; mortgage rates are just 

about half, without getting specific with individual banking 

institutions, and interest rates are continually dropping. 

Even. look at today's Wall Street . Journal. Interest rates are 

dropping even further. Yet, this State Legislature -- we in 

New Jersey -- have done nothing to force, or compel, or even 

beg our credit card institutions to lower their rates, without 

·having to impose a ceiling. 
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All I am saying, Senator, is that I believe that as a 

Senator myself, you, all of us, have something we should be 

doing, and that is addressing this issue. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, you are. trying to answer 

the question I proposed about what this cap would do in te:t::~~ 

of availability of credit. Was that your answer? (tF' 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: What this cap would do to the 

availability--

SENATOR LESNIAK: My question was, 

do to the availability of consumer credit 

what would your cap 

to consumers in the 

State of New Jersey? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: 

interest rates as they 

My answer is, at this time, with 

are under -all other lending 

circmnstances, I believe it would have no impact whatsoever on 

those credit card institutions. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, what is the interest rate 

on boat loans now? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: On what? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: On boat loans. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Boat loans? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: On car loans? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: Car loans-- As low as 5-- I 

think the lowest I've seen advertised, at least in my local 

paper--

SENATOR JACKMAN: You've got to buy from the dealer. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: --is 5.8%. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, but that-- I found out .. that 

when you get there, there is a hooker. (laughter) You didn't 

get the 5. 8%. Believe me. _ You didn't get no 5. 8. I found 

that out. That would be providing you owned your own home and 

you had $150,000 in the bank. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Has anybody bought a car recently 

for 5.8%? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: No, forget it. I didn't. 
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. . . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Maybe we ought to get Assemblyman 

Kosco in here to see what rates he is charging at his place. 

Are there any other questions? (no response) Thank you, 

Senator. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: · I think it . is worthy of 

observation, because the threat has been running through some 
. . 

of the questioning by various members of this Committee. What 

we had in · · the past were inflexible percentage . rate 

limitations. What i 1s .embodied in each and every .,pne of these 
. ·. . ~ 

bills, whether it is Senator Contillo's bill, or Senator 

Dorsey's bill, or Senator Garibaloi 's bill, or any of the 

others, is a flexible rate, and· I· think that is the difference 

that everyone seems to have centered on, so that we avoid 
getting back into the problem of unavailability of funds. 

There are varied formulas in here, so you would arrive 

at different rates with those different formulas. · One of the 

things we ought to be looking at is, what kind of formula we 

ought to derive if, in fact, we are going to put it in, · because 

I share your view that-- I · think there is no disagreement, 

really, even with the sponsors of these bills, the people who 

drafted them, the people who have studied them. If we were to 

impose, again,. an inflexible rate, we would find ourselves, at 

a•certain point in the economic cycle, back in the same problem· 

that caused us to lift those rates in the past. 
So, let's not refer back only to, you know, a 

situation that we really are not trying to recreate, but to a 

situation that we see, perha.ps, as an improvement over both the 

past and the present. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, but the only question I 

raise-- Gari -- hey, Garibaldi, look at Uncle Chrisy. 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: I don't know, Chrisy, you--

SENATOR JACKMAN: You raised a question about Arkansas 

with their 11-1/2%, or whatever it was. You want to cap ours 

around 12, is that it? 
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SENATOR GARIBALDI: No. It would be flexible. . It 

wouldn't be a cap.. In other words, whatever the lending rate 

was--

SENATOR JACKMAN: But, at this time, it would be 

around 12. Similar in nature to what Contillo did -- 6 plus 6, 

. SENATOR GARIBALDI: Right, right. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: The reason I ask the quest ion -­

and, · don't think I am being facetious because you kno'.11;' what I 

tell you is,\~ the truth-- I, at 0I1e time-- (laughter) l:Jo, I'll 
l 

tel 1 you · why. I covered Arkansas at one time with my union, 

and I helped to organize in that area. I am familiar with what 

is taking place in Arkansas today. All,·1 know is that they are 

closing farms down; people are going out of business. Nobody 

is getting 11-1/2% lo.ans nowhere -- nowhere down the line. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Can we relate Arkansas' 

unemployment problem to credit card interest rates? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: . No. Well, wait. You'.re talking 

about ratings, you're talking about--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: There is a whole myriad of 

problems in each state with regard to unemployment. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Mr. DiFrancesco, I understand that; 

I know that. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I think Senator Jackman's point is 

well taken. 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: I believe it is, too. Chrisy, you 

know, you and I-- Our thoughts have coincided many times, but 

all I can say is, whether it be Arkansas, in this instance, 

which happens to be less than half, or just about half of what 

New Jersey consumers pay-- I just cannot believe that New 

Jersey consumers are twice as risky as the consumers in 

Arkansas when it comes to borrowing money. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Maybe they demand--

SENATOR JACKMAN: Other than the fact that Arkansas is 

lending their money up here in New Jersey and New York, and 

they are not lending it to the people in Arkansas. 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: . A good point. Thank .· you~ Senator 
Jackman. Senator . Gariba}di, may I have ·· yo\lr . list · for the 

record, please? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI : Sure, sure .. 
. . . . 

SENATOR -LESNiAK: · ¥ou <c~n keep. the picture.: · · 

SENATOR GAIHBALDI: · I thought You wanted that . 
SENATOR · LESNIAK: . Dr. · •· .. Dunkleberg, · •. Professcir < ·of 

·. Economi.cs, Purdue tiniv-ersity; 
' · .Just a second. .. I 

Garibaldi, this is tlle list o.f 

want. ·· to point out~.:.. . Senator 

banks ~cross the nation with low · 
.. er.edit card rates. .Do you have· the bariks with high cred,it. card ··· . 

rates? 
SENATOR·. GARIBALDI: No. As I stated, that . is the 

re;port:. that. was produced by Congressman Schumer of ·. Brooklyn., 

New York. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay,,.and is Citibank on this list? 

SENATOR GARIBALDI: The reason why th.at list is being 

presented this morning' is because . it was announced on CBS 
Ra.dio, and there· has . been an ov·erwhelming response, from ·. the 

public. . .. . 
' ' 

. SENATOR LESNIAK:. Is Citibank or Chase Manhattan·. on 

· this list? 

·SENATOR GARIBALDI: I think so. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: 'No, they're not. 
SENATOR GARIBALDI: They're not? 
SENATOR LESNIAK: No, theyi re not. Wel 1, no sharks on 

that chart. 

Let's· have 

Dunkleberg,. ·. Professor 
·Doctor? 

everyone's attention, please. Dr. 

of Economics at Purdue University. 

SENATOR OUIDINALE: .Doctor, I. wonder if you could, hold 

that up so that the people on this side of the aisle cO\i':i+a' see 

it, too? 
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D R. W I L L I A M c. D U N K L E B E R G: · I will do 

that at the appropriate time. l think we planned a. somewhat 

different order, so maybe we should let this. gentleman start 
·it, if you don't mind. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Oh, I'm sorry. You're Edward 

Goldberg, Chairman, New Jersey Retail. Merchants Association. 

Is that ·correct? 

E D W A R D J. G O L D B E R G: · Yes, it is . I have a 

statement to read, but I am · also here to introiluce. D.t. 

J>unkleberg, whatever the pleasure is of the Committee. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, we would prefer · that you 

summarize your statement, and then introduce the Doctor. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Okay. I can be brief. Chairman 

Lesniak and·· members of the Committee: My name is Edward J. 

Goldberg. I am here today as Chairman of the New Jersey Retail 

Merchants· Association. Our Association . represents many small, 

medium, and large businesses throughout the State of New Jersey. 

Obviously, we are here. to oppose hills which would 

impose ceilings on finance charge rates. I ·would like to thank 

everyone here for giving us the opportunity to appear before 

you and dispel some of the major misconceptions about retail 

card services and their costs. 

There are several misconceptions that I will not go 

into in detail, but just very briefly. The first misconception 

is that retail credit card finance charge rates are grossly out 

of line with the cost of providing credit services and that 

finance charge rates should correspond closely to changes in 

market rates. 
I believe the simple fact is that finance charge rates 

represent a charge for a package of credit-related services and 

the cost of funds, i.e., the retailer's cost of financing the 

accounts receivable investment, is much less important in 

setting retai 1 credit card finance charge rates than for other 

types of credit. 
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Retailers do not borrow money at the prime rate; but, 

in fact,· finance their receivables at varying rates above the 

prime, depending on their particular financial condition. 

In 1972, when the Legislature set finance charge rate 

ceilings for retail revo1ving credit. at 18%, the prime rate was 
approximately 5. 25%. After 1972, the prime rate · moved up · 

dramatically. Yet in 1982, after the Legislature removed the 

rate ceiling -- and when .the prime rate averaged 14. 97% . .;.._ many 

retai.lers ·. raised their nominal credit rates from. an 18% annual 

percentage rate to. a 19. 8% annual percentage . rate. Even for 

those retailers which raised their nominal rate -from 18% to 

21%, it resulted in only a 17% increase in the finance charge 

rate. 

I would also 1 ike to correct the record ·- something 

in the record that was stated earlier this morning -- that 

Bamberger's charges 21%, which is not correct. Bamberger's 

charges 19.8%. 

Retail credit differs from other credit, such as 

automobile or mortgage . loans. Retai 1 credit involves smal 1 

balances, which are not collateralized. Moreover, the 

revolving natu.re of most retail credit necessitates monthly 

billing statements, with all of their attendant costs. 

Most, if not all, retail credit card plans in New 

Jersey provide a free ride period which gives account holders 
the option of avoiding any finance charge by paying the full 
outstanding balance within 3 0 days of bi 11 ing. Depending upon 

when a · purchase is made in. the billing cycle, the account 

holder may have as many as 59 days to pay for the purchase in 

full without incurring a finance charge. 

During this presentation, Professor Dunkleberg will 

clearly show you that even when you use a 21% annual rate 

percentage rate, the annual percentage rate of the actual cost 

to the consumer for a $100 purchase is not $21 as you might 

expect, but really $9. 99, when the balance is paid off normally 

over a 12-month period. 
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Artificially imposed limits on credit card finance 
charge rates that do not give creditors sufficient leeway to 
cover all of their credit costs will adversely affect "the 
ava_ilability of credit, result in higher cash prices and· the 
subsidization by cash-paying customers for ·credit acce>H11Js, 
and, obviously, possibly result in the loss of other consumer 
benefits, such as elimination of the free ride period -- as has 
been stated. 

In summary" we believe that deregulation has be'";.efited 
consumers, businesses, and the economy, and that a free 
marketplace has produced an environment in which there has·been 
increasing product differentiation and competition. ~his 
competitive environment offers all · credit-worthy individuals a 
means of securing credit and encourages creditors to provide 
and enhance a wide variety of credit vehicles. 

I would now like to introduce--
SENATOR LESNIAK: Mr. Goldberg, we have some questions 

first, before you introduce Dr. Dunkleberg. Senator O'Connor? 
SENATOR O'CONNOR: Just very briefly, you said that 

your rate now is 19.8%~ 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Bamberger's rate. 
SENATOR O'CONNOR: Bamberger's rate, yeah. 
MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 
SENATOR o' CONNOR: One of the concerns the Committee 

has is that the rates just haven't kept pace proportionately 
with the decreases in other areas. What were your rates back 
in 1981, when deregulation occurred? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, the actual responsibility for 
credit does not fall on my shoulders. I am Vice President for 
the Consumer Affairs and Customer Services. I believe that in 
that particular period the rate was very close to what it is at 
this particular time. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Mr. Chairman, I have some 

questions. 

57 



SENATOR LESNIAK: Do you want to --_--- wait unti1 __ t])e 

Doctor"."'-
. . . 

SENATOR "DiFRANCESCO: . I would like to ask Ed _a cbuple-

of questions--.;... 

SENATOR LESNIAK:_ Okay. 

~ENATOR ·. DiFRANCESC(): ' ~--jllst for my . own purpokes. 

_ They h.ave nothing to do with a ppsition either way. 
- -• r just 1·ooked in 11\y 'wallet, a.nd I have had this c·ard 

for a long time. I guess I got i.t because probably --my· ;wif_e --

- cotildn 't get one in tho~e da.ys~ whenever that was.. What -do you 
do ·to -- advise me, since, obviously; this -- is an original card· -­

-__ and _ .I· - know · thi,s - is not.: -what they · look __ 1 ike - to,day ·_ with 
_ Bamberger's--- What do you do on a yearly -- basis, or on· a 

monthly basis perhaps, to advise me :of my rate? 

MR .. GOLDBERG: Well, as, you realize. by being a credit -

carci holder, on·a monthly basis you receive a statement. 

-SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Yeah. - I don't really look at 

it, so--
- . •. 

MR. GOLDBERG: - On that statement, the rate . is very 
.. clearly stated. --

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: That - the rate is specifically 

19.8%? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. · 

SENATOR" DiFRANCESCO: Okay. Now, do you charge a fee 
a yearly-- l don't think you do. 

MR. GOLDBERG: No; _ we do - not . I believe that is 
against the law in New Jer-sey. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Say that again. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I believe it is against the law -in New 
Jersey for-.;_ 

SE:NI>.TO~LESNIAK: For retail merchants to charge a fee? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: For retail_ merchants to charge a 

-fee? 

MR. . GOLDBERG: 

charge a fee. 

(continuing) --,retail merchants to 
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.. 

. . .. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: .Okay; I didn't know that, 

SENATOR .JACKMAN: · . .Oh, ye~h. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: · It is not · against the law for a . 

bank to charge a fee,> but it ii;; a.gainst the law for. a retail 

· merchant to. charge a fee? '"'i• • 

'·. MR.' GOLDBERG: I · .. can only speak for:; the retall 
mercha:g.ts. · 

SENATOR · DiFRANCESCO: The.. Bankin9". Commissioner's 

person .is shaking.his head yes. 
~ . . . . . . ·. . : . . ' . 

,' SENATO,R '' LESNIAK: ' It 'appears to ' me, quite' frankly, ,, ' 
that something is wrong there, becau:se if the :retail-.;.; That is 

one.way of .at least getting the people .who get the free ride-""­

like us, who_ can afford a free ride· -- to pay something. · 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Well, on the other hand~­

SENATOR LESNIAK:· As· opposed to the---
.. ·. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: 'This is related to the purcha~e, 

perhaps, of· some necessi tiei:i, and bank credit c:ards, you know, 

· ·you probably. use them to pay for all your expensive dinners, 

and all that jazz. Right? (laught.er). No, I know what you;re· 

saying. I didn't realize that they were prohibited. And, they 

also. have a grace period ... I just want to-"'.'.' . They have a· grace 

period; right;. so many days to pay-;... 

· 19.8%? 

d ' ? ays. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Correct. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: --before you start chargingthat 

MR. GOLDBERG: . That is correct. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: What is that grace period -- 20. 

MR. GOLDBERG: ' Thirty days. 

SENATOR .DiFRANCESCO: That's not uniform in the retail 

industry, is it? 

MR. GOLDBERG: . Again, I would not be able to answer 
that question.· 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You' re not sure, okay. The 

Public Advocate, in his statement, said---
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SENATOR L~SNIAK: By the way, Senator, you don't want 

uniformity, do you? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: No, I'm just asking. I am just 

trying to get information. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, no, I understand that. ,Jlut; you 

don't think uniformity is good, do you? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I think that a grace period is 

good. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Oh, yeah,, we do; yeah. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I mean, I really think that some 

form of grace period is good, in that it lends a lot of weight 
to your argument about the market. It really gives the 

consumer an opportunity to have an advantage, really, over 

going out and borrowing the money from a bank. So, I think 

that while it may not be-- I mean, you lose money by giving 

somebody a grace period, but I think it is good for the 

consumer, and I would not want to discontinue it, although I 

know that some banks in New York don't have a grace period. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: It is good for the wealthier 

consumer, but maybe not good for the--

SENA':I'OR DiFRANCESCO: Well, I don't know about that. 

I don't know if I agree with all of the statements made 

previously about all the weal thy people pay off their credit 

card charges. I don't know, because I am still as poor as I 
was 15 years ago. But-- (laughter) 

Let me get into the Puhl ic Advocate' s statement with 

Ed for a couple of questions. We already covered the annual 

fee. We· talked about the grace period. He talked about fees 

for, · for example, failure to make minimum payments. Have you 

ever heard of such a thing? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I believe it would really be b~t if 

Dr. Dunkleberg could address these particular issues. 
'·,cf·' 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Really? He would be a better----

Maybe it is not even retailers who should be addressing them. · 

I mean--
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SENATOR LESNIAK: Quite. frankly, I don't think he 

would be familiar with that particular issue in. the State of 

New Jersey,. would you, Doctor?. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Vaguely.· I couldn't 'tell you store 

by store what the policies were. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Oh, but you do know generally? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Ray, let me tell_ you, and then 

you can--- In his statement, on page 5 ,. he said: "Banks have 

begun to impose other types of fees as welL such as fees .for 

failing to make minimum payments, fees for exceeding crE!dit 

limits, fees for cash advances, even fees for copies of sales 

slips and duplicate monthly statements.'·' I really wasn't aware 

that there were fees. In some way, whatever way we. can, with 

whatever witnesses we have, I would like to try to figure out 

who is charging.those fees and how they do that. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay, fine. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: That. was my other question. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I would like to . introduce Dr. 

Dunkleberg, who can tell you-,..-

SENATOR CARDINALE: Before you do that, I have a 

couple.of questions on your statement. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: This isn't the Public Advocate now, 
you know. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I understand that he is not the 

Public Advocate. I think this witness is legitimately here. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Hey, don't for get, the Public 

Advocate is an appointee of the Governor, who is a Republican. 

(laughter) 

SENATOR CARDINALE: It is a creation of the 

Legislature,. and should be functioning in the fashion that the 

· Legislature established. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Let's get .on the bills. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You indicated that the prime rate 

is not an accurate reflection of the cost of money. Can you 
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tell us what the cost of money is ·now,. in your individual· 

circumstances, and what it was a year ago? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Specifical1y, . I cannot tell you what 

our cost of money is; I can only tell you what goes into this 

f ~rmula that· requires a particular rate .. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Well, l appreciate. the fact that 

you will get into that, but I would like to get to some of the 
. . . 

components of that formula, because some of. them are probably 

very similar in terms . of what they were last year and this 

year, and some of them are dramatically different. I suspect 

that what you pay for money is dramatically different this year 

than it was last year. 

Now, that may not be so, Until you tell me, I really 

wori't know whether there is a great disparity between what you 

were paying last year and what you are paying this year. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I only know that obviously we pay above 

the prime rate for the money we have, but I could not tell you 

specifically what that is. I'm sorry. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You can't answer it, all right .. 

Thank you. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: You know~-

SENATOR LESNIAK: May we listen to the Doctor, 

please? He came all the way from Purdue University. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Okay. 
SENATOR O'CONNOR: Home of the Boilermakers. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Right. They make great chicken, too. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Indiana. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Go ahead, Doctor. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Let me just give you some of Dr. 

Dunkleberg's background. He is Professor of Economics at 

Purdue University. Prior to that, he was at Stanford 

University and the University of Michigan. He was the 

Associate Director for the Credit Research Center between 1975 

and 1980 at Purdue University. He has been involved in the 
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study of consumer credit since 1965. He has received grants 

from the National. Science Foundation and the Ford Foundation. 
. . 

Recently, The New York Times stated that he is currently being 

considered as a Vice Chairman for the Federal Reserve. · Back in 
. . 

1981, he was considered one of the, final four candidate, · 

Vice Chairman position. He is an adviser to the Federal 

commission, the Federal Reserve,. and the Department of Labor, 

and he has to his credit many publications on credit in various 

· scholarly journals. Dr. Dunkleberg .. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Doc, you gotta lot of jobs. 

(laughter) 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: It keeps me busy. Now that my 

credibility has been established-- I appreciate the 

opport:uni ty to be here today. I know you have a very busy 

schedule, and 1 will try to get through my testimony fairly 

quickly and make the points I would like to make, and also talk 

about some of the points that I have heard made earlier and let 

you know what 1 have learned in the many years that I have been 

studying consumer credit about those particular issues. 

Hope.fully, that will give us some . better insight into the 

• answers to some of these concerns we.have. 

Let me first begin by suggesting that one of the 

reasons this issue about credit cards seems to be such a big 

one, is that I think we fundamentally confuse what goes on with 

the · credit card. with other kinds of lending. I think the 

Committee has become aware of that. We are not talking about 
big, one-time loans here to finance a car, which is . so 

expensive today that I think you need a second mortgage to take· 

care of it. We are not talking about large chunks . of 

borrowing. What we are talking about, really, is a financial 

service. That service includes the. ability to go around and 

make a lot of $5 and $10 purchases without having cash with 

you, without having a checkbook with you. If you don't happen 

to have that-- From an identification point of view, I think 
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nowadays you have to have a credit card to cash a check. I 

don• t know, but the identification function of the credit card 
is certainly·avery important one. 

The consolidation function is a very important one. · 

You can put all these things together, and you can put them iln 
:- f."~• I., 

on one_.- You can pay them all with one check at the end of the 

month. With deregulated. banking, as you all know, it cost 
money. It is not free any more. · It never was free, but 

regulations allowed that.to be subsidized. You have to.pay for 

checking, and you save that way. You don't have to write all 
those checks; you don't have to pay for them. That is 

certainly a good deal . 
. The convenience on the cash management side for people 

who get paid once a month, once every two weeks, or whatever , 

is certainly very valuable. There is a record-keeping function. 

that these things perform. . You get lots of information that is 
very helpful for budgeting or for tax purposes. There are.lots 

of other services that are now being made available through 

this medium of plastic. 
And finally, but not least, is the fact that you· have 

very, very flexible access to credit. I don't know of any 

other medium that allows you to get if you . want a 

one-month loan for very few. dollars for a couple of hundred 
bucks that you might have out, or a two-month loan, or a 
three-month loan, where you can decide to pay. half maybe, or 
only the minimum payment. . There is a tremendous amount of 

flexibility that helps consumers plan and handle their cash 
flow. So, this is a financial service that offers, really, 
more than just access to credit, al though · I · certainly don't 

want to diminish the importance of that access to credit. It 

certainly is a very important feature of that particular 

service. 

What we also see in today's market is that there is 

not just one kind of commodity that looks the same. As the 
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Senator suggested~ ··. the.re is a tremendous · variety of services 
now offered out:· there·.·. by.· many . kinds· ·· ·of ·· instit'lltfons. 

Retailers, of course,·.· are one, but banks, credit· unions, 
savings and· loans, and those institutions . w~ ·used _to call· 

.. . . .. \ . . .· .• . · ... : ... ··: . . : .•,: . . 

finance companie.r:; ~ .tha.t · are certainly very different today tJlan· 
they were five or. ten years ago. They all offer . different 
kinds of packages. . Those packages . allow consumers . to: clloo~e, 
the best deal available based .on their own situation. · · · •.· .. --·· ·· · ·· 

Let me just give you a coupl_e of examples . . :e'regue~~1y . 

at the~e hearings, you will hear people cite low interest rate 
charges .on a credit card by a savings and loan. · 'But, if you -go 

' . . .· . . . 

look. at the savings and loan tequirements and that may· be · 

one way to find out about all these terms you are interested. 
in, ju·st to go get the applications from· these -institutic:,ns; 

. . 

and look at· them· from retailers, and . from banks'·· and so· on--· 
· ... 

Butt if you look at that, you will also· see that your credit 
lin~ is set by the size· of the savings account you keep in the 
institution, for example. ·· And ·· there are . other kinds of 

. requirements like that, which may be. ·good -for some consumers, 
but may not be good for · other consumers. . They ·clearly affect 

the pric.e. at which these services get offered. 

But, there certainly is a wide variety and, as you all 
know, there·_ is ·certainly a tremendous amount of competition. I 

have.n' t heard anybody really suggest that thc;tt is not the 
case. · What · we have seen over the past 10 years is a 

substitution, if you will, of more traditional forms of credit, 
. . 

the moving away .from the traditional· kinds of loans.into a much 
more intensive use· of .· this kind of plastic-driven credit card . · 
financial service, so that today we · see that over 60% of the 

· families iri the U.S. have at least one credit card from some . 
. · type of issuer. · 

:on t_he complaint side, you know, they must be _pretty 

.·happy-. with this. · .. We had some questions about that, and I do 
have a few _numbers which. I. will just offer to you: J; c. 
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Penney, which has about 17 million account .holders, I think, 

has received no more than 20 or so complaints in the past year 

or so, and I am not sure . about the time period on · this. 

Probably about 11 complaints for Montgomery Ward, with eight 

million· accounts; 25 complaints or. so for Sears, with 28 

million accounts. A lot of other stores here in New:Jersey--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Where did you get these 
. . 

statistics from? They sound bizarr:e. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: . From the . people from these f i.rms . in 

.the industry. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Complaints about the interest 

rate itself? Is that what we,· are talking about, or complaints? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yeah, basically complaints about the 

charge~ being too high. There are always the problems, you 

know, that the computer goofed up, and it didn't get my credit 

in, or my return wasn't handled right. There are a set of 

. complaints that go along those . lines, although those, again, · 

have been dramatically reduced by the technological gains made 

in handling this kind of credit. As you know, it is a very 

different business. 

In the early 1970s, if you went into a credit central, 

it would be all paper and a lot of file folders, one for every 

person. Today, of course, it is just computers, and that is 

much more efficient and makes many fewer mistakes. 
So, we don't really see major complaints. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Tell that to the Division of Motor 

Vehicles. 

DR .. DUNKLEBERG: Pardon? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Tell that to. the Division of Motor 
Vehicles. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: They still have the little fqlders 

hanging there with your name on it. ' •;,.,,;,-' 

' SENATOR . LESNIAK: They should; they would do ·a· lot 

better. 
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DR. DUNKLEBERG: They need to go to tbe same market 

that all tbe credit card issuers go to to hire their computer.· 

programmers, and hire theirs in that same market. Hopefully, 

they would get some different people. 
.. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, I'm sure they don't .\,use 

accounting firms to run their computer services. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Local ones? I don't know. There is 

a tremendous amount of competition; not many ·complaints. If 

you want to think about comp:i.aints, I think you might go back a 

few years and look at the. number of complaints we got because 

we couldn't get credit. When credit started drying up, . when 

people just moved away from consumer credit, and said, 'This 

. just does not make any sense," the banks, the credit unions, 

the savings and loans said, "How can we put savers' money into 

these kings of deals? We' re pulling the credit card 

applications off. We are not going to make them available. 

That's it,'' that generated a lot of.complaints. If credit is 

not available, if credit service is not available, then, in 

fact, we find that consumers become fairly unhappy about.that. 

Now, this is a valuable service, but it costs money to 

produce. I have looked at these costs now for a lot of years 

in a lot of states -- California, Texas, Arizona, New York. I 

can't even remember all the places now where we have done the 

studies and, of course, we published those results. But let me 

kind of characterize them in general. 

If you look at this credit card financial service, 
only . about half of the costs, on average, of providing the 
service have anything to do with the cost of funds . The rest 

of it has to do with the cost of everything else it takes; that 

is, wages, rent, utilities, postage, and all these other kinds 

of things. The·cost of funds averages out to about half. Now, 

it will vary by 

receivable they 

depending on how 

retailer, of course, depending on how big a 

tend to carry, and it varies over time 

interest rates move relative to other costs. 

67 



. . - . ' . . . . 

But, what I·. want to suggest to you· is., yes, it is true that 
. interest rates have COJlle down a long way from their peaks in 
1981 to where'· they are today; but ·they are still almost twice 

· where they were in 1972, whe11 we se.t. the 18% _ r\lle in th~s 
State. The other costs · ""'.': · the other ·half . -- llave> nqt come 

·down. They ·are going up a.t a ,slower rate than they used to . 

• The. inflation rate is :oQly ar~unci 3>%. or 4%; but I have .~otseen 
. . . 

a cut in the cost of postage;.· I have not seen a cut in the cost 
,./~ , . 

· of labor; _ I have not seen any· of •these other co·sts deqlining 
· over. tuie. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: And .the costs of making the . other_ 

loans are .much more dependept on the cost of funds, 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: That ' s right.· · That is because those · 

.· . . . . ·:' . 

are very large loans. They are· $10,000 car. loans, or $8000 car . . 

. loans; so the paperwork is very different. You don't send 
mont.hly statements. ·· · Y'ou do the paperwork · one time, and. then 
the consumer is responsible for mailing· in the check, and so on 

and so forth, So, the non-money costs. are far sm.aller for tbat 
ki~d of lending than they are· for this credit card financial 

Eiervice. 
Let me . just give you an idea how those have changed. 

Someone was kind ·enough to.· put into chart form something ·. I have 
had. that I carry. around in the papers I write sometimes. Let 
me just-- Are you going to hold that up for me? (referring to 
chart) 

MR ... GOLDBERG: Sure{ l.will be happy to. 
· DR. DUNKLEBERG: Let me just hold this up and give you 

a look· at it. This is what has happened since · 1972 to the 
overall price level. As. you. can.·· see, on average, prices have 

· gone up 157.%. The prime rate . in 1972 was around 5% ~ and today 
· .1t is running around 9%, It has• ·almost doubled. It is low 
. .. .: •, ·. 

· compared to 21 in 1981, but it is still. very high ·compared to 
what we thought was· going on .in 1972 and, of course, so are all 
these other costs .. · 
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Then I have some specific items here: Postage used to 

be eight cents, now 22 cents; a 175%. increase in cost. It has· 

not gone down. I hear that the cost of first-class postage is 

going to go up again. We all know that·is. because 'the cost of 

storage is rising at the Post Office. 

The minimum wage used to· be $1.60; now it ·is $3.35. 

That is a 199% increase. Just the index of . wage costs in 

general. Social Security payments-- Certainly, those aren't 

going down., That is part of the cos.t of hiring labor. Look at 

what has happened .here, a 367% increase in the base for Social 

Security. We look at the energy costs. You know what those 

- have done. Fortunately, they are coming down now, and this is. 

going to help out on the utilities. 

When all this is happening, what we can see is that 

the prevailing finance charge rate at department stores have 

gone from kind of a typical rate of 18% up to 19. 8%, which is 

about a 10% increase· in the revenues over this entire period. 

So, the cost of money is down from 1981, but it is still 70% 

higher than it was in '· 72. Al 1 these other things . are hundreds 

of percents higher, and yet the revenues we've got to cover 

these costs have only gone up ·. about 10%. So, it's hard to 

think of .this as really being, in some sense, out of line, 

based on our experience. 

Thank you. I appreciate that. (to Mr. Goldberg for 

holding up chart) At school·we use students to do that. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: May we have a copy of that for the 

reco:rd? 
SENATOR JACKMAN: We've got it. It's in the statement. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Now, let me put it . in a somewhat 

different perspective for you. Maybe we can think about this 

in terms of using your own money to make these kinds of 

investments. The average retail account is about $200. That 

is the average balance maintained in an account, which isn't a 

whole lot. And, based on--. Let's just make it kind of--
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Let's take the 19. 8% rate. . You have already pointed out., I 

think quite a:ppro}?riately, that l9. 8% APR does not yield 19. 8%, 

because. if you. pay ·it. off, you pay no finance charge. Then 

. when you pay the last month ~- even if you decide to revolve 

for a while -- when you finally pay it off, there is no finance 

charge in the last month. So, the fact that there is no 
finance charge for . the people who pay off . completely every · 

time, and no finance charge in the last month--~ 

finally look at total revenues, divided by 

When you 

.the total 

receivable, the yield turns out to be several percentage points 

.lower than the APR. · Then, again, that will vary £rom retaiJ.er 

to r~tailer, depending ·on how big their. balances are ,·and how 
. ' . ' ,- . 

people pay. But, typically, you can think of the actual yield 

running around three points less. 

yield, on average, around 17%; an 

so on. That is pretty close as an 

So, a 20% APR would have a 

18 would yield around 15, and 

appro:x:imation. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: If you had a $200 balance-- If you 

carried $200 and you spread it out over a whole year, you would 

only be paying about $20 interest. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well, as long as you raise that 

issue--

SENATOR JACKMAN: I think you would pay about $20 

·• interest. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: You are a little ahead of me there, 

but, let's see, here we go. (using chart to <iemonstrate) Here 

is 18, or 21. It doesn't matter. We could pick 21 to make it 
look real bad. Twenty-one i~ not bad either. In fact, if. you 
did pay that off~-

SENATOR JACKMAN: In one year, it would cost you about 
$20. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Over 12 months. Well, here is what 

it would cost you at 21% to carry $100, so we will just double 

it, and it would cost you · about $20. You' re only two cents 

off. That's very good. I worked hard to do this -- $9.99 --

70 



all right? -- let's say 10 bucks. So, at $200, it would be 
about $20 to carry-that for the whole year. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Who would even carry a $200 bill for 
one year and pay that kind of interest, because wh.en you got 
down to -- and I am going to be ·facetious-- .I guess-- What 
did you pay, about 30 cents, or 40 cents? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Wel 1, in the last month you have the 
minimums cutting. We have a SO-cent minium here to cover, so-­

SENATOR JACKMAN: If you send it in the mail, it costs 
you 22 cents to send in 50 cents. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: You' re right; I agree with you. But, 
l want to tell you something. 

MR. GOLDBERG: That's a low rate. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yeah, that's 21, and we' re only at 

19.8, so you're not talking about that much money. By the way, 
notice the difference between 18 and 21 on that $100. It works 
out to 11 cents a month, if you pay it off that way. All 
right? So, if you talk about going from 18 to 21, you' re 
talking about 11 cents per $100. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Do 
confused? Maybe I 'm, you know--

you know where people 
I didn't go to college; 

get 
in 

fact, I didn't go to high school. People, you know, . when they . 
see that 18%, autom~tically figure they are paying $18 a month. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: That's right. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: It's frightening with some people. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Or a year, or something. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, you know. If you just sat 

down and tried to calculate it-- If you borrow $1000 and 
spread it out, for God's sake, look at what the cost would be. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Lots of people have running 
balances for years. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: What? 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: People run their balances for 

more than a year, Chris. 
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, ' ·, ·.· •, 

SENATOR .JACKMAN: Well, anybody ·wh<> runs a balance.;..- · 
Please believe me-~ -Who would run a balance of . 50 c~nts, ·and 

then senti_ the ~o cents in with 22· cents ~o-~tage? -Som~body bas_ 
to -be..:.- - We -- better go back to --school and educ~te the people to 

let them know what they_ a~e paying k Jsxc\l~e m~. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: That's ~}l right. .That's true. -_': 'I -

going to say that_ out of the 60 million, 9r: howev~t-:many was· 

families have a credit card; I'm surew:e·have·o~e somewhere who· 
just··: did what you said. ---- Ccmsumers give us: this - tremencl~us 

,variJty of little stories to telt But, what ~e need to do is 
look at wha;t; most people are doing, and that is not the -case. -

It ·- is true that roughly a quarter of ·tile consumers 

that have retail accounts will, _in fact, run a balance every 
month. All right? So for 12 months they will _have a balance 
all the time. You can think of them, in a sense, as getting a 
credit extension for -the year of that amourit at that _rate. So, 
they are going to pay what we would see here per month. So, it 
would turn out to be a little higher. 

' . ' 

Then, another quarter never pay a ·finance charge, and 

that is what I heard everybody up _here saying- they never did. 
· Then, .the other 50%, or so, are_ in the middle. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Youdidn't_hear me say that. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well, some of you -anyway .. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: He cries_ on the way to the bank. 
(laughter) 

SENATOR CARDINALE: 
_ withdrawals, Chris. 

That is because he is mak.ing 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: What 'I would like to suggest is that 
the only people whOdo that are the people for whom that makes 
economic sense. No one else does. That is an issue, I think, 

·. . . . ·- .. 

that we need to address, which we wi 11 do. ~ 
~--

Just let me finish this simple example. If you ;_ij,ad a 

_ $200 balance paid back at . 21, _ you would get, of course, 20 

bucks, but at 19. 8, you would get around $18, or so. So, . let's 
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pick. $18 as the revenue. If you felt. that thE( co'st: of f'unds 
was around 10%, that would mean that with a· $100 ·l>alanc~, thJ .. 

. cost of funds :would. then also turn: out to be about' $10 ~ .· If we ... ·. 
start . off ·.with·. $200, we go to zero. So,·. the average balance ·•• 

. tha.t you finance is $100. so, that wouid be ·$10 · of ,yo~~ · 
revenue that is gone right there .. 'l'hat I.eaves you $8 .. Postage.·. 

is going to run you around $3 to·. mail the monthly statmerits .. 
. : . . . . 

and .. to. mail the, · you know, semiannual, or · the · biannual · 

statement. ·of. yoUr rights, i~d all· those·. other· klnds. 0.1;,: things 
that we have to mail out. That is going to.be.$3 there; · 

· in there. 

about 1%, 

. would be 
about $2, 

Then, bad debt losses ~e going to have to be figured 
,• .•. . . . . . . . ·, 

we want to taik about those, I.think. If you figure 
which is ,;.ery good"'.'"- That'. s too low, but 1%-. -. . 11'hat ·. 

. . . . .. . 

another $2. on average on all accounts. It would be 

so _that adds your cost up to $15, and leaves you $3 

.. to cover all those. other·· costs we were talking about. You 

still have to pay rent; you have to pay people. 
. . 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Ex;cept for the fact; that you are 
selling goods, which ·you make money on. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Okay. Well, thc1.t is a point I would 

like to come back to. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: ··. You sell . a lc,t more goods with a . 
credit card than .· you do with cash. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, but you also have to meet the 

payroll. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: What payroll? 
SENATOR JACKMAN: The. people who are selling you the 

goods, There are people in the store--
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Absolutely. You do that by the 

costs of the goods; by setting the price of the co.sts of the 

goods. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well,. let me deal directly with that. 

. . 

issue about, you make all this money on the.goods, so.·.why not 

. lose money?· I mean, what the heck? 
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SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Oh, 1 didn't say that; I didn't 

say,. "You make all·this money on the goods." I said, "You.make 

money on the goods, which is related to having the credit card 

available." 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: All right. Well, in what sense? I 
mean, are you..;..-

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: · Well, I don't think that Ed 

would want to eliminate Bamberger's charge cards. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Absolutely not. I can suggest to you 

that if Bamberger's, or ariy retailer, unilaterally withdrew 

£rom the credit card market, their sales would take a .beating. 

There is no doubt.about it. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: That is the way we 1 i ve. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yes, that is· the way we live. . Also, 

if they decided to run their stores without lights, they would 

probably take a beating there. · 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Wouldn't you agree that people, when 

they have a credit card, will go in and buy something, even 

· though they may not even want it? But, something is on sale, 

and they've got their credit • card, and. they buy it. Let ' s not 

kid ourselves. My wife will go to Bamberger's-- When she went 

out for · curtains, she came back with blinds and everything 

else. She said, "They were on sale." You know, everything is 

on sale, and then :the credit card comes .out. You know, on sale. 

them. 

SENATOR O'CONNOR: She couldn't afford not to buy them. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG:. But, having.done that--

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, she couldn't afford not to buy 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: That's right. My wife saves me money 

that way all the time. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: ·Yeah, me, too. . 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: But, on the other hand, when she 

saves me money on those blinds, then she can't, tomorrow, spend 

any more money. 
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_, Now, let me ask you to -just look at the-. indust_ry a --

little bit larger here for the moment, all. right? Everybody ln __ -
the industry is offering-· a credit card service, · just like---­

everybody offers a.11 these other services, including, you -~9W,. 
lighting, and. whatever else -- parking, - and thfngs -.like· :tb~t-. 

·. . '·' . . '·· ,••. 

What I would like to suggest to you is th.at h.a.ving_ (:redit ·· · 
. ' .. •' .- ' .... •._ 

available doesn't ·really change· the amol.lllt of. spending you ·c_an 

do. Income_ drives - your spending. All the credit does .. -is· · 

change the timing. · For example, lf.-you want to buy a car, you 

have two . choices . You can start now, put whatever am,ount · of -

_ money you thin:k you can af£ord · per month into a savings 
account, and earn now that deregulated 5-1/2- We don ·t know . . . : 

where that. is going to go. There·-. are· fees now for those small 

accounts, · by the way. My wife had an $18 account she forgot 

about, and they charged her $9 a year to maintain it~- That was 

painful. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Don't raise that issue; that is for 

another day. 
. . 

. DR. DUNKLEBERG: I think that is very legitimate. I 
have no problem· with that. She finally went down and closed 

it. But, anyway, you have the choice of putting "X" dollars 

per month into a savings account until --·I dori't know how many 

years it will take you -- you can buy the car. All right? So, 

you are still putting that money away--

SENATOR .DiFRANCESCO: . You' re. saying we' re not buying 

ally more than.with a credit card. · 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: You · are not spending it. Now, 

instead, you can borrow the money and make the payments to the 
-lender. There is a differen_ce between · the lending and the 

borrowing rate, but it is your income that determines what that 

monthly payment can be. Once his wife goes and buys all that 

stuff, then they have to pay for· it. You can't buy something 

else. Spending is driven by income. 
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. ·. 

SENATOR .. · DiFRANCESCO: . .· She -would - not have . bought all. 

· those things were . it not for the fact that she had a credit 
card .. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Wel 1, I suggest that there.· is no 

evidence · .in thi$ co\llltry that sl.iggest~ ·that people spend<,mC:ite 
·and save less . In ~pite · of everything you hear about ·~i 1 the 
savings rate problems, .. that. · is .· an accounting · problem. We 
counted a car as·· total consumption tl.le year you buy it:, and 

: it Is not. It Is an asset. YC>U take money out of the· h~nk -­
dollars -- and conver·t it into another asset. · If .you buy . some . 

' . . . . . . . ~ . 

domestic car, it may .not be such a great asset .. I don't. know; 

· that Ts anothei;:- problem,- right? But, there is no evidence that 

the -~avings rate has . .been affec;ted. Your income drives your 
spending. ·What you want to do is buy whEm. it is worth. most to 

· you and, of cours~,. it 1s better to· buy the car today so you 
. . . 

can get to your job; you don't have to call taxi cabs. I mean, 
· it pays off to be able to do that. · Even if. you have to finance 
it at a fairly high rate of interest, it pays off. That is why 

people ·do these t};lings. · They are not just kind of suckered 
into doing· these. k_inds of things~ and then they spend for ever . 

. You know, our spending. is limited in the total by our 
. . 

. income. That· means that for this industry, there are no eJC:tra 
· sales coming in with. extra profits to pay for this credit 

-function. We can come :back and debate that a little bit, but 
you have to take a bigger view of that .. 

. SENATO~ DiFRANCESCO: . Well; I avoided . all the 

economics courses at college, so I really can't argue. You' re 
prol:>ably right, but I would.·· have to· disagree with. that. I 

can't believe that you're_ telling me that they would s.ell, 
given the ··same_ market--

. DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yes? 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: -,--you know, . advertising and a 

lot of otl.ler factors, without the credit card, as much as they 
·· do with it , because of the impulsive-- · 
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DR. DUNKLEBERG: But, my impulse at Sear is is money I 

can't spend at Ward's, or my impulse at Bamberger's is money I 

don't have to spend somewhere else. One person's impulse sale 

is somebody else's loss at another time, because--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Is that saying retail spending is-. ,. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Do you agree with his conclusion? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: If he is saying spendipg-- If he is 

limiting it to retail spending, I would disagree. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Twenty-five percent of it is 

always carried on. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: If you are limiting it to retail 

spending, I would disagree. If I don't spend it now, I could 

spend it somewhere, but not necessarily to the merchant. I may 

decide to take a vacation; I may decide to go out drinking. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yeah, well, that's right; that's 

right. We may change--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: If you save the money every 

month, you may use it a lot--

DR. DUNKLEBERG: We may change how we spend the money, 

but, then again, that just means different kinds of retailers. 

That means the travel agent as a retailer, you know, gets the 

business. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Right. 

DR .. DUNKLEBERG: But there is not this extra layer of 

money somehow lying out there that we can attribute to the 

credit function. So, therefore, you have to go back to 

thinking about it having to stand on its own two feet, in a 

sense. It is particularly important because it is about the 

only service a retailer offers that is not available to 

everybody who comes through the door. So, it becomes 

particularly important that it be priced correctly. 

Everything else is available all the sales 

personnel, all the services. You know, whatever is offered is 

available to everybody, except credit. It is the one service 
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that has to be-given on a discriminatory basis. I buy that, I 
mean, economic discrimination. .You can only make good· 

.decisions about it. It was suggested earlier that th~se 

retailers and ·the banks ·are foisting these cards off. Boy, 

they are not doing that. One bad account wipes Qut .a lot-;.-of 
good work. I think retailers are probably turning down -- and 

you can check them; they can give you turndowns ~- · 60% or 70% 
· of their applicants. They are very · car.eful about . screening 

them. · They don't want to put . bad people on the books . because 

you can't make any money with bad accounts. • 

SENATOR .DiFRANCESCO: I think it is mostly banks tbat 
send out the credit cards. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Usually the one who are getting 

· credit card inquiries· are the ones who already have credit 
cards, and they know about it. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yes. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: You know, they have an industry out 

there,-- l have a bank card with a gold card, a silver card, 

and a bronze card. That's a lot of boloney. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: The neutron card is next. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG : All right. What that all suggests 
is, when you look at this kind of an issue, you've got to 
consider ·· the fact that there are all these other costs over 

here that haven't gone down. They have nothing to do with the 
cost of money. They only continue to rise. When you focus 
only on this interest rate thing, you are really missing the 

boat. 

You know, there are lots .of other businesses, for 

example, · retail auto sales, where the interest cost components 

are very large because they fore-p1an all that. But, we are 
not going to· think about indexing the price of cars t:b the 

-:_..;,·' 
prime,rate. Let me also suggest to you that funds are not kind 

of borrowed on a 30-day basis by anybody, I don't care who it 

is. You don't finance these receivables, or your business, by 
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borrowing every 30 days. What you do is borrow some short term 
and some long term; you try to lock in good deals. Right now, 
for a lot of banks and retailers and other financial 
institutions, they have a lot of less expensive bonds coming 
due, and they are having to refinance th.em at long...,;term rates 
that are much higher than they had before. 

So, the cost of funds is not just what short-term 
rates look like, because that is not the way any business -- as 

most of you probably know -- finances its operation. So, that 
is very slippery to think about, the cost 0£ funds €Ven 
behaving that way. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: So. by tying the cap into any 

particular market rate is not particularly -- may not hav,e any 
reasonable or rational relationship to the cost of the credit. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Absolutely. In fact, I would like to 
give you t€stimony by Martha Seager (phonetic spelling)# who is 

a member of the Board of Governors. She covers that very 
well. Her testimony--

SENATOR LESNIAK: The Board of Governors of what? 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Pardon? 
SENATOR LESNIAK: The Board of Governors of--
DR. DUNKLEBERG: The Federal Reserve Board the 

Federal Reserve System. She testified on some of the bills at 
the national level, and this is a very good piece of testimony 
that you might like to have. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We would like to have it for . our 
record. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: The variable rate ceiling has-­
SENATOR JACKMAN: I would like to ask one question. I 

notice there is no charge for the first 30 days when buying a 
product in Bamberger's. In other words, there is no charge. 
They couldn't afford everybody coming in and taking 30 days 
credit. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well, they probably couldn't afford 

it. 
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SENATOR JACKMAN: '. You, better . bel~eve they couldn't 

afford it. 
DR; D~LEBERG: 

them, and they~~ 

It. would . certainly raise .. costs for 

. SENATOR:JA¢KMAN: 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: .. somewhere. 
. ·.. .· : ·. . . . .. 

It would, ·wouldn't it?· 

-~have ·got. to ·get··. it 

Remember, the bot:toni line--

. SENATOR JACKMAN: Right; 

. DR. DUNKLEBERG: c The . retail industry, or the bank 

industry, when they are competing ~or £unds and capital with 

· all the other industries, if they don't give as good a rate of 
. . . . 

return ·_. -·· a .competitive rate. of return_;_;.;.. . 

SENATOR JACKMAN: · If they could get the same amount of 

people coming in and paying cash,• they would prefer the· cash, 
wouldn't they? 

·: . 

DR.· DUNKLEBERG: They would love it .. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: The proof of· that is, today you have 

· two prices when you buy gasoline -- ~ne for cash and one for 

credit ... rs that true?· . 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Of course it's true. 
SENI\TOR JACKMAN: Well, all right, 

, , , 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: What about .the. payment in cash 

within .30. days? If·. they were guaranteed they were going to get 

it within 30 days -- you mean they wouldn; t love i.t? 
SENATOR JACKMAN: · Well, they are· giving you no charge 

· for 30 days. . . . . 
SENATOR ·D1FRANCESCO: · When Ray sends out a bill, he is 

happy when he gets it withi~ JO·days. 

·· SENATOR JAC~: You know, there is no charge for 30 

days. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Right. Well, you I re saying they 

are going to lose money if everybody pays their bill in 30·days. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: No, I 'm not . 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: No, he said .if everyone did that...:-
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SENATOR LESNIAK: I just take a credit against a 

retainer. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: See, you' re a Republican, and you' re 

distorting my Democratic view again. (laughter) I didn't say 

that. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Let me review, just real quickly;\\tJie 

problems with any kind of a variable rate type format. Orie, of 

course, we just identified. The fact is, it is probabl~;r not 

the right rate. The second thin!:g is, it is only half the 

cost. So, you've got a situation now where that rate has come 

down J.ike this (demonstrates) -- and it has, a long way from 21 

t6 9. For the prime, or whatever rate you pick, they have all 

come down. The Treasuries have come down from 16 to 6. But,. 

the other costs have gone just like this (demonstrates), and 

they are up there, and they just haven't gone anywhere. 

If that is half the cost, why should we index to-­

That is going to create a major problem. You also have 
compliance costs. There is a Federal law about telling people 

about changes in rates. All right? So, the rate has to change 

all the time. Texas has one of these laws, and it's terrible, 

because they also have to keep all the balances separate. So, 

the retailers, every time the rate changes, have to go out and 

reprogram everything. They have to give you a one-pager that 

says, "Well, if this balance went out at this rate, and this 

balance went out at this rate--" The disclosures are very 

complicated, hard to understand, and--

SENATOR LESNIAK: I'm sorry to interrupt you, but does 
that affect the price of the actual_good itself? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: We 11, that is what I am trying to 

suggest. This is a whole new block of costs -- to mail all 

this stuff out, to reprint all the forms, to get rid of all the 

ones you already had done, to reprogram the computers. So, 

that is a big chunk of cost that always has to fall-- The 

consumer pays everything. We' re kidding ours.elves if we say 
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coris1Jmers don't pay. . There is no kind, of . infinitely deep 
pocket out there that we'can reach in. It•s us----· 

SENATOR LESNIAK: As ldng 'as .tp.ere is a competitive 

Jnarket .·· . ' 

' ~ . . . 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: It is a question of who is going <to 
. pay, ' Which' consumers', might' l:,e paying~ . ' 

. . SENATOR LESNIAK: And how. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: . And how ~-- What form they are ge>ing 

.· . ' . . .. 

to pay· in, . That's right~ That is the only way. 
. . · .. ·.Now~·· tlier_e is· an · awareness problem, · too. · ConSUillers 

... lose track ·of what the rate is. 'l'hey don't even know what:.:_ 
· .. - i•we11., today l don it even kriow what is going on with the 

variable .rate. " .. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Well, wouldn't you suggest there 

is a Jawyer 's problem even with a fixed rate? 
DR.· DUNKLEBERG: · There is, but what you' 11 see. is--

' ' 

Since truth in lending, the percentage of consumers -- and we 
. . . : . . .· -

· can get you the data on this ....:_ who know what the APR is --.- and 

· everybody has to use an APR· -- at least has gone way up. So 
, they know the · APR. They can't always translate correctly, as 

you pointed out, Senator. You know, they think 18% is $18, 
' . 

which means they think the price: of .credit maybe is higher than 
it really fs, _but nonetheless, the awareness is way up. But 
there . are just other complications. -- how or where, how car 

· · work-- I don' t. · know how · that . goes . · 

·_· Let me make another. point about the rate ceiling, or 
· the variable rate problem. First. of all, any of the formulas. I 
have seen would give us a Very low rate now. . You know, six 
points over Treasury is 12; eight points over double Treasury 

•. is · 12. · Any of these things would take us down to a rate which 

I .• think·, if you 1ook at the nUIIlbers I have here on the 
economics· of t:his, you know, there is no way; It would barely 

cover the cost of funds, if that, for the big lenders --- not 
the small· ones -- and, of course, then all the. other costs 
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. . . . ' . 

would have to be covered somewhere else, a.nd we know where they 
. . . 

get covered. They get covered in the cost of merchandise or. 

restrictions on availability or all those kinds of things. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: So, you' re saying the proposals we 

have before us can result in only one thing, and that is an 
increase in the cost of the goods to the consumer. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yeah, and a cut in availability, 

because look at this point: Suppose you come in-- · 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Whosa.id that? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I did. He did, and so did 1 .. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You said it, or he said it? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We both did. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: I'll say it. It will raise costs­
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: He is going to say that all of 

these proposals are going to raise the cost of goods at 

Bamberger's, if they affect this. 

question 

SENATOR LESNIAK: That is what I heard him say. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: We 11 , let me ask you this 

then, since you are~­

DR .. DUNKLEBERG: Could 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: 

. I make one more point? 

Wel 1, no. I want to ask- You 

keep interrupting him; let me interrupt him. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I heard him say that. Am I stopping 

you? Senator? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: No, you' re not. In . what other 

states is Bamberger's located? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: I can't answer that; I don't know. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: How many, roughly, all of them 

-- all the states? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: That I don't know. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: How many other states have 

ceilings on interest rates for credit cards? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: I' 11 have to give you the list.· 

There are 1 7 states that have ful 1 de reg. Another bunch of 

them have 21 caps; 
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·sENATOR LESNIAK: I think . the relevant question, 
.senator, if I may--

is at--

now. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Why are you interrupting me now? 
DR.· DUNKLEBERG: Most of them-- Virtually everybody 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, let's get to the point. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You' i;e saying it is irrelevant 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator, let ',s get to the point. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I am trying to get to the point. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, then, why don't you ask him, 

"What other states have the types of caps that are in these 
proposals?" and then compare--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: You are not letting me get 
anywhere with.him. Let's find out what other states have first. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Go ahead. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Do you know what other states 

have? If so, make it avai1aJ::,le to us. Does anyone have a 12% 
cap - any of the states? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well, I can't answer that, because 
there are a couple--

SENATOR JACKMAN: Arkansas. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Somebody said before there was a 

12% cap. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Arkansas, it is in the report. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: The problem is, there are variable 

rates, and I don't know where exactly they are. Someone who is 
right on top of it may be able to tell you. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Does anybody know the answers to 
any of these questions? (At this point, several members of the 
Committee and witness all speaking at once.) -· 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Arkansas is five points ·o"ver. 
Who else? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Texas is-- What is Texas? Somebody 
help me out on.this. 
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UNIDENTIFIED PERSON FROM AUDIENCE: 
six-month T-bill rate. 

Two times the 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Two times the six-month T-bill rate.· 
Those are our two real problem states. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: . Those are the only variable 

states. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: I think what we ought to do, Senator 

DiFrancesco, if I may--
SENATOR DiFRJ'iNCESCO: Go ahead. I'll listen to you. 

Go ahead. What do you want to do? 
SENA~OR LESNIAK: -is ask the Committee Aide to make 

some inquiries in terms of the State of Arkansas and the State 
of Texas, with regard to--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: The price of goods - the price 
of shoes, the price of underwear. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: --how those rates have affected the 
price of -- in terms of how those rates have affected-­

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Compared to New Jersey. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Absolutely .. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: All right; okay. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: I will give you a couple of studies 

where a bunch of academics have run out and very carefully 
studied this issue. In p~rticular, I can give you, very 
quickly, a study from Arkansas, which essentially shows that if 
you -- and Arkansas had 10% for a long time, and that is when 
we did the study, 10% versus, say, 18% in Texas, at the time-­
If you wanted to buy a TV on credit and pay for it, say, in 12 
months, you would pay about the same price in both states. All 
right? But what you had was a low cash price for the TV with 
an APR of 18 in Texas, and a high cash price and a 10% APR in 
Arkansas. That is very simple. That is just about the way it 
comes out. So, they were high cash prices. 

Now, that wouldn't matter if everybody had credit, 
because then we wouldn't care. What you care is, "What am I 
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paying for this TV, · which I am going to pay for over 12 

months?" or whatever .. But the point is, particularly in 

Arkansas with the low rate ceiling, credit availability was 

really hampered and so, in fact, a· 1ot more people in Arkansas 

than any other states couldn't get credit. They had to pay 

cash, They paid high cash prices. l' 11 tell you what else 

they did. Since they · couldn't get credit, they · would lease 

cars. They rent furnished apartments; they rent furnished 

homes; they rent to own. 'l'hey use pawn shops more than anybody 

else . in ~he surrounding states, and they borrow from· people at 
. . 

work -. a11d I' 11 leave that to your imagination - far more 

than people in surrounding states. 

That rate ceiling cut availability, but you can't keep 

people from getting credit. You just force them to go to all 

these other more nefarious--

SENATOR JACKMAN: Shylocks. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: I couldn't have said it better -- and 

more expensive ways to get the services they want. To get a 

washer and drier in your home is just as valuable to you if you 

do 10 loads a week if you are poor as if you are rich. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Doctor, may I interrupt you for a 

moment. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Wait a minute, Senator Cardinale. 

Senator DiFrancesco, are yoh finished? 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Wel 1, I want to know what you 

are going to provide to me """- who is going to provide it -­

what he is going to provide to me, and what he is going to do. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: · Senator DiFrancesco, what I am going 

to propose is that I wi 11 go to Houston, Texas, and you go 

anyplace you want in Arkansas. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Have you been to Arkansas? 

SENATOR JACKMAN:. I can get the figures overnight. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I think, Doctor, we would 1 ike to 

see any studies you may have. 
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DR. DUNKLEBERG: I would be glad to provide you with a. 
bibliography arid an index to all that junk. I'll send them so 

you can kind of just find what you. want. There has been a lot 

of· stuff. Lots of people have been working on. this for.a lpng 

time now. We have much to offer. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I really did . have another 

question. 

SENATOR JACK\1AN: Go ahead. 
SENATOR Di]'RANCESCO: This . is . basically for Ed, 

because this statement refers to Bamberger's~ right? But, if 

you can answer me, please answer. I believe his answer before 

was it was 19. 8% the credit card interest rate at . 

Bamberger's. Is that uniform throughout the country? Does 

Bamberger's charge 19.8%? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Why not? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Because we are located in five 

different states. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: So, in the states where they 

.have ceilings of variab1e rates you must comply with them? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes, you must comply. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Because you do business in that 

state. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Correct. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: That answers your question, by 

the way. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, but the interesting thing is, 

. how many carde; do they have out in Arkansas? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: No, that is not the reason I 

asked him. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: That is very important. How many 

cards to they have in Arkansas and how many do they have in New 

Jersey? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: 

eighty thousand. 

Five million, two hundred and 
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DR. DUNKLEBERG: I think the issue you' re raising is 

the one about, can you control the rates? The answer is, for 

retailers, yes; for banks, no, only if they are domestically 

chartered. The Marquette (phonetic spelling) . National ca1;e, 

decided by the Supreme Court, said a national bank can .export 

rates from wherever its place of business is, and you knowwhat 

has . happened with that. States with-_: In fact, Texas and 

Arkansas, right now, have their banks. moving out because they 

can't operate with those kinds of deals, and they are tired of 

having outside banks get their customers. · So, they are moving 

out. The Seattle· banks are having the· same problem with their 

interest rate limitations. So what you find is that, in fact, 

if you restrict your domestic banks-- You know, it would be 

nice if they could serve with 15. We all want lower· prices. 

Hey, you know, I mean, we 

they could, they would. 

rate, they would. So why 

would love it. But, the point is, if 

If they . were making money at a lower 

do the outside banks win? The answer 

is, you have to really restrict availability at 15 versus 18 

and 18 versus 21, and so on. That is what is going to happen. 

So, you can't control those rates. 

SENATOR Di FRANCESCO: You don't think we should have 

any ceilings at all? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: That is correct. My view is, there 

is so much competition out there. I think the retailers would 
be in here. arguing with you just as hard if 1 you tried to 
control the pr ice of tires, or any other service or commodity 

they tried to provide. I mean, why pick this one?(' They are so 

competitive, and they provide a.11 these different services and 

commodities. They compete like the dickens, and suddenly we 

say, IIBut they are not being competitive here." It doesn't 

make any sense. If you look at the cost of doing this 

.· business, why I think . it is pretty safe to say that they 

probably are. being competitive. What we have had is a 10-year 

history of rate ceilings that were always too low. You know, 

we have never really been able to kind of catch up to things. 
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Now, competition is working. You do see different 

rates offered. Within retailers you see. different rates. 

Across lenders you see different · rates and different terms,· and 

that is a good deal for the consumer, particularly fot what we 

characterize -- we have a lot of words for them-~ as the lower 

income, or whatever, who are a lot of different people --­

elderly people, young people who are just starting life and 

don't have a job. That is the way these p·eople get access to 

credit. You know, the barrks in Seattle will not give you a 

bank card unless you have established a credit record. .Now, 

how can you· establish a credit record if you can't get credit? 

That turns out to be kind of,- a vicious circle and, of course, 

you just establish credit with a Shylock maybe, or someone 

else, but he doesn't talk to TRW, and he doesn't really help 

you out very much. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Or with a bank outside the state. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Pardon? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Or with a bank outside the state. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Yeah, or you can go with somebody, in 

this case, outside the state. I think you should keep in mind, 

again, that these banks have to make-- It is savers' money 

they are putting out there, you know. I took you through this 

$200 account to show you how you would lose money on that. Do 

you want to make credit unions put savers' money into those 

kinds of investments? The money that goes out on a credit card 

is depositors' money, even for retailers. They don't take 

deposits -- yet. Well, that is another thing. 
They go into the financial markets and borrow the 

money, but ultimately it comes from savers again. It comes out 

of pension funds i and so on. It is the savers' money we are 

talking about here and, by the way, interest income has been 

the fastest growing component of consumer income for the last 

10 years. We talk about protecting consumers. You know, what 

you are doing by mandating rates here on loans, is determining 
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the rate of return the depositors "can make, and I don't think 
- . 

that is a business we want to be in either, and we shouldn't be 

in. we can' t reg one side without regging · the other . Even 

though we pretend they are deregulated, if you can't make a 
. - . . 

loan above 10%, you just regulated savings. rates.· I don:,t 

think we want. to be in that kind of a business. 

I think we can trust our financial institutions -­

broadly speaking -~ whoever they are, to make very judicious 

decisions. They watch who gets credit from new people. They 

give you only a · sma.11 limit, and if you earn a good credit 

rating, they increase your limit. They watch. these problems; 

they have to. Their exper,ience has been very good. I think 

bad debt losses only average about · 1-1/2% of receivables for 

the retailers, at least for the very large ones; probably a 

little larger for others. People say that is really bad, but, 

look; any production process has things that don't get stamped 

outright. _· I mean, there is a loss rate, if you will, on 

anything we do, and you get the stuff that gets culled out. 

You know, we can't get them all.· If you could identify 

everyone who wouldn't use their credit correctly, obviously we 

wouldn't loan to them~ because it is a hig loss. But now we 

can't do that, and we have to try to get that down. 

You know, if there is a group of too consumers here, 

history tells us that five of these kinds of people will go 
bad, but we don't know which five. 

all hundred --- not just the five. 

We have to deny credit to 

SENATOR JACKMAN:. One, two, three, four, five 
(apparently counting members of Committee) (laughter) 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: That's right. But, that is the 

problem. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Doctor, you are beginning;.·,to 

address an area of concern to me. As I look at your chaz;ts -­

I am very impressed with your presentation; I don't . mind 
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telling you that in your first chart you talk about selected 
.factors. - one of the _major factors -appears to me to be ·a fact:or 

. . 

in any credit transactfon ..;.,.. .the loss ratio. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: -.· Yes ; 
"•' 

SENATOR CARDINALE: And, that. has . been left 'off ;YOllr 
_ cost - ·factors -for making . these loans. - Now,• -that <3ives ~ a 
concern that perhaps our rates may be artificially b1gh to· 

. . 

subsidize bad c·redit risks,_ at the expense of _those pe_rsons who 

·are not bad credit ri~ks .. It wo_uld -seem to me; P-~1rticularly in 

the retail. ·sales area, Emch a. practice would be. what I_ ~ght. 
. . . ' . . 

__ consider counterproductive competition, or Qompetition ·-which-_ 
. . 

_ favors higher volumes of sales, which retailers would normaliy 

want to be engaged in, but really charging the costs of that 

higher -· sale to those people -- many of· them probably. low-inpome 

people, too ------ who do, - in fact, pay their biiis, and cause 

higher prices, really, in_ effect, .to be paid by m~y of the 

most credit--worthy people. 
The reason I am led to worry about that concern, · is 

that in al 1 _ of these _other areas that - have been presented by 

Senator Garibaldi in terms of lower· interest rates - boat 

loans, house loans, car loans -- it has been my experience.that 

the credit _ checks which are used • to determine whether those 

loans are going to be granted or not, are far more stringent 
credit che~ks than are determined- to be-needed in giving_out a 

retail credit card in a place _ like Bamberger's, - or any_ ~- J: 
do~'t want to single Bamberger's out_-- but almost- anyplace. 

I would like your comment on _that as a factor -- in. the 

overall rates. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Gerry, may I.;;.- I - j.ust want to add 

_ one point to that. We know -- I think everybody in t:P,is room -
·would lcnow -- that we have to pay for the cost of goods because 
of shoplifting. You know and I know there is a billion dollar 
loss in shoplifting. Now, somebody has to pay for the billion 

that somebody stole:, and it ha.s to be the people who are buying_ 
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the goods .. They don't have·•insurance for a billion dollars. 

You know that, and I know that . So, the costs of those goods 

go up automatically. The same here with the loss factor with· 
the credit cards. They have to .balance that thing off. At the 

end of the year, they don't have a loss column. They want "~9 
make sure they broke even, that people paid their bills. 

Otherwise, they are out of business; they go into bankruptcy. 

The same with the shoplifting. You know what kind of 

shoplifting takes place today. I' 11 guarantee the cost has to 

be maybe 2\, 3%, 4% that you are putting on merchandise I am 

buying and paying cash for. I know that because you - not 

you, now, I am only kidding when I say that -- but somebody who 

you · knew stole the ·stuff. (laughter) That may sound 

facetious, but I don't mean to be. It is the same as the man 

sitting alongside of you has to pay into a fund for lawyers who 

stole money from their clients-- He has to pay into a fund to 

pay back the guy who stole. That is the same basis as here. 

SENATOR CARDINALE:· Now, if the Bar Association was 

establishing a credit policy based on rewarding lawyers who 

steal, then I think we ought to. . But, they are not . doing 

.that. That is a protective mechanism. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: That is what we are talking about 

here-~ protection. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: No we' re not at all. 

talking about something entirely different, and I would 

because 

We're 
really 

I could like to hear his answer to the question, Chris, 

pretty well predict what yours was going to be. 
· DR. DUNKLEBERG: Nonethe 1 es s , 1 et me borrow some of 

the Senator's thunder for the moment. We can do something 
· about this theft, and that is, we can hire a lot more people to 

stand around with uniforms and watch. Now, what we do is, we 

try to choose the least cost way of handling it. It would be 

very expensive to drive shoplifting to zero, and consumers 

would end up paying more overall than they would if we let some 
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shoplifting occur. · So, we try to take the least cost route. 

Now, we could also spend a lot more money doing credit 

investigations, but. the payoff isn't there. The total cost 
would be . higher to try to do . ·that· than what we . could 

effectively eliminate. I don't care what · form of cred~'1:J~U,:9U 
.. - ')}!-'-i-"; 

pick, including the U.S. government, you know, you get· some 

defaults. You can't help it. The· government defaults in a 

· neat way, but, nonetheless, you ·can't eliminate them all. So, 

what . the companies try to do, being very competitive, is-­

They try to do the right amount· of credit checking··which 

balances the losses you would expect to get, versus the cost of 

trying to screen and find out who is a bad debt and who isn't. 

That, I think, makes very good sense. 

Now, let's talk about the size of those.numbers. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Just a moment, right on that 

point. Would you say, from your experience and your knowledge 

of this field, that the loss ratios with respect to home loans, 

car loans, boat loans, are on a par with, or greater than, or 

less than the loan losses, in effect, in retail credit card. 

purchases? 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: Well, that depends on what you want 

to look at. But, I would say of.fhand that those _losses, in the 

last five years, have probably run more than the retail 

losses. In fact, if you look at-- Let's take. the biggest 

retailer, because I have some numbers for the largest. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Then they are doing · a lot more · 

credit checking--
DR. DUNKLEBERG: They are doing a worse job. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: --and it is counterproductive. 

DR. DUNKLEBERG: No, it isn't; no, no. 

SENATOR· CARDINALE: They should do less credit 

checking and, thereby, they would have--

DR. DUNKLEBERG: It isn't counterproductive. All I'm 

saying is, the economic factor-- The losses are bigger on a 
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big loan~ .· Thctt. is why ·you work harder to chE!ck ori that. You 
are willi_ng to make a_ trade--:off; · You don't want to spend $500 
checking out a $20 o · account_;· · because - ·that· doesn't ~ake -any_ 

economic sense. 
Let -me ... just .- give · you some numbers·. to · put .. it' in 

. ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . 

perspective, since I·happento have_those ~or sears, .which is a 
fairly large retailer - nationwiqe .. --._ Their average · losses have -• 
run less than - 1, for·· tlle last· 40 years. . l mean, they grant 
L::i:edi t to. lots of people. Their penetration in the .loW-:income " 
groups is ver:y high, and they still only r~ up 11·. · · 

SENATOR CARDINALE: With. respect -· to what you had to 

_say l:>_efore you reached Sears,. could you provide this Committee,~ 
. ' . . . 

with some> doc\1111entation of that answer? . · 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: · Which ·answer, now, how people decide 

-- or what the loss rates were? 
. SENATOR CARDINALE: · That you believe car, home; _. and 

boat losses exceed the retail · loss ratios for the last five 
years. 

'DR. - :PUNKLEBERG: Sure, I can do that. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: I believe that information would 

allay my ~oncern about this po:int. 
DR. DUNKLEBERG: Okay,. fine. I think we can easily 

show you both,_ probably for the State, and certainly for the 
nation. 

Okay. · How am I doing on questions here? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Good. You did good. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Doctor; you are doing excellent, but 

. . 

my stomach_ is not. Senator Cardinale, can you complete your 
inquiry, so t:h.at we.can--

SENATOR CARDlNALE: I'm finished. I thought you 
realized that;. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Than].c you: very much for your very 

lucid testimony. 
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DR. DUNKLEBERG: Al 1 right . . 'I probably didn't say · _ 
everything I wanted to ·say, ·but I appreciatetb.e opportunity;. 

· .SENATOR JACKMAN: You were a good ·witness. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, on the -_ contrary, I think you 
said evei;ythingthat I needed.to h.ea:t. · 

we will be back at 20 after one. 

(RECESS) 

· AFTER RECESS: _ 

SENATOR .LESNIAK: I just · saw ·Don Nowicki from United 

Counties Trust Company. Don, do you want to come up 8:Ild ·start 
the afternoon session? We are going to go by .who · is here, 

rather than the order on the witness list. So, Dale, will you--­

D O N A L D s. NOW I CK I: - I have a prepared statement, 

senator ; · I wi 11 1 eave some copies with you. .- I wi 11 ref er to 

it._ It is .rather brief; it should take less than fiye minutes. 

For the record, . I am Donald Nowicki. I am Senior 
I,.ending Officer and Senior Vice· President of United Counties --

. . 

Trust Company. l have here with me our Vice President in __ 

charge of our Charge Card Department. 

For. consumers, credit cards are· a simple, convenient, 
· and efficient_ means of payment and cr.edi t access. I think we 

all realize that, and acknowledge it. When a consumer receives 
. . .· 

a card, he gets more. than just ~n open-encied, unsecured line .. of 
. . 

credit. He really gets a payment device. For some credit card 
users, it is really not_ a · loan, but rather a convenient 

_ se~vice, which. is regarded as valuable and well worth the 
cost. I-- might add- that the use of the· card· is· entirely 

voluntary by the card holder.. The terms - of repayment are 
:flexible,· and are largely at the discretion of the card holder, 

A consumer _ carrying a bank card can make a series of 

purchases· of __ goods and services at different. locations·_ and, 
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when all is said and de>ne, he gets one bill at the end of the 
-_month,. which ·he can conveniently p~y. He_ 'gets a list-_ of all 
the purchases he made by the rtame of the retailer~ · 

The card offers. very · many services to the car_d 
holder. For -- exampJe, _ he can ·use it . for identific_at~~ll 
purposes . . He can use ft to dash checks;· he c::al'.l. use -it . t9 ~ent . _ 
.cars; he can use it for hotel accommodations. And, depen~irig 
upon the .type c:,f car that the , constm1er - uses, -- he_ ·or: she --_ ilso 
·receives. protection for such. things . as stolen( luggage, . hotel 
theft, traveler Is emergencies, and lost credit ·cards. 

Additionally,_ banks 8re now makirtg available -to -~that 
-card custoiller -- fro1t1. independent vendors -__ new services, such 

as car registration, common cctrrier traV"el accident insurance, 
insurance clubs, discounts on air fares, car rentals, and 
guaranteed_ hotel accommodations. The_· value of these services 
is•·_ considerable, because they represent a better card product 

. .-

at the· saine price~ This is the economic equivalent of a price 
reduction. At United Counti~s Trust Company, for_ example, just. 
recently we increased · our common carrier insurance from 
$100,000 to $250,00C>,_at no additional _cost to the card holder. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What isthat? 
_MR. NOWICKI: Common: carrier - insurance - protection is, 

if you fly on an airliner, and that airliner crashes, -you have 
coverage, through the ca:rd, for $250,000. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Is that just· airlines? 
MR. · NOWICKI: · Airlines, railroads, railways, buses, 

·things like. that, where it is a common carrier. These services 
and protection are provided to our card consumers whether the 
card is used as a ,payment or· a credit mechan_ism. Moreover, the 
card hold.er determines whether, and to what extent, the credit 

. . . 

feature_ of the ca.rd service_ i.s employeo.. · ..;-~ 
We talked about the grace period earlier, and r··tould -

like to reemphasfze that. Our card holders have the option of 
paying account balances within the 9race period. Normally, it · 

. •. 
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is 25 days fr.om· billing, and could be as high as 45 or ~o ·c:lays -
from· the actual date that they used the .card £,or_ a purchase. 
They don't incur; any finance : charges if they pay within the ·· 

bili'ing period .. · Within our system '""'.'""'. this is United Counti_es: . 
Trust Company ~~ over ··. 25%. of" all our pard holders. p'ay -~~eir 

account balances in full each· month~· This represent$ ·t6\"~f · 

our c~edit transa-ctions, so a large number of our ,_'~ustomers do .. 
pay their cards back in time before incurring any charges. . .. 

Thei,e. card holders, .· as· a result, at no dii:.ect cost, 
receive free credit_ from the date_ ~f pu~chase ... Because of the 

existence of this great grace perj_od, the effective· ·annual ~_a.te 
. of interest . charged ·· to card holders who incur a finance charge 

_ is considerably less than the advertised or disclosed annual 
percentage rate. 

~t United Counties Trust ._ Compar>:Y, we presently · offer 
MasterCard and Visa at an annual·· percentage rate of 18%. ·. The · 

actual yield to us, .taking into effect the grace period,, is 
approximately 15%. This_ holds up with other testimony that has 

· been brought forward here today; Let's express. it · ~n other 

words: The . ave~ age real pr ice of credit to our . bank's 
customers as a group is 15%. 

This._ interest-free grace period, as well·. as the 

numerous other convenience· services, or _ features, . is unique to 
the·· credit .· card market, and is indicative of the valuab1e · 
service efficiently provided to consumers by the credit card 

·industry. 
. . 

These insights into the actual yield creditors achieve 
when. the grace period is taken_ into· account sllould play an 
important role in ~my decision or consideration of. the issue of 
credit card rates. 

While some say the public is complaining about credit 
. . 

card costs, the public has increased its use - of bank-issued 
credit cards to record high levels. I might add that a review 

of our files -.,.,; this is our own internal files ~- for. the past 
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five .years, revealed that onl,y five complaints were received 
with · respect to the rate th~rged by United· Counties Trust 
Company to its mor:e than 100,000 card holders. I might further·· 

. add that these five complaints hav·e only been received in the 
last four months. · · · .. S!J~ -prior to 1~85 ,·, and going . back ·<five 

years, we had no complaints w:i. th re::;;pect tb rates~ I 'fflOUld 
· assume the· five complaints we did have w~re. kind of a response 
to the .. advertisement _·of this issue in the paper,s .. · 

The consumer is well aware_ of .the unique attributes of 
.the ca~d · and thf) current·· l11terest rate levels. l>espite the 
aV"ailability· of alternatives -- which were discussed earliet -
e~~h year, sirice inception of this·;roduct:, the number of card 
holders· has·· increased 'significantly.. At our bank, it has 
increased more than 35% in the last five· years. · It is obvious 

. that the consumer finds• the card- very useful, arid a valuable 
tool in the conduct of . his or her everyday business and 

>personal.· financial· a.ff airs • 
. In conclusion,·· the . credit card market can best be 

characterized . as . a highly competitive industry providing 
convenient, . valuable,. and e:fficient service to consumers at 

. prices reflecting industry costs. The continuing growth of the 
industry indicates that,·. on balance;• the value of the card is 
reflected in current :rates. fl~cing rate limits would be 
detrimental to-the bank card industry and the consumers. 

Earlier there was discussion that . the rate should. be 
s~mewhere around 11-1/2% or 12%: · . I can tel 1 you this: If we 
had to operate at an 11-1/2% or 12% :rate, the number of cards 

, , , 

out there would be constricted severely, and we would have to · 
start making decisions about· the value of that particular type 

·. . . . . 

· of business in our overall-operation . 
. Having rate. restrictions· would reduce competition, 

would limit credit a:vaili;ibility,. and would narrow consumer. 

choices. In. the end,. retailers and suppliers would experience 
a sales,· decline which would have an overall negative.· effect on 
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the economy of New Jersey. Permitting credit card interest 

rates to be dictated by the competitive market provides 

convenient service at the lowest possible cost to the largest 

number of people. 

It is our hope that this Committee will be receptive 

to the testimony presented today, and will recognize t:hat rate 

restrictions serve only to inhibit a . free market enterprise · 

condition that is already operating well. 

I have nothing further to say. If you have any 

questions, I will gladly try to answer them for you. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Do you advertise your credit card 

rates? 

MR. NOWICKI: Yes, we do. we advertise in direct mail 

pieces,. and we advertise in statement stuffers along with our 

checking account statements, our savings account statements, 

and things of that nature. We don't do newspaper advertising. 

We find that newspaper advertising is not as . effective as 

direct mail. We also do advertising in the sense·that we do a 

side-by-side kind of an appraisal. When we approve a loan in 

cur institution - let's say an auto loan, . a home improvement 

loan, or another type of loan ;__ a mortgage loan--:-- When we 

evaluate that credit, we also evaluate whether there is a 
credit worthiness for a charge card offer-~ a preapproved card·· 

-- on that basis, but only after we have done our proper credit 

checks. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: Do you find any difference in your 

loss ratios between the various types of loans? 
MR. NOWICKI: Yes. Our loss ratio -- and I don't have 

the exact numbers-- Our bank probably has one of the best loss 

ratios in the State of New Jersey in terms of overall loans. I 

would say on a portfolio of over $400 million -- that is the 

whole portfolio of all · 1oans in our bank -- our losses were 

about a million, two hundred thousand. These are gross losses 

before recoveries before we recovered on some of the 
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losses. About $700,000 of that was in. the c:::harge card 

business. The other $400,000 or $500,000 of losses we had was· 

through the commercial loan sector, the mortgage ·sector, and 

the consumer loan sector. So, the losses are significantly 

higher in this end of the business. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: 

credit cards? 

The losses are higher on the 

MR. NOWICKI: Yes, they are. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Okay. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much. 

MR. NOWICKI : Thank you. 

SENATOR 1$SNIAK: Is Marleen Zakrzewski here? 

(affirmative response) I should know how to pronounce that. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I£ you can'. t, who can? 

M A R L E E N z A K R z E w s K I: My name is Marleen 

Zakrzewski, and I am the Vice President of the Credit Card 

Department with the Trust Company of New Jersey. I have handed 

you a copy of my testimony, and I have cut some of it out in 

the beginning so as not to reiterate what has already been said. 

13ack in 1980, the Trust Company had about four million 

outstanding in credit cards and employed six people to handle 

the operation. In 1981, when legislation eliminated .most 

consumer loan interest rate ceilings, the Trust Company, as 

well as other New Jersey banks, began, once again, to issue 
credit cards to all credit-worthy people. Thanks to this 

action, my bank has tripled in outstandings and has doubled the 

number of employees. 

Consumer advocates argue that credit card rates should 

be the same as rates on other bank loans because the c:redi t 

card .is a loan. The fact is, most credit card users do not 

equate the credit card with a loan.. Over one-third, or 

33-1/3%, use the service without €Ver paying interest. This is 

true of my portfolio also. 
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Secondly, credit card programs·· are more costly to 

administer than conventional consumer loans. With a typical 

consumer loan, a bank interv.iews the applicant, does a credit 

check, approves the loan, and then simply gives the customer a 

coupon book. Credit cards, on the other hand, involve a credit 

check a ppr ova 1 , the mailing of a new· . card every 18 to 24 

months, the. monthly mailing of statements, and postage. . The 

security measures needed and the possible liability to the 

issuingbank are peculiar only to bank credit cards. 

A credit card is a much more flexible instrument .than 

the typical consumer loan. It represents · an open line 0£ 

credit that may be- accessed by. a customer any time he wishes, 

anywhere in the world. lt provides access to cash while 

traveling anywhere in the world, through branches and ATMs. It 

provides personal identification for. hotel check:-ins, · car 

rentals, and check cashing. It provides flexibility in 

payment. A card holder may pay off his entire balance in full, 

or he may make monthly payments. 

The average consumer uses his card 25 times a year at 

$63 each time4 · Therefore, it isn't logical to compare a credit 

card advance with a prime rate loan, or even a home or auto 

loan. Credit card loans are also unsecured, so there is no 

collateral against which to take recourse should the loan go 

bad or if the card is lost or stolen. 

The supply of credit card credit . is intensely 

competitive. America was built on the competitive spirit. 

Banks allowed to determine their own rates on the services 
offered are abiding with the spirit of competition. customers 
are free to shop·around and choose the bank and the plan which 

best fit their needs. They are also given the option of 

financing their purchases or paying their balances in full. 

There is no other service offered by a bank that has 

all the features that a credit card has. Therefore, how can 

anyone compare it to any other type of service? 
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Now,. £ive years later, consumer advocates claim credit 

card rates are too high. Some Senators and Congressmen are 

saying that New Jersey consumers are being ripped off. I have 

yet to read an article stating.that John Jones -- Hudson County 

resident, . salary $15, ooo a year, former. small loan borrower, 

now MasterCard holder -- ~ays he is being ripped off or his 

rate is too high. · Now, John Jones, the average consumer, has 

the same advantages and services offered to John Blue Blood. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Do you mean that Ray Lesniak gets 

the same thing that Gerry Cardinale gets? Is that what you are 

trying to sa.Y? (laughter) 

MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: Exactly, even though,-your salaries 

may be different. He can take his family out to dinner; he can 

buy a new car; he can l;>Uy a new TV; he can do things that he 

couldn't do before. The only difference now between John Jones 

and John Blue Blood, is that he will take 36 months to pay, and 

Mr. Blue Blood will pay his bill in full. 

Are you once again going to take away services that 

the bank can now afford to offer to the average consumer?· The 

spirit of· competition should designate rates. If consumers 

believe cards are too costly, they can choose alternative 

methods of payment or banks that offer lower rates. 

Permitting credit card interest rates to be dictated 

by the competitive market provides convenient . service at the 
lowest possible cost to the largest number of people. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: I notice that the Trust Company has 

the highest rate of anybody in the banks so far on this list. 

MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: Really? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah. You're 19.8? 

MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: Nineteen .and a half. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Nineteen and a half, and they.= have 

18 in all of the other banks. 
-:,,,1·. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Do you know why, Chris? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Why? 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: Because they are giving out cards to 
people who need credit in Jersey City, and they have a higher 
loss ratio because of that. But, they are also providing a 
service for those people. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: I know. That is my company. I.bank 
',,·. 

with the Trust Company. 
MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: I know. that. Sixty-five percent of 

our people are Hudson County residents.· 
SENATOR JACKMAN·: How many? 
MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: Sixty-five percent. 
SENATOR JACKMAN: Thank you. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: May I ask a questi·on, Mr. Chairman? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Of course you may. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: 'There was a suggestion 
earlier that a two-tiered system might have some validity. 

made 
One 

of the things we've heard is that on a small loan, the 
administrative costs are a high proportion of the total 
expense. Do you see any validity to the suggestion for a 
two-tiered system? 

Jt1S. ZAKRZEWSKI: Back in 1980, that is what we did 

have -- a two-tiered system. l see no benefit to it. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: You don't think you could charge a 

lower rate on the larger loans? 
MS. ZAKRZEWSKI:· The larger is on purchases, rather 

than on cash advances, at least it was at that particular time, 
and it still holds true. The larger rate was on the purchases, 
but then you were being charged daily interest on the cash 
advances, so it worked out to be the same thing eventually, the 
way the law was back in 1980. It was 12%, but it was from the 
day the cash advance was posted. You were getting a free ride, 
so it worked out to be the same thing. If we went with those 
two things again -- with a lower and a higher -- it would work 
out to be the same thing. 
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SENATOR CARDINALE: I think what Senator Contillo 
suggested was, if an average balance reached a certain level -~ 
let's say it was below $1000 and above $1000 -- . there would be 
a different rate. charged because of the obvious administrative 
expense being essentially the same, whether administering a $10 

loan or a $1000 loan. 
MS. ZAKRZEWSKI: But then your computer costs would be 

higher in setting up that particular type of a program. 
SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you, Senator Cardinale. Thank 

you, Marleen. Al Kish? Is Al here? (affirmative response) 
We 1 ll take care of Jersey City first, okay, Chris? 
A L E X A N D E R K I s H, J R.: Thank you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Al, this is rather lengthy 

testimony. 
MR; KISH: I am going to shorten it. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: I'm sure much of it is repetitive. 

Can you kind of swnmarize your perspective? 
MR. KISH: Yes. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: The complete testimony will be 

entered into the record. 
MR. KISH: Right. My name is Alexander Kish, Jr. l 

am Vice President of First Jersey National Bank. We are 
headquartered in Jersey City, which is in Hudson County. I 
have been in the credit card business some 27 years. I have 
been an Advisory Board member of the American Bankers 
Association for a number of years, and have also served on the 
Operations Committee of MasterCard International. 

I just noticed -- for your information -- in this 
morning ' s Tr entoh. Times , an. ad with f inane ing at 4 . 9 % • Of 
course, they don't say how much of that finance charge is 
buried in the cost of the car. It is kind of misleading. 

I just want to support the comments of Dr. Dunkleberg 
this morning, because the numbers and the statistical data he 
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gave relates quite closely to our own operation. I want to 

point out particularly the rate that is always quoted -- the 

18% rate -- as being a measure of what the account actually 

costs, because there are so many ways in which tlle accounts are 

computed. In one case, you may compute interest from the date 

of posting to the date the balance is paid off, which will give 

you the true rate that is being presented.· However, in·. most 

plans, they provide a 30-day free period on new purchases. In 
some cases, that. 30-day to 60-day period is always there on all 

new purchases. Sometimes it is only there if the account is 

paid in full each month. There is another variation to that. 

If you pay your account balance in full any month, the finance 

charges for that month are way up. As an example in support of 

the figures, we charge 18%. That is the rate. we list. The 

agreement says the rate is applicable to that portion of the 

balance which is subject to finance charge. 

The thing is, the entire balance is not subject to a 

finance charge, which causes that rate differential. In our 

case, we charge 18% and, taken from our exact figures, we net 

15.37%. That is the exact amount we net, not the 18 that 

appears on the statement, or that is advertised. 

Dr. Dunkleberg pointed out earlier this morning about 

the costs going down as far as T-bill rates and prime rate and 

so forth. But, there are other costs, which involve postage, 

telephone, credit losses, stationery .supplies, and so forth. 

Our cost last year -- for the year '85 -- increased by 5. 5%, · 

so, although these other rates are corning down, our operational 
costs are going up. Our loss ratio-- The previous speaker 

mentioned their loss ratio. Ours was . 9% -- under 1% -- on 

credit cards last year, which is a very low percentage. 

I think, Senator, you asked a question earlier about 

boat loans, home loans, and open-end credit, or unsecured 

loans. I can tell you . that open-end credit loss is always 

going to be higher than this other type credit, . even if you 
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. . . . . 

'_,· ••• • • ·, •• • •• ••• •• •• : •" •• • J .: •• 

- . . ·. ,._ ·. · .. ·. . . . ···. ' ... __ · 

didn't get ._ a credit report· at al L --. ~e reason for that -is; -if 
-.you are _.-financing an automobile, .a~d you ·J:>._ave a chatge card- and 
you ar'e short on cash, which one arE! you golng to pay? You· are 
always going to pay the automobile. loan, because if -:You don't,_ 

- your_ -automobile is -.. -taken away __ from . you, -- and_ .YOU • let the .9~ner 
. -.-. : . - .: . . .' . . .· . . .. .. . . . ·~~:-·- .... 

one go. As a result of that.happening, the open~end eredit,or 
unsecured credit losses ·are always g6ing to be highe~ ~ jf you 
·have a home, for instance, and_ it is a second mortgage loan, 

. you are going to ~ake that paym~nt~ be~ause you don It want to 
.·. . • ! • ~ 

_ lose your home,. and you are going -·to ·1et the charge card __ loan_ 

go. _- 'l'here is no way you 9an • ~top tbat from happening. 
Earlier, Arkansas came into . p_lay. It is always 

mentioned. Congressman - Schumer always- plays that to the TV_-­
all the time. _j: had a couple other figures relative to that. 
The loss ratio in Arkansas was.. . 43%, far below - industry 

. ' 

aver~ges. Arkansas·a1~0 declined 4.8% within-its borders, and 
, has further declined - by 41. 2% in its share of national -­
- revolvingcredit. _ 

,- SENATOR . LESNIAK:-. You're :talking about that which 
origi~ated within the ,State? •­

MR. KISH! . Within the state, right. They' re going--
' ' 

down.· -

SENATOR LESNIAK: -- It has driven business out of the 

state? 
MR. KISH: Yes, it has driven bus_iness out of the 

state. · These figures are -- significant. If we duplicated them 
here in New Jersey, it would have a grave impact on our 
economy. Ifwe were to clone_Arkansas; the buying power of our 
consumers would be greatly rf3duced. · Demands for goods and 
services would be affected, and this would eventually affect 
the employment.· I -don't know- w];lat the employment rate is in 
Arkansas,. but looking at the· n\,1.Inbe~s here, · I would SfilY their 
unemployment rate _has to be much higher than New Jersey's. 
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The market evidence is unambiguous. As money rates 

have fallen, unregulated ca;rd credit has become more successful 

with consumers than credit which is subject to intEtrest rate 

ceilings. That is not to say that consumer.s prefer _ paying 

higher rates, but it does suggest that other things must not be 

equal in the present case. The success- of unregulated cards is 

due to the fact that credit is more readily available and is 

aggressive1y marketed by out-of-state banks. Consumers in New 

Jersey· have o,terwhelmingly accepted ,offers from out-of-state 

banks at rates in excess-of those now being offered by our own 

ba.nks. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Al, could you indulge me in this? 1 

would like to read two -paragraphs of your testimony that I find 

particularly significant: 

"There are 2,549, ooo households in -New Jersey, 

1,435,000, or 56.3%, of which have bank credit cards." Chris, 

that answers your question about how many people in New Jersey· 

have credit cards. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Yeah, and I was low. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: -Right. "Surveys that we had • 

commissioned by an independent firm indicate that 70%" -- and 

that is the figure I have seen -- "or 950, ODO households hold 

the credit cards of out-of-state banks which are .not subject to 

New Jersey -law. The remaining 30%, or _ approximately 400., ooo 
households, have their credit card accounts with the banks in 

New Jersey. 

"During the period the State's banks contracted their 
credit card operations and literally went out of the business" 

-- that was when we had the cap-'-
MR. - KI SH: - Yes, when we had the cap. 

SENATOR -LESNIAK: "--'-the out-of-state banks spent 

millions of dollars· in direct mail campaigns soliciting New 

Jersey consumers. The strategy paid off and, while the New 

Jersey banks were helpless to compete, the out-of-state banks 
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moved aggressively to capture a 70% share of the State's 

market. Our current surveys indicate that the two largest card 

issuers in this State . are out-of-state banks whom we estimate 

have more card holder accounts in New Jersey than al.l of the 

New Jersey banks combined. Other banks from New York; South 

Dakota, Delaware, California, and Pennsylvania have large 

· numbers of New Jersey consumers as their customers." 

Quite frankly, I think that is the crux of ·the matter. 

MR. KISH: That is what actually happened. . The 

surveys indicate . that the out--of-state banks are very heavy, 

and just overwhelmed the New Jersey banks here. The law - the 

caps - would orily apply to this small number of New Jersey 

.banks and this small number of New Jersey accounts. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Al, we really have to move on. Are 

there any questions from the members of the Committee? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes. If we were to limit our 

activity in this Committee -- and I am not presuming that we 

would -- to the Connors bill, which requires a reporting, how 

would your institution do that? I know you testified 

primarily-. 

MR. KISH: Would you repeat that, Senator? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: There is a bill-- I'm sorry. We 

have a bill -- you may not be familiar with the specific 

proposal -- that requires, I think, quarterly reports to the 
Department of Banking. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Of what the rates are, and with 

their subsequent publishing of the rates around the State. 
MR. KISH: We have no objection to publishing rates, 

but I think -- as I pointed out -- 18% is not 18%. You could 

have three different banks with 18%, but the cost to the 
customer in each case could -be different. -,. 

' 
SENATOR LESNIAK: I think it would be very imp6'ftant 

that we would also have to publish the rates of the other.banks 

that issue cards in the State, so that the consumer would be . 

aware of that phoice. 
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MR. KISH: Of the out .... of;....state banks? 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Right. 
MR. _KISH: .You know, there is one ·other point I would 

like to make, because they keep bringing up the point about the 
T-bill rate. Someone here earlier said the T-bill rate is 6%. 
So, apparently, if you, are in a T-bill -now, it is a bad 
investment, because-if you come.over to us we pay you up to 7%, 
yielding 7. 39, and we will pay you 9% on our special ·rRA 

accounts for a 11-month period, which yields 9.42. These rates 
coming down really do not affect us, because we've got this 
money out.. We are buying money in from our depositors at these 
varying rates. What constitutes our cost of £unds is a pool. 
We take all these different rates, the costs we pay for them, 
all the tnoneys gathered--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Some rates are going up. 
MR. KISH: .Yeah, they could go up. So, as Dr. 

Dunkleberg pointed out, when you set a cap on loans, then you 
are telling us, "Reduce the rates you're paying to your 
consumers -- your savings account holders." 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. Thank you. James Billmeyer, 
Horizon Bank. 
JAMES L. BILL ME y ER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and members of the Committee. I am James Billmeyer, Executive 
Vice President of Horizon Bank. 

In the interest of time today, if I may I would like· 
to dii;miss the reading of the prepared testimony, and just 
focus on three key issues which I believe will lend a 
perspective to this hearing. 

If I may first 
circumstances which we, as 
colleague just testified to 
that time were tiered with 

go back to pre-,-1981 and the 
bankers, experienced then, which my 
in some degree-- Interest rates at 
12% on cash advances and 15% on the 

purchase of services. At that time, interest rates -- the · 
prime rate and money market rates -- were higher than that. We 
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. could not afford to -issue cards on, a mass basis in the State. 

Instead, we sold our money to New York State, which lent it· 

back at much higher rates and, consequently,. we lost · a· 
substantial portion of the market share. 

When rate relief was granted · in. 1981, the average 

prime rate for that year was 18. 9%. · Most banks in the State of 

. New Jersey, at that time, chose to respond ~ith an increase. of 

under 20%. ln the case of the Horizon group, it was l.9. 8 i I 

think we have 11\ade an assumption, in general, that that was. an 

appropriate rate relative to the cost 0£ fllllds at that time. . I. 

would submit that were that the case, the rate would have been 
in the mid-20s. What it reflected at that time was our 

perception of what the market would respond to, and I think 

that that· is key. 

But, most importantly of all, you have before you two 

bar charts, which show the activity of Horizon Bank subsequent 

to 1981, and £or the four years prior to that. Four Years 

prior to 1981, we issued approximately 20, ooo cards. With the 

economic incentive to compete aggressively in the marketplace, 

we issued over 25D,OOO cards in the last four years. Those 

250,000 cards translated into the purchase of consumer goods 
and services well in exce'Ss of a half a billion dollars, all.of 

which, when· you apply the multiplier effect, goes to 

substantially support the economy of this great State of New 
Jersey. 

In addition, with that aggressive growth, we offered 

credit to those who would have been denied credit prior to the 

removal of the interest rate restrictions. There are a number 

of first-"-time card holders who are presently among our 

portfolio base. There are card holders in disadvantaged 

cities; and they are enjoying the opportunity to compete and 

participate in an economic environment on a full-scale basis. 

We feel the . dramatic growth which has placed us number one in 

the State as far as credit card out standings and tied with 
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another major bank in the State as far as the number of cards 
outstanding i could· only have been achieved had . interest . rate 

relief been granted. As a matter of fact, of the 250,000 

accounts which we opened subsequent to 1981, I would venture ,,to 
say that less than 25,000 of those would have been granted had 

we still been restricted by the prior laws. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: How many.would not have been}granted 

by your bank did you say? 

MR. BILLMEYER! I would estimate 225.000. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: And those people would have either 

had credit unavailable to them, or would have gotten it from an 

out-of-state bank? 

MR. BILLMEYER: That is correct, Senator. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Are there any questions? Senato'!:' 

Cardinale? (no response) Thank you very much. May· we have 

Bob Farnon, from Midlantic National Bank? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Everybody here is in the same 

category. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, Chris, everybody sat here and 

listened to our frivolous moments, so we can sit and listen to 

them. 

SENATOR JACKMAN: Thank you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Are you representing Midlantic now? 

R O B E R T J. F A R N O N: No, I'm just--

SENATOR LESNIAK: You'd rather switch than fight? 

SENATOR JACKMAN: How many banks you got, Robert? 

MR. FARNON: I get paid by. the piece.· 

SENATOR JACKMAN: I' 11 tel1 you something, we made a 

mistake. This is a hell of a job. You guys got a good job. 

What other banks do you have? (no response) 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale, you resisted the 

opportunity to ask the last bank to testify, are they always in 

favor or against caps. (laughter) Go ahead, sir. 
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MR. F.ARNON: Mr. Chairman, also in · the interest of 

time, I will summarize my prepared statement, which you have 

now received a copy of.· 

For the record, I am- Robert Farnon, Senior Vice 
. . 

President with Midlantic National Bcink/North of West l;)aterson. 
There - are a _couple of items · that I feel are worth this 

Committee's attention. 
I would like to take · tlle opportunity, number one, to 

clarify some 0£ the general miscqnceptions regarding credit 

card rates as compared . to installment. loan rates. and why 

credit t:ard rates generally are higher. A er-edit card, by its . 
very ?ature, · is a continuing,-service through a revolving credit 

£acility, rather than a one..:..time transaction created through an 

installment loan. An. • installment loan application . is 
processed, investigated, approved, a loan closing takes place, 

proceeds are disbursed, and a coupon book is issued. The 

average installment loan today approximates $10,000 in a single 

transaction. 

ln the issuance of a credit card, the basic 

application process ..is generally the· same .as · described for an 

installment loan. However, once the credit card is issued, the 

. similarity ends. A credit card is Usable virtually around the 
world in any time zone, at any time of day or night that retail 

stores or banks are open. In order · to service our customers 
and provide around-the-clock convenience, 24 hours a day, seven· 

days a week, . elaborate systems have been developed which 
require constant monitoring,. upgrading, and people support. I 

mentioned earlier that the average installment loan today 

approximates $10,000. Comparatively, the average credit card 

transaction at Midlantic Bank is approximately $75. It, 

therefore, would take 133 individual credit card transactions 

. to procure the same dollar amount as one installment loan. 

In addition, the credit card account requires monthly 

billing statements, as compared to the one-time issuance cost 
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of a coupon book. -for an installment loan. The 'a.Ver age cost to 

issue a coupon book is $2, or 50 cents per year, on an average 

loan of four years. The average cost to issue a credit card 

statement is 56 cents per month. New credit cards are 
reissued, usually on an annual basis, another expense that .is 
not required on installment loans. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Bob, we are · going to append your 

. testimony to the record. I have read it. Basically, you 

reiterate the (indiscernible) problem and the out-of-state 

problem, which really are crucial to the issue, as 1: see .it . 

.. Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes. I would like to suggest, 

·Senator, that you have an awful lot of bank testimony to take, 
and it seems to be repetitive. I wonder if 1 could ~uggest to 

you that maybe we could have them all submit their statements, 

and maybe see if there are some people on the witness list who 

are from the other side of the question, who have something 

different. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: ·Well, I think, Senator, we should 

give them the opportunity to come up, identify themselves, and 

at least summarize their testimony. 

Thank _you very much, Mr. Farnan. Ferdinand Horn, 

United Jersey Bank. 

F E R D I N A N D H O R N: I have prepared testimony, Mr. 

Chairman, which I will not go over. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Oh, boy, plastic covered. You know 
its UJB. Now, this didn't work last time, so-- (laughter) 

MR. HORN: I am Ferdinand Horn from United Jersey 

Bank. I am the Manager of the card operations. There are two 

charts included along with that testimony. The fist one -­

Chart #1 -- compares where we were in 1980 to where we we;re in 

1985. In 1980, we accepted 17, ooo applications from customers 

for new credit. In 1985, we accepted 72,000 applications from 

customers for credit. The approval rate between the two years 
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was approximately the · same percentage. The requirements 'have 

changed, but they are more liberal .. For instance, in 1980, we 

would require a .customer to· be a depositor of the bank and t~}>> 

have an income level much higher than today,. but as · f@Z,:.; .·JS tbi' · 
. . . -· , - . -{'.,;_;',?.~.,'.~-~•:.;;;c-··.:".<:>., :·:·. , 

required credit --- the positive credit history -- it was,;ab<>ut 
the same thing. 

. . . . . . .. -

Total credit lines increased .from 69 million in 

to 360 million in 1985. The average purchase balance increa.,,d 
£rem $375 in 1980 to $750 in· 1985, but the customer increase',tin 

purchases was much more; only $850 in 1980, up to $2300 in 

1985. The delinquency rates have remained just about the ,sM; 
the charge-o£fs up slightly. The big increase in losses had to 

do with counterfeiting. We almost had no counterfeiting iu 
1980. In.1985, the counterfeiting-loss was up about 1000%. I 

. think we have capped that at this point. 
The biggest increase is the volume of purchasing 

accepted by our New Jersey merchants. In 1980, we processed 

$100 million in credit card transactions. In 1985, that 

increased to $400 million, and I expect this year there. will 

probably be .about $700 million in credit card purchases through 

our merchants. 
Our annual percentage rate-- Of course; we were a 

State bank. In 1980, we had a rate cap of 15%. In 1985, we 
charged 18%; on our gold card we charged 17%, and we have 
special programs for special groups. Our Senior Club rate is 
14. 44%. Our yield ....;""' on an 18% rate -- is slightly less than 
15. We probably have a greater percentage because where we are 
located our customers· pay off in fu11. It is somewhere around 

14.8, 14.9. 

The other chart I would like to refer you to is--
SENATOR LESNIAK: The yield---- . 

MR. HORN: The yield has. gone up 3% as our rat~- 'has 

gone up 3%. The· amount of interest paid has gone up from $45 

to $112.50 per typical account. But, if you relate that amount 
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of· interest to the volume, it actually. turns out 
customer today, · because of these expanded lines of·· credit,·. is .. 
actually paying · slightly less in interest. than they were fbeatt 
before deregulation. That is primarily becau.se we have. gi~en 

• • . ' . • . • ' • ' ' " : .;i:. :.1ti~>'i:" ·:~1\;, . 

them extensive increases in those lines of credit, ,~ .. Illa, 
- _. _ . . ~J?:~\Jl~~)!;p:,,_::-r.~~t.:.:..:_:,·: 0 

using them. Many of those customers--- .In our case, ''"Uo\J.t;~r 
of the customers pay finance charges. at any one given tim~~. 

SENAT.OR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 
:•::, "'·'·"··· 

SENATOR CARDINAl,E: No. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much. The last 

speaker was particularly impressive. 

Peter Graziano, New Jersey National Bank. Every.body 
is co--opting everyone else's testimony, and I'm sure we don't 

have any of yours to· go over, Peter. 

P E T E 1l J. G RA Z I A N 0: I think you' re right. 

Mr. Chairman and Committee members, thank you for 

allowing time for these comments. I will try to make this 

brief, as much of this testimony is the same. I think there 

are three points which are very important. One is, since 1981, 

when legislative relief was given to bankers in New Jersey, we 

have expanded our individual card holder base by over 150, ooo 
accounts and provided 17 full-time new jobs in the New Jersey 

job market. 
I think there are just three tests that really 

be applied to the legislation that is being proposed. 

really affect the majority of New Jersey card holders? 

need to 

Does it 
I think· 

the testimony today bears out well that it. will riot.· Does it. 
provide the basis · for New Jersey institutions to compete in a 
very highly competitive market? I think the testimony ans.wared 

that question today. And, will it foster the expansion of 

industry and employment in this State? I think those are the 

three tests that need to be applied to this legislation. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: You ask the right questions? 

Senator Cardinale? 
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SENA~OR CARDINALE: How would you feel •"t;,,rabout 
advertising? 

MR. GRAZIANO:. How would I feel about advertising? 

. SENA~OR CARDINALE: Yes . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Do you mean.disclosure? 
· SENATOR CARDINALE: Disclosure and . 

advertising of those rates by the State. 

MR. GRAZIANO: I really wouldil 't have a ,problem with 

disclosure. We are. presently . requixed to disclose ~der 
article 12 (a)., and under regulation (z), the periodic rate 

that we charge on _ every periodic statement. --And, we are 

required to disclose it in a way that is deemed as 

conspicuous. So, you know, I don't have any objection to it. 

We are already doing it, and we are already reporting to the 

.Department of Banking. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you. 

MR. GRAZIANO: You're welcome. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: John Coote, Citizens First National 

Bank. By the way, I assure everyone that the full text of 

their statements will be entered into · the record, and that a 

transcript of today's hearing will be available. 

J O H N W. C O O T E: Very briefly-- First, my name is 

John Coote.· I am Senior Vice President of Citizens First 

National Bank of New Jersey. We appreciate the opportunity to 
express our views here today. 

In an effort to .summarize my statement, I will be 

very, very br'ief. I would like to say something about the 

value of the card, not so much about the cost, which is being 

heavily covered by others. We at the bank believe that the 

card is a valuable boI'.'rowing device, with unlimited flexibility 

and convenience. There is no credit system so universally 

accepted and so fulfilling of all of the borrower's needs as 

the credit card itself. 
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It is a very complex thing when. you travel from the 

point . of sale down to the. posting to the customer is account. 

It is very complex, but the simplicity is the hallmark of the 

card, and that belongs to the consumer.· There is no doubt in 

my mine -- and I don It think in anyone Is -'~ that the plastic 

device represents, · at present and the foreseeable future, the 

. most advanced technological method of making instant · credit 

available to millions of card holders at milli{)ns of locations. 

throughout the world. I beli,eve that any effort to regulate 
:i .• . . 

the finance charges would stifle the vigorous competition that 

would be going after that industry. 

Interference in the marketplace would only serve to 

deplete the ranks of the small credit card issuer, surrendering 

that position to the large or future. monopolistic giants. We 

fail to see how this would benefit any consumer. 

We respectfully suggest. that the legislators explore 

less devastatihg ways to effectively reduce credit card costs, 

directing perhaps their efforts toward a true variable rate 

law, either. amending existing law or enacting new law that 

would permit the banks to respond quickly to the changing rate 

situation, permitting the banks to both recover from a low-rate 

position, as well as to decrease the rate when competition so 

warrants. 

Just a little bit about our own bahk. In the last 

five years, without any advertising other than some newspaper 

media advertising; we have increased our portfolio our 

out standings, as a matter of fact -- by 300%. The credit card 

outstandings represent only 29% of the total lines committed by 

the bank. This figure has been true for the last five or six 

years. I didn It bother to go back before that. This certainly 

is not indicative of any credit card abuse, at least by our 

consumers. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: John, we appreciate your testimony. 

Senator ~ardinale? 
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SENATOR CARDINALE: I do have something. In your 

conclusion, on page 7 of your written statement, you seem to 

say something different than what most of the bank people have 

said. You seem to be pointing toward a workable variable rate 

consumer loan law. 

MR. COOTE: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Do you mean by that some of the 

types of formulas that have been suggested in some of the bills 

before us? 

MR. COOTE: Well, I feel that these bills only go 

halfway. What they are· doing, as I read them, is suggesting 

that,. by index, we reduce our rates. Btit, there is nothing to 

cover the increasing of the rate on a whole. So, if we reduce 

our portfolio by 1%, 2%, 3%, 4% -- whatever it be -- we can't 

recover that unless the consumer uses the card or authorizes 

the increase. And, of course, the latter is very unlikely to 

happen. I wouldn't do it either, not· if I had the option of 

waiting until I used the card. 

So, that outstanding balance -- a certain port ion of 

that -- will remain at the lower rate for one,. two, or three 

years, until it is paid out or until a person uses the card .. 

Now, a person who has run up large balances has very little 

need to increase a rate for the sake of borrowing a few hundred 

dollars. You knowi if you are going to go out and borrow a few 

thousand dollars -- you can go up to $25,000 -- if you are 

making that type of purchase, -that is one thing. But for a few 

hundred dollars, you are not going to permit the rate to be 

increased on y6ur account. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: That is not the real function of a 

credit card. I mean, doesn't that make a complex system out of 

something that consumers rely on being simple, in terms of 

their use, and aren't you really talking about-- Wouldn't that 

really be better handled by your loan department., so they could 

pay it off, get another loan -- maybe a secured loan -- or, 
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with , ', other collateral,: -pay off the :·credit card, balanc~ and ' 

· start anew? Woul_dn' t that ):)e, a better wa.y of doing it? 

MR. ,COOTE: Well, of coutse, the people_ who hav~ that. ·_­

and the People who h.ave the collateral ·to do that g·~nerally 
simply . take' advantage of , the grace period. NOW/ our o:t~doid 
since. we have - been in thi_s $ince 1969 ~ ·. is . that 40% of·-. tp.e 
people have, used the grace period; ·so, . that' m~rks down.· our 

disclosed rate to an effecti;e rat~, of less than 15%, -· . . -•-··- · 

Now, thi_s is the3 system; this is thf~ nature of t}'l.e 
bea.'st. It is-. the·· .card, and · this -is _fine. This Js what makes' 

·the card really so yariablE;j. I. think that 8:ilything you s~l\ .... ..;. 
any 'product you have -- . if it has great value, 
certain return on it. ·. The industry; .I think, ~ci 

certainly justified- the cost. . It -· is there. 
. : , ; .. 

it deserves a 
far.· toda;,_ has•­

I .t\on '·t .·· think 
there is-~ _Even during our toughest period$-:~ as ·r had in my 

statement -,--'- as far as profit-wise is concerned with the card, 
', we continued the grace period, We nev~r let the grace period 

go. I don't th~nk, either, th,at that' is indic:ative to any type 
of ripoff.,. 

This· is a very fair price we· are charging. We are 

charging 18%, while._ 80% of the card holders in New Jersey -- I 
, ' 

say_ .80, some say . 70 -:-.:a. are actually paying a· much higher rate 

than that .. They are paying 19. 6 or 19. 8, or at least have :been 

over the last number of years. But competition-- If 'we were 
. . 

permi tt:ed to go out · and raise the rate when needed, lower . t_he 

rate when needed, the rates· would .go down. There is no 
~estic:m about that. ·· As long as we can _move the portfolio-::-

· now? 

lower 

SENATOR LESNIAK~ What restricts_ you. from doing that 

. MR. 

now,-
COOTE: Well, it's· very simple, sir. If -we go 

there · is ·. no -question that that. livens up the 
The only point is; we cannot take·_ that. whole · 

move .it back.· when the· rates demand · that it . be 
competition. 

portfolio and 
·. moved back. 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: Why? 

MR. COOTE: Because we are not allowed-- First of 

all, sir, we have a 90-day -- which really amounts to a 120-day 

-~ turnaround. You have to have at least · 30 days to work it 

up. Second, you have 90 days in which to tell the customer -­

to place the customer on notice -- that the rate is going up. 

The consumer does not have to take that higher rate, unless he 

uses the card. Now, what happens here· with these bills you 

have? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: 

that we have now? 

That is by law? That is · a law 

MR. COOTE: Yes, that is the law, sir. We cannot do 

that. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: And, are you predicting that if we 

adjusted that law -- if we made a true variable rate law-~ 

MR. COOTE: To a true variable rate, yes. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: --let's say, on a 30-day notice 

basis--' 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I'm sorry to interrupt, Senator 

Cardinale, but I don't think we .could change the not ice bas is, 

because that is federally regulated. Yes or no? Am I wrong in 

that? 

MR. COOTE: Well, it's regulated by your law -- the 

New Jersey State law. You certainly can change it. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: So, you are predicting that the 

rates would go down today, on a voluntary basis, if we made 

that change and gave you that flexibility? 

MR. COOTE: If we had the documentation now, and that 

type of law were in effect today, absolutely. I have no doubt 

in my mind that the rate would go down. But, you must remember 

when I make that statement, I also know that I can increa-"'Se -­

under that condition -- the whole portfolio upward, when f-fneed 

to. 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: .. · So·, if.··~-- have. $100'0 outstandJng pn· . 

· my credit cardi and when I purchased it it . was ,at 15\:- · . if . i · · ·. ··· · 
haven''t _paid .. it up, _when the ·rate goes ·up ·I wi1i __ be:paying 18%. 

or 20% -'--- l co~ld be paying 18% or 20%? 
MR. COOTE.: . Yes,. but remember--

.. SENATOR LESNIAK: . That is the. ptoposal? •. 
. . 

. MR. COOTE: Well, of cotirse, it works<both ways, :you·· 
... know, up and down .. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I understand. · I am just trying_ to. 

explain what <the--" · 

MR. COOTE: Yes,·a11 right ... I'm sorry; 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I am- not ·being argumentative;. 'I am 
just trying to e~plain. 

MR. ··COOTE: No, neither am I; I am just trying to 

make a point there; · I'm sorry. 

SENATOR. LESNIAK: Okay, thank you .. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Maybe we have discovered something. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: ._Okay,· thank you very much. It is an 

interesting proposal, and we will look at it. 

MR. COOTE: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: . At least Senator· Cardinale wi 11 look 

at it, I'm eure. 
Now I want to hear from· the ·15% guys. rs Jack Lamping 

here; from~oms River? 

·MR. DAVJ:S: He's off. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: 011,, ·. he ' s . off. 

SENATOR CARDINA:f.,E: That is the 15% bank'. 

MR; DAVIS: He will not testify; neit:her will they. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Oh .. Neil Fogarty;. Consumers· League 

of New Jersey.· Neil, are you in favo.r or against these bills? 
. N E I L J, F O G A .R T Y: In general, Senator, I am in 

favor of the floating usury cei 1 ing; I am the President of the;, 

Consumers League of New Jersey, a volunteer nonprofit group. I .. 

al so ._ sit on the Feder al Reserve Bo.a rd' s Consumer Advisory 

Council. 
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. ' . 

From listening to all of these bankers today, I am 

glad they are not in the gasoline busine.ss, because if· they 

were, we would still be paying $i.40 for gasoline. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Why is.that? 

MR. FOGARTY: .Well,. the price of crude oil has 

dropped. we·used to pay $1.40 for gasoline;·now.we are paying 

· 70 or 80 cents. · Think · of the. costs that gasoline companies 

have. They have to drill it; they have to refine it; they have 

to put it on ships; they have to take it and put it in 1ittre 

trucks. Then it goes to a gasoline station. Compare that sort 

of production cost to what . I have .been hearing. The professor 

talks about postage-'--

SENATOR LESNIAK: No, no, no, no, no . Let·' s not 

compare apples and oranges, okay? 

MR. FOGARTY: Okay. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We're talking about the gasoline 

station. When a gasoline station gets a barrel of gasoline -­

which is 42 gallons, okay? -- that price went from, what, $28 

or $2~ a barrel to $10 or $12 a barrel. · Forty-two times that 

okay? -- you have to compare that with that gasoline 

station's administration, and then you can determine what the 

price is. 

MR. FOGARTY: Sure, Senator, The main point is, the 

price of money has. dropped, just like the price of oil. 

Consumers have thousands of gasoline . stations to go to in New 

Jersey, but there are apparently only 52 banks that issue 

Mastercard and Visa. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Or, out-of-state banks. They can go 

to them. 

MR. FOGA..'q_TY: They can go to out-of-state banks, My 

point -'-- since you · have been yery concerned about that -- is, 

what would happen if a New Jersey bank copied Chevy Chase 

Savings and Loan of Maryland, .and.·started offering a 14% card? 

I don't know why they haven't thought of it. 
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.· SENATOR_ LESNIAK:.· .We have one ...:..,.. 15%. 

MR .. FOGARTY: ·. Okay,· · lf they ,advertised · in New York:, 

senator, they would, get thousands .· of ; customers; . •, Ch~vy Cha~~-, 

ao.vertises in. The·• Washington Po.st,. and,_ you know~ :they· will 
send applications out here. .. . . 

SENATOR LESNIAK.: Maybe they ought to advertise. i:n ·The> 
Star.;,..Ledger . · 

MR.·. FOGARTY:·· ·. They . should .····._ advertise: 
. . .. 

in.· The'.· 

Star-Ledger--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Is there . anything preventing ·. them 

froin advertising :in The Star-Ledger? 

-But, 

· MR. FOGARTY:_·· .. No, sen~tor, there isri' t .· 'rhey sllould. _: 

if .New Jersey .banks .··lowered. their rates,· then, they would 
- . . . . . 

get a iot of customers. They _would get more annual .· fees; ·they. 

would get more merchant _ fees _ -- the. charge slips . . . 
·. SENATOR LESNIAK: · So,_ the only . smart banker . in the 

. . , -.· 

State of New J~rsey is \hat guy d_own in Toms River? 
MR. FOGARTY: · He should ·advertise more:. . . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: And, he is not smart enough. 

MR. FOGARTY:· He shou1a·advertisemote. In essence, 

. of the bills~ we like Senator Contillo's bill, which is Senator· 
' . . . 

. Russo's· bilL of last·· year, because it is the most def iriite. It 
.. ,·. . . . .· ·. 

puts a .floating cap~~ In essente, the floating cap_is the ~ame 

as the adjustable rate mortgage.·.· I Im sure that a11 , of. t.he 

. people behind_ me wil1 defend the adj~s.table rate mortgag•e, and 

I don It see why they shouldn't defend the-.- . . 
.SENATOR LESNIAK: Except. that . there is . :ho cap. . There 

is no statutorily mandated cap. ·· 

MR. FOGARTY: Well, that is only on· first mortga.ges, 

because the Federal government has taken away the ability of -· 

the State to set that cap. 
The Consumers League favors. a general revision of the 

usury law. We like the floating rate cap idea, and we think it 

should be extended, in addition to the credit card and retail 
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credit cards, to. other types of credit which are currently only 

covered by the 30% usury law;. like, car 

insurance premium financing, small- loans, 

contractors. 

dealer. financing, 

and home repair 

In my appendix, I showed you, you- know, that 30% has 

been charged here. That is that other thing. (referring to 

appendix to written statement) Do you have it out yet? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No,. I'm sorry. 

MR. . FOGARTY: Okay. Like, here . is Potamkin Motors, 

which has a 29·; 9% contract, The same compa,ny also offers 9. 9% 

·financing. There is really a lot of things going on·out there 

that you should be aware of. The . banks, in general, are n.6t 

charging above 20%. I mean, the credit cards are their highest 

priced product. · But there are other · types of creditors who 

have gone up to the ceilings. The finance companies have been 

up·to 30%. I attached a 27% finance company loan to this. We 

also attached a list of the various banks -- I guess it is 

Congressman Schumer' s list -- and we attached something from 

Senator Al D'Arnato in New York. I mean, this is basically a 

nonpartisan issue. We are a nonpartisan group. 

There has been a lot of ferment in Congress. Congress 

had hearings on thi_s in January. There have been a lot of 

articles in the newspapers about this. People are very upset 

about it, okay? They may not know · enough to write to the 

Department of Banking about· it~ but they are upset. If you ask 

the average person if he thinks he is getting ripped off by 18% 

or 20% interest, he is going to say yes. 

People would 1 ike to see something more reasonable, 

but -there isn't a real choice. I mean, how many consumers.know 

about the Chevy . Chase Bank, or how many know where to send 

something in Arkansas? 

- SENATOR LESNIAK: Isn't that the solution? 

MR. FOGARTY: We think the solution is to reinstate 

some u~ury ceiling. We think that the floating usury ceiling 
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-- you can either take Senator Contillo'sformulation, or wrfte 

one of your own -:-- will enable the banks to make . a profit. 

After all--

SENATOR LESNIAK: But, we can't affect out-of-state ·. 

banks. 

MR. FOGARTY: That is right, Senator. l also favor 

· Federal laws to control them. There are Federal bills . pending 

which·are similar. But, New Jersr?y--

SENATOR LESNIAK: So, if 70% -- and I believe that . 

figure is accurate -- if 70% of card holders--. If 70% of the 

cards held by New Jersey residents are from out..:..of..:.state banks, 

what am I doing to the New Jersey economy, vis--a-vis the 

out-of-:-state economy, and how am I really. helping out the New 

Jersey consumer? 

MR. FOGARTY: I think that if New Jersey banks started 

offering cards at 13% and 14%, New Jersey consumers· would use 
. . 

them, and they would get back thos.e $15 annual fees, 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We have. one at 15%. · 

MR. FOGARTY: Until the . Public Advocate mentioned.· 

that, I was not aware of it, and I read The Star-Ledger every 

day. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I wasn 1 t aware of it. 

MR. FOGARTY: Ar1d, obviously, I have been interested. 

Our organization was interested in 1981, when these laws were 

repealed, and we were interested back in the '60s and '70s, 

under other people.in the group. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Are we preventing Chevy Chase Bank 

from advertising in New Jersey? 

MR. FOGARTY: We don't prevent them at all, but I am 

just saying, it would be good for New Jersey banks. They would 

get more business. They could steal business from New York· if 

they offered it at lower rates. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Wel 1, they may al 1 rush out today to 

change their interest rates,.after hearing this testimony. 
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MR. FOGARTY: There are only 50 of them. That is .the 

problem; there are not enoµgh of them. They don't have. an 

incentive now.· Consumers don't think they have a choice. They 

don't know about Chevy Chase Bank'· or the banks in Arkansas . 

SENATOR .LESNIAK: I think. you are hitting on a very 

important.point. We have to firid a way to deal with that point .. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: The Connors bil 1 does allow the 

State . Banking Department to gather that information · and 

disseminate it. So, I think that does approach part of the 

problem you are presenting. 

The previous witness opened up a new topic here, which 

I;'eally is something that is not the subject of any of these 

bills directly; that is, if we had an ability for the banks to 

adjust that rate on a monthly basis, either upward or downward, 

· he predicted that the rates today, without any control, would 

be lowered, if they had the assurance that if their cost of 

money went up next month, they could adjust it in the other 

fashion~ How do you view that? 

MR. FOGARTY: Wel 1; 1 ike you, Senator, I only heard 

about it 1 o minutes ago. I ·. really would want more time to 

study it. It is an interesting idea. I guess the idea is a 

trade.,.-off. If the banks can get a variable rate credit card, 

will they agree to a variable rate ceiling? That is the way I 

would look at it. I wouldn't want to see a variable rate 

credit card without a ceiling, though. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much. 

MR' FOGARTY: I have included -- if the Committee is 

interested -- a draft of a general floating rate usury law; I 

mean, currently it is in the criminal usury law, but if you 

wanted to_take it out of there and put it in another law, it 

would do the job just as well. I think these other t~s of 
creditors are not getting the attention-- ·.,4-•' 

SENATOR LESNIAK: 

package here? 

I don 't see that . 

126 

Is that 1n our 
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MR. · FOGARTY: · That _ · is in the 'appendix. It . 1s · a . 

proposal 'fen: a ,general floating rate usury law to apply to all 

· creditors that were deregulated in 1981. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay, . fine. ,·.,. : .. 

MR,,; FOGARTY: ,' · .. Cu-rr,en,tly, you _know, we 'ar~ ~eeing: the 
30% $how up in some of these credit m~rkets·. We thipkit_hat is< 

perhaps even a more pressing :;problem than credit '.card -~ntere~t 

·rates; but, of .course,. there are more credit c~rd holders ·than 
.· · there ar~ .tieopie being af £acted. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Yeah, but _ these are, - oft~ntimes, 

mo:re damaging. 
. MR. FOGARTY: . They 

· SENATOR LESNIAK: 

certainly arej Sen•tor . 
Okay. · . Thank you very much; We will. 

-certainly look at your proposal; Rene Borstad;', Burli11gton. ,· 

CountY Director of Consumer Affairs .. 

R l C H A R D K. W E TN R O T H: Mr. Chairman/ my name is 

· ·Richard· Weinroth; I.·· am here on behalf qf ·.··. C~-tizeris ·•· Against ·. 

-Penalty Surcharges, along -with Ms. Borstad, who, - •. as you_ 

indicated, is the Director of the Burlington County Division of 

Constuner Affairs. _• 
SENATOR LESNIAK: How does this .fit in with Resorts' 

International? 
MR. WEINROTH: It Is .hard to say, Senator. You will 

find me in the strangest p1aces. (laughter) Actually, Resorts .·· 

is consider1ng issuing a credit card of their own, Senator, 8nd 

I thought I would see. what could be done on their behalf.: 

Actually, we are direct~ng our attention to_. S-1160, 

Senator Feldman's bill, which would prohibit surcharges - on 
. credit card pu.rchases. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. We really haven it spok_en very 
much about Senator Feldrnanls bill. 

MR. WEINROTH: I · know you haven't. We wi 11 bi? 
. . - -

relatively brief. I a~ almost reluctant to--
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_.· ' ~·. . .' ~> < . ·... : ,:: . . . :· ·. 
·.SENATOR·. LESNIAK:·· .. Wllat· 1- ·arn ba~ically saying.·· is, I 

·-·.'.would. ~ike t,l.he~r .\fhat· ,Y,OU have to ·say~· be¢ause' we haven't_ 

heard.much on i:t. 
MR. WEINROTfl: ,, :okay: '·I am,almost reluctfLnt to s~y 

thi$, but · :this. appears· ta.· be . noncontroversial, . Of the 

ind:iyidual .. ·- gr()ups and •· interest. groµps . I have _spoken to,• I 
haven't heard anyone- yet· who oppbses this .conce·~~- .- I :am just 

here to giv~ you a_ little bit- of background, and then allow Ms. 
B~tstadi to _tes.tify. · · · . 

up 'until 19a4-~ ·. 

SENATOR . LESNIAK:- : You: are : . going ·. to . allow-. her . to 

.. testify? .I· th.ought that was the role -of the Chair. 

MR. WEINROTH: Oh, well; pardon ·me, Mr.· Chairman. .. I 
certainly·dori't ... want to.:step onthe-•toes of.the Chairman of.the 

Committee. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Go right ahead. 
·, .. ' ' 

MR. WEINROTH: My role, as I indicated, is just to 
. . : . . ·. . . .. 

give you a. little· bit. of background. Up until 1984, surcharges 

of this nature . wer'e prohibited by Fecl.era1 law. That 

prohibition expired in 1984. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What _surcharges are we talking about? 

MR; . WEINROTH: Well, the surcharges we are talking 

about-~ Tak.e ·· a situation wh~re an .item is advertised for 

$100. You come in with· a credit card; you offer that credit 

·· card as payment, and you are told that because you are using a 
credit card it cost the establi~hrrient "X" amount of dollars. 
Therefore, you will be surch~rged, or penalized; . $2, $3, $4, 

$5. It is an add-on to. an advertised price. 

SENATOR - LESNIAK: Okay. We ~re not talking about the 
·Exxon situation, where--

·_ MR. WEINROTH: No, sir. Specifically, ·1 was going to 

· say that it does not prohibit deviation :from an advertised 

price f6r cash. 
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SENATOR LESNIAK:/' As long as 1 t is advertised that way. 

MR. WEINROTH:. As long as it is advertised, whether it 

is gasoline,. or whether it is any other consumer product. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Does the bill do anything else? 

MR. WEINROTH: ·Notto my knowledge, Senator. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: That is basicallyiwhat the bill does? 

MR. WEINROTH: That. is exactly what it does, yes, sir. 
. . 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Why don't we release that today?· 

R E '.N E B o· R S T A D: I would be very pleased if Y,'bU would 

do that, Mr. Chairman; 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We can't do it. I. would love to do 

.it, but, you know--

MS. BORSTAD: I have had a very interesting • morning 

here. Thank you very much. I am glad to be here. I see. that 

· the Cammi ttee gets smaller and smaller, but I am glad we had a 

chance to be called. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: But, your testimony will be 

transcribed, and I ask questions of these guys lat.er, so--

MS. BORSTAD: Oh, okay. That's good. We are here, as 

Mr. Weinroth .said, in support-- I am the individual who is the 

caps representative for the State of New Jersey. It has been 

interesting. People say, "Wel 1, you know, how is this 

happening? What has occurred here?" Basically, what we have 

had here in this large credit card society i§ the beginning now 

of retailers coming forward and being penalized by charging a 

surcharge. 

I would 1 ike to state that I would like to support 

this bill because it adds very little other. than the fact that 

it prohibits surcharges in the act _itself. By placing it in 

the act, it then prohibits an individual from imposing a 

penalty for using a credit card. As Mr. Weinroth stated, it 

does not interfer~ with any cash discounts at all. 

We are finding that when the consumer is out · there 

. making a transaction and comes to the counter to make a 
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. . ·. . 

.' · ..... · .. · .• ... · .. •; .. : .· .· .. 

. . . purchase, .. suddeI'lly . the· .. consumer · finds .that:. he. is···. going to be .. 

pe~alized .a .perc~ritage:for \lsing.:the. card. 

SENATOR LE.S:NIA.l{: . Let <me ask · yqu this: I· use my 
· credit ···card a lot,·. a,nd . I··· have never · run into .. that: Hqw 

prevalent.is this, and what type of.busiOesses? 

~S_-.-. BORSTAD:,. We:1:1, I c~n · cn1ly point out to yo~ 
-•· something that recently happened to- qi:>tmepticut Senator Harper-, 

-who·.feltthere was nothing happeni~g:fn the area. Recently, .he 
. . .. . .· ·: ,'. . . . . ,.· .. . . . 

was surcharged while he was at a .· re.staurant attempting to use 
his - credit .·· card.·· · Connecticut is mOving · fast ·. right now to 

· .. prohibit' surcharges'. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Because of what happened to the .. 

Senator. 

MS. BORSTAD: The New Jersey experience we had was 

·. going into · a video · store, • arid w)len the credit card was 

presented, we were told'there wotild be~ 3% charge.for using 
. . ,• 

the credit card, which is unfortunate, because we now have the 
. consumer bein.g - doubled charged. He . does not have the .. same 

experience as a cash customer .. · 

MR. WEINROTH: It is my understanding also, Senator, . . . . .· ' . 

- that· that was a compl_aint that was brought to Ms. Borstad' s 

. attention th'rough her position as Director of the Division of 

. Consumer Affairs in Burlington County. 
. '• •,· ·. . . 

SENATOR. LESNIAK:. . Okay. Thank you very much for your 
testimony.·· ·seantor Cardinale? 

. SENATOR CAR.DINA.LE: Yes. You indicate that this. wi 11 
not, in any way, ·.· impede the· disc.aunts for cash. As I read 

this, :the only·· effective section;...- . It is al_l definitions. 
: . . . . . 

· Unless I_ am missing something ...:._ it is item 2 on page 5 -- that 

is the effective portion of the bill-- It· says: "A retail 

seller shall not impose . a surcharge on. a retail buyer who 

elects to use a retail charge . account to pay for goods or 

·. services in lieu of payment by cash, check or similar. means." 

Wouldn it any court determine that if you offered a 

discount for cas.h; you were in violation of this section? 
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MR. WEINROTH: No. I would submit--'- First of a11, 

the reason there . is so much text in here-- As you know, 

Senator, in order to . avoid repealing the existing portions of 

the act, it is necessary to repeat them. So, to 9et that one 

little paragraph in; you have several pages of bills and a lot 

of moneY for McCre1lish and Quigley: 

But, anyway, the intent here. and I would 

respectfully submit that it is a clear intent and. is clearly 

written --- is that once a p1:ice is po.sted, to charg(~ above that 

price because someone is . using a credit card-- That would be 

prohibited. It is · the deviation · upward from the advertised 

price for the use of a credit card·. It would not prohibit the 

deviation downward for use of cash under the circumstances. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: I hear what you are saying, and I 

hear what you intend. I have no argument with what you are· 

saying or with what you intend. But I don't think this says 

that. I don't think this language--

SENATOR LESNIAK: The definition of surcharge-...,. I 

think you have to look at the de.finition of surcharge on page 

4, at the bottom. I think that really clarifies things, 

Senator Cardinale, ,i 'Surcharge' means· any increase in the cash 

price of goods or services--'-" 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You're right, Senator. I got 
tired readihg the d~fihitions, and I didn't go all the way. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much . 

. MR. WEINROTH: Thank you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Elgie Holstein, · Associate Director 

of Bankcard Holders of America. 

E L G I E H O L S T E I N: Thank you, Mr . Chairman , It has 
. . 

been a long day, so I will shrink my testimony here for the 

benefit of all. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Do we have your testimony? 
---~- ~ 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Yes, you do. First, let me go on 

record as saying that our organization supports the surcharge 
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legislation. I · realize there hasn't been 

it, but we would like to add our voice 

legislation. Briefly, Bankcard Holders 

much discussion of 

in support of that 

of America is a 

national organization of individual credit card consumers. We 

have been --- from the consumer standpoint _..., the most active 

organization in working with state legislators across the 

country, as well as with Congress on credit card issues, 

particularly on this legislation. For example, · I would be 

happy to give you some information on what other states are 

doing, but . suffice to say that this very same issue is under 

consideration in a large number · of states in every region of 

the country. 

We are appearing before you today because we believe 

that interest rates are far too high, and secondly, because wg 

think consumers are unaware, to a large extent, of the terms 

and conditions applicable to their cards. 

I listened, 1 guess, for over an hour to the discourse 

by the good Professor from Purdue. l have seen him testifying 

in several -Other states. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: A hired gun. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Perhaps so. He was talking about the 

free market and credit cards. While it was a very interesting 

economics lecture, I think he left out a basic part of at least 

my background in economics; that is, a free market, by 

definition, requires complete. information in the marketplace. 

That is spectacularly absent in the area of credit cards. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We only have one bill before us that 

deals with that issue. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: I would strongly suggest that the 

component of disclosure be incorporated into any bill, or at 

least· be incorporated as a minimum. Let me demonstrate. I'm 

sorry that Senator Jackman isn't here, because he madE 

reference earlier to his belief that, just as in the case of 

auto loans and home loans, consumers could readily discover, in 
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the course of advertising, and so forth1 what the interest rate 

is on credit cards. Sadly, that is just untrue . 

. This is an advertisement (demonstrates) -- a full-page 
. . 

ad for an auto loan and, as you can see even from where you are 

sitting, the 

rate. This 

most prominant feature of it is the interest 
' 

is a two-page atlvertisement for a credit card 
I 

issued by a large money cen}er bank -- Citibank -- which, 

parenthetically, of course, is\ located-- It issues its cards 

out of South Dakota. Nowhere nowhere in this 

advertisement is there any reference to the interest rate or 

other terms of conditions of the card. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We can't regulate that advertising, 

though, can we? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: In fact, you can, Senator. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We can? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Let me get to that-­

SENATOR LESNIAK: As a State? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Yes, sir. Let me get to that point in 

just a moment. The banks will be quick to point out, as is the 

case, that Federal law requires them to disclose fully to their 

consumers. In fact, several witnesses earlier did indicate 

that they fully disclose on their statements. Yet, the issue 

before you today really has to do with new issuances of credit 

cards, not with whether or not the existing consumers know what 

they are paying. There are, to date, about four major 

different ways in which interest is calculated, and two or 

three different ways in which grace periods are applied. So, I 

would suggest that even those consumers who already have cards 

-~ and there are 91 million Americans who do -- don't know what 

they are paying. 

The small print here is the way they comply with the 

Federal law, and it is fairly typical for credit cards. What 

it says is: "The consumer will be deemed to have agreed to the 

interest rate and other terms of conditions, after they have 
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~. . . 
received the card," .· If they fail <to reject· the catd, or 

otherwise notify the bank that they :ao not want· it within 30 

. days.,. even if. they never use the card, they .· a.re immediately 

subject to annual fees a,nd . any· other period.ic feei; that may' 
. . ... ' . ·.. . ... : . '. - . ; 

attach: or ·apply· to that card. . . . . 
SENATOR LESNIP.J{: Now, ho\\7 · can we tegul~te that type .. 

of advertising? · 
. . 

MR,. HOLSTEIN: An excellent ·question. Although· you· 

are pre~en~ed currently from imposing ~ · New Jersey ceiling on.· 

oUt"'."'of_;state banks, you are not prevented from }mposing 

requirements relating to · disclosure. This is simply. an 

advertising • .. requirement on solicitations that originate in 

banks< located in other states, just as You do on sweepstakes, 

.just as you do on insurance offerings, just as you do on a wide 
. . 

variety of other·basic disclosure requiremf;!nts. 

· SENATOR .LESNIAK: · Where did that· advertising--· Was it 

in some kind of magazine, oi:: what?·. 
MR .. HOLSTEIN: Yes. ·· I believe both of these came out 

of. "Ti.me" magazine; 

SENATOR LE:SNIAK: Okay. 
in. "Time''· magazine? 

Can we affect the advertising 

MR. HOLSTEIN: You can affect the advertising of the. 

banks and, accordingly, if "Time" magazine were to distribute 

in New Jersey an advertisement for a credit card, yes, it would 
have to disclose. that. As ypu ·know, Senator, though, much 

advertising, even in national· magazines, is actually arranged· 

for and pa.id for. locally, to adjust to local market conditions, 

even though it is a nationally distributed magazirie. 

So, I urge you to consider that as one element of your 

review. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I consider that to be the most 

· .. important e.lemerit Of our review ;..._ disclosure and awareness, 

because I happen to think that consumers, if given the facts; 

can· make. the right choice. I am not going to make the choice 

for them. 

134 



MR. HOLSTEIN: It is an important first step. The 

very point you are making, that is to say that consumers are 

made aware · and, if they know where · to find low interest rate 

credit cards-- That underscores our belief, in contradiction: 

to most of the testimony so.far today, that• if New Jer5eywere 

to apply an interest rate ceiling, even just on the banks that 

issue cards .here in the State, and combined · that with a 

disc1os:ure requirement, that the citizens of New Jersey, rather 

issued by a. South· 

rapidly begin to 

in the State of New 

. than continuing to sub1scribe to credit cards 

Dakota-based credit card operation7 would 

subscribe to credit cards issued right here 

Jersey. 

Now, obviously, on the surface it would seem that if 

that were the case, all of the representatives of the industry 

who were here earlier today would welcome this legislation. 

After all, it would seem to suggest that this would be a way to 

increase business. But I would suggest to you that for as long 

as they continue to enjoy the substantial and widening gap 

between their own costs of money and what they .are charging for 

that money through interest charges, they see an opportunity. 

for themselves to continue to profit handsomely under the 

current arrangement. 

Now I know, and I want to respond very briefly to 

this-- I am well aware of the fact that the banks' cost of 

money -- which have fallen by about 50% in the last five years 

-- represent less than -- substantially less than 100% of their 

costs of operating the program. There are these administrative 

costs. Parenthetically, the administrative costs were the 

reas6n that was given to Congress 

six years ago, when banks began 

annual fee, claiming that this 

administrative costs. And, of 

and a number of states five, 

to charge the now prevalent 

was needed to cover the 

course, as was mentioned 

earlier, there are now a wide variety of other charges. 

Nevertheless, the president of Visa. was quoted several months 
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ago in The New York Times, stating that the costs of money 

· represented 50% of the cost of operating a credit card program. 

But, let's .take the lowest estimate that I have ever 

heard -- · and. I think it was mentioned earlier today-:-- The 

lowest estimate is that the banks' costs of money represent 

only 30% of the cost of · operating the credit card program. 

Everything else is administrative costs. Were that the case, 

credit card interest rates should sti 11 have f.al len by about 

two percentage points. · Instead, over the last five years 

and I won't go over · all of the specifics; they are in my 

· testimony -:-- while every other interest rate has fallen by as 

much as 50%, while the b·anks' costs of funds have fallen by 

50%, credit card interest rates have actually risen from an 

average in 1981 of 17.8% to a current average of 18.8%. There 

are further disappointments down the road. For example, the 

new Sears . Discover card, which 

alternative and new competitor 

.unlike Visa and MasterCard 

is being marketed as a major 

to Visa and MasterCard, and 

is a single interest rate 

nationwide, comes in at a very disappointing 19.8%. In fact, 

that points up the fact that the industry leaders here -- the 

25 top issuers of credit cards -,-- who, by the way, enjoy the 

greatest economies of scale in their credit card operations, . 

are charging higher than the national average. The nationa1 

average, again, is 18.8. The 25 largest issuers of credit 

cards are charging an average of 19. 4%. These same banks are 

enjoying very low loss ratesI and they are enjoying very great 

economies of scale. 

So, I think the arguments about the banks' costs, at 

some point, begin to lose credibility. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What is important to me is, why is 

their volume so great when they are charging so much? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: There is no question in my mind that 

consumers are responding to what is the form of competition, if 

we can ·call it that in credit cards. That so-called 
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competition exists not on interest rates, 

basisof frills -- travel·and entertainment 

health clubs, ~nd so forth. 

but rather on. the 

benefits, access to 

SENATOR LESNIAK: What we need is a People Express of 

the banking business. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: What we need is full disclosure of the 

interest rates. And, of course, you zeroed in on ·this problem 

· earlier when you were asking some. of the folks about what is 

going on in .Arkansas. A quick point about Arkansas. The 

numbers clearly state that the percentage of · cards held by 

Arkansas residents issued by Arkansas banks has continued to 

decline as a percentage of the national average. There is no 

question but that is, to a large extent, due to the fact that 

the national direct mail marketing· campaigns are being 

. undertaken by the 25 largest issuers. So, the handful of banks 

around the country which are off er ing low interest rate, or 

even moderate interest rate credit cards, are not among the 

ranks of the riational leaders. As in many industries, the 

national leaders set the pace for the others. 

You mentioned and asked a question about Chevy Chase 

Savings and Loan in the Washington area: There is nothing-­

SENATOR LESNIAK: Were they named after the comedian? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Pardon me? 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Were they named after the comedian? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: I think it might have been the other 

way around. That bank could clearly advertise in· The Newark 

Star-Ledger. However, that bank has no intention, nor desire, 

to do business outside its relatively small geographic 

vicinity. They have no intention, even with the new interstate 

banking laws that· I know you have been grappling with, to move 

into massive interstate operations. They are basically a~:small 

family-O'l;,\.'l1ed ·operation in that vicinity. The same is tr·u~· of 

many other institutions. 

137 



SENATOR LESNIAK: They probably know every single one 

of their card holders. 

.MR. HOLSTEIN: And they know many of their card 

holders, which brings me to one of the principal concerns 

expressed by members of this Cammi ttee. What will happen to 

card holders~- What wi11 happen to the avaflabili ty of credit 

if you impose an interest rate ceiling? Of course, we have to 

remember that up until 1979, 48 states had interest rate 

ceilings, and about 25 to 30 states either raised or removed 

those ceilings entirely in response to the banks' legitimate 

problems .of corning up against those ceilings. The legislation 

before you, of course, · would not be a return to those bad old 

days, because it would provide upward movement of the interest 

rates, as well as downward, when the banks' own costs changed . 

. SENATOR LESNIAK: If. it were tied into the actual 

costs. I don't know that· it has been established here that 

that basis has anything to do with the banki-- (Remainder of 

comment inaudible to transcriber due to background noise.) 

MR. HOLSTEIN: No one has suggested -- or if they have 

they're wrong to suggest·-""" that credit card interest rates 

ceilings should be tied in to auto loans or home loan rates or 

· even tied directly to Treasury bi 11 rates. All anyone is 

suggesting is to pick an interest rate 

generally accepted market index a 

in the economy -- a 

90-day or six-month 

Treasury bills is a · good index -- and then add a number of 

points to allow plenty of margin for the additional recovery of 

costs, to arrive at an interest rate that provides plenty of 

room. Again, no one is suggesting that there should be an 

absolute lock in there. The key feature is the adjustability 

of that rate. It is a fair deal to both consumers and the 

issuers. 

But, what about the availability of credit? The 

previous witnesses failed to do something · very important on 

this issue. They failed to differentiate -- and I think we 

138 



must split the issue -- between those folks who already have 

cards and those who would apply for cards under an interest 

rate ceiling. Ninety-one million Americans, as I've mentioned, 

have credit cards. There are 703 million credit cards. in the 

country today, of which about 161 million are bank cards. The 

average family has somewhere around five credit cards. If you 

were to impose a cei 1 ing on credit . card interest rates in New 

Jersey -- or nationally -- there is no question that the people 

who apply f ot· credit cards would undergo greater scrutiny than 

they do now. 

Let me return to that. But, the 91 million Americans 

who already· have credit cards, who are the primary 

beneficiaries of this type of law, would not lose their credit 

cards--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Why is that? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: --because credit cards are issued and 

they remain in the hands of consumers--

SENATOR LESNIAK: For one year. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: No, sir, based upon good credit 

history, not solely on the basis of income. So, if the 

interest rate were cranked down, so to speak, as long as those 

consumers continue to pay their charges on time to comply with 

the terms and conditions of the cards, the banks would have no 

reason, indeed, they would be foolish, to actually recover 

to take back those cards from the consumers. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: So, the only people we would be 

damaging would be those young people -- college students just 

getting out, young families wanting to furnish their homes~ and 

things of that nature? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: That is an important consideration. I 

did promise to return to it, so let me respond to that. There 

is no question -- and I readily concede -- that if you have 

lower credit card interest rates you force the people who apply 

for credit ~- as you have suggested -- to greater scrutiny, 
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ju$t as they now undergo scrutiny for auto loans, · home loans, 

and· other consumer loans. As a representative of a consumer 

organization, I would be reluctant. to get up here and suggest 

that you should crank down interest rates if . I thought these 

people would be prices out of the market. I'm sure you would· 

agree, Senator, that at some income level, it doesn't make 

sense to extend credit to consumers. A family making $12,000 a 

year probably is not going to be in a position to deal with a 

$5000 or $10,000 line of credit. Moreover, there are 

alternatives. For example, for the lowest income people today, 

even if they have bad credit and can't even get a credit card 

at 19% or 20% interest, they can get a so-called collateralized 

credit card, and they can enjoy all of the conveniences the 

rest of their citizens and neighbors enjoy by simply putting a 

deposit of $300 to $500 in a bank. They will get the same 

conveniences with their card, often at a lower interest rate. 

There are these alternatives and, of course, there are home 

equity loans and other types of consumer loans available. 

It is true, however, that at some point, the scrutiny 

would require that at some income level, perhaps a lower income 

level, there would be a cutoff of the availability of credit to 

new card holders, to new applicants. But I have to turn this 

· question around a little bit and suggest this ...;..._ and this is 

really in the manner of Senator D'Arnato's question when it came 

up in front of his Banking Committee in Washington. He turned 
the question around like this: He said, "Is someone who is not 

credit-worthy at 12%, suddenly credit-worthy at 18% or 20%?" 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Absolutely. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Absolutely not .. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Absolutely. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: The person is no more likely, as a 

matter of fact is less likely, to be able to afford the 18% 

interest than the 12% interest.· 
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SENATOR LESNIAK: No, no. I can take that risk. I 

can absorb that risk because I am making more money. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: What happens is, the rest of the card 

holders, the vast majority of Americans with good credit 

ratings, subsidize the issuance of credit to those people with 

bad credit histories. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: No doubt; it happens every day. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: So, we are talking about essentic1.lly 

punishing the vast majority of cc:msumer.s with good crr1di t 

histories in order to continue to extend credit to a smal 1 

number of people. Instead of debating this issue--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, I don't know how small-- I'm 

sure we are talking basically about low-income people. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: The lowest income people. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: The lowest income people, most of 

.whom I represent, or Senator Jackman represents, or Senator 

O'Connor represents. Tho.se same people want to furnish their 

homes, just like anybody else. They want to buy their children 

gifts at Christmastime and may not be able to afford it then, 

so that they can pay it later on. Those same people want that 

opportunity just as anyone else does. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: I find it ironic that I am sitting here 

making the arguments that the bankers usually make about how 

the granting of credit is not a God-given right. But, the 

point is--

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, I don't listen to bankers, and 

I don't .listen to you or anyone else. I listen to my own mind. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: There are two criteria by which -- two 

general categories of criteria that bankers use to make 

decisions about issuing credit cards. It is a mistake to 

assume that annual yearly income -- that annual income is the 

only criteria they use. If a low-income person has credit, has 

been using credit1 even if it is a case of paying utility bills 

on time, those folks have good credit histories that enable 
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them, in many cases,· to get -- albeit maybe smaller lines of 

credit than you or I might be a.b1e to get -- credit. As .I have 

mentioned, even . for the lowest in.come consumers, there is, 

right now, the availability of these . so-called collateralized · 

loans and other forms of loans. 

So I have to call int0 question .whether or not in the 

big picture we r.ea1 ly are talking a1:>-011t; :t;});e re$1:riction or the 
. ' ' ,,, . -. ,, ,_·- ·,.-,,·,-,'"'··•',,.• 

drying·up of c~edit; as the bankers like to suggest in offering 

those cards. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Then we ought to change Economics I 

in Paul. Samuelson's textbook, 

economics the wrong way. 

because I guess I· went at 

MR. HOLSTEIN: 

Samuelson's text:t>oOk. 

I have no disagreement with Paul 

What it talks about is this problem, the 

need for information out there, and competition. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: You' re absolutely right, and I think 

we are going to have to do something about that. Any 

q1.1estions, Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes. We have been discussing 

here, with the last couple of witnesses, a potential for 

changing our current laws so that there is greater flexibility 

in upward and . downward movement of rates on credit cards. It 

has been predicted that if we were to do that, we would have 

lower rates without ever- setting a rate -- that we would have 

·_ lower effective rates today on a voluntary basis by the 

institutions. How do you feel about that? 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Wel 11 when the testimony was offered 

several minutes ago, I noticed a number of the members of the 

. industry shaking their heads, so perhaps that question is 

better directed to them. In general,· I support the notion of 

variable ceilings. In fact, there is a variable ceiling in 

Washington State and in Arkansas right now, which we belive is 

giving consumers· a fair deal. I would have to see the exact. 

language. I find· myself, frankly, dubious about whether or not 
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simply permitting this variation ..;.._ whether or not that would, 

in itself, bring .about a change. But, it is certainly worth 

pursuing. . It is certainly worth pursuing. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much for your 

testimony. 

MR. HOLSTEIN: Thank you. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Al Griffith, New Jersey Bankers 

Association. 

H. G R I F F I T H: Mr. Chairman and met?ibers 

of the Committee, there really is not too much more that I can 

off er. Pretty much of what the banking community has said 

expresses the concerns of the Association. If · it were 

desirable and market wise for a bank to go below its present 

rate _....:. the 15% or 14% -- they would do it right now. The law 

. wouldn't . limit them or prohibit them from doing it. · It is 

obvious in the marketplace that the place where they are puts 

them in a competitive position with the credit card community. 

Most important and significant, I think, from the 

standpoint of the New Jersey Bankers Association -- the people 

we represent -.,.. is the impact of this · legislation on our New 

Jersey-based institutions. It is clear from the testimony 

which was given by a number of our banks that since 1981, there 

has been a substantial increase in the amount of credit made 

available to New Jerseyans through our New Jersey-based 

institutions yery substantial with an obviou~, very 

important spin-off effect on our communities. There has been. 

an increase in the number of people, · and the socioeconomic 

levels of people, who have had credit extended to them. 

The ef feet of this Jegi slat ion, as we see it -- what 

our council indicates is the fact that a national bank 

outside the State of New Jersey would continue. to Femain 
' 

unfettered in its abi 1 ity to of.fer credit in New Jersey a.t'- any 

rate and condition it so desired, while we would be hamstrung 

to some index which probably would not be realistic andi in 
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effect, would probably cause our banks to consider either 

restricting their credit policy, or possibly even selling their 

portfolios, if it were at a point where the index was so 

restrictive that it wound up being a loss situation. 
. . 

We very much appreciate the efforts of the Committee, 

.and the nature of the questions yo'll have asked. It is Obvious 

. that you have a pretty good grasp of al 1 the points pro and con 

on the issue; If we can . help you • in any further way, or 

provide any kind of specific information for staff, or 

·whatever, constitutional issues, or whatever, we would be most 

happy to do so. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes. I am going to ask you the 

same question, Al. Representing a great number of 

·institutions, do you have a feel for -- and I know it just came 

up today -- whether or .not we might see, on a voluntary basis, 

lower rates, .if the institutions had a provision in the law 

- which gave them a quick turnaround? 

MR. GRIFFITH: There is, right now -- and what Mr. 

Coote. was referring to a provision of advance loan law, 

which we use, for the most part, for our credit card lending, 

that has language in it that any adjustment in the rate has to 

be made -- initially with a 30-'-day notice, and then there is a 

90-day notice, and then any time thereafter a 30-day notice. 

It also requires that there be advance approval any time the 
bank decides to ·increase the rate. 

our banks presently in New Jersey. 

dur organization that perhaps we 

And that is a problem for 

There is a thought within 

could attempt to have, 

however, and most importantly, as an alternative basis, or as 

an (indiscernible) of approach to credit card lending, a true 

variable rate consumer lending law, which would give the 

institutions the greatest amount of f lexibi 1 i ty in terms of 

their outside index, and also would eliminate a conflict in 

notice periods and approval of customers before the change was 

accessed. 
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That would substantially help some of our banks which 

might want to use the credit card on a variable rate basis. We 

had that embodied, somewhat, in a bill that moved through the 

Legislature a year or two ago -- the Market Rate Consumer Loan 

Act -- which was designed to provide for variable rate lending 

in the closed-end area, as well as the revolving area. By the 

time it reached the LIP Committee, the Banking Department 

indicated they wanted to more or less dismantle the variable 

rate aspect of revolviwJ credit, including credit card credit, 

so much of the change that Mr. Coote was alluding to was taken 

out. 

But, it was understood, and it still remains fairly 

wel 1 understood, that if legislation 1 ike that were enacted, 

there might be some banks which might be wi 11 ing to do that, 

and to have a variable rate credit card; But, to have it be 

the only law, or the only way by which a bank could do it to 

compete in the national market would probably be a serious 

problem for a lot of the rest of our banks. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: But they can't do it now, based on 

the regulations. 

MR. GRIFFITH: That is correct. They would need these 

notification requirements and the approval before any increase 

in rate could be permitted. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: You are suggesting that if we do 

it, we do it as an adjunct to the present system,· rather than 

an alternative to the present system. 

MR. GRIFFITH: I guess what I am saying is, if it were 

to be enacted, but it were to be just another approach of banks 

so the banks that wanted to continue to do it the way they are 

doing now to be competitive in the national market, that they 

would be able to continue to do that. However, perhaps this 

might be something on the· books that might give banks that 

alternative, if they chose to use it. The First National in 

Toms River chose the 15% approach, and they feel comfortable 
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with it. Perhaps maybe· some banks might .. · want · .. to use that. · .. .. . . .. . . . - ; 

. But, if that became t:he only game in· town, and the.only way to 

do it, I think-:... 

SENATOR LESNIAK: I don't think Senator Cardinale .is· ·. ·. - . ' . - . .- ' 

saying that ... He .is saying that this may- add competition-:-. 

MR. GRIFFITH: .·Yeah, · it would be. another approach· that 
co~1d be . used and, ·again,. there .· may b~ some banks that would 

·· embrace it.· . . . ' . .. . . ;:· .· . .. 

";: SENATOR CARDINALE: I· just asked Dale to draft that, 

and if the Cha,irman would like to cosponsor it-:-

SENATOR LESNIAK: . Well,· I will look at it more 
. . . . . 

closely, but I certainly would seriously colisider it. 

SENATOR CARDINALE: Maybe·. we could post it for the 

next meeting. 

MR .. GRIFFITH: We have some very rough language that 

. reaches to that, as well as all revolving closed:...end credit. 

If you want to .. do the whole thing at once,· that would be nice. 

But, that :1s beyond credit cards. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Okay. Thank you. 

MR, GRIFFITH; I want to thank you again. This 

Committee. really asked a . lot .of very probing questions. I . 

think you have a pretty good grasp on all the issues involved .. 

Thank you so much. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you. Sam Damiano. 
S A M U E L .. J. I> A lt'l··. i A. N 0: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, 

Senator Cardinale. Savings banks, as I note in my prepared 

statement -:- which all of you should have - before you -- are 

relatively. new entries into the ·credit·· card market, but, 

nevertheless, I · :thought it· important that we at least make 
. . 

ourselves available· to the Committee in the· event that you 

might have questions of our industry. 

The_ sum and- substance of our stateme::1t is that we 

enjoy the fact that with deregulation now in its final stages 

as of March 31, we. continu~ to operate on both sides of the 
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ledger. in that same type of environment. Thus~ any proposal to 

reimpose interest rate ceilings would be ·met with strong 

objection, and we try to convey that message in our statement. 

The subject of a variable rate, Senator, is not 

addressed in my statement, but I might anticipate.your question 

by saying that, if the law doesn't allow for it ... ..,. ~nd it 

didn't allow for reverse annuity mortgages or graduated paymet1t · 

adjustable mortgages years ago in the foresight of the 

Legislature, tlley saw fti t to enact it into law. It sits on the 

books, and someday it may be available. Someday, someone may 

see an opportunity to put that type of program into motion. 

I think if there are ways of complimenting what is now 

available to the lending community and to the consuming 

community, we would certainly support it, having the review of 

such legislation, understanding full well that any type of 

ceiling would probably be met with strong objection. 

There are two quotes I would like to refer to in my 

paper, if I. may. On page i, I ref er to the Federal Reser.ve 

Board testifying before the United States Senate Banking 

Committee recently, where they let it be known that they 

opposed legislation that would set ceilings on interest rates 

th.at may be charged by banks and other issuers of credit 

cards. They argued, and I quote: "Regulatory measures can 

have unpredictable· and unwarranted consequences," suggesting 

that the issuances of cards to fewer people by credit card 

companies could be a direct result of artificial ceilings, and 

that such an action could make it more difficult for low-income 

people to gain access to credit opportunities. 

That is not a profound statement. It has been said 

repeatedly throughout this entire session. Coming more closely 

to home, Dr. Paul Nadler, Professor of Finance at the Graduate 

School of Management, Rutgers University, has said on the 

subject, and I quote: ''Under the guise of :protecting the 

borrower, we are really limiting his ability to borrow and his 

freedom to obtain the money he wants and is willing to pay for." 
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Ideally, we · would rather see adequate disclosure. to·· 

the public so that there is no question. The copsumer should 

know the terms under which he or she is borrowing, and we· 

wholeheartedly endorse this as the more viable alternative to 

the imposition of any controls, especially during this stage of 

deregulation. 

To that end, we believe S-1561 -- if it touches on all 

providers of credit -- would accomplish that objective. 

I thank· you . 

. SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you, Mr. Damiano. Last, but 

certainly not least, Jim Morford from the New Jersey State 

Chamber of Commerce. 

J A M E S c. MOR F O R·D: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am 

Jim Morford, Vice President of Government Relations, New Jersey 

State Chamber of Commerce. I thank you for the opportunity to 

address this issue today. 

You have heard a great deal of expert testimony on 

this subject. I do not come here pretending to bear any of 

·that expertise, but will just try to reflect·at least, and very 

briefly, the views of the Chamber of Commerce. 

Before I begin, I just might add, Sam quoted briefly 

from a statement made by a member of the Board of Governors of 

the Federal Reserve System. If that has not yet been offered, 

I would like to ask your permission, Mr. Chairman, to include 

that as an appendix to a formal statement I wi 11 submit before 

. the closing of the record. I think the statement by Mr. Emmett 

Rice, who is a member of the Board of Governors of the Federal 

Reserve System, is . enlightening on the subject, and I would 

like your permission to include that. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Oh, absolutely. 

MR. MORFORD: Thank you. I remember sitting in the 

Legislature, maybe a decade ago, and listening to the debate a::: 

interest rates were soaring in New Jersey, the need to increase 

the usury law limits from some 20% to about--
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SENATOR LESNIAK: Not.quite 10 years ago. 

MR. MORFORD: --30%. Well, time...::."'" Was it seven years 

ago? It was back in· the '70s, I do remember. Was it the late. 

'70s? 

SENATOR CARDINALE: It was after '79. 

MR. MORFORD: It was after ·' 79? I · remember the debate 

time, anyway, and we did increase it so that credit·.woul,d be 

more available to the residents of the state, when it indeed 

wasn't available. We sat ill believe that that is the· law which 

should govern. We think, at 

interference in the marketplace is 

SENATOR LESNIAK: You 

interference in the marketplace? 

least in our view, that 

not recommended . 

. are basically against· 

MR. MORFORD: That is correct. Surprise! 

SENATOR LESNIAK: Well, I am surprisec:1, but that is 

for another day. 

MR. MORFORD : That is another ·issue, Senator. 

(laughter) You never let me off that hook, do you? 

You have heard a great deal today -- and I would only 

just very briefly reenf orce it --- that obviously the cost of . 

money -- the cost of fundB ~- is certainly not the only factor 

related to the cost of credit. We think that is a very 

important consideration throughout your deliberations. The 

extension of credit, of course, is a privilege, as well as a 

marketing device. I don't think we should overlook the fact 

that it is a marketing device. Retai 1 credit is issued by 

department stores. Because one issues credit~ another one will 

do it. 

SENATOR LESNIAK: We have heard a lot. of testimony on 

the credit card itself. From your expertise with the State 

Chamber of Commerce, I would really 1 ike to· hear what you...,:have 

to · say about how this· impacts upon New Jersey in terms · of~-its 

competitiveness with. other states. 
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MR. MORFORD: Well, you hit it precisely; If New 
Jersey moves alone, or virtually alone, in this issue to 
restrict, or by some mechaniam interfere with the market 
setting the interest rates within, again, the parameters of the 
usury law, we think that would tend to put us at a competitive 
disadvantage, whether it be for bank cards or whether it be for 
the extension of retail credit, vis-a-vis New York and 
Philadelphia, where · shoppers could go. ·.rt may outbalance the 
sales tax advantage we now have over those states. 

So, we do think it could have a negative effect. It 
could have a negative effect -- you have heard this also -- on 
some of the very consumers who depend on credit -- and you, 
yourself, have addressed this~- to extend their payments. We 
would urge you not to encourage legislation that would 
interfere with the free market, would establish some artificial 
legislated interest rate. The market will find its level. 

Thank you. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Senator Cardinale? 
SENATOR CARDINALE: No questions. 
SENATOR LESNIAK: Thank you very much, Mr. Morford, 

and I thank everyone.for coming and for staying. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED} 
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MR . CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 

THANK YOU FOR PROVIDING THE DEPARTMENT OF ·THE PUBLIC 

ADVOCATE WITH THE OPPORTUNITY TO APPEAR BEFORE YOU TODAY 

TO SHARE OUR STRONG CONCERNS REGARDING THE COMPELLING 

NEED TO TAKE LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO LOWER CREDIT CARD INTEREST 

RATES. IN OUR OPINION, THE HIGH RATES OF INTEREST CURRENTLY 

BEING IMPOSED ON NEW JERSEY CONSUMERS HIGHLIGHT THE NEED TO 

REINSTITUTE THE CONTROLS OVER· CREDIT CARD LENDING THAT 

WERE LEGISLATIVELY REMOVED IN 1981. THE PROMISE OF INTEREST 

RATE DEREGULATIOK -- THAT IKCREASED COMPETITION WOULD BENEFIT 

CONSUJ\1ERS -- HAS NOT MATERIALIZED. INSTEAD, NEW JERSEY CON-

SUMERS HAVE PAID MILLI OKS OF DOLLARS IN. EXCESSIVE CREDIT CARD 

INTEREST. THEREFORE, \\'E STROKGLY URGE THAT A CEILING ON THESE 

INTEREST RATES BE ENACTED. 

THE NEED TO PROVIDE RELIEF TO NEW JERSEY CONSUJ\1ERS IS CLEAR 

ACCORDING TO STATISTICS FROM THE FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD, 

INTEREST RATES PAID BY BANKS AKD COM1'1ERCIAL BORROWERS HAVE 

STEADILY DECLI:!'~ED DURING THE PAST FOl:R YEARS AKD HAVE FALLE\: 
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TO LESS THAN HALF OF THEIR FORMER LEVELS. THE PRIME RATE, 

WHICH PEAKED AT 20. 5% IN THE SUMMER AND FALL OF 1981, HAS FALLEN 

DRAMATICALLY TO 9%. THE DISCOUNT RATE, WHICH IS THE RATE 

CHARGED BY THE FEDERAL RESERVE TO BANKS FOR SHORT-TERM 

BORROVl!NG, PEAKED AT 14% DURING THE SAME PERIOD AND NOW STANDS 

. . . 

AT JUST 7%. · BOTH RATES ARE AT THEIR LOWEST LEVELS SINCE 1978. 

CONSUMER INTEREST RATES, IN CONTRAST, REMAIN HIGH. 

THE FEDERAL RESERVE BOA.RD'S SURVEY OF CONSUMER-RELATED 

INTEREST RATES CONFIRI'-1S THAT BANKS HAVE FAILED TO PASS 

ALONG THESE LOWER INTEREST RA TES TO CONSu111ERS. CONSUMER 

RATES HAVE, IN SOME CASES, EVEN RISEN DESPITE THE CONSISTENT 

DOV{l\T\\'ARD TREKD IK ALL OTHER INTEREST RA TES. 

NEW JERSEY CREDIT CARD HOLDERS ARE ALL TOO AWARE OF THIS 

DRAMATIC DISPARITY. ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD, 

CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES CHARGED BY COl\1MERClAL BANKS 

ACROSS THE COUNTRY AVERAGED 17. 8% IN AUGUST OF 1981. ONE 
-·.-f'- ' 

YEAR LATER, 'WHILE THE PRIJ\1E DROPPED MORE THAN 5%, THE CREDIT 

CARD RATE HAD ACTUALLY INCREASED, CLI:\IBE\G TO 18.7%. INTEI: 

KEARLY FOUR YEARS SIK CE, WHILE BOTH THE PRil\i.E AKD DISCOUl\T RATE 
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' ' 

. . ' 

CONTINUED THEIR DRAMATIC DECLINE, CREDIT CARD RATES REMAINED 

ESSENTIALLY UNCHANGED,. FLUCTUATING BETWEEN 18% AND 18.85%, A 

RECORD HIGH. 

A RECENT SURVEY BY THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE 

CONFIRMS THAT NEW JERSEY HAS FOLLO\\'ED THIS NATIONAL TREND. 

lNFORMATION COLLECTED IN THE FIRST TWO WEEKS OF APRIL FROM 

FIFTY-EIGHT STATE AND FEDERALLY-CHARTERED BANKS lN NEW JERSEY 

TH_AT ISSUE CREDIT CARDS REVEALED THAT THE AVERAGE INTEREST 

RATE CHARGED ON CREDIT CARDS WAS 18.4%. RATES CHARGED BY 

THESE BANKS RANGED AS HIGH AS 19. 8'L WITH OXLY ONE BANE, THE 

FIRST NATIOKAL BAKE OF TOMS ErVER, CHARGING SIGNIFICANTLY 

- BELO\'.' THE OTHERS_ IT REPORTED CHARGING 15% OK ITS CREDIT CARD 

ACCOUNTS. 

THAT BAKE.S HAVE CHOSEK TO KEEP CREDIT CARD INTEREST 

RATES EXCESSIVELY HIGH IS WELL fu~O\•iN. WHAT IS LESS WELL 

KNOVlN IS THE TOTAL IMPACT OF THESE RA TES -- IN DOLLARS AND 

CENTS -- OK. CONSUJ\IERS. ACCORDING TO INDUSTRY STATISTICS, 

THERE ARE O\'ER 70G i<ILLJON CREDIT CARDS J:N CIRCVLP. TION IN THE 

UNITED ST ATES TODAY. AL1v'IOST HALF OF ALL A!•TIRICANS HAVE AT 



LEAST ONE CREDIT CARD. THESE MILLIONS OF CREDIT CARD HOLDERS 

ALSO MAINTAIN SUBSTANTIAL AND EVER-"GROWING CREDIT BALANCES IN 

THEIR ACCOUNTS. ACCORDING TO FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD STATISTICS 

AND PRIVATE STUDIES, TOTAL CREDIT CARD DEBT HAS SOARED IN THE 

LAST 'i;)'.'HREE Y'EARS, AND IS EXPECTED TO DOUBLE DURING fTHE SECOND 

HALF OF THE.1980s. CONGRESSIONAL STUDIES ESTIMATE THAT CON-

SUMERS PAID CLOSE TO $20 BILLION IN INTEREST ON THEIR CREDIT 

CARDS LAST YEAR, HAVING PAIDAPPROXIMATELY $16 BILLION IN .. 1984. 

THIS MEANS THAT C0NSlJMERS PROBABLY PAID BANKS AND OTHER 

. . . 

CREDIT CARD ISSUERS AL1\10ST $5 BILLIOK MORE THAN THEY WOULD 

HAVE IF RATES HAD AVERAGED A MORE REASONABLE 15%. AS 

REPRESENTATIVE SCHUMER OF NEv; Y0F:E HAS NOTED, THESE EXCESSIVE 

INTEREST CHARGES SUGGEST THAT WHILE CONSUMERS HAVE BECOME 

"SO WORLDLY AND SO WELC0J\1E, 11 CREDIT CARD LENDERS HAVE BECOMI 

SO WEALTHY. 

ON TOP OF THESE EXCESSIVE INTEREST RATE CHARGES, BANKS 

. 

THAT ISSFE CREDIT CARDS HA\'E ADDITION'AL S01}RCES OF PROFITS. 

ANKVAL FEES, FOR WHICH KE\'; JERSEY COKSU!•iERS ARE BILLED AS J\iTCE 

AS $25 A YEAR, BRIKG IK AK ESITMATED $3 BILLI0S KATIONALLY. BAN'KS 

-4-

Ji 



~HAVE BEGUN TO IMPOSE OTHER TYPES OF FEES ON CONSUMERS AS WELL, 

SUCH AS FEES FOR FAILING TO MAKE MINIMUM PAYMENTS, FEES FOR 

EXCEEDING CREDIT LIMITS, FEES FOR CASH ADVANCES, EVEN FEES FOR 

COPIES OF SALES SLIPS AND DUPLICATE MONTHLY· STATEMENTS. IN 

ADDITION, RETAILERS THAT ACCEPT BANK CREDIT CARDS ARE ALSO 

CHARGED FEES RANGING FROM ONE TO FIVE PERCENT OF ALL CREDIT 

CARD PURCHASES. THESE FEES ADD SEVERAL BILLION DOLLARS 

ANNUALLY TO REVENUES. 

AT THE SAME TIME THAT BANKS AND OTHER CREDIT CARD 

ISSUERS HAVE GREATLY INCREASED THEIR CHARGES, THEY HAVE SEEJ,1 

THEIR OVERALL COSTS DECLil',E SlGNlFICPJ\'"TLY. ALL CREDIT CARD 

ISSUERS IN CCR THREE TYPES OF CREDIT CARD RELP. TED EXPENSES. 

THE FIRST IS THE COST OF ADMINISTERING ACCOUNTS. THE AMERICAN 

BANKERS ASSOCIATION HAS STATED THAT ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

FOR CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS. ARE L0\\1ER THAN THOSE INCURRED BY 

BANKS FOR A SMALL INSTALLMENT LOAN. MOREOVER, ACCORDING TO 

INDUSTRY SOURCES, THESE EXPENSES HAVE RECENTLY BEEK DECREASING 

NE\< EQUIPMENT HAS RAISED PROffCCTI\':ITY, AKD !:!\CREASED VOLUI1l~ 

HAS PERMITTED ECONU11IES OF SCALE. EXPERTS ESTITl:ATE THAT AT AY,: 
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\\1ELL"-MANAGED INSTITUTION 'OF MODERATE SIZE THESE ADMINIS;RATIVE ., 

EXPENSES SHOULD NOT EXCEED TWO OR THREE PE~CENT OF OUTSTANDING 

BALANCES;' 

THE SECOND QATEGORY OF COSTS IS LOSSES DUE TO BAD DEBTS. 

AND FRAUD. ACCORDING .Tb FIGURES FROM THE NILSON ItEPORT,THE' 

_ AUTHORITATIVE CREDIT CARD INDUSTRY PUBi.ICATION, INDUSTRY 

··. - . LOSSES ON ALL TYPES OF CREDIT CARDS HAVE AVERAGED $1 FOR 

EVERY $100 IN C.HARGE VOLUJ\IE FOR THE PAST 30 YEARS; AND ARE 

. ' 

.. · . ·. . 

. EXPECTED TO AVERAGE $1.15 bVER THE NEXT FIVE YEARS. 85% OF 

_THESE LOSSES ARE DUE TO BAD DEBTS (SUCH AS NON"'PAYMENT, 

DELINQUENCY AKD BANKRUPTCY) A!\D THE REST ARE A RESULT OF 

FRAUD (BY MERCHANTS, CARDHOLDERS AKD CRIMINALS). , THESE 

LOSSES COULD, OF COURSE, BE SUBSTANTIALLY REDUCED BY RE-

. ' . 

. STRICTING THE _PRACTICE BY SOME BANKS OF ISSUING CARDS 

INDISCRIMINATELY TO BOTH GOOD CREDIT RISKS AND BAD.* 
. . . . . . . 

*. No doubt almost everyone in this room has received solicitations in the 
-. mail statlltg that you have been pre-approved for a credit .card v.i.th a 

credit line of seve::--al thousand dollars. \','orkshops are advertised on ho,;•: 
to. get up to a hundred credit. cards -- even with· a poor credit history. 
Banks and dthe:r credit card issuers are so eager to profit frorr. this l;)tisin€>s.s 
that many have stopped acting prudently in granting credit. . This practice: 
serves no ohe -- not the individual_ consumer, ,\·ho is being in·\'rited to take 
en more credit than he or she can reasonabh· afford, not the other account-.. . ' . . ~ . 

holders, who are forced to subsidize the results of the banks' imprudent 
decisions, and not the banks, whose financial health could be a: jeopardy 
if this practice continues. · · 
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AS THE WALL STREET JOURNAL RECENTLY REPORTED, ''IN THE 

FRENZIED SEARCH [BY CERTAIN BANKS] FOR NEW CUSTOMERS, 

PRISONERS, UNEMPLOYED TEEN-AGERS, EVEN A FEW HOUSEHOLD PETS 

HAVE RECEIVED CREDIT CARDS . 11 THUS, WHILE THIS CATEGORY OF 

'EXPENSES IS INCREASING SLIGHTLY, MUCH OF IT IS DUE TO THE'BANKS' 

OWN POLICIES. 

THE FINAL CATEGORY OF EXPENSES IS THE COST OF BORROWING 

FUNDS, MUCH OF WHICH IS SUPPLIED AT LOW RATES BY THE FEDERAL 

RESERVE AND BY CONSUMER DEPOSITORS FOR BANKS, AND BY 

COJ\TMERCIAL PAPER FIKANCING AT MARKET RATES FOR OTHER ISSUERS. 

AS NOTED ABOVE, THE COST OF BORROWING THESE FUKDS HAS DROPPED 

BY HALF OVER THE PAST FEW YEARS. 

IN SUM, THE EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH ISSUING AND MAINTAINING 

CREDIT CARDS HAVE DROPPED OVER THE PAST FEW YEARS, "WHILE 

CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES AKD OTHER CHARGES HAVE NOT. 

THE RESULT HAS BEEN RECORD PROFITS FOR THE BANKS AND OTHER 

INSTITUTIOKS ISSl'IXG THESE CARDS. AND THESE PROFITS ARI 

COMING RIGHT Ol'T OF THE POCKETS OF COI\SlJI,:EF:S. 

-,-
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THE HISTORICAL ROOTS OF THIS PROBLEM .PROVIDE AMPLE 

, , , 

, , 

JUSTIFICATION FOR LEGISLATIVE INTERVENTION AT THIS TIME. 

, , 

INTEREST RATES IN 1980 AND 1981 _WERE EXTREMELY VOLATILE. 

AND RISING, WITH CHANGES IN CONSUMER INTEREST RATES LAGGING 

, ' 

BEHIND CHANGES lN THE PRIME RATE. THEN, IN 1981, IN RESPObYSE . 

. TO REQUESTS FOR RELIEF FROM THE BANKING INDUSTRY, CONSUMER.· 

INTEREST RA TES WERE DEREGULATED IN NEW JERSEY. BANKS 'WERE 

GIVEN THE FREEDOJ\1 TO CHARGE ANY INTEREST RATE BELOW THE 

30% CRIMINAL USURY CEILING. AS A RESULT, INTERST RATES ON SUCH 

LOANS VtERE QUICKLY AKD SHARPLY RAISED BY BANKS. IN THE FIVE 

YEARS SINCE DEREGULATIOl\, INTEREST RATES CHARGED TO LARGE 

BUSIKESS BORROWERS HA \.E DECLINED SHARPLY AND STEADILY. MANY 

CONSUMER RATES, HOWEVER, HAVE REMAINED VIRTUALLY UNCHANGED. 
, , 

HIGH MARKET RATES OF INTEREST ARE APPARENTLY A THING OF THE 

PAST, BUT BANKS ARE CHARGING COKSUMERS AS IF NOTHING HAD 

CHANGED SINCE 1981. 
-~-' 

COMPETITION BY ITSELF HAS FAILED TO BRING THESE RATES DOW?'-:, 

AND SP.OULD !\'OT BE TRUSTED TO DO SO 1::-,· THE FUTURE; THIS SHOUL!) 

COMT AS NO SURPRISE, GIVE:N THE NATURE OF CO:NSl11•1ER LEKDIKG H\ 
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, , , 

GENERAL AND THE CREDIT CARD MARKET IN PARTICULAR. CONSUMERS 

HAVE LITTLE EFFECTIVE BARGAINING POWER IN THIS AREA, PERCEIVING 

, , 

THAT THEY ARE FORCED TO ACCEPT WHATEVER· RATES BANKS DECIDE 

TO IMPOSE. CONSUMERS ALSO HAVE LITTLE OR NO CHOICE IN SELECTING 

THE BEST INTEREST RA TE FOR THEIR CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS. AS 

THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE'S SURVEY DISCLOSED, MAJOR BANKS IN NEW 

JERSEY ALL CHARGE CLOSE TO THE SA..1\ffi RATE. CONGRESSIONAL 

TESTIMONY ON THIS ISSUE HAS ALSO SUGGESTED THAT SOME CONSUMERS 

- THINK THAT THEY WERE FORTUNATE TO BE ISSUED A CREDIT CARD IN 

THE FIRST PLACE, AND OFTEK DOK'T REALIZE THAT THEY HAVE THE 

OPTION OF OPENING ANOTHEH ACCOUNT AT A BAN'K OFFERING BETTER 

TERMS. FIKALLY, SHIFTING CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS INVOLVES CONSID-

ERABLE TIME, EXPENSE AND IKCONVENIENCE. ONE SIGNIFICANT OUT-

OF-POCKET EXPENSE IS THE ANNUAL FEE, WHICH, BECAUSE IT IS CHARGE. 

IN A LUMP SUM AT THE BEGINKING OF THE YEAR, INHIBITS CONSUJV"J:RS 

FROM CHANGING ACCOUNTS. - FOR ALL THESE REASONS, THE DEMAND FOI-

CREDIT CARDS IS, IN THE LAKGUAGE OF ECONOMICS, '1INELASTIC, 1-' \'l"HIC1 

MEAKS THAT COMPETITION DOES NOT PLAY A::. EFFECTIVE ROLE I~\ 

KEEPING THESE RATES now:::.' 
-9-
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THE SIMPLE: FACT THAT THER.E ARE MANY BANKS ISSUING CREDIT . 

. : CARDS SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED AS MEANING THAT. THERE IS · ··. 

. . . '. : . . .·. .'" .... , . : . 

. COMPETITION IN THIS MARKET. 'l:'HE LARGE NUMBER OF SUCH PllOVIbERS 

CONSTITUTES A NECESSARY, BUT NOT A SUFFICIENT, CONDIT!ON F()R ... ·. 

A COMPETITIVE M.~RKET .. SUCH: A MAR.KET ONLY :EXISTS IF T~ MARKET 
· .. ' . ·. .. . :•' . . . . . .. _-. . . "• ·. ,. . ·. - . - .·. . :_ ·. 

ITSELF SETS INTEREST RATES, NOT UNILATERAL ACTION BY THE BANltS. 

AS FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD GOVERNOR J. CHARLES PARTEE AND 

.· ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY MANUAL JOHNSON HAVE BOTH . 
. ' : . . ,' ·. ,• ' -·. 

·. STATED, MOST CONSUMER LOAN RA TES ARE ,;ADMJNISTERED RATES; 11 

.. . 

MEANING THAT THEY ARE LARGELY THE RESlTL T OF POLI CY DECISIONS·. 

. . 

BY BANKS. RATHER THAN MARKET FORCES. 

BECAUSE COMPETITIOK ALONE CAN 1T PROVIDE THIS NECESSARY 

RELIEF, THE ONLY RECOURS; FOR THE CITIZENS O;F TH.IS STATE IS . · .. 

. ·- . 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO BRING THESE RATES. DO¼'N.. CURRENTLY, . 
. . 

THE ONLY COKTROL ON CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES IS NEW 

: ' . . ·. ·.•. ·. . . . . . 

JERSEY'S CRIMINAL USURY RATE;: THIS CEILING, \fHICH WAS SET AT 

30% IN 1981, .rs THE HIGHEST SUCH CEILIKG TN TR~ COUKTRY. IT. rs 
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~ EMBARASSING THAT OUR STATE, WHICH HAS HAD SUCH A STRONG 

TRADITION OF PROTECTING CONSUMERS, SHOULD HAVE THIS EXTRA-

ORDINARILY HIGH USURY RATE. MANY STATES WITH THRIVING BANK;_ 

ING INDUSTRIES (SUCH AS CONNECTICUT, NEW YORK, PENNSYLVANIA, 

FLORIDA AND WASHINGTON) HAVE USURY CEILINGS SUBSTANTIALLY 

BELOW OURS. SEVERAL STATES SET THE USURY CEILING AS A 

FLOATING RATE, WHICH VARIES ACCORDING TO CHANGES IN AN 

UNDERLYING MARKET OR 11 REFERENCE'' RATE. FOR EXAMPLE, THE 

ARKANSAS USURY RATE IS SET AT 5% OVER THE FEDERAL RESERVE 

BOARD'S DISCOUNT RATE, WHICH IS CURRENTLY 7%. AS A RESULT OF 

THIS FLOATING CEILING, CONSUMERS IN ARKANSAS ARE TODAY PAYING 

ONLY 12% ON THEIR CREDIT CARDS. 

THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE RECOJ\1MEKDS THAT EFFECTJVE LEGISLATIVE 

CONTROLS OVER CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES BE IMPOSED IN SUCH A 

MANNER. WHILE THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE SFPPORTS ANY LEGISLATIVE 

EFFORTS THAT WOULD EFFECTIVELY REDUCE CREDIT CARD INTEREST 

RATES, WE WOULD URGE EKACTI'-IENT OF A FLOATING CEILING TIED TO A 

LONGER-TERT•:, Al,D THl~S LESS \'OLA TILE, RE.FE RES CE RP. TE. SPECIF1CP. 

WE RECOMJ>IEKD THAT SUCH A CEILING BE SET AT 8%. ABOVE THE 30-
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YEAR TREASURY BOND RATE, WHICH TODAY WOULD RESULT IN A 

CEILING OF JUST OVER 15%. SINCE MARKET RATES OF INTEREST HAVE 

DROPPED BY HALF SINCE 1981, THIS 15% RATE IS ROUGHLY EQUIVALENT 

TO THE 30% USURY CEILING IMPOSED IN THAT YEAR. AND, OF 

COURSE, BY :MAE.ING IT A FLOATING RATE, THIS CEILING WILL BE 

RESPONSIVE TO ANY CHANGES IN THE ECONOMY. . . j 

REDUCING CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES TO AROUND 15% STRIKES 

A FAIR BALANCE BET\'17EEK THE BANKIKG INDUSTRY 1S NEED TO BE 

ASSURED OF THE OPPORTUNITY TO EARN A FAIR RETURN ON THIS LINE 

OF BUSINESS AKD THE RIGHT OF CONSUMERS TO BE FREE FROJ\l 

EXCESSIVE RATES OF IKTEREST. BANKS CERTAINLY STILL WILL BE 

ABLE TO MAKE A HEALTHY PROFIT AT THESE RA TES. AS NOTED 

ABOVE, FEDERAL FIGURES SUGGEST THAT BANKS REQUIRE RATES NO 

MORE THAK 5% OVER THEIR COST OF FUNDS TO MAKE A PROFIT ON CRED} T 

CARDS -- 3% FOR ADMINISTRATION AKD LESS THAN 2% FOR BAD DEBTS. 

GIVEN THE CURREKT COST OF FUNDS OF LESS THAN 8%, THIS STILL 

LEAVES A GEKEROUS 2% MARGIN FOR PROFIT OR COMPETITION. 

THAT BANKS CAN STILL MAKE !-:OI"EY o:, CREDIT CARD OPEEATJONS 

AT S1..7CH RATES or INTEREST IS CONFIR;,rr:n BY THE L0\-1 RATES 
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CHARGED BY A FEW BANKS AROUND THE COUNTRY. BANKS IN 

ARKANSAS, WHICH TODAY BY LAW CAN CHARGE NO MORE THAN 12% ON 

CREDIT CARD BALANCES, REPORT THAT THEIR CREDIT CARD OPERATIONS 

REMAIN PROFITABLE AT THAT RATE. THE LOW USURY CEILING HAS 

MADE THAT STATE'S BANKS MORE CAREFUL ABOUT WHOM THEY EXTEND 

CREDIT TO, BUT THE BANK OFFICIALS WE SPOKE WITH STATED THAT 

THEIR POLICIES WERE JUST COMMON SENSE: THEY WOULD ONLY LEND 

TO PEOPLE -- WHATEVER THEIR JNCOl\IT -- WHO COULD PAY THEIR BILLS. 

EVEN IN NEW JERSEY WE HAVE ONE BANK, THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK 

OF TOMS RIVER, THAT HAS BEEN CHARGING 15% ON CREDIT CARD 

BALANCES FOR SOME TIJl'.IE. THESE BANKS AKD THE OTHERS AROUND 

THE COUKTRY THAT ARE CHARGING THEIR CREDIT CARD Cl'STOMERS 

LESS THAN 15% CONFIRM THE FACT THAT BANKS CAN CHARGE THESE 

RATES AND STILL REMAIN PROFITBLE. 

THE IMPACT ON CONSl~MERS OF A 15% CEILIKG WOULD BE ENORMO:'S. 

ASSUMING THAT NEW JERSEY CREDIT CARD USERS FOLLOW NATIONAL 

AVERAGES, THE IJIT\TEDIATE SAVINGS FOR OPR STATE'S CONSUMERS P.T-:l 

ESTIMATED TO EXCEED $50 MILLION AKKl'.ALL Y, A?,D \\"O.CLD EXCEED 

$100 MILLION IF orT-OF-STATE ISSUERS ARE FORCED TO BRI:,G THEl?. 

-13-
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RATES DO'WN AS WELL. THESE SUBSTANTI/iL SAVINGS WOULD ALSO' 

. FURTHER FUEL OURSTATE'S ECONOMIC GROWTH, AS C()NSUMERS 

RETURN THESE FUNDS TO· THE ECONOMY THROUGH CONSDM!R. SPENDfNG. ·· · 

BANKS AROUND. THE COUNTRY HA\7E RAISED SEVERAL. OBJECTlONS . 

TO LEGISLATIVE CONTROLS OVER CREDI::r '.CARD INTEREST RATES BY THE. 

STATES. THE. FIRST rs THAT THIS is A MATTER BEST LEFT FOR REd~LA-· 

TION BY THE FEDERAL GOVERl\1-IBNT .. · THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE STRONGLY 

. . .· . 

.. DisAGREES. WHILE FEDERAL EFFORTS TO PROTECT. CONSUMERS IN THU, 
" • • • •• •• > ··: • • • • • ••• • • : •. •• • ;.· ••• ·, 

AREA WOULD CERT AIKL y BE WELCOJ\'.[E' THE REGULATION OF INTEREST .. 

RATES HAS LONG BEEN THE PROVINCE OF THE INDIVIDUAL STA'fES, • 

WITH LIMITED EXCEPTIONS WHEP.E THE FEDERAL GOVERN!\:IBNT HAS PRE-

EMPTED STATE AUTHORITY, S.FCH AS \\'ITH FIRST MORTGAGES. 

THEREFORE, THE NEW JERSEY LEGISLATURE HAS BOTH THE POWER AND 

THE HISTORIC RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTROL THESE INTEREST RATES. 

SECOND, NEW JERSEY BANKS HAVE ARGUED THAT BEING SUBJECT TO ;, 

15% CEILING WOULD PUT THEJ\l .AT A COMPETITIVE DISADVANTA~J3:, SINCE 
. . . -'.-,1· ., 

OUT OF STATE BANKS \\10FLD STILL BE ABLE TO CHARGE HIGHER RATES, 

- AKD THEREFORE WOULD BE J\IORE PROFITABLE. THEY POIKT TO THE FAC: 

THAT MANY NEW JERSEY RESIDESTS HOLD CREDIT CARDS ISSUED BY orT- . 

-14-
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OF-STATE BANKS SUCH AS CITIBANK, MELLON BANK OR CHASE MANHATTAJ 

BECAUSE NEW JERSEY LAW CAN'T CONTROL THE INTEREST RATES IMPOSED 

BY THESE OUT,-OF-STATE ISSUERS, THEY ARGUE THAT THESE BANKS 

WOULD STILL BE ABLE TO CHARGE THEIR CURRENT EXCESSIVE RATES, 

CREATING A COMPETITIVE DISADVANTAGE FOR NEW JERSEY BANKS. 

WE DISAGREE. BEING REQUIRED TO CHARGE A REASONABLE INTEREST 

RATE IS NO DISADVANTAGE. INDEED, THIS LOWER CEILING CREATES 

A POWERFUL COMPETITIVE EDGE FOR OUR STATE'S BANKS. NEW 

JERSEY BANKS WOULD BE ABLE TO ADVERTISE THEIR NEW LOW RATES 

ALL OVER THE COUNTRY, AND LtRE NEW ACCOUNTS AWAY FROM BANKS 

CHARGING ·HIGHER RATES. PRECISELY THIS PHENOMENON IS OCCURRING 

IN ARKANSAS, WITH THE CREDIT CARD-ISSUING BAKKS IN THAT STATE 

REPORTING THAT THEY ARE FLOODED WITH REQUESTS FOR NEW 

ACCOUNTS FROM THROUGHOUT THE COUNTRY .. THESE NEW NATION-WIDE 

ACCOUNTS WOULD OFFER NEW JERSEY BANKS A REAL OPPORTUNITY FOR 

THE FUTURE, AS WE MOVE INTO THE ERA OF INTERSTATE BANKING. 

THEREFORE, THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE REJECTS THE NOTION THAT IMPOSIN 

A::-:. INTEREST RATE CEILING \·r"Ol_;LD BE FNFAIELY DISADVANTAGEOl'S TO 



NEW JERSEY BANKS.* 

THERE ARE, HOWEVER, INDIRECT WAYS TO ENSURE THAT THE 

INTEREST RATES CHARGED BY CITIBANK AND THE OTHER OUT-OF-STATE 

ISSUERS, DO NOT EXCEED THE NEW JERSEY CEILING. THREE OF THE 

BILLS BEFORE THE COJVIMITTEE USE ONE APPROACE, WHICH IS TO PREVENT 

THE OPERATION IN NEW JERSEY OF ANY LOAN PRODUCTION OFFICES OV{NED 

BY OUT-OF-STATE ISSUERS CHARGING MORE THAN THE PERMITTED RATE. 

IN ADDITION, DESPITE THE INABILITY TO DIRECTLY REGULATE INTEREST 

RATES, OUR RESEARCH SUGGESTS THAT THE LEGISLATURE HAS THE 

POV:ER TO REGULATE MAKY NOK-RATE ASPECTS OF THE CREDIT CARD 

OPERATIONS OF OUT-OF-STATE ISSUERS THAT AFFECT KEW JERSEY 

CARDHOLDERS. THlS REGULATORY PO'v.'ER COKSTITCTE2 A VERY 

EFFECTIVE WAY TO BRH~G INTERESTRATES IK LINE WITH THE NEW 

JERSEY CEILIKG. FOR EXA. .... 1\1PLE, IF CITIBANK AND THE OTHER o.uT-

* The non-bank issuers of credit cards in Ne\\. ,Jersey, such as departme::--,t 
stores and gasoline compa.Ii.ies, would face no such hypothetical disadvantage. 
since they are required tc, follow the interest rate ceilings of each o: the 
states in which their customers reside. Banks. in contras:. are permitted 
to charge· whatever i."1terest rates are aDov:ed by the state in. which they, 
rather than their cus.tomers, arE: located. 
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. ' ' .. .. :· .· . . . . 

·. · Jor-sTATE 1:ssuERs :cHoosE NOT To FoLLow NEw JERSEY's cEILING, 

THE LEGISLATURE.COULD ENACT A STATUTE RESTRICTING OR 

. . . . . 

ELIMINATING THE ANNUAL FEE OR OTHER CHARGES ON ALL CREDIT 

. CARD ACQOUNTS WHICH EXCEEDED THE PERMITTED RATE OF INTEREST . 

. ANOTHER APPROACH WOULD BE TO .REQUIRE THAT CREDIT· CARD, 

BALANCES BE CALCULATED IN A CERTAIN WAY WHEN IMPOSING INTEREST 

RATES OVER THIS 15% CEILING. A UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA STUDY HAS 

INDICATED THAT THERE IS A LARGE DIFFERENCE IN BOW MUCH. 

INTEREST IS CHARGED TO A GIVEJ\' ACCOUNT WITH THE SAME TRANS-

ACTIONS DEPENDING O?\ ¼TJIICH or FOUR DIFFERENT ACCOUNTING 

METHODS IS USED. TO CALCULATE ACCOUNT BALANCES. IF, AFTER 

ENACTING A'!\ IKTEREST RATE CEILISG FOR NE\\' JERSEY, IT APPEARS 

THAT A PROBLEM STILL REMAlKS WITH OUT-OF-STATE ISSUERS 

. . . . 

CHARGING ·EXCESSIVE RATES, THESE AND OTHER EFFECTIVE REMEDIES 

AR[ AVAILA.BLE TO ADDRESS AKY SU CH PROBLEM. IN ANY EVENT, 

THE POSSIBILITY THAT OUT-OF-ISSUERS MIGHT CHARGE. A HIGHER 

RATE DOES NOT P:ROVIDE A LEGITIMATE REASON FOR NOT ACTING TO 

REDUCE. RATES OK CREDIT CARDS FRO): KEW JERSEY BA!\KS AKD. O?\ 

ALL NON-BANK ISSUERS. 

-17-. 
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BANKS IN SOME PARTS OF THE COUNTRY HAVE ALSO THREATENED· 

TO MOVE THEIR CREDIT CARD OPERATIONS OUT OF STATE IF INTEREST . 

RATE CEILINGS \-\7ERE TO BE IMPOSED. THIS ARGUMENT ALSO NEEDS TO 

BE CONSIDERED, ALTHOUGH WE FIND IT LACKING IN MERIT. IT SHOULD, 

OF COURSE, BE NOTED THAT LOCATION IS OF NO CONSEQUENCE TO 

THE NON-BANK ISSUERS OF CREDIT CARDS, SUCH AS GASOLINE COMPANIES 

AND DEPARTMENT STORES, BECAUSE THEY MUST FOLLOW THE LAWS OF 

THE STATES V.'RERE THEIR CUSTOMERS LIVE. BANKS ARE, THEREFORE, 

UKIQUE IN THIS AREA. BUT EVEN' AS TO BANKS, SIMPLY MOVING THE 

LOCATION OF THEIR CREDIT .CARD OPERATIONS TO ANOTHER STATE 

WILL NOT ALLOW THEM TO AVOID NEW JERSEY 1S INTEREST RATE CEILING. 

ACCORDING TO OUR RESEARCH, THEY MUST, INSTEAD, ACTUALLY OB TAI:( 

A CHARTER AS A DEPOSITORY INSTITUTION IN THE OTHER STATE AND 

SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THEIR CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS AND 

OPERATIONS TO THAT NE½' ENTITY. NOT O~LY IS THIS COMPLICATED, 

THERE ARE SEVERAL REASONS KHY IT IS UNLIKELY TO OCCUR. FIRST, 

AS STATED EARLIER, RA TEER THAN BEING A REA SOK TO LEAVE THE 

ST A TE, THE EFFECT OF THE IJ\IPOSITIOK OF AN INTEREST RATE CEILING 

IN' KEW JERSEY IS LIKELY TO BE A COMPETITI\YE ADV ANT AGE AND 

-18-
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OPPORTUNITY FOR OUR STATE 1S BANKS. GIVEN THE. EXPERIENCE OF 

CREDIT CARD ISSUERS IN STATES LIKE ARKANSAS, THE NEW LOWER 

RATES MAY BRING A TORRENT OF NEW CUSTOMERS . 

. SECOND, NEW JERSEY: BANKS WILL HA VE LITTLE OR NOTHING TO GAIN 

BY .MOVING OUT OF STATE. WHILE TECHNICALLY THEY CAN ESCAPE 

NEW JERSEY 1S USURY CEILING BY DOING SO, AS NOTED EARLIER THE 

LEGISLATURE HAS THE POWER TO EFFECTIVELY CREATE A LEVEL PLAYING 

FIELD FOR BOTH IN-STATE AND OUT-OF-STATE BANKS. ANY BANKS 

THAT ATTEMPT TO EVADE OUR CEILING BY MOVING ACROSS THE BORDER 

COULD THUS FIKD THAT THEY STILL WILL HAVE TO CHARGE NEW JERSEY 

CUSTOMERS THE SA-T>IE RA TE AS KEW JERSEY BAKKS OR FACE THE 

INABILITY TO ESTABLISH LOAK PRODl"CTIOK OFFICES, TO COLLECT 

ANNUAL FEES AND OTHER CHARGES, OR THE REQUIREMENT THAT THEY 

CALCULATE BALANCES IN A WAY THAT SIGNIFICAKTLY CUTS THEIR 

TOT AL INTEREST CHARGES. 

FINALLY, EVEN IF SOME BAKKS DO DECIDE TO SELL THEIR CRED1T 

CARD OPERATIOKS TO Ol'T OF STATE SISTER BAKKS, AKY LOSS OF JOBS 

-19-
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AND TAX REVENUE WILl.. BE VASTLY OFF-SET BY THE ENORMOUS SAVINGS 

. FOR NEW JERSEY CONSUMERS IN INTEREST CHARGES .. AS STATED EARLIER, 

IF A CEILING OF 15% IS.IMPOSED, THESE SAVINGS ARE ESTIMATED TO 

EXCEED BETWEEN $50 MILLION AND $100 MILLION YEARLY, AND COULD BE 

EVEN GREATER IF MARKET RATES CONTINUE TO GO DOWN. WEIGHING THE 

CERTAINTY OF THESE SAVINGS AGAINST THE MERE POSSIBILITY OF 

BANKS MOVING THEIR HIGHLY-AUTOMATED CREDIT CARD OPERATIONS 

OUT OF ST ATE CAN ONLY RESULT IN A DECISION IN FAVOR OF A 

·. CEILING ON THESE RATES. 

SOME BANKS HAVE ALSO ARGUED THAT IMPOSING A CEILING ON. 

CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES WILL HAVE A HARSH RESULT ON LOW AND 

MODERATE INCOI11E RESIDEKTS OF KEV: JERSEY. SPECIFICALLY, THEY 

CONTEND THAT FORCING THEM TO LOVl"'ER THEIR RATES WILL ALSO FORCE 

THEM TO BE MORE SELECTIVE ABOUT THOSE TO \.\'ROM THEY ISSUE CREDIT 

CARDS. IN OUR VIEW, THESE ARGUMEKTS ARE DISINGENUOUS.· IT IS HA~.: 

TO UNDERSTAND HOW THE BANKS MAKING THIS ARGUMENT CAN-::t>ELIEVE 
-.. ,..,.-; 

THAT CHARGING THESE EXCESSIVE RATES SERVES THE INTERESTS OF 

ANY CONSUJ\IERS, ESPECIALLY LOK AKD MODERATE INCOME RESlDEKTS OF 

OUR STATE. FURTHER, IKDUSTRY STATISTICS SUGGEST THAT FEW 
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LOW AND MODER A TE INCOME PEOPLE ARE CURRENTLY CREDIT CARD -

HOLDERS. FI:NALLY, IF THE NEW LOWER RATES CAUSE BANKS TO BE 

. . . . . 

MORE PRUDENT IN MAKING DECISIONS ABOUT CREDITWORTHINESS, 

THAT IS A RESULT TO BE ENCOURAGED. OBVIOUSLY IT DOES NO ONE 

- -

ANY GOOD TO RECEIVE A LOAN THAT HE OR SHE CAN'T AfFORD TO 

RE-PAY. FOR THESE REASONS, WE REJECT THE NOTION THAT BANKS 

ARE SOMEHOW LOOKING AFTER THE INTEREST OF POOR_ PEOPLE BY 

CHARGING -EXORBITANT INTEREST RATES ON THEIR CREDIT CARDS. 

THIS ARGUMEN'T IS SIMPLY AN AFTER-THE-FACT RATIONALIZATION FOR 

THESE HIGH RATES. 

IN SUM, THE DEPARTJ\ff).-T OF THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE STRONGLY URC 

THAT EFFECTIVE LEGISLATIVE CONTROLS OF THE TYPE WE HAVE OUTLih·r 

BE ENACTED. JUST AS THE LEGISLATURE WAS RESPONSIVE TO THE 

BANKING INDUSTRY IN 1981 WHEN CREDIT CARD RATES ½'ERE FIXED AT 

BELOW-MARKET RATES, SO, TOO, SHOULD THE LEGISLATURE RESPOND 

TO THE PLEAS OF CONSUMERS IN 1986 WHEN CREDIT CARD RATES REMAIK 

FIXED AT ABOVE-MARKET RATES. JUST AS BANKS MAY HAVE LOST 

MOXEY ON THEIR CREDIT CARD OPERATIOKS PRIOR TO THE DEEEGl.'LATl! 

OF RATES, TODAY NE\-\' JERSEY CONSUMERS ARE L0SIKG MILLl0KS O? 



DOLLARS AS A RESULT OF THA".T DEREGULATION. · THE LEGISLATURE HAS 

THE POWER TO STRIIIB. A FAIR BALANCE BETWEEN CONSUNIERS AND.THE 

', ' 

aANKING INDUSTRY BY ESTABLISHING A FLOATING C:EILJNG FOR 

CREDIT CARD INTEREST R~TES. ,BY DOING so. THE LEGISLATURE WILL 

BRING !MMEDIATE RELIEF 1.'0 THE MILLIONS OF C_REDIT CARD HOLDERS . 

' ' ' 

IN NEW· JERSEY, AND WILL ESTABLISH A CEILING THAT IS RESPONSIVE TO 

WHATEVER CHANGES IN OUR ECOKOMY THE FUTURE BRINGS. 
. . . . . . . . . . 

' ' ' 

THANK YOU FOR CONSIDERING THE VIEWS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF .. 

THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE. 
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.. •. SURV:EY OF NEW JERSEY' DEPOSITORY. ·.• . 
. INSTITUTIONS ISSUING CREDIT CAitDS • •. 

. . Nine~nine · depository institutions located in New Jersey' were. co~tacted 

by telephone in the first two weeks ·of April-, 1986 .. · These :included federal · 

and state chartered banks' savings banks and. savings and lo~s rto'.m through--
. '. . , . . .. ·- . . 

out the' state. - Fifty-eight of these ~stitutions.reported that they: issti~:d credit ·. 

cards to consumers' either by themselves· or in conjunction with another depb- . 

· -sitory institution. Each of these fifty-eight depo~itory inst1t11tions was asked 
. . ... . . ,. . . . ... 

to provide its current rate of. interest and its annual fee for_ Visa and Master-.· 

card consumer credit card . accounts. The results·· of .. this survey are as • .follov,,s: . 

Bank Name 

(1) Amboy-Madison National Bank 

(2) · BaY State Bank 

(3) Broad National _Bank of Ne·wark 

Interest Rate 

19.8% 

17.9% 

18. % . 

-(4) Broad Street National Bank of Trenton 18. % 

(5) Broadway Bank & Trust 

_. (6) Carteret Savings & Loan 
. . 

(7) Central Jersey Bank 

. (8) Chatham Trust Co. 

- (9) Citizens First N'ational .Bank 

(10) Commerce Bank, K .A. 

(11) Commercial Trust Co. of N .. J. 

(12} Eastern NatioI).al Bank. 

(13) First Bank of Colonia 

(14) First Fidelity Ba:nk 

(15) :First -Jersey National Bank 

(16) First Jersey National Bank/South_ 

(17) First National Bank of Edison·-

-1-
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19. % 

18. 0 •·. 
'cl 

18. % 

18. % 

18. % 

18.6% 

19.5% 

·. 18 9: -
• 0 

19 .. 8% 

19. 8\, 

18. % 

18. % 

19.8% 

- Annual Fee .· 

~20 

$18 

'$25 

$25 

$25 

$20 

$15_ · 

$20 

$15 

$15 

$20·· 

$18 

$15 

. _ $15 .•. 

$15 _ 

$10 

. $15 



(18) First National Bank of Kearny 

(19) First National Bank of Toms River 

(20) First Peoples Bank 

(21) First State Bank 

(22) Glendale National Bank 

(23) Heritage Bank, N. A. 

(24) Horizon Bank 

(25) Howard Savings Bank 

(26) Independence Bank 

(27) Lakeland State Bank 

(28) Lenape State Bank 

(29) Liberty Bank & Trust 

(30) Maplewood Bank & Trust 

(31) Marine National Bank 

(32) :Midland Bank & Trust 

(33) l\'1id1and National Bank 

Minotola National Bank 

(35) Morris County Savings Bank 

(36) National Bankarnericard-National Bank 

(37) National Community Bank 

(38) Nev-<' Jersey National Bank 

(39) Ocean County National Bank 

( 40) Pennsville National Bank 

( 41) Pilgrim State Bank 

(42) Princeton Bank 

( 43) Savings Bank of Central Jersey 

( 4-d) Southern Ocean State Bank 

( 4::;) S .. B . 
_oJ umm1t an.f: 
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16.8% 

15. % 

18. % 

18. % 

18. % 

18. % 

19.8% 

18. % 

18. % 

18.8% 

18.6% 

19.8% 

19.8% 

19.8% 

18. % 

18. % 

18.9% 

18. % 

19.8% 

19.8% 

19.8% 

18. %. 

19.8% 

19.8% 

19.8% 

18. % 

18%. .1 1 s\~ 

18. >c 

No annual fee 

No annual fee 

$15 

$20 

$25 

$15 

$15 

$18 

$20 

$20 

$18 

$15 

$20 

$15 

$15 

$15 

$20 

No annual fee 

$20 

$20 

$15 

$20 

$20 

$20 

$15 

$15 

$15 

$2C 



(46) Summit Trust Co. 18. % $20 

(47) Sussex County State. Bank 18. % $15 

(48) Trust Company of :N .J. 19. % $15 

(49) United Counties Trust Co. 18. % $15 

(50) United Jersey Bank 18. % · $15 

(51) United Jersey Banl\/Cumberland 18. % $15 
National 

(52) United Jersey /Franklin Bank 18. % $15 

(53) United Jersey Bank/Mids ta te 18. % $15 

(54) United Jersey Bank/Northwest 18. % $15 

(55) United Jersey Bank/Southwest 18. % $15 

(56) Urban National Bank 18. % $15 

(57) Valley National Bank 16.8% No annual 

(58) Woodstown National Bank & Trust 19. % $18 

STATE-WIDE AVERAGE 18.44% $16 

* 18% is reportedly charged on cash advances, while 15% is reportajly 

charged on retail purchases. 

" --.5-
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. . , . . : . 

STATEMENT BY SENATOR PETER P. GARIBALDI;, ,R"'.'MIDDLESEX 

Senator Labor, Industry and Professions CoJilmitteeBearing on Credft Card 

Interest ~ates,-

·. . : 

IF Y-ou LOOK AT TODAY'S NEWSPAPER, YOU WILL SEE ADS FOR CAR LOANS FROM AS 

:LOW AS FIVE POTNT NINE PERCENT INTEREST TQ SEVEN POINT SEVEN PERCENT. MORTGAGES 

: . CAN BE OBTAINED WITH EIGHT AND A HALF PERCENT INTEREST RATES. :BUT CHECK THE · 

• .. INTEREST RATE OK YOUR LATEST SEARS OR J.C, PENNEYS BILL. IT REMAINS AT A 

. . 
STAGGERING TWENTY-ONE PERCENT INTEREST.> 

THESE EXAMPLES CLEARLY ILLUSTRATE 'WHY SENATOR DORSEY AND I ARE APPEARING 

BEFORE YOU TODAY. 

WHEN I TOOK OFF.ICE TWO YEARS AGO, I MADE A PLEDGE TO MY CONSTITUENTS THAT 

I WOULD STRIVE TO LOWER CREDIT CARD INTEREST RATES. I HAVE BEEN FIGHTING TO· 

ACCOMPLISH THIS EVER SJNCL UNFORTUNATELY, THE LEGISLATION I INTRODUCED TO 

. . . .. 

PLACE A CEILING ON THESE RATES HAS RE}'.AINED IN LIMBO. MY BILL WOULD TAKE THE 

AVERAGE PREVAILING INTEREST RATE BEING CHARGED ON g"')_· LOAN OR EXTENSION OF 

.CREPIT MADE BY STATE AKD FEDERALLY CHARTERED HA.~KS OR LENDING 

INSTITUTIONS ••• PLUS TWO POINT FIVE PERCENT ••••• i\ND HAVE THAT AS Tl:ff CEILING 01' 
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THE INTEREST RATE. I URGE YOU TO RELEASE MY BILL AND THE BILLS MY COLLEAGUES 

ARE SPONSORING ON THIS ISSUE •. 

THE CEILING ON INTEREST RATES WEARE CALLING FOR IS NOT ETCHED IN STONE. 

WE ARE WILLING TO COMPROMISE ON THE AMOUNT. WE ARE JUST ASKING YOU TO ACT TODAY 

TO GIVE THE CONSUMERS OF THIS STATE SOME RELIEF FROM THE SKYROCKETING INTEREST· 

RATES THEY CONTI:t\'llJE TO FACE. 

THOSE HARDEST HIT BY HIGH INTEREST RATES ARE THOSE \..1ITH LOW TO MODERATE 

INCOMES. TBESE ARE THE PEOPLE WHO MUST BUY ITEMS, SUCH AS REFRIGERATORS OR 

WASHING MACHINES, ON TlME. MOST OF THDf ARE NOT AWARE THAT THE HIDDEN INTEREST 

COSTS ON SUCH PRODUCTS CA.l\ A.DD AS M"l.'CH AS ONE .HUNDRED DOLLARS TO THEIR BILL. 

THESE ARE NOT FRIVOLOUS ITEMS EITHER BL'1 REPLACEMENTS FOR WORN OUT NECESSITIES. 

A.\"'D, NH' JERSEY CONSUl1ERS AI<..[ .AMm;c THE HARDEST HIT BY RISING CREDIT CARD 

INTEREST RATES. OTHER STATES, SUCH AS AR.K.AKSAS, FLORIDA A.l\'D TEXAS, HAVE ACTED 

TO PROTECT THEIR RESIDENTS FROM THIS EXPLOITATION, NEW JERSEY CONSUMERS PAY 

NEARLY DOUBLE THE INTEREST FOR GAS IF THEY USE A CREDIT CARD THA.'l\ THE RESID£1\TS 

OF THOSE STATES. I l\'ILL NEVER BELIEVE THAT LEKDING MOK£:" TO A NEW JERSEY 

CONSUMER IS TWICE AS RISD' AS LEKDING IT TO SOMEOKE FRO?-: ARKANSAS . 
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THIS IS AN EXTREMELY UNFAIR SITUATION THAT IS PLACING A TREMENDOUS 

FINANCIAL STRAIN ON OUR RESIDENTS. IT IS UNNECESSARY AND CAN BE STOPPED IF WE 

IN THE LEGISLATURE ACT AND ACT NOW. 



STATEMENT OF 

NEW JERSEY RETAIL MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION 

ON CREDIT BILLS BEFORE THE 

SENATE LABOR, INDUSTRY & PROFESSIONS COMMITTEE 

APRIL 17, 1986 

Chalrman Lesniak, members of the committee, my name is Edward J. Goldberg, 

and I am Vice President, Consumer Affairs and Customer Service of 

Bamberger's. I am here today as Chairman of the. New Jersey Retai 1 

Merchants Association. Our association represents more than. 1,000 members 

· in the 21 counties of the State. 

Accordihg to the Bureau of labor statistics, for 1984, the general 

merchandise sales in · our state were $12.5 billion and provided 

$750,000,000 in sales tax revenues. 

Thirty percent of the total general merthandise sales resulted from 

. revolving credit sales, which amounted to $3.8 billion and accounted for 

$226,000~000 in sales tax revenue. 

Employment in the retail/v:holesale/distribution industry in New Jersey in 

1984 numbered 551,758 people, representing 16.5% of total state 

employment. This industry represents the number two employer in the 

state. 

1 
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Credit card finance charge rates, the subject of today's hearing, are of 

the greatest importance to every sector of the retail industry, whether a 

small variety store or a large regional or national chain. 

Almost all of our members extend credit by issuing their own credit cards 

and/or by. accepting third~party credit cards. Restrictive credit card 

legislation could have serious negative consequences to mi 11 ions of our 

retail customers and your constituents. 

I am here to oppcse bil1s which woul~impose ceilings on finance charge 

rates. I \'Ii sh to thank a 11 of you for the opportunity to appear · before 

you and to dispel a number of major misconceptions about retail credit 

card services and its cost. 

I. COST OF RETAIL CREDIT 

The first misconception is that retail credit card finance charge rates 

are grossly out of line with the cost of providing credit services and 

that finance charge rates should correspond closely to changes in market 

rates: Let 1 s deal with that one head on. 

Pr6ponents of these bills are attacking what they perceive to be interest 

rates for the use of money and the failure of credit card rates to decline 

in · tandem with falling prime, U.S. Treasury bills or other fluctuating 

market interest rates. However, interest is just one component of a 

finance charge. The fact is that finince charges represent a charge for a 
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package of credit related services, and the cost of fl.Inds (i.e., the 

retailer's cost of financing the ~ccounts receivable investment} is much· 
, , . . 

. . 

less important in setting retail credit card finance charge rates than for 

other types of credit. , For retail credit card issuers a subStantial· 

portion of the total cost of extending credit to customers is comprised of 

salarfes, operating costs incurred for processing transactions, monthly 

billing statements, t•valuating credit applications, postage, cornputer 

expenses, utilities, and collection of delinquent accounts along with 

substantial costs associated with the write off of a d~linquent and 

uncollectible accounts. For retail credit card issuers, these.credit 

operation costs are not offset through annual membership fees, and, in 

fact, the imposition of such fees by a ret2i1er is not permitted under New 

Jersey law. 

Even in a deregulated rate environment, many retailers do not make a 

profit on their credit card operations. State legislation whi~h requires 

a reduction in the finance charge rate will result in a loss for many more 

retail credit operations. 

I I. THE PRIME RATE IS NOT AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF RETAILERS I COST 

OF MONEY 

The secord reisconception is that the prime rate is a true reflection of 

the cost of funds to retail credit card issuers. In fact, the prime rate 
-. ..,..-' 

is not an accurate ir:dicator of the cost of mOrey to retail credit card 

issuers. 
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First, retailers do not borrow money at the prim~ rate, but, in fact~ 

finance their receivables at varying rates above the prime, depending on 

their particular financial condition.· 

Second, since retail credit card receivables are financed through a 

combination of long and short-term debt, a single index rate, such as a 

current T-bil l, prime rate or other market rate, does not accurately 

reflect either the marginal or average cost of money to retailers. A 

retailer's overall cost of funds, at any point in time, is partially 

determined by previously issued liabilities, which are now higher than 

today I s short term rates . and do· not fluctuate as widely as short term 

rates. Therefore, to approximate the cost of funds to retailers, one 

cannot rely on the prime rate as a benchmark, but must look at the long 

terrr. liabilities in addition to current short term rates. 

III. CREDIT CARD RATES HAVE NOT INCREASED DRAMATICALLY 

The third misconception is that retail credit card finance charge rates 

have increased dramatically and are now at outrageous or unconscionable 

levels. 

Before 1972, there was no finance charge rate ceiling on revolving credit 

in New Jersey. 

percentage rate. 

Nevertheless, most retailers charged an 18% annual 
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In 1972, when the Legislature set finance charge rate ceilings for retail 

revolving credit at 18%, the prime rate was approximately 5.25%. After 

1972, the prime moved up dramatically - reaching its highest point at 

20.5% in 1981. Yet in 1982, after the Legislature removed the rate 

ceiling - and when the prime rate averaged 14.97% - many retailers raised 

their nominal credit rates from an 18% annual percentage rate to a 19.8% 

annual percentage rate. Even for those ?"etai h~rs which raised their 

nominal rate from 185: to 21%, it resulted in only a 17% increase in the 

finance charge rate; whereas the prime had skyrocketed in 1982 by 293% 

from its 1972 rate. 

Thus, current retail credit card rctes do not reflect a dramatic increase 

from when credit rates wete deregulated in 1982. This is evident when you 

view the dramatic upward movemert cf other major cost elements.of retail 

credit operations during the past decades, such as postage and salaries, 

as illustrated in Table A belo~. 

TABLE A 

Specific Credit Cost Factor 1972 January 1986 %Increase 

1. Minimum Wage Sl.60 $ 3.35 +10% 

2. Social Security Tax R2.te s.2or 7.15;~ + 4750 

3. Social Security Max. Income $9,000 $ 42,000 +3665; 

4. Fi rs t Clc.SS Postage 8 cPnts 22 cents +175~; 

5. Prime Rate (annual average) 5. 25°: 9. 55; + 815; 

~-



If the prime rate or a similar index was the principal factor in setting 

rates, retailers would have had to raise their rates to the 30% level when 

the prime rate was in excess of 201;, The fact that rates have not risen 

so dramatically in New Jersey, or in other states where legally 

permissible, is further· evidence of the power of competjtion in a 

deregulated marketplace. 

IV. RETAIL CREDIT IS DIFFERENT FROM OTHER FORMS OF CREDIT 

The fourth misconception is that credi~ extensions under retail credit 

cards are like other forms of credit. Retail credit differs from other 

credit, such as automobile or mortgage loans, in that retail credit 

involves small balances which are not collateralized. Moreover, the 

revolving nature of most retail credit necessitates monthly billing 

statements with Bll their attendant costs. 

There are other striking differences between re:a~l credit cards and other 

types of credit, like automobile loans. Most importantly, for retail 

credit cards, the finance charge is imposed in each billing period with 

flexible repayment terms which remain at the discretion of the account 

holder. Most, if not all retail credit card plans in New Jersey, provide 

a "free ride" period which gives account holders the option of avoiding 

any finance charge. by paying the full outstanding balance within 30 days 

of billing. Depen~ing upon when a purchase is made in the billing cycle, 

the account holder may have as many as 59 days to pay for the purchase in 
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full without incurring a f.inance charge. A significant percentage of 

consumers - 47% according to a 1983 survey - use their card as a 

convenience and pay the bill in full each month. As a result, those 

account holders who choose to pay off the entire balance when billed each 

month generate no finance charge revenue to offset processing, financing 

and billing costs. 

Even for those .customers who elect to extend their paj'Jllent and incur 

finance charges, the effective yield is less than the nominal annual 

percentage rate ( 11 APR 11 ) and the actual cost of the finance charge is 

smaller than is gererally thought. 

For example, taking a nominal 21l annual percentage rate ( 11 APR 11 ), the true 

yield for retailers is around 18;, as illustrated in the chart (Table B) 

below. This is so because there is no finance charge in the first and 

last months. Moreover, as the chart below also demonstrates, since the 

21% APR is calculated on a declining balance at the 1.75% monthly periodic · 

rate, the actual finance charge cost to a consumer on a $100 balance is 

only $9.99, and not $21, assu~ing the balance is paid off at $10 a month 

over a period of twelve months with no intervening purchases. 
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Month 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

Monthly 
Payment 

$00.00 · 
10.00 
10.00 
10.00 
10.00 
10.00 
10.00 
10.00 
10.QO 
10.00 
10.00 
9.99 

TABLE B 

1.75% Monthly 
finance Charge 

On Average Daily Balance* 

$0.00 
1. 66 
1. 50 
1.35 
1.21 
1.05 

.90 

.74 

.58 

.50 

.50 

.00 

· Customer's Balance 
After Payment 

$100.00 
91.66 
83.16 
74.51 
65.72 
56.77 
47.67 
38.41 
28.99 
19.49 
9.99 

.00 

*Assumes payment is received on the 15th day of each month. 

V~ EFFECTS ON CONSUMERS 

Total Finance Charge: $9.99 
Effective Yield: 18% 

The fifth misconception is that rate ceiling regulation will be beneficial 

with no adverse effects on consumers or retailers. This is not true. 

Artificially imposed limits on credit card finance charge rates that do 

not give creditors. sufficient leeway to cover all of their credit costs 

will (a) adversely affect the availability of credit; (b) result in higher 

cash prices and the subsidization by cash paying customers for credit 

accounts; and (c) possibly result in the loss of other consumer benefits, 

such as elimination of the free ride period. 
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When artificial restraints force prices down, fewer suppliers are willing 

and/or able to continue offering the same goods or services under the 

lowered price structure or to take ~arginal risks. The reduction in 

availability on the consumer side of the equation is not random across .all 

income strata, but has its greatest impact on marginally creditworthy 

consumers. Those are the consumers who also• typically have lower than 

average incomes and greater than average need for reasonable amounts of 

consumer credit. 

For many, particularly the young, first time seekers of credit and those 

struggling on low or fixed income, the retail credit card is their only 

means to buy essential goods and services or to· make discretionary 

purchases. Traditionally, retail creditors have made credit available to 

a segment of consumers who cannot qualify for a bank card or other third 

party card because they are unable to meet higher income or eligibility 

requirements or may be considered a higher credit risk. To appreciate the 

adverse effect on consumers of an artificially imposed finance charge rate 

ceiling one should look at the retail credit experience of Arkansas which 

has the lowest state-imposed ceiling on retail credit card finance charge 

rates. Credit studies in Arkansas she~ limited availability of credit 

because of the unreasonably low finance charge rates. 

We should note that upon opening an account, retailers will initially 

limit purchases to an overall maximum of a couple hundred dollars and ~hen 
··,.j-·; 

closely monitor the experience of the custoner before increasing that 

limit. Retailers, of course, recognize that there will always be a small 
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percentage of credit card holders wh~ may overextend themselves 1l\rou9h a 

·. combination of financial obHgations. · Retailers are aware of this risk· 

and have therefore adopted measures to protect against ioss, ;nclud·ing 

· close monitoring of purchases and payment histories and, .. ;n appropriate 

cases; updating credit inforrri'ation before. pennitting customers to· excf!eq · ·· 

their limits .. · A creditor which does not monitor the. credit limits and 

payment experience of its customers'risks not only loss of finance charge 
. ' . .· .. . .. 

. . ' . . . . 

revenue, but more importantly payment for merchandise. 

. . 

Where states have required retail credit to be offered at below market 

rates~ the burden of subsidy inevitably fallsc'on cas~ buyers, many of whom 
. _.· . , 

.... _may have.been unable to obtain credit •. Those consumers who pay· cash, 

whether by choice or as a result of reduced credit availability, wi 11 be 

paying part of the functional cost of·. credit that shou.ld be borne by 

credit customers. Lowered rates may also compel retailers to make 

adjustments in. the price of goods or services, as well as in the. 

availability of credit. Retailers may thus be forced to reduce other 

~ervices or increase or add fees to services previously furnished. without 

charge, such as, for example, delivery or wrapping charges. 

Research indicates that the reta i1 prices for major appliances in Arkansas 

reta if· 
.. 

neighboring 
·• 

are from 3r to 70: higher than prices in states. to 

Similar results were shown in the state bf Washingto~ when lower rates 
. . 

. were required. In fact, in some Arkansas border towns, consumers actually 

go out of their way to shop in nejghboring states to c.void inflated prices 

r~sulling from the state•imposed finance charge rate ceiling. 
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Another direct effect of artificially low rates in Arkansas is that 

consumers must now· pay finance charges from the date of purchase. There 

is no 30 day "free ride" period. As a result, retail customers in 

Arkansas who, if they lived in other states, would have access to free 

retail credit for as many as· 59 days, must pay finance charges from the 

_date of purchase. 

VI. COMPETITION 

The retail industry in New Jersey and throughout the nation is highly 

competitive. Discount and off-price merchants compete aggressively with 

the more traditfonnl rnercar:tile e_stablishrnents throughout our state. If 

ever there was a time when retailers could price goods casually or raise 

prices without fear of a loss of business, that day is_ past. This year is 

no ~xception to the business trend of recent years. 

In a free-1"1arket e_conory where competition exists, there is no logical 

reason or benefit to require any service or prod~ct to be offer~d at a 

price imposed by the government. This is price control and we all know 

how such measures have failed miserably in the past. 

Credit cards compete \'Ii th many other forms of credit, and consumers are 

respcnsive to the differences among these various options. Consumers may, 

for example, finance purchase~ through loans from savings institutions, 

banks, credit unions or finance companies, which may be able to impose a 
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lower rate because the lender does not have the same operational and 

monthly billing costs connected to the extension of credit or repayment of 

the loan or because the purchase is collateralized. In comparison, a 

credit card offers many conveniences, su~h as a one-step application, 

utilization of the card for phone, mail or in-store purchases, ease of 

return of merchandise, the means to controi and keep track of purchases 

and returns and the comfort of not having to carry large amounts of cash 

or engaging in transactions with businesses that will not accept personal 

checks. 

VII. VARIABLE RATES 

Finally, the proposed variable rate fonnula would create tremendous 

operational and disclosure problems for retailers with a resulting 

increase in operating costs substantially beyond their current levels. 

First, there is a serious question as to whether many retailers - large 

and small - will be able to afford and develop the sophisticated software 

and programs necessary to operate their computer equipment in a floating 

rate environment. Second, a variable rate formula will require retailers 

to incur substantial costs to infom consumers of rate changes, as 

required by law. 

A revolving creditor is unlike a closed-end creditor which extends credit 

for each distinct transaction at or below the rate that is permissible 

under the variable rate ceiling i~ effect at the time. A revolving 

creditor's retail charge accoun~ agreeme~t with its customers applies to 
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an on-,going account balance, consistentwith appJicab.le New Jersey law and 

federal disclosure requirements. When the variable rate ceiling rises or 

falls, the re.tailer extending revolving credit is faced with several 

unacceptable operational choices in respect to the account. For example:· 

- although both the consume~ and the retailer contemplated at. the. 

time of sa 1 e that payment for th,: purchase Wi)U Id be subject to the 

rate which was then in effect, there could be inequitable and 

unforeseen consequences for the account holder or the retailer if 

each new rate is to be applied to old as well as new balances; 

- if each neh' rate may be applied solely to new purchases, retailers 

would· have to segregate purchases incurred µnder different rates, 

which will be expensive to. implement and disclose, as well as 

confusing to the consumer; 

- in order to disclose the applicable monthly periodic rate and 

corresponding APP on account agreements and monthly billing 

statements, as required by law, retailers will be forced to 

· continuously re-print these agreements and statements. or, in the 

case of statements, use sophisticated and costly computer software; 

- retailers could be obligated under present law to notify consumers 

of rate changes long before each new rate goes into effect. 
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* * * * 

In summary, we believe that deregulation has benefited consumers, 

businesses and the economy and that a free marketplace has produced an 

environment in which there has been increasing product differentiation and 

competition. This competitive environment offers all creditworthy 

individuals a means of securing credit and encourages creditors to pfovide 

and enhance a wide variety of credit vehicles. Conversely, a restrictive 

credit ceiling could make retail credit unavailable to many consumers and 

force them to seek credit from other lending sources or to forego needed 

purchases. State imposed ceilings will, we believe, stifle competition, 

and lead to a greater concentration within the credit granting industry. 

Moreover, this legislati-0n will have no effect on the principal issuers of 

ihird. party credit cards - national banks, which are able to export their 

rates from an out-of-state location .. Thus, ary action to place an 

artificial ceiling on these rates is inefficient and will adversely affect 

ret?ilers which are subject to New Jersey law and choose to do business in 

New Jersey and, as well, the "1e1-: Jersey consur.ier and the state's economy. 

,pl/:. 
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!NTEREST RATf CONTROLS<OH CREDJT CA"!V~ 

oJ--.h McsterCcrd, Visa · end American· Bankers Associction 
·. (vi"_ commi.ssioned Lexecon Inc. to do c study to examine the effects 
·l of interest rates on credit cards end proposed legislation in 

particular. 

· The study wes prepared . by Chr1 stopher DeMuth.. the•· Meneg1ng · 
01rector of Lexecon·s ·weshtngton ofJ1ce. Mr. DeMulh 1s en 
econom1st end lewyer ht1v1ng served un<Jer Pres1dent Reegen es 
8n Aclm1n1strntor for Inf ormot1on end RegulBtory Affetrs 1n the 
Off1ce of Mt1n6gement end Budget ond es Executive Director of 
the Pres1t1ent·s Te.st Force on Regulatory ReHef. Previously.;; he 
wes on the faculty of the Kennedy School of· Go't·ernment et 
Harvont end Director of the .· Harverd Faculty Project on 
Regulct1on. 

j 

DeMuth stetes thet econom1sts have found th8t usury controls 
ere e1ther 1neHect1Ye or ere · h8nnfu1 to consumer 
welfnre--pcrt1cu16rlY to the welfare of those whom th1s type of 
1eg1slot1on seeks to protect. The conc1us1ons of the study f1nd 
th6t the proposed controls ere unjust1f1ed# nnd would be harrnrur 
to both borrowers end lenders. 

) 
--r 

The rete of tnterest on crecJ1t cerd credit, es. measured by the 
Federal Reserve Boercrs celculat1ons of net1onel overt1ge retesl 
has remo1ned Qu1te constant flt ebout 16 percent. stnce cred1t 
cards t6me into wH2esprecc1 c1rculot1on 1n the early 197o·s. 

On the other hond the prime rete end yields on 3-month Treesury 
b11ls haYe been Quite volctne. The prime rete during the period 
1980 end 1961 was higher then thet of credit cerds . 

cpnsumers Do Not Pay 1 a; on Bent: crectH care Charges 

Interest retes peic1 by bent credlt cerd borrowers nre ectueny 
lower than the nom1ne1 rates. This 1s Clue to the f net that most 
bent card 1ssuers charge.· no 1nterest during the in~iel 
one-month ·Free Periocr .. encl i:neny C8rdholders pey their enttre 
beHuwes during this period. Depending on the date of purchase 
ene1 the cyc1e b111lnIJ elate. consumers he.,•e onywhere from 30 to 
60 oeys use .ot funds before finance charges 6re assessed. About 
30 percent of e11 bent-: credit card eccounts ere paid monU,1y .­
w1thout 1ncumng crny interest charge. Cerdholelers who use their 
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intensively {mcking more orlcrger purchcses), .how~ver, so that-. 
about 50 percent of the doller volume of credit tn_rd · purchcses 
is paid without payment of any finance ehcrgee. As a result, the -
nomin0l interest rote of 1e,: translates to en cven,ge effective 

-i.nterest rote of about 151. Putting it another way, the 
borrower on cven,ge 0ctu0lly pays approximately 3~ less then· 
the rate that is cppecnng on his monthly statemenL This is our 
experience cs well cs that of the industry. - . 

-There is ve[Y_Qood reoson why credit cord rctes nre higher then 
mort~._P.ersonol end auto loons. The cost of funds is only one· 
component of the expense involved in providing credit cord 
credit. According to the Feden,1 Reserve Reserve Board's most 
recent ·runctioncl cost cnclysis· of selected commercial bcn~s. 
only 42 percent of the total costs of providing bank card 
ser~ices consisted of costs of funds in 1984. Operation costs 
represent the mcjor expense in providing this service. While 
interest costs hove declined, other costs have escalated~ Our 

· costs of postage, telephone, credit losses,. fraud losses, 
sclcries, stationery and supplies and other expenses per account 
increased -by 5.5:t during 1985. H ;s very · clear thct ·thct 
e"erything hes not come down in the_ pest·. 

Pot tern of Credit Ccrd Srowth Across Stotes 

The pattern of btmt credit card credit ccross the states in 
recent years provides further evidence of competition. Interest 
rotes on bon~ cords nre subject to the usury laws of the cord 
issuer's state rcther then the ccrdholder's stete. At present 16 
stet es mcintci n ·strict· interest rete tontrols over credit ce-rd 
credit (ceilings of 16 percent or lower), 17 states plus the 
District of Columbfo mc1nt0in ·moder0te· controls {ceilings of 
higher then 16 percentt and 16 states hove no controls, 

If the proposition thct interest r0te ceilings ere beneficicl to 
consumers~ it should follow that the stetes thct are regulated 
should grow relatively fester then those states. which are 
unrepulcted. On the other heno, if the supply of bank card creda · 
is competitive, end · USUfl.l ceilings injure consumers b~ 
contrccting credit 0v0il0bilit!J, then unregulated credit should 
hcve grown more rapidly thanre9uleted credit. 

The facts ere thot credit in steter witr-: or inte~est controls 6~e 
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14 percent as c portion of nctional revolving bcnk credit from 
1980 thru 1984, while credit from ·modercte control· states 

:\ fell 20 percent end. credit from ·strict control· states fell 14 
percent. 

) 

States with No interest rate controls experienced c real growth 
rate of 83.St during this period. States with moderate or strict · 
interest controls gained 30.SS end 39.7% respectively. 

Arkcnscs which is constantly mentioned in the press end by 
proponents of rcte control cs being c model which every state 
should emulate. The mandated rcte is 5 percentflge points over 
the Federal Reserve discount rate. Low rctE:s ere intended to 
drive the no interest rote control lenders out of the stale end 

· mo~e credit cbundonlly available to the stcte·s consumers. This 
of course is a myth. The facts ore that Arkansas hes declined 
4.8 percent within its borders ond hes further declined by 41.2 
percent h1 its shore of notional revolving credit. The credit loss 
rote for Arkansas wos .431 in 1984 for below industry overages 
suggesting thct credit is not being provided to · the low 1md 
mocterete income f 0milies. 

These figures are significant end if duplicated in our state, 
hove o grove impact on our economy. If we were to clone 
Arkansas, the buying power of our consumers would be greatly 
reduced, demand for goods end services would be cff ected ond 
we would eventually experience an increese in the states 

. unemployment rote. 

The mortet evidence is unombiguous: cs mone!J rnertet rctes hove 
fcllen, unregul0teo caro credit hes become more successful with 
consumers then credit subject to interest rote ceilings. This is 
not to soy that consumers pref er pcyin9 higher n1tes but it does 
suggest that other things must not be equal in the present ccse. 
The success of unregulated cards is due to the feet thct credit 
is more readily cvniloble end cgressively mcrteted by 
out-of-stole bcnt.:s. Consumers in _New_. Jersey have 
overwhelmingly accepted offers from· out of state ct rates in 
excess of those now being offered by our own bents. 

Amon£ the offers ere lerpe lines of pre-approved credit, trove1 
insu:--cnce, discount buyi n£ serYi ces, rent01 ccr discounts, cord 
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services which appecl to the consumer. They elso so11cn n~.,,, 
, cardholders among rh~t::ier demographic groups such cs students, 

individuals of modest means, individuals with no credit history, 
Jetc. Bents from states with strict controls are . highly 
restrictive, issuing cards only to the more effluent fismilies. 

The Effects of Interest Ceilings on New Jersey Consumers 

We have experienced the effects of interest ceilings in New 
Jersey which caused widespread losses among the Stcte·s bcnk 
card issuing banks .. Although there was en increcse in demcrrd 
for credit cards, there was a decrease in their supply. Credit 
card applications were removed from merchant end banking 
office locctions. Credit standards were revised to reduce loan 
losses which resulted in the declining of credit to many lower 
income individuals. This included raising the income 
requirement for credit card eligibility. Credit cards were issued 
only to bank customers. Low r,nc:f moderote income Consumers 
who formerly qualified for bent credit were now forced to turn 
to the small loan companies where they paid interest far in 
excess of bank interest charges. The ·Free Interest Period· wes 
eliminated. Merchrmt discount rates were increcsed. No 

CJ question thot this increase was passed on to the consumer in c 
higher cost of goods. 

--~ , J 
_;· 

This brings up another important point. While the states brinks 
may· no longer be in 0 position to offer credit cards due to 
insufficient profit margins~ the effect on the retniler will be 
much less profound. He .wi11 be cb1e to stay in business simpl~ 
by burying his ere di t costs in the price the consumer p~ys for 
merchandise. The cesh buyer will now be subsidizino retail 
store credit. 

Ban~ Ccn:f Penetrotion 

There cre approximately c dozen brrn~s in New Jersey who issue 
McsterC0rd - end - Vise credit cards. Credit cards., unli~e 
conventional personBl or auto loens, require numerous 
speciclized functions to support them. The fraud end 
counterfeit risk factor, _ the volotile nature of this service end 
the uncertcint11 of profitcbility is enough to deter the mcjority 
of ben~s from pcrticipetien in this highly reguleted end complex 
consumer service. 
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56.31 which hr,ve brtnk: cre'dit c.crds. Surveys thcl we tuul 
commissioned·. by en independent firm indi.ccte tbct Seventy 
i.,ercent or. 950,000 · hous.eholds hold the credit ccrds of out of 
state banks which nre not subject to New Jersey law.· The 
remcining 301 or cpprmcimctely 400,000 households have thei.r 
credit card accounts wilhthe. bents in New Jersey. 

During the period the Stcte·s bnnks contracted their credit card 
operations end literally went out . of the . business, the 
out-of-state banks spent millio.ns of dollars in direct man 
campaigns soliciting New Jersey ·consumers. The strategy paid 
off ;end wh.ile the New Jersey banks were helpless to compete, 
the out-of -state banks moved agressfve 1 y to capture c 701 
share of the States mcrket. Our current surveys indicate that 
the two largest ccrd issuers in tht~ state are out- of -state 
banks whom we estimate hcve more ccrdholder accounts in Hew 
Jersey then all of the New Jersey banks combined. Other banks 
from New York, South D0kot0, Del0w0re, Colif ornic and 
Pennsyl vcni a hove lcirge numbers of New Jersey consumers cs 
their customers. 

Credft Cords r,nd Persono1 Loons (Apples ond Oronges)_ 

Although some legisletors constcntly compare. credit ccrds with 
personal loans, they ere cs different cs apples end orcnges. 
There is no doubt that c personal loan is in f cct c loan of money 
to be repaid over fl period of time. The credH cnnLhowever is e 
multiple service device whl::h consumers perceive to be of greet 
value. It is e service thet they will not do without. As far cs 
loan rctes go, there ere mony clternctives to the credit card. 
Relative to services and conveniences offered however-I the bont:;: 
credit cnrd hes no peer. 

Why should the cre.dit ccrd cost more then c personal loon? 

The vest cmount of lcbor, computers, terminols, dedicated 
telephone lines, telecommunications networks, cuthorizction 
centers, ~ecurity end frcud control and other cdministrctive 
services that are involved in providing c worldwide bent: credit 
card service ere often overlool:ed, The mcjor portion of our 
costs ere in this eree. By contrast, the persone1 loan is e very 

. simple ont time tronsection. Our cverrige personol loen is $3500. 
and is normony rep~id in 30 months. Our biggest expense for 
providing thls loon is the cost of moneg. 
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cerdholder win· hove used bis credit cord 90 times f:or purcneses 
evercging $65.00 each. We meintein sophisicct~d eutho~zetion 
systems 24 hours a dny, seven days c week, This enables our 
cardholders to ma~e purchcses ct over 4,000,000 locclions 
worldwide and et over 1 BO fincncicl institutions where they 
moy obtcin cash ndvcnces. . Tennincls are . provided for high 
volume retoil locations in order that the consumer mcy not be 
inconvenienced by long waits in line. 

Our cardholders ere provided with c completely itemized 
monthly statement of all credit cord ccHvity. lf for some good 
reason, he is dissatisfied with the merchcndise, he ccn notify us 
and we will obtcin c credit for him. If the bcnl:: is unoble to 
obtain the credit to which the consumer is entitled 'the bani:: 
will cbsorb the loss. This particulcr service requires c full 
time stcff to hondle adjustments between customers end 
merchants. 

If your credit card is stolen, it con be used to make purchases 
amounting to tens of thousands of dollars. Banks absorb these 
lesses which nm in the millions of dollars. This is just one 
more of the expenses that hes not come down. 

The credit c0rd provides the consumer with e multitude of 
services, none of which tire provided by e personn1 loon. As 
examples 0 bank credit cord holder con: 

Obtoin ccsh thru outomotic teller mochines ony time he 
chooses. 

Obttiin ccsh 0dvtmces in cmounts cs low es $50.00 from 
over 160.,000 finonciol institutions worldwide. 

Mcke purchcses at over 4.,000.,000 retail establishments 
worldwide. 

Use his bcnk credit ccrd cs identificction for ceshing 
of _persone 1 checks. 

Eliminote the need to c0rT11 l0rge sums of cash which 1s 
vulnercble to theft or loss. 

Obteirr trcvel insurance, cord registrotion, rente1 cc:--

- 6 -
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me.:rchandise discounts, travel discounts, emergency re~ 
pltrcement of lost cirhne Uctets, en,ergency ccsh end 
cn(rl much more provided free of extra charge~ 

current Ncrket Rate Bill 

. . . 

The present law under which we issue credit cards does not 
encourage the lowering oJ interest rates even if the card issuing 
bank finds itself in c position to do so. Brinks cen lower the 
interest rates but cannot increase rotes without the consumers 
consent. If the consumer expects to benefit from lower interest 
rates, it is only fair that he would expect to pc,y more when 
interest r-ctes went up. 

The Merkel Rcte. Bill which wcs pcssed in the lest legislative 
session is unworkable cs fer cs credit cords ere concerned. · It 
mandates change in rotes in not less then 30 days end not more 
then 60 days. Unfortunately, the business cclendcr does not 
pro vi de for periods bet ween bi 11 i ngs in eqµ0 l 30 doy periods due 
to holidnys, Saturdays end Sundays. Depending on the month,ond 
the holhtcys within it, billing periods m0y very between 27 to 
33 days in length. Also 1 the eel requires 0 notice in cdvcnce of 
every n:te change despite the f cct thot the consumer hos been 
notified in r>dvcnce thct his rcte would be tied to c rete 
regulcr1s disclosed in the newspaper. We hove large numbers of 
consumt-r-s who ht2ve inactive accounts to whom· we would be 
requir~ to moil monthly notices. The expense of postage clone 
would tdd cnother .2si to .si to our clreod~ high cost. 

CONCLt'StOfi 

Many· t1:'f the interest rrite · contro1s being proposed hove no 
corr.el:rtion with whet· it costs to run c bonk: . credit ccrd 

... -· - . -· - - . -
. depO'T'iftent. If these ceilings ere imposed, most if not ell bank 

card ®.en1tions in the stete will become unprofitable. Seventy 
pen:ett of the states current credit cord holders would not be 
cffe:tilftf si nee their cards ere issued by out -of-stete bonk:s. It 
is lik1:l!J however, that credit to low r,nd moderate income 
f 0mih1s will become sccrce end they once cgcin will be forced 
to rest~ to the finance companies Where theli will pay much 

. highernites. 

- 7 -
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lessening in de.rncnd for goods end· services. which will 
eventua11y impoct employment.· 

We csk that you very carefully study the.· impcct the proposed 
legislctton willhcve on the consumers end the few bcnks in New -
Jersey who · off er credit cords. We csk thct you recall_ the 
negcttve eff et:t of prior laws regulating interest rotes~ It is . 
our belief rmd experience hes shown thct interest rote cnps ore . ' ' . . 

ineffective nnd do not benefit those for whorn · the lcw is 
intended. 

3~ t./:J"",lCJ:'·-~-?.-. ·-s·.~e: 
Je•se_. C,:,. t\ .. ~ G7322 
r20< 5-!7-742· 

,;,exa,de: K1sr-, Jr 
V,::e Pres·oe-.-. 

fiRSTJERSEY 

. I 
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Horizon Bancorp is strongly opposed to any pmposalthat would establish interest rate ceil- . 
ings on loans and extensions of credit. · · · 

Adoption of any such proposal will ultimately reduce the availabiJity of both credit ahda pay­
ment device. in the marketplace, and will facilitate a concentration ofc:reditcard issuance among · 
a smallgroup of financial institutions outside the state of New Jersey. from a long,term perspec- · 
tive, competition will constrict, therebylimiting consumer choice .. 

. In 1981, New Jersey's public servantsaffordedtheir constituents an opportunityto secure and 
· utilize a powerful financial tool--a ''convenience card''. Passage of the state law deregulating 
consumer loan interestrates gave this state's financial institutions the ability _to bring credit cards 
to the marketplace, and New Jersey consumers have overwhelmingly responded. 

. My organization's experience .serves to illustrate this point. In the four years prior to passage of . 
this legislation, Horizon added just under twenty thousand accounts to its card holder file; in the 
four years since, nearly a·quarter-million cardholderaccounts have been established. Clearly, 
consumers benefited as a result ofexpanded availability, as did the state's economy. In fact, pur­
chase and cash advance activity during this later period, a reflection of spending by New Jersey 
consumers, exceeded one-half billion dollars. Furthermore; this cOnsumer activity took place at a 
time when creditcard interest rates had reached their highest level. 

Accounts 
Tho·u11nd1 

400 
175 
350 
325 
300 
275 
250 
225 
200 
175 
150 
12S 
100 

75 
50 
25 

CARDHOLDERACCOUNTS 

. 77 ·?8 79 ab 81 a2 13 •• IS 

00.lllrl 
Mllliona 
400 
37S 
350 . 
325 
300 
275 
250 

. 225 
· 200 

17 5 
150 
12.5 
100 

75 
50 
25 

CARDHOLDER ACTIVITY 

11 78 19 90 e1 a2 &3 •• e5 

Yes, interestrates charged on credit cards are higher than on most consumer loans. But price is. 
a function of demand, and holds little, if any, bearing upon COSL If such were the case, was .a 
credit card interest rate ofl9.8% justifiable during 1981, when the average monthly Prime Rate 
was18.9%? Or, to borrow from a "hard goods" industry, should General Motors charge the samE 
prfce, based upon cost, for a Cadillac as they do for a Chevrolet or Oldsmobile? Consumers are 
the final judge of value, and I submit that consumers understand, and are willing to pay for, the 
flexibilitythat credit cards provide. 

The establishment of an interest rate index would be both practical and justifiable if credit 
cards simply provided a consumer loan service. Under this scenario, price-or the interest rate 
charged-would be predominately driven by the cost of iunds. It is important to understand, 
however, that the credit feature of the card represents only one of the ·•bundle" of benefits af­
forded to consumers. For this reason, the pricing of credit cards to an index is both unrealistic 
and unwarranted, Let's pursue this point further. 

f1/X 



From the user's perspective, the card is more than a loan facilitator; it 1s a payment 
· mechanism-a means for securing cash and merchandise atmillionsof locations Worldwide.The 
card avails consumers to a range of services totally.unlike those of conventional Joan products. It: 

• provides con~umers a means for "opportunity" purchasing (i.e. taking immediate ad- · 
vantage ofsales, investments, etc.); · · 

• serves as identification for check cashing, hotel reservations~ car rentals and other im~ 
portant services; 

• permits access to funds for emergency-related expenditures such ascar repairs, medical 
treatment, transportation and so on; , ·.· . 

• eliminates the need for carrying large sums of cash, thereby providing consumer secu­
rity; 

•affords consume.rs the ability to provide dependents with emergency purchasing power; 

• furnishes a simple and convenient means, through monthly statements, of recordkeep-
ing; and · · · · 

• provides consumer protection, since federal laws limitlosses to cardholders from a lost 
or stolen credit card to $SU. 

These services and protections are provided to credit card consumers whether the card is used as 
a payment ora credit device. Furthermore, the consumer determines whether, and to what ex-
tent, the credit feature of the product is employed. · 

According to two l=ederal Reserve Board-sponsored studies in 1977and 1983, approximately fifty . 
percent of credit card-users almost always pay their bills in full.1 These consumers, ·known as 
''convenienceusers", utilize funds at nodirect costwhen the service is provided through a finan~ 
cial institution offering a grace period .. 

CARDHOLDER PAYMENT HABITS 

52% 

Almost 
Always 
Pay In 

Full 

Theeffect of these interest~free grace periods on the consumer'sreal cost, and the issuer's return, 
is significant. Studies undertaken by the Credit Research Center at Purdue University reveal that 
the actual yield to creditors from credit card operations is significantly less than the annual per­
centage rate that is required to be disclosed to consumers under federal la,v. In fact sample sur­
veys indicate that effective yields for banks represent only 83°io of quoted rates. Consequentlv ii 
the disclosed rate on a bank card is 18%, the actual yield-or average real price of credit to the · · 
bank'scustomers-is approximately 14. 9% .. 



Other studies ·ha.ve also shownthat consumers_have-recdgnizeda cleardifferenC:e between cred 
cards and convehtional consumer loans. According tothe 198'3 sttidy 'Of consumer finances con~-_ 

. __ -• _ ducted by the Survey Re~earch Centerof the lJ niversity of Mkhiga_11, sixty.;two percent of the __ -
_ householqs surveyed owedsorrie type ofnon-:mortgage debt: 37% owed on credit c'ards cind:49% 

ow,ed on closed~end debt~primarily installment loans. The media!1¢redit card debt was $500, 
· -- -•_ . while the median closed-end debt was $2,693. These findings serve to highlight the fact that ton:.·· 

.:_ sumersdifferentiate between credit products, and exerds¢ choice based· upon neec:f and.pur- --pose; . . -- . . -- . . _-. . . :· 
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Credit Carda -- Cloaed•End 

-Consumer choice does not efld at the installmenLloan versus credit card decision process. \VhE 
. _- the.consumer exercises his choice to utilize a credit card, he then exercises a choice of.providers, 

-_ based upon individual needs. -- - - - -

·- -- More than TS,000 financial institutions in the United States currently provide some type of creo 
card program-. In addition.such services are offered by a broad cross-section of corporate institu­
tions, such as finance companies, travel and entertai.nment issuers, retail stores, oil-com·panies 
and others. Competition for consumers is intense, and. is not expected to ease in .the near term. 

. . . . . 

. . .··· ·.. .· . ·. : ' . 

· In order to ~~tract consumersthrough needs fuHillment1 card issuers are engaging in aggressive 
product development, enhancement and marketing efforts. Routine and enhanced card services 

. are provided to American consumers at a highcost tothe credit card industry'. 
. . . . . . ' . 

Over the past lOyears, the c~st offunds has represented only aboutthirty percent-Q.f card issu• 
expense. Thisamountcontrasts sharplywith comparablecost~of-fundsfigures for othe-ftypes of 
lending by banks> such as mortgage lending and commercial lending, for which the e:ost of fu ncis 
as a percent of total costs equals 90% and 75%, respectively. The additional non-financing costs 
are unique to the highly competitive credit card market. They are real and continuing6bligati6n~ 
thatcompetitors must pay to adequately serve the consumer.They include costs associated with 
high transaction volurne; extensivedata communication systems, computer technology and ex­
traordinary consumer protection, provided for a large number of predominately modest-sized 
lines of credit. Fe\-v of these features exist in auto. loans; home mortgages or other forms of con­
surner credit 



COST OF FUNOS . . . . 
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Beyond the costs to the industry as a whole, individual issuing institutions have found itneces-
. sary to enhance product offerings in order to meet consumer expectations. Const.1mers are no 
longer satisfied by simply the payment mechanism and line-of-er.edit features associated with the 
card; they seek additional services and additional means for card utilization. Examples ofen-' 
hancements sought include card registration, guaranteed hotel reservations, automated teller 

·. machine access, long-distance telephone discounts, price discount information, accident insur­
ance, checkwriting capability.and more. Remaining competitive in the eyes of the consumer, 
therefore, requires non-cost-of-funds expenditures.· · · 

How, then, will interest rate caps or limitations aff€ct issuing banks and consumers in the state of 
· New Jersey? It is safe topredictthat product enhancements will not be abandoned if interest 

rates for credit card loans are capped or limited. Consumer demand and expectations as well as 
competitive pressure will require continued product development efforts. Given this, I submit 
that issuing institutions will look toward reducing exposure by limiting card issuanceto low-risk 
candidates. As a result, consumers who could obtain credit and a payment mechanism in an un­
regulated environment will be forced to go without. · 

Creditcards are often the best means for consumers, particularly younger people, women, mi­
norities and the less affluent, to develop good credit histories. Without such histories, these con­
sumers will find it more difficult to obtain loans to purchase homes, cars, furniture, major appli- . 
ances and the like. In addition, they may also find it difficult to rent a car, reserve airline and 
theater tickets or renta hotel or motel room. To summarize, they wiU be denied the right to par- . 
ticipate equally in our economy. 

In conclusion, I submit that the credit card market provides a valuable serviceto a wide-range of 
consumers. The continuing growth of the industry suggests that the benefits delivered are ade­
quately reflected in the current rate structure. Consumers-those who exercise th.e ultimate pur­
chase decision...;_have found value in the product, and voluntarily utilize its features. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Charles A. Luckett and James 0. August. "The Growth oi Consumer Debt'· p. 397 Federal Reserve Bulletin 1June 1955! 
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James L. Billmeyer is Executive Vice President of Horizon Bank, a member of Horizon· 
Bancorp. 

. Horizon's member banks, which also include Marine National Bank and Princeton Bank, are 
major issuers of credit cards to New Jersey consumers, and lead the state's financial institutions in 
terms of credit card outstandings. 

Atyear•end 1985, Horizon serviced over 300,000 cardholder accounts, with outstanding bal­
ances of $223 million. 
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·.·· ............ • .... ···.· ... · .. · ... · .. ·.· .. · .. · .·.•· .. · .... · .. ··.··.· < 
MR; CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF TH Is COMMITTEE') M't' NAME rs 

\:·· 

·. : .. · . . . . . . . . : .·· .. ,· . . . . . . ;. 

ROBERT FARNON,. A SENIOR VICE PRtSIDENT OF MJDLANTIC NAT.IONAL .BANK/ 
NORTHi IN WEST PATERSON, l AM TESTIFYING TODAY ON.BEHALF OF 

. . . . . . , ' ,· . ·_ . . :. . . · .. 

MIDLANT 1 c BANKS, .INC. AND THE NEw JERSEY BANKE Rs Assoc.IATI oN. ·. 

·. ['1IDLAtJTIC ~lATI0NAL BANK/NORTH .. IS THE SECOND LARGEST OF 

SEVEN AFFILIATED BANKING CORPORATIONS OWNED BY MIDLANTIC BANKS.,·. INC. J i 

A STATEWIDE BANK HOLDING COMPANY, MIDLANTJC BANKS, !NC,, THROUGH 

. 1TS AFFILIATES, OPERATES .OVER 300 B~ANCH BANKING OFfICESiHROUGH-. 

OUT:NEW JERSEY1 EMPLOYING OVER 5,000 PEOPLE, OUR CREDIT CARD 
. . 

D1vts10~ SERVICES OVER 140i000 ~ONSUMERS THRO~GH VARI6us C~EDIT .· 

·. CARD PfWDUCTS AND EMPLOYS OVER 100 PEOPLE IN PROVIDING THOSE 
. . . 

SERVICES, .MR, C~AI~MANi M1DLANTIC ENDORSES tHE NEW JiRSEY BANiERS 

. Assoc I AT ION IN.OPPOSING LEG I SLAT! ON THAT WOULD IMPEDE THE FREE 
. .. - . ' 

ENTERPRISE SYSTEM IN NEW JERSEY BY PLACING CEILINGS OR RESTRIC- .· 

T!0NS ON INTEREST RATES, 

'-..._ 



1 WOULD LIKE, MR, CHAIRMAN, TO TAKE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO 
. . . ' 

CLARIFY SOME OF THE GENERAL MISCONCEPTIONS REGARDINa CREDIT CARD. 

RATES AS COM~ARED TO INSTALMENT LOAN RATES AND WHY CREDIT CARD 

. RATES ARE HIGHER, 

A CREDIT CARD BY ITS V~RY NATURE. IS A COtJTINUING SERVICE 

THROUGH A REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY RATHER THAN k ONE TIME TRANS­

ACTION CREATED THROUGH AN INSTALMENT LOAN, AN INSTALMENT LOAN 

APPLICATION IS INVESTIGATED, APPROVED, A LOAN CLOSING TAKES PLACE, 

PROCEEDS ARE DISBURSED AND A COUPON BOOK ISSUED, THE AVERAGE 

INSTALMENT LOAN TODAY APPROXIMATES $10)000 IN A SINGLE TRANSACTION, 

lN THE ISSUANCE OF A CREDIT CARD, THE BASIC APPLICATION 

PROCESS IS GENERALLY THE SAME AS DESCRIBED FOR AN INSTALMENT LOAN, 

HOWEVER, ONCE THE CREDIT CARD IS ISSUED THE SIMILARITY ENDS, A 

CREDIT CARD IS USABLE VIRTUALLY AROUND THE WORLD IN ANY TIME ZONE, 

AT ANY TIME OF DAY OR NIGHT THAT RETAIL STORES OR BANKS ARE OPEN, 

IN ORDER TO SERVICE OUR CUSTOMERS AND TO PROVIDE AROUND-THE-CLOCK 

CONVENIENCE, 24 HOURS A DAY, SEVEN DAYS A WEEK, ELABORATE SYSTEMS 

HAYE BEEN DEVELOPED WHICH REQUIRE CONSTANT MONITORING, UPGRADING, 

AND PEOPLE SUPPORT, l MENTIONED EARLIER THAT THE AVERAGE INSTAL-
- . . . 

MENT LOAN TODAY APPROXIMATES $10,000 IN A ONE~TIME TRANSACTION, 

COMPARATIVELY, THE AVERAGE CREDIT CARD TRANSACTION IS APPROXIMATELY 

$7 ,_ o·o I :::> I . I · . IT, THEREFORE, WOULD TAKE 133 INDIVIDUAL CREDlT CARD 

TRANSACTIONS TO PRODUCE.THE SAME DOLLAR VOLUME AS THE ONE INSTALMENT 

LOAN, 



. · .. 

_··3 ... 

·. .· : . : .: . :··· .. ;· 

IN ADDITION) THE CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT ~EQUJRES.M()N;H~Y 

B lLLI N.G STATEMENTS. AS COMPARED TO- A -ONE~TIME ISSUANCE ,,OF A: :COUPON 

·. BOOK FOR .AN INSTALMENT LOAN I''' THE AVERAG'E COST TO ISSUE 
0

A COUPON 

BOOK lS $2, 00 OR 50¢ PER YEAR ON AN AVERAGE LOAN OF 4 YEARS, -

JHE AVERA~E-COST TC> ISSUE A CREDIT tARD -STATEMENT IS56¢PfiR MONTH,,,· 
. . . . . . . . . .. , ·. . . . . 

Niw CREDIJ CARDS ARE REISSUED usuALLY _oN: AN ANNUAL BASIS.J ANOT.HER 

EXPENSE THAT Is NOT -~EQlJlRED ON INSTALMENT LOANS I 

' ANOTHER MAJOR ASPECT OF CREDIT CARDS THAT Is NOT INHERENT' . ', 
' ' ' 

' ' 

IN - INSTALMENT LENDING IS THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF FRAUD ANIJ COUNTER-

FEIT, ALTHOUGH FINAL NUMBERS ARE NOT YET AVAILABLE:, I.T Is ESTl-_ 
.. · ·.-· .· ' . . . . . . ; 

.MATED THAT FRAUDULENTLY-USED) LOSTJ STOLEN OR ILLEGALLY MANUfAC-
. . .: • . . '. . .-:: . . . .. . .· >' 

- _ TURED CREDIT CARDS COST THE MASTERCARD.VI SA MEMBERS OVER $234 J 000.,000, ; --

lH 1985, ALSO) DUE TO THE UNSECUR:ED N_ATURE OF CR£DIT CARDS> CREDIT • 

l..OSSES THROUGH BANKRUPTCY AND DEFAULT ARE DRAMATIC:ALLY_HIGHER THAN 
' ' 

' . ' 

-. · INSTALMENT LOAN LOSS.ES, ON AVERAGE) CREDIT CARD LOSSES APPROX-
. . . . 

-- .IMATE 1.5% TO 2% OF AVERAGE LOAN BALANCES AS COMPARED TO LESS 

THAN 1/2 0~ 1% IN A TYPICAL INSTALM~NTLOAN PORTFOLIO. 

- MR, CHAIRMAn J . I . WOULD LI KE TO MAKE ONE OTHER POINT WHICH I 

FEEL ls VITAL TO_ THI·s ·CoMMITTEE's DELIBERATIONS •. - OF ALL THE 
' ' ' 

MASTERCARD AND· VI SA ACCOUNTS .ISSUED TO RES !DENTS OF NE\✓ JERSEY J. 

ONLY ABOUT 20% OF THOSE ACCOUNTS ARE ISSUED BY NEW JERSEY BANKING 
. . . -· . 

. .· . 

I N,ST I TUTI ONS I THE OVERWHELMING MAJORITY OF THOSE CARDS_ ARE ISSUED -· 
' ' 

- BY ouT~oF~STATE BANKS, WHO UNDER THE SUPREME COURT'S DECISION.· 

KNOWN AS THE uMARQUETTE CASEJu WOULD NOT BE AFFECTED BY ANY 

{lK 



- 4 -

LEGISLATIVE RESTRICTIONS IMPOSED AT A STATE LEVEL; AND WOULD 
. , . ' .. 

PLACE NEW JERSEY BANKING INSTITUTIONS AT A COMPETITIVE DIS-

ADVANTAGE, 

' ' 

IN SUMMARYJ MR, (~AIRMAN; 1 DO NOT AGREE THAT THE Pk}CING 

OF INSTALMENT LOANS AND CREDIT CARDS CAN BE REASONABLY COMPARED, 

THE. HIGHER COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CREDIT CARD PRODUCT THROUGH 

SERVICING REQUIREMENTS, OPERATIONAL EXPENSES, DEMAND FOR GREATER 

TECHNOLOGY AND HIGHER INCIDENCE OF LOSS, MAKE IT UNIQUE AND 

SEPARATE FROM TRADITIONAL FORMS OF CONSUMER LOANS, 

· MR, CHAIRMAN, IT IS OUR HOPE AND DESIRE THAT THE NEW JERSEY 

LEGISLATURE WILL NOT SEE FIT TO IMPOSE ONEROUS RESTRICTIONS ON 

CREDIT CARD RATES, BUT RATHER WILL ALLOW THE FREE ENTERPRISE 

SYSTEM AND THE MARKETPLACE TO DETERMINE THE RATES THAT WILL BE 

CHARGED, 

THANK YOU, 

ROBERT J, FARNON, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT 
MIDLANTIC NATIONAL BANK/NORTH 
WEST PATERSON, NEW JERSEY 



fl United Jersey Bank .. 

The passage of 1981 sta:te law deregulating consumer 

loan interest rates had a profound effect on our bank's 

ability to promote ·credit card services .to merchants as well 

as cardholders. Deregulation allowed us to compete with. 

out-of~state money center tranks and significantly increase 

ava:ilabili ty of c.r'edi t fCir New Jersey residents . at a rela­

tively modest increase in expense ~o the consumer. 

From the introducti6n of bank cards in the late 60s, 

the money center banks centered in New York were able to 

charge interest rates to New Jersey residents higher th~n 

allowed under New Jersey law. The additional revenue gener­

ated from higher interest rates allowed the major banks to 

mcirket their cards to out-of-state residents .. New York banks 

were allowed to charge 18 percent on purchases, while New 

Jersey banks were restricted to 15 percent. 

In 1972 when the prime was at approximately 5½ percent,. 

the difference between the 18 percent and 15 percent was 

not that Significant. But when the prime started its upward 

turn in 1978, most New Jersey b~nks severely restricted their 

card program because interest rates were limited by statute. 

Frequently, proponents of interest ceiling regulation 

c~mpare bank credit card rates to prime rate for the years 

1980-81 forward. I would like to describe for you what the 



. . ' . . . . . . . 

Bank Card business was like_ during those·years prior to de-

regulation. 

Credit :Pol.icy· . .. ,.• United Jersey's credit· policy in 

'the late 70s, early 80s reguir.~d c~stotners to have meaningful· 
. . ·. 

deposit relation-ships with. our bank.. Minimum incorrie require-

ments ~ere deliberately set above_the average worker's salary 

· a.rid significant. job tenure was required~- Applicants· were 

expected to pave minimal debt except for mortgage and perhaps 

an auto loan. Customers were .allowed to apply for either 

~isa or MasferCird but would not be approved for both. 

Cre.dit lines were. restricted to $1,000 in most· cases. As 

a direct resul_t of statutory limi tat.1ons on rates, both our 
:"- ·. . ·. ·. - ' : · .. ··.. .. . ·.· . 

branches· and our ,merchants were instructed to remove all 

Visa/MasterCard applications frorri display racks. Some banks 
. .. 

· across tbe board redu,ced lines of credit to minimal amounts, 

and others told their customers if th~y had both cards to 

thoose_one as the other would b; ~los~~~ In our case, 

thousands of accounts were not ie~ewed at expiration that 
. . 

would routinely be reissued today. 

Deregulation in 1981 allowed us to actively promote 

our cards. Although the prime had rea.ched reco.rcl highs • 

over 20 percent •... 0e decided that we would increase 

.our credit card rate modestly. Our experience indicated 



. ' 

that this'typeof account rep:resenteci a lorig-terinrel.atiob;· 

ship with the custQrrier •. Unlike business. the consumer coul.d 

. not afford, nor .would they support:~ .a rate t>f .21 perc~nt 
. - . . 

plus. . We believed theri ~ as we do today, that our customer·· 

is. not demanding c:oristantly. floating. credit ca.rd rates·~ ,­

Experience indic:atcs the applause· o·f rat~s goin'g down ::tis•· 
.· · .. •, . : ' . . . 

'far outweighed by the fury of·rates goingup ~ ••. espe-, 

cially when the consumer has .. a -slgnif icant debt with in ten.,.. 

tioni of paying it back over. three or four years.' That is 

why we de.cided not to tie our Bank Card rates to any variable 
. . . . •, ·. 

·index • .~· . nor raise our rates to 23 percent: plus. In- ·· 
. .. · .. 

ste.ad, we .chose·. a long-term rate and raised our carc;i rates 
. . 

.from is to 18 percent ..• knowing that we ,would not make 

a profit . . ··. at. that time. . ~ • ~t an 18 percent rate. 

'.: ·. . -. . . 

The impact: of deregulation on our business has been signifi-

cant. For exampJ,.e, the number of United Jersey bank card 

credit applications increased. from less thcin 17,000 in 1~81 

to over 72,000 in 1985. Totai credit line~ increased from 

$69 million to$360 million duri~g the same period. The 

number of active cardholders increased by 114 percent. Sales .. 

volume from our New Jersey merchants increased from $loo· 

million in 1981 to over $400 million in 1985. We increased 

· staff by 89 perdent and raised~alarj~s ahd benefits 



',,.-4-, ' 

. - .· .· : 

by approximately 3.5 perc~nt. Whi:le :t:he majority of ca.rd 

business, remains, wi~h out-of-state banks,, most New Jersey 

banks h:ave had similar gain's and ,()U,r state Is economy'• has', 

,', substantially l:>enefitted from it. ,, ( See <:nart 1.·) 

' ' 

As a result of ·<:leregulation' and our ,increasing the 

_annual percen1:age rate. by 3 p¢rcent, an average United·Jersey 
. . . . ,· .. . . 

. · ... 

Bank Visa customer who carries a balance of appro_ximately 

$750 pays ~n,ly $22.59 more a year in interest. 

Today, our Visa customer uses the card muc·h more fre­

quently but has not become significantly more indebted. 

In the year 19 80, our typical Visa c1-1:stomer used the card 

for $850 worth of purchases and advances, maintaining .. an 

· average loan balance . of $.375. Our·· 1985 typical customer 

increased average: loan balance to $750 but m,ade purchases 

an.d advances of $2,300. 

A unique feature of most: bank credit• cards is the free 

period:which is not found in other forms of lending. The 

free period reduces our 1~ percent·rate to a yield of 
. . 

'• . 

slightly less. than 15 percent .... Tbus, an average use of. 

$2i300 worth of cred~t a year earns us only $112.50 ~n 

interest. 
. . 

. . . 

If you relate the ~ave~~ge amourit of credit used in 1985, 

$2,300, to the amount bf interest paid, $112.50, and compare 

it to 1980 st~tittics of $850 in credit used and $45 interes~ 
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paid, the average United Jersey Visa customer is paying 

slightly less interest as a percentage.of volume now than 

just before deregulation! (See Chart 2.) 

The typical customer is not·that sensitive to rates 

and is not a credit card junky. They feel a lot safer 

carrying a credit card than large SU.'DS of cash. Our customer 

knows that·if he pays cash for a service or merchandise and 

there's a dispute; it may be difficult getting cash refunded 

especially if the transaction was not made locally 

and the customer .does not know the merchant. During the· · 

.course of a year, lout of every 20 of our customers requires 

our involvement in resolving a dispute with a merchant over 

goods or services purchased with the card. These disputes 

· cover such things as faulty auto repairs •.. credit not 

received for unused travel plans malfunctioning appli~ 

ances ... improper home improvements or repairs ... and 

goods or services ordered and not.received. Our mediation, 

which represents important personnel costs, helps to reso1ve 

ovE:r 95 percent of these disputes to the consumer's satisfac­

tion. That's another unique feature and service not found 

in other forms of bank credit! 

Despite being told to •cut up• or •stop using• his cards 

. the typic::al consumer, not the small minority at either 

end of the spectrum, continues to voluntarily use the card 

more frequently and wisely today than ever before. 



Passage of proposed legislation that would tie credit 
. ' . 

card rates to Treasury Biils, base rate, or long term govern-

ment-bond yields would place today'sbank card rates at 

approximately the same rate as permitted in the early to 

mid 70s. or below. Proposed ceilings would probably 

result ir1 the New Jersey banks restricting the amount of· 

free credit provided the customer. Historically, banks accom­

plish this by reducing credit lines to a.minimum and tighten-­

ing credit policies. 

Interest ceilings may affect only a few New Jersey 

banks. New Jersey residents ma.y again be forced to apply 

to out-of-state banks . . even though both the rate and 

the annual fee may_be higher. People prefer a card with 

a. high credit line even with a high rate over a low rate 

but a restrictive line. primarily because they do not 

perceive·the credit card as a loan. 

Today, untied rates allow us to actively compete for· 

New Jersey customers with large credit card operations ~n 

South Dakota and Delaware where there are no limitations 

of any sort. We are also free to provide our customer with 

a package of services that enhance their account. Free 

travel-accident insurance in amounts as much as $500,000; --~-, 

discounts on auto rentals; refunds of 3 percent on air trav·e1 

a.nd 10 percent OQ hotel bills; credit card registration; 

free checks; and many other s_ervices are include,:;. v:ith the 
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card. We are also able to package services so. they might 

appeal to groups of customers. For example, United Jersey 

·offers a Senior Club service with a credit card rate of 14.44 

percent. 

While credit card rates may be perceiv,d to be high, 

unlike past.history, there is absolutely no indication that 

there is one rate charged by all state financial institu­

tions. Credit card rates, the amount of credit availability, 

and services provided with the·card vary significantly. 

The credit card industry, like other deregulated in­

dustries such a$ telephone and airline, have experienced 

significant increase in competition. Today; New Jersey banks 

compete not only with b~nks from neighboring states but a 

variety of financial institutions from across the country, 

including retail giants like Sears, for the consumer's credit 

card business. As in other industriesi there is a need for 

the consumer to educate himself so that he can choose the 

service that appeals to him. 

Our New Jersey banks have used the competitive authority 

given them in 1981 wisely. Our state and its consumers have 

significantly benefitted. They cont~nue to want to enjoy 

the benefits. We want .to continue to compete with out-of­

state bank card issuers but we won't be able t6 do so if 

credit caps are placed only on New Jersey banks. 

Thanks so mu=~ rcr your consideration. 



# Applications 

.Total Credit Lines 

Average Purchases/ Mivances 
Per Visa Account 

Average Balance 
Per Visa Account 

Charge Offs As% of 
Year En~ Outstanding 

Delinquency As% of 
Year End Outstandihg 

Merchant Sales Vcilume 

A.P.R. On Purchase Balances 
Standard 

Gold Card 

Senior Club 

Chart 1 

1980 

17,000 

$69,000,000 

$850 

$375 

2.03% 

2.60% 

$100,000,000 

15% 

N/A 

N/A 

1985 

72,000 

$360,000,000 

$2,300 

$750 

2.22% 

1.97% 

$400,000,000 

18% 

17% 

14.44% 



Chart 2 

Average 
Average Interest Interest 
Balance Rate Yield Paid 

1980 $375 15% 12% $45 

1985 $750 18% 15% $112. 50 

Average Purchase 
.Interest & Advance Rate as 

Paid. Vol.ume % of Volume 

1980 $45 $850 5.29% 

1985 $112. 5 0 .$2,300 4.91% 



STATEMENT OF 

PETER J. GRAZIANO 

BEFORE THE 

SENATE LABOR, INDUSTRY AND PROFESSIONS COMMITTEE. 

MR. CHAIRMAN AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

Thank you for allowing time for these comments~ 

My background with plastic convenience cards covers two decades 

with exposure in COLLECTIONS; LOSS PREVENTION; OPERATIONS; 

PRODUCT DESIGN; AND MARKETING STRATEGY. 

I presently have the responsibility for the daily operation o~ 

the NEW JERSEY NAT I DNAL BANk convenience c2.rd program. 



Our Bank h-s provided convenience card services to New J~rsey 

cbnsumers since 1970. Since 1981 when legislati~e changes were 

enacted; New Jersey Nati6nal has been a very active participant 

in the convenience card bu~iness. We have add~d 150,000 

individual cardholders to bur consumer base and 17 Full Time 

Positions in the New Jersey job market. 

Cortsumers h-ve benefited from this expansion in both the 

employment and services areas. More specifically this general 

expansion in the industry has made this service readily available 

to most economic groups and provid~d the consumer with plastic 

convenience cards with a wide range of services and pricing. 



. . 

It is very importar,t ir, discussing plastic cor,venience cards tc, -

distir,qqish this $ervicie"from traditic,r,al In.stallrnerit ~e'r,dir',g. 

with ar,y other type .of lending. -Cc,r,surners ltse cr:invertience ~ards 

. - . . . . . . 

t6 establi-h thei~ iden~ity ~nd credit worthiness in many 

transactioris in the ~arket place which ~o _not result in eredit 

. . 

cal'..:d transat:t i,::,.ns. _Mbst consumers who do choose to make 

purchases.using the conveni~nce ca~ds ean avbid finance charges 
.·•: .. _ .. : ·. .-. . :. -; . . .- · .. · ··. .· ·. . . ·. . .· .. 

--o~ voiun~arily c~oose"to use the.extended payment pl~ns 

. . . 
. .. . . 

available. 50¾ c,f the cc,r,su·mers whc, have cards de, 'r,c,t, i YI any 

given perJod~ pay finance cha~ges; ho~ever 80¼ do use the 

cor,vertier,ce ar,d ut1lity.c,f the card. 

. ~--

... _._~-: 



Providing this flexibility and utility~ in itself dictates much. 

higher expense than traditional Installment Lending. For 

example, cost of Funds in traditional Installment Lending c~n be 

as much as 80¼ of the total cost of Bosiness. Ir1 the coY-.ver,i.er1ce 

Card industry, it i• on average less than 50¼ of the cost of 

doing business. This i~ due to facts such as these: 

with the average loan b~ing $64.00; Each of these 

transa~tions requires some form of verification as to the 

cardholders standing. The VISA system alone responds to 

rn,:,re than a milli,:1n authc,rizatic,ns messages and 5 rnillior, 

clearing and settlement items daily. 



. .· 

.. SC>~ t,.f cardholders· requir_e a rnoY,thly stater11er-,t~. 

~nd posta~~ is a signif~cant cost. 

• Fra(1d ar-,d• coLmterfeitir,g ir-, the first six ,rnor-,ths c,f 1985 ir-, 

. ·- ·. . . . 

the MasterCard system alone ·ar1101..1nted tCi $45, odb, 000. 

c,:,r,venier,ce card operation is from- tt~aditi,:,ria.l lnst·allr11er1t Ler,dir,g. 

:- . 

Exper,ses sL1ch as these sfroply de, Y1c1t exist in bther types c,f 

I~stallment Le~ding. 



'.{· 

:t is also ir11pr:,rtar1t ir, discussir-,g. legislatior-, ir1 the state erf New 

.. . . : . . . 

reY-sey· to realize that 70. to 80¼ o_f New Jet"sey cardholdet~s rnair,tair, 

. ' : . . .. 

heir accour,ts with Bar,ks .c,utside .the state of New Jersey. 

,:,nsequ1:r,t.ly legfs'11atic,n of thi_s type would affect a relatively small 

1urnber of New Jersey c~rdholders but all df the New J~rsey 

nstitutic,ns c6mpetir,g tc, expar,d ir, ,:,1.1r c,wr, market. 

believ~ it would be a misnomer to assume that New Jersey cardholde~s 

ould flc,ck t,:, New Jei·sey instit•.iti,:•ris d(.1.e t;:, regt.1lated low rates. 

. . . . . . . . . . 

he rebo~d in the retail market place clearly shows that those able to 

. . 

r11prr:,ve., enhar,ce arid aggressively ·market their p-rc,d1.1ct. c,r set"vice 

. --

~pt u~ec rnore of the market. It is mor~ realistic-to see New Jersey -

'"1stit•.1tic1ns 1.mablE? tc, c,:,rn·pete ir, a highly c,:,rnpetitive ir1d1.1str•y; 

~using a c~nst~iction of this service by New Jersey Banks and a. 

~duction in employment in this fie~d. 

'----



. . 

In summary,· it appears we should apply three test .to the legi~lation 

proposed. 

Will it affect the majo~ity of New Jersey consumeri holding 

credit cards? 

Will it provide the basis for New Jersey institutions to compet~ 

in a highly competit~ve market? 

Will it foste~ expansion in the indust~y and eMployment 

opportunities for New Jersey residents? 

I THINK NOT 

Than~ You 



Statement of 

Citizens Fir~t National Bank of New Jersey 

Before ThP 

Senate Labor, Industry and Professions 

Corn:r:::. ttei::> · 

New J0rsey State Senate 

lmril "'! f 
.;_ I f 1986 

J.W. Coote 
Senior Vice President 
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The Citizens First National Bank of New Jersey appreciates 

this opportunity to express its views to the Labor Industry ahd 

Professions .Committee hearing on credit card interest rate indexes 

and caps. Citizens First is a Bergen County based bank with· 

assets exceeding $1,700,000,000. The bank also has brancihes in 

Morris, Passiac, Hudson and Ocean counties. 

Citizens First has issued the MasterCard credit card since 

1969, primarily servicing people within its own community and not 

undertaking extensive telemarketing or substantive advertising 

programs outsife 0£ its own service arPa. 

We have always beL.i=;ved, and ccntinued to believe that the 

credit card is a valuable borrowing device with almost unlimited 

flexibility and cbnvenience. To the affl~ent who care to limit 

the cash they i.dc=:, t0 ca.rrv, to those v..-i th lessor income who may 

not havF the cash to carry, but who equally ne~~ funds available 

when they are required, there if nc payment or credit system so 

universally accepted, so fulfilling cf the public's need, as the 

bank credit card. 

A~ complex and sophisticatP~ as the bank card syste~ is since 

its inception, the plastic and the delivery system has been 

continuously undergoing costl~• ~hange in an effort to upgrad~,the 
4' ' 

convenience, speed, ar~ securitv attached to its use. 

-1-



There is no doubt but that the plastic device represents for 

the present and the foreseeable future, the·most advanced tech­

nological method of making instant credit available for millions 

of cardholders at millions of locations throughout the world. It 

is the fear of CitizPns First National Bank of New Jersey, the New 

Jersey Bankers Association, the Consumer Bank~rs Association, 

related and §imilar associations throughout the banking, thrift, 

and retail industries, that any effort to regulate financa charges 

bPyond what the~• are todayi namely to reduce and cap finance 

charges, will stifle the vigorous compPtition that exist today for 

the public's credit card business. 

Any unreasonable or unjustified interference with the op~n 

market place will only serve t0 deplete the ranks of credit card 

issuers. Manv small issuers of credit cards would find it 

necessary th Eurrender their pos i tior, in the field, to what. would 

very likely become monopolistic gJErts. We f~il to see how this 

v.·ould remotely help the consunP.:c. 

We respe~tfully and strongly sugcest, that the legislators in 

th.eir honest and comrner,co.ble zea 1 to serve the ere di t card user:, 

explore other less de•:2~tatina w2ys to effectively lov,er the users 

credit card cost. The most obvious direction is to improve 

existing laws under which all regulated card issuers operate, so 

that they may res;_.x:nd to .rate changes jr,_ a ;;,ore timel? a:1d com­

petitive manner. The results w~uld crove beneficial to the card 

flK 



.... :: ·-_·· . . ···:·:·: ·, .. ·-_ ··. ' .. ·· ...... ·. 

use:!'." and C<?~ld easily be :Monitored· by the legislators or State. 
: . , -

Agencies designated by thei:n. 

. . 
. . .. , ; ·. .••, ·. . . 

Wllat <is e>etremely impor_tant< to consider is the adverse effect.· 
. . :,: 

that any restrictive measure would h~~e: toward bartk~·and thrifts 

and ultimately ._the. people that. they '_employ. 

. .· ·•. 

FOr reasons that follow, we ask that you champion and advance 

the competiti~e position of the New i~rs~y basPd and r~gulated 
. ··. . ·. . . 

credit card issuer!'i, <'!.nd -· in turn, benefit New -Jersey. 

CITIZENS FIRST NATIONAL BA.1'-1 K OF NEW JERSEX AS A CREDIT _CARD ISSUER 

Since. c::::itizens. F.irst hac. elected to generate credit card_ 

businAss within its ovm se~vice area, it found that statistics 

concernino cr~dit taid a~tivitv haF rPDained relatively constant. . ..- . . •, . ... 

ThP. exce?tic:,n to thi£: is the incT-Pc>se in credit card outstanding 

ha lances. In th<' last fi VP years, cred.it card outstanding5; have 

increas~d by just U!1de:r 3 CC%. This increasE: har. occurred without 
. . .· . ·-

. the benefit of te~emarketi:ng o:r dirert mn il campaigns, and al:r.10st · 
. . . 

entir~ly td thin the period sine€ _the pas~age of Senate 3005 in 

1981 .. Senate 3005 gave_relie:: tc bank~ ar:c thrifts from the 

burden cf crippling interest rate ceilings. 

I:r.· the seventE:er: \1 f:a:r;:-: tJ·,a.t CitiZer:s First had issued a bank 

. credit card, it.has dcne so_on an unsecured basis. At. the end of 

;.,.J-



credit lines committed to Citizens First cardholders. This ratio 

is far l~ss than the near 50% ratio of outstanding debt to lines 

committed, under.the highly c1ccepted home equity method of 

borrowing. The 29 % dollar usage of available ere.di t is not 

indicative to widespreac credit card abuse by so called 

shopaholics. The misuse of the credit card by a few cardholders 

cannot be allowed to result in a blf:mish to the bank credit card 

system which has so greatly improved, for the buyer, the merchant 

and the general economy of the nation, the manner in which we so 

conveniently do our retail shopping. Sine~ 1980 the year end 

ratio of outstanding debt to credit lines has not exceeded 29%. 

Of the monthly statements :r..ailed b:' Citizens First to its 

cardholders' rarPly do more than 60% result in th~ payment of 

intere~t. This percentage ha~ remaine~ constant over many years. 

The 40~ rr more of the c~rdhol~r~s who take advantage of the grace 

period cause the disclosed rate of 18% to bP reduced to a gross 

yield of less than 15t. ThP law doeF not dictate the offering of 

a grace perio6, competition does. Citizens First has never 

retreated from off~ring a grarP period, even in the mo~t 

unprofitable period of our credit card history. This is hardly 

representative of a ripcff or of price gougino. 

THE BANK CREDIT CARD 

No method of consu~er borrowin? has so noticeably a~fected 

- '1-



amount, collateralized Atito loans, as the g~nerally uns~cuied, 

fr~quently used, low dollar credit card transaction. The mass 

acceptance of the bank credit card, its important place in support 

of the American economy, has come abou.t because of the public 

recognition that the bank credit card is the most valuablE'!, 

simple-to-use credit tool made available to the.consumer. 

The plastic card, the speed of.point of sale authorizations, 

the detail recording of the purchase or cash advance transaction 

made anywhere in the world, the payment to the merchant, the 

billins, the colle~tion of payments, the accounting system as a 

wh0le, .is the complex featnre of the credit card. Simplicity and 

convenience belong to the cardholder. 

The dPvelopment of the smart card and the super smart card 

will tremendousl? hroadP::-1 the flexibility of thi=: bank credit card. 

On line syste2s at automate~ tell~r nachine8 will give the 

cardholder a~cess to nest if not al~ of the cardhclder's bank 

accounts, permitting transactions ftom one account to another 24 

hours a day. There is little similarity between a bank credit 

card and a traditional consumer loan. 

INTEREST RATES 

Since 1933 uPtil recently, gover~ment regulations had limited 

the rate of interest that b6nks could pay on depn~its. During the 

-5-



recent phase iri of deregulation, interest rates paid on deposits 

have increased dramatically. The era of savers subsidizing the 

borrower had come to an end. It·should also be recognized that 

since the developnent of the credit card, overhead costs have 

skyrockited. When you consider that the averag~ credit card 

transaction over the last six years at Citizens First, amounted to 

only $56.45 it is easy to see why this i~ a labor intensifHed 

credit product.· When you realize that purchase~ are made at many 

locations over a wide ar~a, it is also easy to understand that the 

cardholder will have rnanv questions and disputPs that must be 

satisfied under a highly regulated environment. This requires a 

highly skilled manag~ment and clerical staff in a labor 

intensified atmosphere. The st6ffing required is num~rically 

greater per $1,000,000 outstanding then any other loan type. 

Consequently, the cost of funds does not have the samP 

relationship to the tot2! coEt of servicing credit cards as it 

aces to other loan croductE. 

Most New Jersey banks h8ve been disclosing an annual 

percentage rate of 18%, as opposed tD out of itate bank cards 

which carried a rate of 19.8 are higher. Our substantially lower 

rate was not the imnortant factor to 80i of the Kew Jersev 
~ . ' J 

cardholders who chose to carry an out~of-state bank credit card. 

Where then, is the 7ustificatior. to intervene in the free 

marketplace, by placin0 u~realistic ceilings en inte~e~t rates 

that may he charged by New Jersey banks who historicallv offered 



. CONCLUSION 

The approach to lower.credit card rates in a market such as 

we are experiencing is not through restrictive legislation but 

simply through a workable variable rate consumer loan law. 'rf 

existing law· could be .amended or new law enacted where· its 

application would be suitable to a credit card format, banks would 

be in a position to respond to ~arket. rate changes in a timely 

~anner. With such a vehicle, banks cbuld.decide to offer fixed or 
. . 

vaiiable rate options at a rate structure agreeable between the 

borrower and the lende~. 

I realize that this suggestion is contrary to the direction 

of this cornr'.i ttee hearing, but it certainly would serve to meet 

the Com.mi tteP. 's goal. It has been said repeatedly that thP credit 

card market is satur2tel. is to, the~ the only way we can 

i:ncrea!'oe our market sha::P i c= to dr2~,.- cardholders a.wav fror-: other 

lenders thrcugh competition. If the lender has the flexibility to 

quickly respond to rate increases a~ well as rate decreases, then 

the opportunity exints to realize a profit. When the ability is 

there to recover from a low rate position, the motivation will. 

always be present to attempt to cut sell the co~petition. It 

could be expected that this would generate enough activity for the 

' . 

cardholder's account to as~ure thP 2vailability of competiti~~. 

rates. 

-/-



Placing strict ceilings on credit card rates would appear to 

address only 20% of the bank card market, that portion of the 

market controlled by Npw Jersey banks and thrifts. The remaining 

80% of the bank card market would apparently go unaffected. This 

would seem to penalize the card issuing group with the lowest 

average interest rate, while out of state credit card companies 

would continue to succEi:ssfully flood l~ew Jersey with credit card 

solicitations calling for interest rates considerably higher than 

those of New Jersf"y ba:1ks. The competitive position.of New Jersey 

credit card issuers should not be jeopardized by propo~ed 

legislation that <loes not surely cover 100% of the participants. 

It is fair to co~tPnd that New Jersey card issuing banks and 

thrifts cannot, for the most part, match the direct mail 

solicitations of out of state monev ~enter banks. Reaching a goal 

of lower card rates would mo~~ likel~ be realized by enhancing New 

Jersey's competitive position. 

The predictable result of thF pa~sage of restrictive rate 

ceiling legisiation would be a lowering of New Jersey's share of 

the credit card industry alone with all of its economic backlash. 

-8--

y?X 



' ' . 

CONSUMERS LEAGUE OF NEW JERSEY 
FOUNDED IN 1900 ArFILIATED WITH NATIONAL CONSUMERS LEAGUE 

60 SOUTH FULLERTON AVENUE. MONTCLAIR. N. J. 07042 • TEL. 744-6449 

·~.3 

THE CEILING 0~ CREDIT CARD RATES SHOULD BE L0WERED; 
NE\~ JERSEY1 S. 30~; GDIERAL USUP..Y MAXHlU11 IS MUCH TOO HI<,H; 
CUIJ URGES A11 FLOATING 11 USURY CEILING, WHICH HOULD RISE AND F~.LL 
LIKE AN ADJUSTABLE RATE MORTGAGE 

Hhat ']Oes up must COllJedm-m--exceotif it's credit card interest rates. 
\~hen na ti ona 1. interest rates went uo in 1131, the flew Jersey Leai sl ature 
quickly ref)ealed many consumer usury lc1ws and substituted a 307.: maximum loan 
rate. The idea was to let loan rates rise and fall with economic conditions; 
This social experiment has been a failure. Credit card rates 90 up, but in 
genera 1 they never come · do1,.in. 

11arket Interest Rates Decline, Credit Card !lates IJnchanqed 

The price ofmoney · 
Average interes1 q:1tes charged by 230 banks % 

25 

Prime rate· . Credit .. 

f 

f. · . .. c.· ards . · ,j~ .. . .I · · 20 

t,~. . ..... --: :-. .................. •. ·~· .... " ' •:,I • " 

I' '~· . '-.. . •. --- ..... · ' /- -... O\ 24-month 1 5 

· personal t.oan _ 
, ,-, 

e, . . ,0 •, •.• .._..... ...,10 
Discount • 
ratet 

5 
1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 

'"i ":EI d'E ;::;os.:t-0 t.,.- l_n.p~t:' ~a~-i...s· a:: ii:: Cas-2' rB':f- to• lea:,~ _1·::: C0'C1C-~a_! 1C'!iS 

-r1h(' !G'.':'IE-5: rcttE'"::..tic3'·;>:.c t-:,,-FE-:=E-:a! heSE-"Yt"' :-.o-w,'::_ :-~' ic;2...,~ '.C depc_s:fcr,y m~'._.'.L.'t1or;£ 

Source: tJe1•1 York Times, 10/3J./85 

There is no "free market'' for credit, cards in ~Jev: Jersev because consumers don't 
have any real choice. The can:: issuers fix thefr rates 2t rn·: tc 21.f~;. 1/e 
aren't aw2re of any lo~er cos: credit cards issues in New Jersey. There is no 
cornGetition ar:ionq fie\'.' Jersey bads and (etailers over credit card rates. 
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Lower c:redit card rates in .other states . -__ .. 

-__ - Credit card rates don't have to be so hioh. :p, -handful of banks in other -
states do offer more reasonable rates. I.n Arka"nsas -two _banks. were offering. · .. --- . 
cards .af 135; or less in November 1985. Chevy C'1Ase Savin9 and·tqan As-sodatfon 
in Maryland is advertising for customers for its 14~{ credit ca·rd~ These hanks 
sht>wthat it is possible to run card operations· at a profit while charging __ . 
rasonable rates. In fact New Jersey issuers ·used"to drarge lower rates :just a f¢w 
years ago, before 1981: 12t for cash ·advances·; 15,;<for the first $700 of ptirc'.ha.~es 
and 121; on -the remainder._ Since national interest rates have returned to .the _ 
stability and low rates which prevailed before 1980., credi~card rates should·be 
returned~to the reasonable level~ which prevailed ~efore 1980 as well. 

Lower rates would give Ne,,, Jersey banks a competitive edge " 

_-. What would happen if New Jersey banks started issuing cr~dit cards "at· 13.~Q _· 
One ad in the New York Times would be sufficient to take thousands of customers· 
away from the Ne\<J York.banks. New custome.rswould mean increased revenues from 
annual fees. ln addition, each time a cardholder uses a New Je·rse_v card, the -­
merchant pays a couple of.percent to a_ bank to cash the charl]e slip. Hence banks 
make money on purchases, even if the consumer pays the bill wi t_hi n 30 days. 
The combinatibn of~ _ - -

--merc~ant fees t6 cash the charge slips, 
--annual membership fees, and -
--fi-nance charges at lW; to 21. ~c; .. _-

not only ·covers processing costs, but makes the card 
If Ne1•1 Jersey banks atttacted more customers, they'd 

· CLNJ supports the floating usury ceiling in S.1632 

' .. . . . . 

-· . . . ·. . 

bustness quite pr~fitable". -­
make more money. 

. _ If .the card issuina club is u~willin~ to take down its 18f interest 
barrier, then the Legisl~ture should do it-for them. CLNJ supports s.1632 by -
Senator Contill6. S.1632.would establish~ floitino us~ry teilinc for credit 
_cards issed by banks, retai_lers, and finance- companies< The bill-sets the . -­
maximur inte~est rate as 6 percentaoe 00ints above the rate for 3 morth United 
States Treasury bills. This ceiling v,ould chanae each calendar quarter. Arkansas --

.already has :a floating usury cei]ing-'- 5 points above the Federal Reserve· 
discount rate (hence a 12~, ceiling currently): S.1€32's formula 1<Jould allov: 
a higher rate than in Arkansas. 

In effect, the noating usuryceiling copies the principle of the _ 
adjustable rate mortgage. The usury ceilinq would go u.p and dovm with the cost -­
of money. t-Jhat's fair for the ba_nker is fair for the consumer. Nm<J it's up to -­
the Legisl~ture to restore econornit fairness i~ credit card~. 

The Legislature should enact a general floating usury ceiling 

Credit card rates are not the only examples of sky hi11h interest. 
New Jersey1 s 30~ usury ceilinQ has been abused by other tvpes of creditors. 
As exar::~les we attach CO::Jies Of:- . 

--second mortga~es at 29 , 
--car sales at 29,99;,, 29,g5'_, etc., 
-~furniture sales at~3o;~ · 

.I an•; asharr-ed tc: sav t~et -r.;e·,·,· -]E_~-se .. .: _-7er.::l"l-y· oerr:··i~s these srs-OCk~r:i rc~E5. 

ffX 



Surveys by the NJ Department of Banking have also mentioned that since 1981 
rates of 295; to 305; have been charged oy some of New Jersey's: 

~-sn;iall loan companies, . .· 
--insurance premium financiers~ 

· --retail installment.sellers (cars, furniture), 
--secondary. mortgage lenders. . · 

The Banking Department found these rates to be "competitive:" CLNJ thinks 
that these rates are unconscionable .. 

. Thus we propose that th.e Legi slatu~e enacta general floating usury· 
ceiling, not just for credit card~. To do this, the Legislature could delete 
the present "30~£" cei 1 ing in NJS 2C: 21-19(a) and substitute the floating 

· cei 1 ing of S .1632 (6 percentage points above the 3 !Jlonth Treasury bill rate, · 
rate changing quarterly). CLNJ also favors an absolute cap of 25% on consumer 
credit rates, which would match the 255~ cap of New York. Attached i$ an · 
amendment to NJS 2C:21-19(a) which would set a reasonable floating usury ceiling. 

We ask that the Legislature put an end to the legalized loansharking 
now permitted with 30% interest. 

NEIL J. FOGARTY 
Preside~t. 



CONSUl\IERS LEAGUE OF NEW JERSEY 
FOUNCEC IN 1900 AFF.ILIATED WITH NATIONAL CONSUM-ERS LEAGUE 

60 SOUTH FULLERTON AVENUE. MONTCLAIR. N J. 07042, TEL. 744-6449 

PROPOSh.L TO AMEND NJS 2C:2l-19 (a);. 

EXHIBI'='S TO "IES':'HiO:n: ON CREDIT CARD .INTEREST 
AJ\S GE!\Er ... ::_~ USL~S'!."' LI1•:1 T 



a. 
not 

N.J .S. 2C:21-19(a) is amen.ded to rea.d as follows:" 

Cri~inal Usury. A person is guilty of crim~nal usury when 
being autborized or permitted bv law to do so, he: 

f ! ! J. •.,:. · .. c,:• ;!'. : •",· •• ::~: • ; j. -·: 

• 1 __ • J,1··:: (•·· 

law; or 
(3}Sells, agreEs to se3.l, or receives·anv money orother propert,• 

as ihe finance charge en a c~edit sale at a rate exceeding the maximu 
rate permitted t~ law. 

(delete) 

. ' 

For pcrpoFes of this section and n~t~ithstanding any law of 
tf:i=: Stz..:,~- ·--~~_:c~: -:-;:_~~:-:-. .:::~, 2:= e1 ..-.z::::::-,,...:-. :.:-:-::.2~es: r;;:t ,,~,y finance 
charge rate, a rate oT rates acree? to bv the carties to the 
transac:ion. anv Jean. ~rTebearanc, "' cre~it s2le which is a 
co~surEr crej:: tran~acti01: ~a~~ c. a1~ a~r~al pe~centa-~e rate ~hich 
exce~~~ t~e scr r' th~ in:~rest rate ac~:icable to 9C dav United 
States Trea~ur~ bills issue~ durin£ the first wee~ of the calendar 
auarter icrediate]~ rreceedin£ the cuarter o~ the making of the 
consucer credit transaction, plus an additional 6 perc~ntage pclftts, 
rounded off to the nearest one-cuarter cf 1~. shall not be a rate 
authorized or perritted t~ law: rrov!rle~ further that no annual 
percentage rate exceeding ~5~ in a consurer credit transaction shall 
be a rBte authorized or perritte~ bv law: except that if the loan, 
forebearance or credit sale is na~e to a corporation fer business 
purposes, an~ rate no: in excess o! 50' anneal rercentage rate shall 
be a. r-2 t e au : h c r : z e C '::"-· •: l c; •. - ~ .. .- '."". t:: ~- c ,: :- ~ C i t c E. r C a c c c· u :--1 t s , o the r ope r. 
end credi: accounts and variat1e rate transactions are oermitt~d bv 
]a~, the rax1rur rerr~ss~~:. annuel rercEntace ra:e in each calendar 
ouarter shall net excee~ int~res: ratE antlicable to 90 day 
lnlte~ States Treasurv ~ills issue~ durin£ t~e firs: ~eek of the 

to the nearest one-cuarter o! 1' 



Consumei credit transaction is defined as tiedit ofier~d or 
extended to~ consumer primarilv for personal, family, or household 
pur.poses. Consumer.credit transactions include, but ar.e not lirn.ited 
to: insta.:tlment and advance. loan·s made by banks, savings and loan 
associations, savings banks;credlt ~ni6ns, sAall loan act licensees, 
credit card accounts, retail .charge accounts,. retail installmen.t 
sales contracts, home repair installment sales contracts,· insurance 
premium·financing, mortgafl_e loans and home equity.lending made by 
banks, savings and.loan associations, savings banks, secondary 
mortgage loan act licensees, mortgage bankers and the like, credit 
sales of cars, furniture and •~~liances. 

:::·.:: 

,,·.; 



ALFONSE M. D'AMATO 
NEW YORK 
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!Ii W Huron S1rtt1 
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/116:846-4]11 

J<·-.•,•i·•· 

I)~,:; f ~t'.• '11. f;l, ,i ·- f 

1()(· S-:,,Ht, ·Ci.~,.-,~ !-,,,,r· 

520 Hart Building 
. Washington, U..C. 20510 

(202)224-6542 

Dear Fellow New Yorker: 

If you use credit cards -- as most of us do -- you probably 
are paying exorbitant_.;. andtotally unfair -- interest charges 
on your account. You probably are also paying ~n arinual fee 
just for t.he right to carry the card. 

Credit cards are the lifeblood of the American economy and 
a necessity for middle-income .families strugglirig to make ends 
me~t. American consumers will charge over $300 billion on their 
_c_red_it cards this. year alone. · 

Credit card issuers, however, are taking advantage of this 
consumer dependence on credit cards. The average interest rate 
charged on credit card purchases now is an incredible 1£.6%. 
Some companies charge as high as 21.6%! American consumers 
deserve a lower -- and fairer -- interest rate. 

Credit card issuers now borrow the money they need at less 
than 8% interest ~nd most loans today carry an interest rate of 
between 8%.and 13%. By reapirig 18.6% on credit card charges, 
credit card companies are making an incredible 132% profit. 

In the last four years, just about every interest rate 
charged in the United States has fallen. The major exception to 
this, however, is the interest rate tharged on most credit card 
purchases: the average for such charges has increased from 
17.1% to 18.6% during the same time period. 

Not all credit card companies are being so callous to their 
cardholders. While some charge over 201 interest, others charge 
only 12.51. I no~ carry a nationwide credit card with this low 
interest rate. It i~ accepted by merchants worldwide just as 
readily as is the cara you no~ carry. The only difference is 
that I obtained my car~ fror an out-of-state bank that is 
playing fair with its customers and is charging a more 
reascnable interest rate. 

You don't have to be a customer of an out-of-state ba~k to 
carry one of their low interest, nationally accepted credit 
cards. In fact, as a result of Senate hearings on this subject, 
I now have a list of several banks where you can obtain a .low 
interest rate card just by filling out an application, I can't 
include this list i~ t~is newsletter, but if vou would like to 
receive a copy, just let ~E kno~. I'll be gl;d to send it to 
you. 

The high interest rates charged or most credit cards are an 
inequity -- an inequity which must b~ address~d, and which must 
be addressed now. Credit cara users must no longer be abused. 

I have introduced the Credit Cardholder Protection Act, S, 
1922. My legislation places a cap-~ er ceiling -- on the legal 
interest rate a ciedit card issuer can ctarge. This ~eiling is 
four percent over the interest rate the .Internal Revenu.e Service 
charges ~n late tax pay~ents and pays on tardy refunds. The IPS 
rate is a Corrpilation of prine interest rates from the previou~ 
six months and is reCc~putEd t~ice yearly. The current IRS rate 
is 10%, making the legal cap on credit cards under my bill just 
141. This cap will save consumers over a billion dollars this 
year. 

The second p?rt cf~~ till requireE fu22 disclosure of 
intc.!·c:'- r:'-E..r c;:~: :( >:::? ~-; c__::·~.c~:. =~:· :..~~(;:::..~ ... cc::··:": cc:;r~:-.:(r. 'T!:c 
consu~er heE a ri9t:t tc knc-~ ~h~~ he c,: Eti~ ~-ill te charged. 
Let I E cr. 1_: t.!".~ er·;·:::-~: :·cc~: c: :=:~€-:ct?. 

~)r bi]} als~ ~€·~~:r~s -~:J c:·e{:t_ c~r~ jff~erE to report 
th : r in":.E- l::2t c:_1.: :--~; 2:·,:-::._;::: 7.'.:(;. ::. tLc !=°E-c>~=:·c:.2- F:eservE 
B c- :- c: \ . .-::: c r ._: ~:. t r, : ? .i : : ,-. : :-- 2 .. c ~ '== c. c ~ r: t. ~. • r r: : f \..'. i : ) 

·:c~ ::·E:- r\· :_ C':: ,c.:-;c·: 
.. ·" er. cc,,· E; fi C (! :. ;: L; !T ~ r . 



., 

.. 

lf thie rc~crting was required .now, y6u w;uldn't have to write to me for a 
list of lou lDtcr~st rate credit card .issuers. This information woula be 
disclosec1 ancl widely known. •ri;ue cornpadson shopping would be easy for 
consurr,;,rs. Fina]ly, my bill requires a Federal commission to examine er.edit 
card- issuin<;i practicer:. and to report back to Congress with recommenaations 
on he·,., to n-,ore effectively protect the American public. · 

The next time you use your credit card, think about this: if your 
~verage balance throughout the yeat is a mere $500, you could be paying morE 
than $100 in interest~- that's more than $1 out of every $5 going for 
interest, not for what you purchased • 

. As I noted above, I personally hav~ taken steps. to make ceitain that I 
am not charged an unfair. interest rate on credi.t card purchases •. I was 
lucky, a friend told me about t)'ie out-of-state bank that charges only 12.5ft. 
I carry this bank's card now, ahd I believe that everyone should have the 
same opportutiity. Passage of my bill will remove the veil of ~ecrecy 
hanging over the credit card industry by requiring the Federal Reserv_e Board 
to publish every credit card company's interest rate on a monthly basis. 

There is a fair and reasonable interest rate that credit card 10suers 
should charge, but it is not 21.~%, and 18.6% is not much better. L~t•s get 
credit card interest rates back where the~ belong. Let's ieguire cr-dit 
card interest rates to better reflect the rest of the economy. Let's pass 
the Credit Cardholder Protection Act, 

:Jk'<Ji~-
Al fonse D 'Arr,a to 
United States Senator 

P.S. I~ doing my job here in Washington, it is helpful for me to know your 
views on im~ortant issuer cf the day. I would appreciate it if you woul6 
~nswer the follc~ing questions and return this survey to me in a stamped 
en·:elope to r.ry v,asbing::on, D.C. office: 520 Hart Senate Office Building, 
'.·~2.sti:-:g:.cn, I:' .. C.. 2051[•. :·1-.~:::: y~u. 

l. At present, credit ciuC ar:i:,lication forn,s are not required to 
contain cornnlete inforrnaticr retardinc the terms and conditions of 
repayrrent, ~nnual fees, or the intere~t rates charged on credit card 
purchases. Serre companies disclose this irf0rmation, others do not. 
Frequently; complete infor~ation is supplied only when you receive your 
card. If the disclosure of such information was IEG~ired on all applicatic' 
forros, c1o you believe tf,at ycu personc:Jly .. ·culc' be better atle to select ti 
credit cards that were best for you? 

YES NC) 

2. Do you believe that Federal Reeerve Beard distlosure, on a monthl~ 
basis, of a:l credit card ~ssuer's fees, interest rates, and terms of -
repayment wculd allow American consu~ers to comparison shop for the credit 
cards that were right for them? 

Wl',SHING"TON DC 2f!'JI,-· 

OFFICIAL BUSINESS 

L 

YES NO 

If vou want a list of 
low:interest-rate crecit 
card issuersj check here. 

7JtJ;-~ U.S,S, 
!i. ' 

'1.llf'J1,•'\f1>.,I\\.._-.Jil..: Iii~- f•lf_.,, 

11• ,,,,,.,~~~tt.,_1,1,1""'•\; IH: 1·",f.1! 

HE:.P US Fl'J'.: 

RAYLENE HELSLEY 
,;.,~,_. F,::!Si0"1 Lf 

~-5 E ~ L . 
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.DF AMERl·CA·.· 

A. non-profit consu~ers a~iation dedicated to protecting the inte~ests of bank cud holders. 

. . - ... 
. . 

'l'ESTIM>NY.OF:El.GIE·HOLSI'EIN 
ASSQCIATE.D~R 

· BANKCARD HOLDERS OF · AMERICA 
. BEFO~· THE· . 

LABOR, DIDUSTRY AND PROFESSicm CXHfiTTEE 
.. . . OF THE . 

NEW JERSEY SENATE 
APRIL 17, 1966 

I .. ·. am pleased to present.· testimony to·· the Carmi ttee today on bel'lalf of· · 
·the 130, 0000 . individual members Of· Bankcard . Holders of·. America ( BHA) • 
BHA ' is a nat:ional, . non~profi t oonsumer organization : dedicated to . 
infonning its members and . the pubiic about the rights . and 
responsibiltities of credit card users· .. BHA is the only national 
consumer group working· exclusively. on credit card issues and has 
participated activelyin'providing infonnationto state legisiative and 
Congressional carrnittees review.irig>credit card issues. 

We are· subni tting our · corments to you today because we believe that 
consumers are· paying . £ar too . much interest on the.ir credit card 
balemces; and because 'We believe that the terms under which they are 
billed for their card purchases remain a mystery to the citizens of New 
Jersey. .· We h$ve reached the unfortunate ·conclusion that legislation is · 
necessary here in New .Jersey and in other •states because the banks•are· 

.unwilling to adjust credit card interest rates to reflect the real cost 
of m:>ney in the econ::::my. . 

We are pleased th.at the Ne.,; Jersey Legislature is considering action to 
deal with these problems. t-;e. believe that as a leading financial 
market, New Jersey should .seize thfr opp::,rturrity to lead the nation in 

· the fight against. the.·h.igh credit card. interest rates currently gouging 
the riation' s 91 million credit card holders. 

The leg:i,slation before you today, $.1632, represents a fair canprcmise 
· between the interests of consumers and ·tlx)se of the New Jersey banks 
that issue credit cards.. Rather thari imp:)sing a flat ceiling on credit 
.card interest rates, which ·could prevent the banks .fran recovering 
their costs when interest rates throughout the econany rise, the bill 
would tie credit · card rates to a variable ceiling • pegged · to the 
interest rate of six-m:,nth Treasury bills. · That way, when· the banks' 
costs of m:>ney go up, credit card interest rates could be raised. But · 
when interest rates in the econ:::mJ go dcwn -- as they have been for the 

. last five years._.:.. consumers would pay iCMer interest cha.rges. 

The bankers argue that any measure: to restrict credit · card charges 
vX:>uld be an assau:l t on tr-ie canpetitve; free market in cr'edi t cards. B-.::: 
definition, ho.:,ever, car-V2tition re::;r..iires in.format::.on, but, ofter,, 



when interest ·rates in the econcmy. go dc:Mn· -- •·as ... they.hclve .. been for the 
last five years ---- consumers would pay lCMer interest charges. 

The bankers argue that any measure to . restrict credit· card charges 
would be an assault on the canpetitve, free market in credit card$. By 
definition, hc:Mever, canpetitioh requires infonna.tion, but, often, 
consumers carux>t learn the interest rate charged for a credit card 
until after the card has been issued. · 

Even after receiving a card, many consumers remain confused about the 
charges they will be incurring. The banking industry reassures us 
that all t~,ms and cond:l tions of their cards are clearly disclosed in 
the . l!Explanation of · Finance Charges If that accanpanies . consumers' 
nonthly statements. Such assurances are laughable, b:Mever, to anyone 
who has ever tried to verify their bill by attempting the mathematical 
gymnastics outlined in tiny print on the back. By canparison, IRS 
forms read like Dick and Jane primers. 

The uninfonnative advertising directed at prospective cardholders, and 
the canplicated fonnulas used to concoct nonthly credit card charges on 
existing cards, virtually guarantee that consumers will n:Jt be able to 
make informed choices arrong cards. 

This ongoing consumer confusion makes it possible for the banks to 
carrouflage the high cost of credit cards. They continue to restrict 
their "canpetition" to travel and entertainment frills instead of 
offering fair. interest rates. Thus, credit card advertisements and 
direct-mail solicitations emphasize "enhancements'' such as health club 
memberships, travel services, and b::x)k--,of-the-nonth clubs. In fact, 
many card advertisements make no reference at all to rates and fees. 
Consumers do want low-interest credit cards, but nost simply cannot 
find them since only a handful of banks offers thST',. 

fv'.oreover, credit card inte:r:-est rates remain at astrononical levels, in 
spite. of the continued drop of· every other interest rate in the 
econarr.1. Everyday, the newspapers, radio, and television ·· report the 
latest gcxx:l news stemning fran lower interest . rates. Auto loans are · 
do.-m, I-one loans are spurring a real estate b::x::.ln, the stock market is 
soaring. The rates for every other ty;>e of consumer loan rate have 
fallen dramatcally. The discount rate --- a major indicator of the 
banks' CMI"l costs of. noney -- fell again last nonth to seven percent, 
exactly fifty percent belcw its 1981 level.. Yet in that same period of 
tune, credit card interest rates have actually gone up: fran 17 .8% in 
1981 to a CUITent national average of 18.8%. -· · · 

Here in New Jersey, which has the highest usury rate limit of any state 
in the nation, banks are charging close to the national average. 

Nationally, many of the big noney-center banks are charging even nore, 
despite erijoying high econanies of scale in their la...-rge credit card 
operations. Tne. twenty-five largest issuers of credit cards are 
chargirig an average interest rate of 19 . 4% 

Undoubtedly, one rr.ajor concern of this ccrrrrJ.ttee in. revie·.dn;;- the 

/C 7k 



noney,. were squeezing their profits. Many banks, after winnmJ the 
repeal or increase of the l;1Sl.liy limits, m:wed acyway, seeking rrore 
favorable tax treabnent and labor costs. 

According to this brand .of econcmic blaekmail, New Jersey banks slx>uld 
be free.fran any state regulation that might prevent.them £ran.charging 
as much as their out"'°f-state colleagues. By their definition of 
canpetition, making as much m:::mey as the banks in Delaware is rrore 
important than protecting their custoners. fran unnecessarily high fees. 

The fact is that if this legislation is approved, canpetition could 
actually be enhanced if New•. Jersey banks began to advertise · the 
o:>nSllmer benefits of sh:)pping with a New Jersey bank cred:i.;t card, just 
as they.OCM advertise their latest bargains.on.other oansumer loans. 
M:>reover, a number of banks, :including ttx:,se in Arkansas and Washington 
State are charging ipterest rates far below those · here in New Jersey, 
and last we 108ked, banks in tlx)se states are still happily dispensing 
credit cards. · · · 

Sane banking ·industry. ·representatives have suggested that high credit 
card charges are necessary · to recoup the . losses . they incurred 
previously. It is frightening to imagine that banks mi$3'ht try to 
recover fran the nation's 90 million credit·· card consumers the losses 
they suffered through bad judgernent on energy, agricultural, and 
foreign loans. On credit cards, loss rates have remained just over 1% 
of loan volume, and card operations have emerged as a1e of the rrost 
profitable areas of.banking. 

In addition, interest rates represent only one way in which banks make 
money •on. credit ·cards~ Annual. fees, transaction fees, merchant 
dis08unt fees, and over-,.1:imi t fees all add to the revenues of card 
operations. . Annua.l · fees, which did not exist wher1 cards were first 
issued, were imposed specifically to cover the high administrative 
costs the banks canplain aoout. 

A final argument made by the banking industry against this legislation 
is that by· reducing the banks' profits, it will cause a severe 
reduction in · the availabi1i ty of consumer credit, especially to tix:,se 
with lo.,.; incanes. It is true that lo.,.;er profit margins may force 
greater scrutiny by the banks of those to wh:rn they send so-called 
"pre-approved" card offers and other forms of mass marketing appeals. 
But this is what the banks are supp:;:)sed to be doing. Instead, they rDN 
force the majority of cor1sumers to subsidize through high card charges 
the granting of credit to those who may not be able to afford credit 
card loans. 

This is oot to say, h::Mever, that such consumers sh:>uld or would be 
left without.alternatives. For example,· personal loans and h::me equity 
loans are available at ra.tes far below ITDst credit card interest rates. 
For th::>se who want the convenience of a credit card but whose incane or 
credit history make it difficult to obtain a conventional card, 
"collaterized" cards are available with credit limits tied to a dep::>sit 

· account balance. · Finally, it sh:)uld be roted that with 700 million 
credit ca.....--as already in Amercan.s' hands, it is ha...--a to in1agine that we 



are in danger of developing a shortage of credit cards. 

No one· is opposed to the banks making a· fair profit on their credit 
cards, but their · needs must. be balanced with the interests of 
cardholders. As. we learned in 1929, the.econcmic health of our natiori 
depends to a large extent on the. faith and trust of the public in OL1r 
financial institutions. · As. the. members of this cx:mni. ttee krXM well, 
state. and federal regulation of banking activities exists rot to 
penalize ·. the financial cx::rrmunity, but to prevent the kinds of abuses 
that undennine public confidence. 

Financial deregulation, which has accelerated at the state and-federal 
levels in recent years, brings with it a responsibility for fai:mess in 
dealing witlr ... Americ,ms' hard-·earned doll:~. By keeping interest rabas 
artificially high and disguising the hidden and costly terms of credit 
cards, banks are taking unfair advantage of consumers. 

In any legislation intended to protect consumers frCJT\ unreasonably high 
credit card charges, Bankcard Holders of America urges this cannittee 
to consider the follooing.actions: 

1. As in the legislation before you, credit card interest rates should 
be tied to sane econ:rnic index that reflects the cost to the banks of 
born:Ming rroney, plus sane margin for costs and profits. 

2. '!here should be improved disclosure laws requiring the praninent 
and understandable display in all advertising and in all statements 
accanpaning nonthly bills of the terms and conditions applicable to 
credit cards. 

3. There should be greater unifonni ty and simplicity in the 
calculation of interest charges so that, for example, a grace period is 
required for all current-nonth charges, regardless of whether an unpaid 
balance has beer, carried o·ver frc::m the previous nonth. 

4. L:imi ts should be placed upon the imposition of additional fees, 
such as annual fees, over-limit charges, ·transaction fees, etc. 

Finally, I thank the Ccmn.i ttee for this opportunity to preser1t the 
views of Ba.""lkcard Holders of America. 'Ihese are i.rnp:Jrtant issues to 
the citizens of New Jersey and to the nation, and we appreciate your 
attention to them. 
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SENATE LABOR~ INOUS;~~o:~DT~~•F-ESS:IONS COMMITTEE 
· .. APRIL 17. i986 

Mr. Chairman •. Membe,..s of the Committee. mv name is Samuel .:J. 

Damiano. F'resi dent· of the New Je.rsev Council of S~vi hgs In.sti tuti ens• . . 

an organization.of savings banks state and .federally chartered. 
. . . 

I am here tad~~ ori behaff of that ind~strv to speak in coMnection 

with a se~ies of bills addressing fate ceilings arid credit card 

advances. 
. . -· . 

Briefly, we shoLl.l d note that savings banks in New Jersev are 
. ' : . 

·recent e~trants into the credit card busine~s with less than 10 
. . 

ihvolved in som~ for/Tl of credit.card services ••. We. are unaware of anv 

abuses being imposed. upon the c:onsLtmer as a result of. 0L1r activity. 

which Was grant~d bv state st~tL1te and en•cted in response to custo~er 
·. - ·. . .. ·• . -.. . . . . 

demand for e:-:panded: credit card servic:es in Ne~-.i Jersev. 

· Admittedly, .ent~y into this ~arket has been slow. High interest 
. . . 

rates, deregulation. n~w competition and matters important to thE; 

overall ope,..ation of savings banks has preoccupied the industry. That 

coupled with the .administration of a credit c:ard pro9ram. the_ in-~~al 

invE;,!st,ment. training, susceptibility to fraud and the like. cert·ainly 

has contribut~d to our slow entry. 
. ~ . . . 

As you .know. on M~.rch 31st we Sq.W the end to interest rate 

11DY 



ceilings on all deposit accounts suggesting that the cost of funds 

will inevitably rise, i-f -for no other reason, purely as a result of 
• 

competition. Increased c:osts o~ funds require management to seek out· 

increased returns on investments. Having surv-ived the period pf the 

early BO's, the industry today is giving its total concentration, 

' after massive J.osses to a return tc profitrability. The .aitternative tc 

maintaining a profit margin in today·~ envi.ronment is to discontinue 

offering the se~vices. Simply stated, no one should be happy about 

keeping their savings in an institution that is losing money. 

The market must be allowed to function on both sides of the 

ledger. A reduction in services will force thos~ whci ne~d the 

services. to go el~ewhe~e. and possibly not in their best interests.· 

The Federal Reserve Board testifying before the United States 

Senate Banking Subcommittee recently, let it be known that they opposE 

legislation that wbuld set ceilings on the interest rates that mav-be 

charged by banks and other issuers on cr~dit cards. They argue •nd I 

quote "regulatory measures can have .Lmpredi ctabl e and Lmwarrantl:?d 

conseqLtences," suggesting that the issu.ance of cards to fewer people 

by credit card companies could be a direct result of artificial 

ceilings, adding that such ar, action could maf:e it more difficult for­

low income people gaining access to credit opportunities. 

Dr. F'aul Na.dl er. F'rof essor- of Finance at the Graduate School of 

t1i.,na9ement. Rut 9er $ University. has said on the subject "Linder the 

g u i s e 'of pr- o t e c t 1 n q t h e b or- r DI'>' er 1•1 e a r- e r e 2d 1 v 1 i mi t i n g h 1 s ab i 1 i t v t c 

borrow and h1s fr~edom to obtain the money he wants and is willing to 

1/I X 



pay fer". 

Ideally, we would rather see adequate disclosure tc the publics 

that th~re is no question. The ~cnsumer should know the terms under 

which he er she is borrowing and we endorse wholeheartedly, this, as 

the more viable alternative to the impdsition of any controls • 

espe.ci al 1 y during these final phases cf deregulation. 

We believe S 1561, if it touches on all providers. would 

accom~lish that objective. 

I thank you for the opportunity to comment and will be happy tc 

respond to any questions vou mav have. 

-30 
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JAMES J. HOWARD 
30 DISTRICT, NEW .JERSEY 

. .\ 

CHAIRMAN 
COMMITTEE _9N PUBLIC WORKS 

AND TRANSPORTATION 

WASHINGTON OFFICE: 

2245 RAYBURN HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING 

WASH,.NGTON, DC 205 I 5 

. TELEPHONE: (202) 225-4671 

~ongres.s or thf ilnittd ~tares 
i~onsg of Rqircscntatincs 

~ashingron, ·19¢ 205.15 

Honorable Raymond Lesniak 
Statehou~e Annex 
Room 259 
Trenton, Ne1v Jersey 08625 

Dear Senator Lesniak: 

Apri 1 24, 1986 

lilSTIUCT OFFICES' 

808 BELMAR PLAZA 
8ELM .. R .. NJ 0771 S 

TELEPHONE: (201) 68.1-33;. 

169 HIGHWAY 36 
BELFORD. NJ 077 18 

TELf'liOl!E: (201) 495-IOOc 

1174 FISCHER BLVC. 

TOMS RIVER. NJ 08 7~ 3 
. TELt,H0NE! (201) 929-14(· 

Thank you for your invitation to testify be.fore your committee on 
April 17. Unfortunately, as the House v-•as in session, I was unable to 
attend. Please find enclosed, however, a copy of my testimony for the 

"·· 

record. 

With best regards, I am 

JJH/nf:cmr 
Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

Ji:YES J. HO',✓ i'.'..RD 
I 

Member of Con9res s 

11.JX 
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TESTIMONY . QLBE.e... JAMES · J_ HOWARD 
BEFORE THE COMMITTEE ON LABOR, INDUSTRY, AND PROFESSIONS 

NEW JERSEY ST A TE SENA TE 
APRIL 17, 1986 

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to present testimony to your 

committee to address a problem facing millions of Americans; one which has 

a special significance for inhabitants ofNew Jersey who live in the economic 

shadow of iarge New York City banks. I speak of the usurious rates charged by 

banks to consumers on credit card loans. 

In l 98 i, the economy lent itself to high interest rates. The prime rate 

was. I 7.5% and inf lat ion was reaching the unprecedented figure of 14%. It 

was reasonable in 1981 that the interest rates on credit cards had climbed to 

18%. However. in January 1926 wnen inflation is a shade over 4%, credit card 

interest rates for many of the colmtrys largest banks haa cl impe,j to 19.8%. 

t 1":o.r 1v· +-h;.- "'0 mcne.t.-.-.fQ'"' +-hat nor,-Q,l"\"'Om;c non-marK··et fn'"'"ee. ar 0 ·~c+-ina -1C'u 1. I,. 1.=, i_.w,1,1 I-:.; u ...... ~ 1..1 '-: , ..,,..Uil ;!:· , ,I . , ., -- . .JI\...··- ,._ ~ ._, -· 

ucon these ;Jtes. 

loans. Month lv bi 11 ma, ·3rnan ormc 1oai. amo·Jnts .. ana :he ooe!i natt..:;e of tne 
I .., • 

c;-e,j~t are :ec~tirnat-e re~scr.s foi ~- s·:1c~t1\/ h~cne: c~'::t. Yet these ;etna~~~ - - -
.,.. ~ : .A.;, 1 \,,.:. i v·. ,- !-. !) •';, ;' 7-! r· t a-,..~ ti :- -::Sn r, ,, r· C:. V ,..~ 1 '.':; ~ r, ~ r"'- e :"""''"' p ~ t" :--i ~ ,:: r,. ''.'H""' ~ t \ ! ""'i=.i 1" '4,; ~ Cl r"', ;,- r-- Ci'-: r .- -~ r""· ,-, 
J ...,,...,.1 ... ,1,1._1_ 1._.\Jl!,_._w 11. !.,\.i \,,,,t... 1,1v ,_,,u,w,,I 1..1! ~' __ .... .._ . .J,_,...,l_.i1 •-t •.. ,;•-:-''•-'' ._ _ _. ..... _ _,_ . .., 

. . . . . . - - . ' . . , . . . . . .. 
ioans ana otner can!<. !oans ty rar, tne n1,~nes: anc rnc·3t var'.,rn•e ccst ,_o 

;-, :.r,~· ,:_ l .:.r,,-;; r-1'1 t" .- r-c,d it' ,- -;,r--- ;.-, .-. 1 der-::. ; .:_ +"he ,- ,;-:. t "~ ...,.. .-. .--,:,,' Tk.:a 'o,=.•=., j, ,,..;,...,=, ,-J U;...,_,-,. __ ,,..,,;·.~! '°=' '-'-' \..,1""' I \..,\-' \,,I 11\JI , _ t- '- ! ._.._,_._ VI ,!i\JJ!\..y. ti\.. --·'-- .!\-'"-'~'- -..1 1 

H-,;,::: ,-;;,-t i•:::.th. ·e ;n+-,::.r,:,r:, .. rato ,;n H;r"c mont' h Tre::.1:::ur·,.1 ;.,;11-:: - ,-,,,..,.:.r."1" :;~ 
lo. I l.' .; 1-. ,_, ~ • . - i_ ! i I • \. ._. l .... - I,. ! .. '- -..I I (.. I i r. ._ I l J ' : . l.,.li _, I / u ! ' I ...; ._ '-.I I ! ,_ I ·- .-~· ·~ ·-

since 1981 Howeve:. credit card interest rates nave csnt1nuec :re':-
in·evor,:,.,-.,- ,..;i:1:1 It 1·,.. t1·rn- for the '"'ngre,..~ to ,·on•-:::i.,_-l.:.r r;,..-:::t ~,..,,...; r,, ... c.r,-,,,,::• •r,.:. 1 , •. ·CJa...•:~il~:--- .:>1-. ~1 1 ·-U. ~,:,. '- i-1, .... \..• !ll_, .... u1! ...... ~,•_,,,1v_,.,,,_,,._ 

I nt ere st Pat e L.1 rn 1 ta t1 on A. c : cf l 9 8 :, . w ri i c !"i of fer s the best of D ,:; ~ r: T; an: e: 



determination of rates and federal protection of the consumer. This bjil 

would require the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board to 

investigate the problem of high credit card interestrates. If the Fed finds 
. 

that market forces are determining these interest rates, then no federal · 

action will be taken. If, however, the opposite is true and interest rates on 

credit card loans are not competitive, then a federal ceiling will be 

instituted. This ceiling, adjusted quarterly, would be equal to the interest 

rate on three month T-bills plus an_additionai 6%. The cap would be dependent 

upon the average T-bi 11 rate during the second month of the preceeding 

quarter in order to allow banks ample time to adjust their lending rates 

accordingly. 

l·n·a1·ca· t' ion· or· +"'e ~nort' -ri:-rm cric:t or· m- onc.\,'i_ b!J+,_ it ic: ;:i ,.-::.f,;, :""lcrcr-';'l;r,c:,,.; r--y H"\Q ' .... :1"""' I .. ,..,,1 -- ,, .,, •1,..,_..,i!'..,ll'-'-)dh. '(,.}-:tfh( ....• 

m?.r-1,,ct t,. r;aure or· ;:...v '"'yi:>r- rki:, -I -k 111 P":"11'Q -:;ll,,,., .... 'b-:;r-l,,-,- ;.o ,..omo.:.tQ Wit' k :w• • ... F~1 l i_ · · v,o v 'J' ... i,._, w,11 1-:..~,_ -:...;_:, ... ,v~. ~~,:\~ ._ ~- ;_'\..-.."" ; ii 

eacr: other witriin a ranee of interest rates. H.P. 3'108 v-1ou1d. 1n addition. 
J . , 

1 ncrea-=e-=- -=ix '"qonth·=- in aavanc0 c::uch law-= --er,,e ,-,,.iv;." inn1bi;. "h0 1owi:.rina I I-·--• I, I,,,_ lw.'ta.l ,_ . .:)1'1 -.J•:.·-'!a/.,! --..1,,..,,_, •-11,_, 

An interest rate of 6% over the T-bi11 rate is not unreas,cnab1y 1ow 

Smaller ban~;s a1readv have c:-ec:it care :-ates nearino tr11s fiaure: Or-i1c: s Ge:n 
i - -· 

BArll( 1·~ :,.t J<'q;' anl'i thw c::1·rY'm"r"t'-- banL· hac:r-ar·e~ at !">C::'7 Lar{"1,::.r "ar1k"'" \,,,ii ... _ u ... ..J,o 11w ... J '- -...1 !II 1v.,.:> r, 1 _ 1· .. ~ ... ,L . ..;tc; ~,_,, LJ ,.·~:i 

maintain much hiaher credit cara loan rates. As of Januar'/ Citicorc, Bar:k of 
..I I_. 

Amer1ca, the First National Bank of Chicago, anc Chase ~~artiattar: a1 1 r:ad 

credit card interest rates set at 19.8%. The large banks can be comcetitive. 

how "\✓ "r "·10r-0ly thrp.:. 1,ve.:.lc~ ~ft.:.r t",,·,,c:: hill wa-=. ;ntru-rq,,-.:,,-, Man;J:;,-,,,.-c.rc , C ~ •. l 1\.,1 •-1 1 -.11 -'- ¥ w1.- 1..,; _._, ... - ...,.,! _, l,, \,.;._.,._~,..., .,1, ....,,u._ ... ui 'C,' _, 
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Hanover lowered its rates to 17.8% to show a wi 11 ingness to cooperate. Yet to 

my knowledge few, if any, banks have followed suit. 

r,1r. Chairman, I do not view this legislation as undue government 

intervention in the market as many contend it is. On the .contrary, HR. 3408 

is an attempt to bring back market competitiveness and to end an ol igarc:hic 

situation. It is also an essential step inprotecting the holders of the United 

States' 700 million credit cards. When banks.can borrow at the Federal 

Reserve·s discount window at an interest rate of 6.5% and lend to credit card 

users at a rate of 19.8%, the consumer's best interest is obviously not being 

served. I hope ! have your support on thi_s issue. Thank you. 

-.-,,.f-' 



SCHOOL OF LA.IA' 

Seton Hall 
University 

111.1 Ravmnnd Bllult>vard; Nt>\\"ark. Nt>w )t>rsPy 07 W2 

April 14, 1986 

Senator Raymond J. Lesnia}: 
Labor, Industry and Professional Comn';ittee 
State House Annex 
C:\068 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Re: Credit Card Interest Rates 

Dear Senator Lesniak: 

I understancl. that the co:nr.',ittee v.-ill hole hearings ore April 17, l98f 
on various bills in connection with credit ca~d interest rates. I 
c.:--- ·0~~·2t·~.::-· tc, 2.·:.-t.E·:--::~ t·}-_·f he2l'""jr~c: . 
- ' ., 
..J..C'\·,-t:-2.·::.r~c ~(:.-·=~=-~ .... -. - ,.- ·;_ 

- c,.. ...... -
. -

C :·~ 2 ;.· a C •= :-:. ;~...:. t... 

!"~-c-.:-~--.-c J. , J \(r.: ·t-·e· i :r~:- 5-0~:-._;1:=irt c,.~ 
-=-- r. ·~ ~- C : : - ·- c&r::s. ] 6-:.· E-:· Lt:.CG....,.,·£:·:: 

:-.f tf.·c: Ge\~.cstctin·s e,_fftc·t 1-!--iC~-~ _.;_~t:-.:-:=-~-~· -1- 2. t e E. no~\-: c;-:arce~ 01. care:': 
have o~ ]ower incc~~ i~~ivi~u21~. 

8\-er the yec:.rs l r.2' c ::J::::·,n:o.,:·e::te:' ::.2:~y lrn-:e1· irco:-:-,e incividu2ls J.," 
1::-..-·.,rur-+c\- prc~,:,e,-C'~,-,. (,n-, 0,;: t\-c,-r~tterr- \··••oc·~ e.-rerae-c +yo•· rr•· o. .. l:-.. ·t:-''-- ._ .1\_ .,::·_,,,_____~_,.:,:: ~. · ...... ,~~e .J.- .1~-- ~c. ~ .. ::: \~.:- ._~- .!.,I_ ..J ;:_ J.. '·: ~:_. 

e::-::::ieriSncE: is tr:a:. o: tr,e lm·.'er inco:-, E. consu::.e2- F110 becomes so f.i­
nancially strapped bec&use of credit card indebtedness that there 
is no alternative other t:-,2.r. bankruptcy. Typic2.l ly, · a lower income co;. -
sumer acquires sever&l cards with credit lines between $750~and $1500. 
Once an unpaid balanoe is carried on an account high interest rates· 
rr,eans that eve.r" \rLile the consumer rr.a~:es minirr,ur:-; monthly payr.ierJts anc~ 
refrains frorr current purchases on the cards, he/she makes little 
progress in reducin? the unpcid b~lance. Thus the cost of past cc:~­
su::r-.ptior: becomes & "fixed" expense &nc neit~,er rr::mey nor credit is 
available for current consumption. Ir, these circumstances, ever, a 
short period of unemployment often causes a consumer to fall hopeless~ 
ly behind on these debts. 

Lo~er credit car6 interes~ rates ~ould, cf ccurse, benefit alJ co~­
sumers. The gre&test benefit ~ould bE to lo~· inco~e consu~ers whc 
experience real hardshir in meeting the hig~ cost of credit card usE. 

~ i nc·c·rc~ \: 

!·-::._c!:2,c: c.~~;c· lcucLl :i :-: 
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LEGAL SERVICES OF NEW JERSEY 
78 New Street · 

New Brunswick,·New Jel'$ey089Q1-2583 
(201) 246:()TTO . . 

April 17, 1986 

TESTIMONY TO THE NEW JERSEY SENATE LABOR, 
INDUSTRY AND PROFESSIONS COMMITTEE ON 
CREDIT CARD J:NTEREST RATES: S.1632 ETC. 

THE .ORGANIZATION 
OF NEW JERSEY . 

LEGAL SERVICES PROGRAMS 

Berge. n County·=· . . Se. rvice .. s Camden Reaional. · Services 
Cape-Atlantlc.LQI rvices 
&lex-Newark Legal Services 
Hudson County .. ~Services 
Hunterdon County · Service 
Leaal.. Aid~ of •. rcerCounr Miadlesex County ua.1 Services . 
l,.egal Aid.Society Of Morris County 
Ocean-Monmouth Legal Services 
Ptu188ic County Legar Aid Society 
Sornerset-Susaex legal Services 
Union County Legal Services 
Warren County Legal· Services 

Legal Services of New Jersey supports S. 1632, ~ bill which would 

limit interest rates on credit cards. 

Legal Services of. New Jersey, Inc. is a non-profit corporation founded 
and funded by the 14 independent Legal Services projects serving the 
State of New Jersey, to assist them in their efforts to render effective 
legal representation to indigent clients unable to retain private counsel. 
Attorneys from the county Legal Services projects commonly encounter 
and assist clients with problems relating to c.redit, financial distress 
and bankruptcy. Legal.Services of New Jersey sponsors a task force 
where attorneys from th€ various county projects gather to discuss 
specifically problems in the Consumer and Bankruptcy areas. I am a 
Legal Services attorney who specializes in consumer and bankruptcy cases. 

Legal Services of New Jersey wishes to bear witness that the interest 
rate on credit cards is not solely a problem of middle class consumers, 
but affects low income. people as well. We find that a substantial number 
of.the eligible clients whomwe counsel·and represent about financial 

. problems have credit card debts. Sometimes our clients have procured 
. credit cards despite having low incomes; other times they obtained the cards 
. while they were enjoying adequate incomes before an unforeseen descent into 

indigency. It is the nature of credit cards to induce consumers to gamble 
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that they will have money tomorrow to pay for the goods and s.ervices they . 
enjoy today. Sometimes they lose that gamble due to illness, loss of 
employment, or marital breakup--things that.they could n.ot .anticipate-­
and then they are left with reduced incomes but ever-mo1.µ1ting credit card 
debts. Thus interest on credit cards is a subject of great concern to 
Legal Services. 

The second point I wish to make is that the level of interest rates is more 
than an academic matter; more than a mere shifting of money from one pocket 
to another. For upper-income people, interest rates only .affect how much 
money they pay; and that is important enough. But for low-income people, 
interest rates also determine whether they can pay back their debts or must 
go into default. 

On a credit card debt of $1000, if the interest rate is 20% APR a consumer 
has to pay $200 per year just to stay even. A person who has just that much 
money can just stay even; a person who has less to spend cannot. The lower 
the interest rate, the more people there will be who can pay their way out 
of credit card debt rather than face default. 

Presently, credit cards are a major component of the debts of people we 
represent in :bankruptcy. Yet a lot of people call me in financial distress 
and say, "Isn't there some way I could just stop the interest from piling up? 
Then I could pay off my debts." I have to tell them that there isn't any 
way, and if they can't keep up with the interest they are likely to end up 
in bankruptcy as much as they would like to avoid it. 

There is a way that thi.s Legislature coulc: help, by making t.l-iat interest pile 
up slower. The market alone has not accomr,lished this: consumers are not 
powerful enough to demand lower rates; they may not even appreciate the problem 
until they find themselves in over their heads. Rates on credit cards for our 
clients have not come down as other interest rates have. We conclude that if 
the Legislature does not do something to help, rio one will. For this reason 
we endorse S.1632. 

Submitted by: Gail Chester, Esq. 
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